
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
           
I. MINUTES   

A. August 18, 2020 
 
II. PRESENTATIONS 

A. (15 minutes) RHIC Primer – MaryJo 
B. (45 minutes) Callan – Asset Liability Study Results 

 
III. RETIREMENT 

A. Asset Liability Study – Bryan (Board Action) 
B. Investment Consultant RFP Update – Bryan (Information)  
C. Quarter 2 Investment Report – Bryan (Information) 
D. 457 and 401(a) Renewal Discussion – Rebecca (Board Action) 
E. De Minimis & Internal Review Policies – Derrick & Rebecca (Board Action) 

 
IV. GROUP INSURANCE 

A. Deloitte Pharmacy Carve Out Study – Rebecca (Information) 
B. Health Plan RFP *Executive Session – Bryan (Board Action) 
C. FlexComp Voluntary Insurance Products – Rebecca (Board Action) 
D. Life Insurance Plan Renewal – Rebecca (Board Action) 
E. Sanford Health Plan Update on COVID-19 and Virtual ID Card -- Rebecca   

(Information) 
 

V. MISCELLANEOUS   
A. Audit Committee May Meeting Minutes – Shawna (Information) 
B. Actuarial Primer – Scott (Information) 
C. Legislation – Scott (Information) 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

*Executive Session pursuant to NDCC §44-04-19.1(9) and §44-04-19.2 to discuss 
negotiating strategy or provide negotiating instructions to its attorney or other negotiator. 
Motion required.  
 
 
Any individual requiring an auxiliary aid or service must contact the NDPERS ADA Coordinator at 
328-3900, at least 5 business days before the scheduled meeting. 

       Due to public health 
considerations, and in  

accordance with Executive  
Order 2020-16, a meeting room will  

not be available to the public. 
 

Conference Call #: 701.328.7850 
Connect to this meeting: 1415001# 

               
 
 Time: 8:30 AM Tuesday, September 8, 2020 

Page 1 of 365



 
 
 
 

            Fax: (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website  https://ndpers.nd.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   MaryJo 
 
DATE:   September 8, 2020 
 
SUBJECT:  Retiree Health Insurance Credit (RHIC) 
 
 
An overview of the NDPERS Retiree Health Insurance Credit (RHIC) programs and 
services will be provided at the meeting.  The presentation is attached. 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377  

Page 2 of 365



Retiree 
Health 
Insurance
Credit

Attachment

Page 3 of 365



What is the RHIC Program?

 Established under NDCC 54-52.1-03.2

 Funded by your employer during 
working years

 Reduces cost of eligible insurance premiums 
paid during retirement years

Page 4 of 365



Who is eligible for RHIC?
 Public Safety 
 Judges
 Highway Patrol
 Job Service
 Main Plan – only if hired before Jan 1, 2020
 Defined Contribution  – only if hired before Jan 1, 2020

 NDPERS members currently receiving an ongoing 
retirement check at least annually

 Surviving spouses receiving an ongoing retirement 
benefit or RHIC joint and survivor benefit 

Page 5 of 365



Calculation
 NDPERS calculates monthly RHIC benefit for 

each member upon retirement

 Based upon each year employed and 
receiving eligible service credit 

 Calculation: $5.00 x Years of Service 
 Actuarially reduced with early retirement

 Retiree Benefit Amount
 Annual summary statement
 Online: Member Self Service (MSS) account

Page 6 of 365



Eligible Premiums
 ANY Health Insurance Premiums (including Medicare 

Part B &  Medicare Supplements Plans)

 ANY Prescription Drug Plans (Medicare Part D)

Effective August 1, 2019
 ANY Dental Premiums
 ANY Vision Premiums  
 ANY Long-Term Care Premiums 

 Applies to premiums incurred as contract holder or 
covered dependent

Page 7 of 365



Premiums Not Eligible
 Insurance plans subsidized through the federal health 

care exchange or tax credit

 Life Insurance 

 Supplemental Insurance Plans
Accident
Disability 
Cancer

 Pre-tax insurance premiums
Page 8 of 365



ASIFlex
 Specialized in benefit administration for large 

public sector entities since 1987

 Located in Columbia, Missouri

 Services Provided:
 RHIC Record-keeping
 RHIC Claims Review and Payment
 RHIC Customer Service

Page 9 of 365



How do retirees receive 
RHIC reimbursement?
 If you have NDPERS insurance premiums

 NDPERS automatic reimbursement with ASIFlex
 No action required unless RHIC amount is higher 

than NDPERS premium expenses

 If you have non-NDPERS insurance premiums
 RHIC became “portable” July 1, 2015
 Submit a claim to ASIFlex for reimbursement

Page 10 of 365



Claim Submission
1. RHIC Claim Form
2. Provide Documentation

 Dates of coverage period
 Type of insurance
 Premium amount

3. Proof of Payment
 Pay stub
 Bank statement
 Cancelled check
 Credit card receipt
 Electronic payment

Page 11 of 365



Claim Processing
 May claim up to available RHIC benefit amount 

each month
 May submit premium expenses at any  frequency 

throughout the plan year
 July 1, 2019 – June 30, 2020
 July 1, 2020 – Dec 31, 2020 (6-month interim)
 Jan 1, 2021 – Dec 31, 2021 New Plan Year!

 Processed daily
 Payment issued 2-3 business days
 Recurring Claims

 Social Security Annual Statement - Medicare 
Part B and Prescription Drug (Part D) deductions

Page 12 of 365



Reimbursement Deadline

September 30th
following the close of the plan year

on June 30th

Page 13 of 365



NEW Reimbursement Deadline

March 31st
following the close of the plan year

on Dec 31st

Page 14 of 365



Communication to Membership
May 2019, Oct 2019, and Feb 2021 

Page 15 of 365



Combining RHIC  (August 1, 2007)

 Spouses must both be receiving a NDPERS monthly 
retirement benefit and may combine their respective 
RHIC benefit

 Must enroll in one NDPERS family health insurance plan

 Only one RHIC account is setup at ASIFlex 

 Surviving spouses receiving retirement benefits may be 
eligible to use the credit of a deceased spouse 

Page 16 of 365



Questions?

Page 17 of 365



 
 
 
 

            Fax: (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website  https://ndpers.nd.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   Bryan 
 
DATE:   September 8, 2020 
 
SUBJECT:  Asset Liability Study – Callan Presentation 
 
 
 
 
Julia Moriarty and Paul Erlendson from Callan will present the findings of the 
Asset Liability Study for the NDPERS Main plan and Retiree Health Insurance 
Credit (RHIC) plan.  
 
 
 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377  

Page 18 of 365



North Dakota PERS 

2020 Asset -Liability Study 

August 27, 2020 

Alex Browning 
Fund Sponsor Consulting 

Paul Erlendson 
Fund Sponsor Consulting 

Julia Moriarty, CFA 
Capital Market Research 

Attachment - Main Plan

Page 19 of 365



1 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Agenda 

Introduction and Process Overview 

Asset Allocation 

Asset-Liability Modeling 

Liquidity and Stress Testing  

Recommendation 

Next Steps and Timeline 

Appendix 

Page 20 of 365



Introduction and Process Overview 

Page 21 of 365



3 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Introduction 

The goal of the asset-liability study is to determine an appropriate long-term mix between return-seeking assets 
(e.g., equities, real assets, alternatives) and risk-mitigating assets (cash, fixed income) 
●80-90% of funded status volatility is driven by the broad asset allocation decision

Asset allocation will vary by the unique circumstances of the plan 
●No “one-size-fits-all” solution exists

The asset-liability study helps NDPERS quantify the impact that different strategies might have on relevant metrics 

Factors to consider: 
– Liability characteristics

– Funded status

– Contribution policy

– Time horizon

– Liquidity needs

Page 22 of 365



4 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Where Does Asset Allocation Fit In? 

Evaluate the interaction of three key policies to identify the optimal investment policy 

Investment Policy 
– How will the assets

supporting the benefits be
invested?

– What risk and return
objectives?

– How to manage cash
flows? 

Funding Policy 
– How will the

benefits/deficits be paid
for (funded)?

– What are the actuarial
assumptions to use?

Benefits Policy 
– What type/kind of benefits?
– What level of benefit?
– When and to whom are they

payable?

Investment 
Policy 

Funding 
Policy 

Benefits 
Policy 

Page 23 of 365



5 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Callan Asset-Liability Modeling Process 

Asset Modeling Liability Modeling 

Define Capital Market 
Assumptions 

Define Liability 
Assumptions 

Build Actuarial Liability 
Model 

Create Asset Mix 
Alternatives 

Simulate 
Financial Conditions 

Define 
Risk Tolerance 

Select  
Appropriate Target Mix 

Page 24 of 365



Asset Allocation 

Page 25 of 365



7 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Callan Capital Market Process and Philosophy 

Underlying beliefs guide the development of the projections 
●An initial bias toward long-run averages 

●An awareness of risk premiums 

●A presumption that markets ultimately clear and are rational 

Reflect our belief that long-term equilibrium relationships between the capital markets and lasting trends in global 
economic growth are key drivers to setting capital market expectations 

Long-term compensated risk premiums represent “beta”—exposure to each broad market, whether traditional or 
“exotic,” with limited dependence on successful realization of alpha 

The projection process is built around several key building blocks 
●Advanced modeling at the individual asset class level (e.g., a detailed bond model, an equity model) 

●Pathways for both interest rates and inflation 

●A cohesive economic outlook 

●A framework that encompasses Callan’s beliefs about the long-term operation and efficiencies of the capital 
markets 

 

Page 26 of 365



8 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

The Focus is on Broad Asset Classes 

Equity 

U.S. 

Large C
ap 

Sm
all C

ap 

Non-U.S. 
D

eveloped 

Em
erging 

Debt 

U.S. 

Investm
ent 

G
rade 

H
igh Yield 

Non-U.S. 

D
eveloped 

Em
erging 

Asset Class 

Sub-Asset Class 

Breakdowns between investment styles within asset classes (growth vs. value, large cap vs. small cap) are best 
addressed in a manager structure analysis 

Primary asset classes and important sub-asset classes include: 
●U.S. Stocks 

●U.S. Bonds 

●Non-U.S. Stocks 

●Non-U.S. Bonds 

●Real Estate 

●Private Equity 

●Absolute Return 

●Cash 

Page 27 of 365



9 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Callan Capital Market Assumptions 
Risk and return: 2020–2029 
 

* Geometric returns are derived from arithmetic returns and the associated risk (standard deviation). 
 

– Most capital market 
expectations represent 
passive exposure (beta only); 
however, return expectations 
for private market investments 
reflect active management 
premiums 

– Return expectations are net of 
fees 

Asset Class Index Projected Return* Projected Risk

Equities
Broad U.S. Equity Russell 3000 7.15% 18.10%
Large Cap U.S. Equity S&P 500 7.00% 17.70%
Small/Mid Cap U.S. Equity Russell 2500 7.25% 21.20%
Global ex-U.S. Equity MSCI ACWI ex USA 7.25% 20.50%
Developed ex-U.S. Equity MSCI World ex USA 7.00% 19.70%
Emerging Market Equity MSCI Emerging Markets 7.25% 25.70%

Fixed Income
Short Duration Gov't/Credit Bloomberg Barclays 1-3 Yr G/C 2.70% 2.10%
Core U.S. Fixed Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate 2.75% 3.75%
Long Government/Credit Bloomberg Barclays Long G/C 2.75% 10.60%
TIPS Bloomberg Barclays TIPS 2.40% 5.05%
High Yield Bloomberg Barclays High Yield 4.65% 10.25%
Global ex-U.S. Fixed Bloomberg Barclays Glbl Agg xUSD 0.90% 9.20%
Emerging Market Sovereign Debt EMBI Global Diversified 4.35% 9.50%

Other
Core Real Estate NCREIF ODCE 6.25% 14.00%
Timberland NCREIF Timberland 6.05% 14.60%
Farmland NCREIF Farmland 6.10% 15.00%
Private Infrastructure DJB Glob Infr / FTSE Dev Core Infr 50/50 6.60% 15.20%
Private Equity Cambridge Private Equity 8.50% 27.80%
Hedge Funds Callan Hedge FoF Database 5.00% 8.70%
Commodities Bloomberg Commodity 2.75% 18.00%
Cash Equivalents 90-Day T-Bill 2.25% 0.90%

Inflation CPI-U 2.25% 1.50%

Page 28 of 365



10 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Policy Target Allocation 

Broad US 
Equity 
29% 

Global ex-US 
Equity 
22% 

Core Fixed 
Income 
16% 

High Yield 
7% 

Real Estate 
11% 

Private 
Infrastructure 
6% 

Timber 
2% 

Private Equity 
7% 

Pension Fund Target 

Expected Geometric Mean Return = 6.8% 
Expected Standard Deviation = 13.4% 

The target asset allocation consists of 51% public 
equity, 23% fixed income, and 26% alternatives 
●Alternatives include real estate, private 

infrastructure, timber, and private equity 

While the Fund’s target allocation is projected to 
return 6.8% over the next 10 years versus an 
actuarial discount rate of 7.0%, two key items 
should be noted 
●Callan’s public market return projections do not 

incorporate active management premiums 
– Active management premiums accrue when investment 

firms selected by the State Investment Board 
outperform their passive benchmarks 
– It is important to note, though, that investment firms 

will at times underperform their passive benchmarks 
– The Plan’s public market returns have benefitted from 

active management by ~25 basis points net of fees 
(annualized) over the past five years ended 3/31/20 

●Callan’s 10-year projections are below longer-
term expectations due to the current economic 
environment and the forecast for the next 
several years 

 

Page 29 of 365



11 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Efficient Frontier 

●A series of optimal mixes at different levels of expected return and risk is depicted above 
– Optimal mixes generate the greatest return for a given level of risk, or conversely, the lowest risk for a given level of return 
– Five efficient mixes are numbered and described in more detail on the following page 

●The current target portfolio is modestly below the efficient frontier near mix 4 

 

NDPERS

9.0% 10.0% 11.0% 12.0% 13.0% 14.0% 15.0%

5.7%

6.0%

6.3%

6.6%

6.9%

7.2%

Efficient Frontier

Projected Standard Deviation

10
 Y

r. 
G

eo
m

et
ric

 M
ea

n 
R

et
ur

n

1

2

3

4

5

From left to right, the chart 
illustrates greater risk 
(variability of returns) 

From bottom to top, the chart 
illustrates higher expected 

rates of return 

Page 30 of 365



12 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Alternative Asset Mixes 

●The optimal mixes are constructed with decreasing allocations to fixed income (from 50% to 19%) 
– High yield equals 30% of total fixed income, private equity is constrained to a maximum of 10%, equal allocations are made to real 

estate and private infrastructure, and timber is eliminated, as a result of discussions with SIB 
– Efficient allocations to real estate and private infrastructure are ~75/25, respectively 

●As fixed income decreases, the expected return increases and annual portfolio risk reaches over 14% 

●The policy target’s risk and return profile is similar to that of mix 4 

●Large allocations to alternatives will require stress-testing to determine if the amount of illiquidity is tolerable 

Policy
Asset Class Target Mix 1 Mix 2 Mix 3 Mix 4 Mix 5
Public Equity 51% 30% 34% 39% 45% 51%
Broad U.S. Equity 29% 18% 21% 24% 27% 30%
Global ex-U.S. Equity 22% 12% 13% 15% 18% 21%

Fixed Income 23% 50% 43% 35% 27% 19%
Core Fixed Income 16% 35% 30% 24% 19% 13%
High Yield 7% 15% 13% 11% 8% 6%

Alternatives 26% 20% 23% 26% 28% 30%
Real Estate 11% 6% 7% 8% 9% 10%
Private Infrastructure 6% 6% 7% 8% 9% 10%
Timber 2% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Private Equity 7% 8% 9% 10% 10% 10%

Expected Return 6.8% 5.9% 6.2% 6.5% 6.7% 7.0%
Expected Standard Deviation 13.4% 9.7% 10.8% 11.9% 13.1% 14.3%

Page 31 of 365



13 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Projected Rates of Return (10 Years) 

●Chart reflects annualized return distribution over the next ten years  

●Bar heights proportional to return volatility 
– Higher expected (median) returns associated with higher volatilities 
– Increased volatility leads to lower worse-case (95th percentile) returns 

●The current policy has a 48% probability of earning 7% or better over the next 10 years 

6.7% 

NDPERS Mix 1 Mix 2 Mix 3 Mix 4 Mix 5
(2%)

0%
2%
4%
6%
8%

10%
12%
14%
16%
18%

Projection Period: 10 Years
Range of Projected Rates of Return

An
nu

al
 R

at
es

 o
f R

et
ur

n 
(%

)

5th Percentile
25th Percentile
Median
75th Percentile
95th Percentile

Prob > 7%

14.4%
9.8%
6.8%
3.7%

(0.2%)

48%

11.2%
8.0%
5.9%
3.7%
0.8%

36%

12.2%
8.6%
6.2%
3.7%
0.6%

41%

13.2%
9.1%
6.5%
3.8%
0.3%

44%

14.2%
9.7%
6.8%
3.8%
0.0%

48%

15.1%
10.2%

7.0%
3.8%

(0.4%)

50%

7%
48% 36% 41% 44% 48% 50%

This is NDPERS’s 
projected actuarial 
return assumption 

Page 32 of 365



Asset-Liability Modeling 

Page 33 of 365



15 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Current Conditions 

Callan’s liability model is based on the 
GRS 2019 actuarial valuation 

Model used to forecast future liabilities 

Assets rolled forward using May 31, 
2020 actual asset values 

Additional forecast assumptions 

●Open to new entrants 
– Composition reflects recent new entrants 

●0% workforce growth 

Build Actuarial Liability Model 

Key Assumptions 
Actuarial 

Assumption* 
Callan 10-year 
Expectation 

Investment Return 7.0% 6.8%** 

Price Inflation 2.25% 2.25% 

July 1, 2019 Actuarial Valuation All Plans 
Actuarial Accrued Liability  $4,269 mm 

Market Value of Assets $3,097 mm 

Actuarial Value of Assets $3,082 mm 

Market Funded Status (MVA/AL) 72.5% 

Actuarial Funded Status (AVA/AL) 72.2% 

*As of July 1, 2020 
**Based on Callan’s capital market assumptions applied to NDPERS’ target asset allocation; used throughout the remainder of the study 

Page 34 of 365



16 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Current Conditions 

Contributions (employer and employee) are set by statute 

Current employer contribution rates are shown below for the various Plan populations along with the employer 
actuarial contribution requirement 

The Main System’s contribution rate is more than 5% below the actuarial rate 

The impact on the Fund of a 2% increase in the employer contribution rate and separately a 1% increase in both 
the employer and employee contribution rates beginning January 1, 2022 are shown in the appendix 

Build Actuarial Liability Model 

Employer Contribution Rates Statutory 
Actuarial 

Requirement Surplus/(Deficit) 

Main System* 7.12% 12.22% -5.10%

Judges 17.52% 2.83% 14.69% 

Public Safety w/ prior Main System service 9.81% 8.00% 1.81% 

Public Safety w/o prior Main System service 7.93% 6.37% 1.56% 

Total 7.31% 11.94% -4.63%

*The Main System employer contribution rate is increasing to 8.26% for new members as of January 1, 2020

Page 35 of 365



17 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Member Numbers 

●Number of active members assumed to remain constant (0% workforce growth) 
– Future new hires replace exits due to retirement, death, disability, and withdrawal 
– Stable active age reflects Plan maturity 

●Number of inactive members and their average age increase gradually over time 

Deterministic Forecast 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Ag
e 

Po
pu

la
tio

n 

Active Members (left axis) Inactive Members (left axis) Active Average Age (right axis) Inactive Average Age (right axis)

Page 36 of 365



18 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Funding 

●Liabilities increase faster than the market value of assets, widening the funding gap 
– Change in assets due to both investment returns and net cash flows (contributions net of benefit payments and expenses) 

●Projected funding depends on adherence to the contribution policy 
– Assumes assets earn 6.8% 

Deterministic Forecast 

45%

50%

55%

60%

65%

70%

75%

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Fu
nd

ed
 S

ta
tu

s 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 A
ss

et
 V

al
ue

s 
($

 m
ill

io
ns

) 

Actuarial Liability (left axis) Market Value of Assets (left axis) Market Value Funded Status (right axis)

Page 37 of 365



19 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Cash Flows and Liquidity 

●Net Cash Outflow =  Benefit Payments + Expenses – Employer Contributions – Employee Contributions 

●Plan is expected to have growing net outflow (both in nominal dollars and as a percentage of assets) over the 
coming decade 

●Cash flow is a factor used to determine a cap on the level of private investments 

●Net outflow as a percentage of assets under 7% should be manageable as long as PERS adheres to the current 
funding policy, though the trajectory should be closely monitored 

Deterministic Forecast 

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

4.5%

5.0%

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

N
et

 C
as

h 
O

ut
flo

w
 (%

 o
f A

ss
et

s)
 

C
as

h 
Fl

ow
s 

($
 m

ill
io

ns
) 

Benefit Payments Total (left axis) Total Contributions (left axis) Net Cash Outflow (right axis)

Page 38 of 365



20 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Actuarial Liability, 2020-2030 

●Plan liabilities are increasing at a steady pace which is typical for an open plan 

●Drivers include wage growth for current employees and a gradually increasing number of inactives 
– Inflation flows through to member compensation which is a component of the retirement benefit formula 

 

 

Stochastic Forecast 

Pctl 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
95 4,728 5,003 5,280 5,573 5,864 6,155 6,454 6,764 7,076 7,400 7,723
75 4,697 4,941 5,187 5,443 5,701 5,960 6,221 6,492 6,762 7,048 7,328
50 4,677 4,898 5,128 5,358 5,589 5,830 6,073 6,317 6,558 6,812 7,068
25 4,656 4,858 5,064 5,277 5,487 5,696 5,918 6,136 6,357 6,585 6,815
5 4,624 4,797 4,980 5,155 5,337 5,522 5,706 5,907 6,099 6,286 6,483

Range 104 207 301 418 527 633 748 856 978 1,114 1,240

4,500

5,000

5,500

6,000

6,500

7,000

7,500

8,000

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
ia

bi
lit

ie
s (

$M
)

Page 39 of 365



21 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Market Value of Assets in 2030 (10 Years) 
Stochastic Forecast 

Moving from left to right (mix 1 to mix 
5), the range of results widens as one 
takes on more risk (greater equity 
exposure) 

More aggressive mixes have larger 
expected values (50th percentile) but 
lower worse-case (95th percentile) 
outcomes 

●The 50th percentile is the expected
case – half of the outcomes are
higher and half lower

●The 95th percentile is a worse-case
scenario – a 5% probability that
assets will be the value shown or
lower

Asset Change = Contributions + Investment Earnings – Benefit Payments & Expenses 

Pctl Target Mix 1 Mix 2 Mix 3 Mix 4 Mix 5
5 8,186 6,310 6,805 7,406 7,974 8,646

25 5,775 4,836 5,090 5,415 5,701 6,023
50 4,420 3,977 4,110 4,261 4,394 4,534
75 3,307 3,214 3,267 3,305 3,330 3,345
95 2,126 2,385 2,329 2,251 2,174 2,100

Range 6,060 3,925 4,477 5,155 5,799 6,546

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s 
($

M
)

Page 40 of 365



22 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Funded Ratio in 2030 (10 Years) 
Stochastic Forecast 

Starting funded status = 72.5% 

The Plan’s funded status is expected 
(50th percentile) to decline over the 
next ten years under the current 
funding policy 

Funding ratios in worse-case scenarios 
are particularly low because the 
contribution policy is not impacted by a 
declining funded status 

More aggressive mixes are expected to 
have higher funded ratios at the end of 
10 years relative to more conservative 
mixes but have lower funded ratios in 
worse-case scenarios  (95th percentile) 

 

 

Funded Status = Market Value of Assets / Actuarial Liability 

Pctl Target Mix 1 Mix 2 Mix 3 Mix 4 Mix 5
5 116.6% 90.1% 96.9% 105.9% 113.4% 124.9%

25 81.8% 68.1% 71.6% 75.9% 80.1% 84.6%
50 62.6% 56.1% 58.0% 60.1% 61.9% 64.0%
75 46.9% 46.1% 46.6% 46.9% 47.1% 47.4%
95 29.7% 33.5% 32.7% 31.6% 30.5% 29.2%

Range 86.9% 56.6% 64.1% 74.3% 82.9% 95.8%

20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%
110%
120%
130%

Fu
nd

ed
 R

at
io

 (M
VA

)

Page 41 of 365



23 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Cumulative Contributions through 2030 (10 Years) 
Stochastic Forecast 

There is no contribution variability 
across the asset mixes due to the 
statutory percentage of pay policy 

Contribution volatility within an asset 
mix stems from simulated inflation 
which impacts salaries 

 

 

Pctl Target Mix 1 Mix 2 Mix 3 Mix 4 Mix 5
95 1,099 1,099 1,099 1,099 1,099 1,099
75 1,045 1,045 1,045 1,045 1,045 1,045
50 1,011 1,011 1,011 1,011 1,011 1,011
25 976 976 976 976 976 976
5 928 928 928 928 928 928

Range 171 171 171 171 171 171

900

950

1,000

1,050

1,100

1,150

C
um

. C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 ($
M

)

Page 42 of 365



24 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Ultimate Net Cost in 2030 (10 Years) 
Stochastic Forecast 

Ultimate net cost (UNC) = 10-Year 
cumulative contributions + 7/1/2030 
unfunded actuarial liability 

UNC is a more complete measure of 
the cost to the employer since it 
captures what is expected to be paid 
over 10 years plus what is owed at the 
end of the 10-year period 

●Negative numbers indicate the Plan 
is in a surplus position at 7/1/2030 

More aggressive mixes lower UNC in 
the expected case but result in greater 
UNC in a worse-case scenario Pctl Target Mix 1 Mix 2 Mix 3 Mix 4 Mix 5

95 6,084 5,812 5,863 5,956 6,024 6,091
75 4,759 4,850 4,816 4,787 4,766 4,734
50 3,674 4,115 3,981 3,834 3,693 3,562
25 2,326 3,237 2,996 2,698 2,417 2,094
5 -185 1,738 1,234 582 70 -728

Range 6,269 4,075 4,629 5,374 5,954 6,819

-1,000

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

U
N

C
 ($

M
)

UNC = Cumulative Contributions + Unfunded Liability 

Page 43 of 365



25 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Mix 5

Mix 4

Mix 3

Mix 2

Mix 1

Target

3,500

3,600

3,700

3,800

3,900

4,000

4,100

4,200
5750 5800 5850 5900 5950 6000 6050 6100 6150

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 (5
0t

h 
Pe

rc
en

til
e)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Ul
tim

at
e 

Ne
t C

os
t 

($
M

)

Worst-Case (95th Percentile) Ultimate Net Cost ($M)

Ultimate Net Cost in 2030 (10 Years): Expected (50th) vs Worse Case (95th) 
Stochastic Forecast 

Tradeoff is roughly linear for 
optimal mixes 

Mix 4 reduces worse-case 
ultimate net cost by $60 million 
relative to current target with 
slightly more cost in the expected 
case 

 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
-C

as
e 

C
os

t 

Increased Worse-Case Cost 

Worse-Case 

Page 44 of 365



26 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Liquidity and Stress Testing 

Page 45 of 365



27 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Net Outflow as a Percentage of Liquid Assets, 2020-2030 
Stochastic Forecast 

●Net Outflow = Benefit Payments & Expenses – Employee & Employer Contributions 
– A useful indicator of ongoing liquidity needs 
– Ratio < 7.0% is typically manageable; >10% presents high liquidity pressure and illiquid investments may need to be reduced 
– Based on our experience, most public funds have net outflow of 4-7% depending on funded status, funding policy, and plan maturity 

●For the current target (74% liquid assets), liquidity needs are expected (50th percentile) to be manageable; in 
worse-case (95th percentile) scenarios net outflows exceed 10% 

●The liquidity analysis assumes the funding policy is adhered to 

 

 

 

 

Pctl 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
95 3.4% 4.5% 5.2% 6.0% 6.9% 7.6% 8.4% 9.4% 10.3% 11.2% 12.3%
75 3.3% 3.8% 4.2% 4.7% 5.1% 5.6% 6.1% 6.5% 7.0% 7.3% 7.7%
50 3.2% 3.4% 3.7% 4.0% 4.3% 4.6% 4.8% 5.1% 5.4% 5.6% 5.8%
25 3.2% 3.2% 3.3% 3.5% 3.6% 3.8% 4.0% 4.1% 4.2% 4.3% 4.4%
5 3.0% 2.8% 2.7% 2.8% 2.9% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.1% 3.1% 3.0%

Range 0.3% 1.7% 2.5% 3.2% 4.0% 4.6% 5.4% 6.4% 7.2% 8.1% 9.2%

2.5%

5.0%

7.5%

10.0%

12.5%
N

et
 O

ut
flo

w
N

et
 O

ut
flo

w
 a

s 
%

 o
f L

iq
ui

d 
As

se
ts

 

Page 46 of 365



28 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Stress Testing 

The current target and mixes 3 and 4 were subjected to six investment scenarios to gauge the impact on 
investment performance, funding, and net outflow 

The six scenarios include three historical and three hypothetical 
●Historical 

– Global Financial Crisis (GFC): October 2007 – February 2009 
– Black Monday: October 1987 
– U.S. Debt Ceiling Crisis and Downgrade: June – September 2011 

●Hypothetical 
– Equities Decline 20% for 1 Year (bear market definition) 
– Perfect Storm for 1 Year (equities decline 20%, Treasuries and spreads increase 1%) 
– Perfect Storm for 3 Years (equities decline 15% annually, Treasuries and spreads increase 1% annually) 

Findings 

●Performance 
– The target underperforms mix 4, while mix 3 generates the best performance which is not surprising given it is the most 

conservative of the three portfolios 

●Funding 
– Funded status drops by more than 10% in nominal terms, and falls below 50% for the GFC and Perfect Storm for 3 Years 

●Net Outflow 
– Net outflow as a percentage of liquid assets reaches relatively high levels (>7% for the GFC and Perfect Storm for 3 Years) 

The findings support the ability of the Fund to implement investment policies such as the current target and mixes 3 
and 4 and the relatively large illiquid allocations they employ 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 47 of 365



Recommendation 

Page 48 of 365



30 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Recommendation 

The combination of a statutory contribution rate below that of the actuarially required contribution and an expected 
low-return environment over the next 10 years results in a deterioration of the funded status over time 

 

Many factors support an asset allocation with a risk posture similar to the current target 
●Pursuit of a 7% return; long time horizon; actuarial methodology (static contribution rate and asset smoothing) 

 

While moving to a more aggressive asset allocation is expected to generate greater returns and a higher funded 
status, it also increases the risk of “bad investment outcomes” which in turn could result in further deterioration of 
the Plan’s funded status and the need for higher contribution rates 

 

The statutory contribution policy combined with the relatively large illiquid allocation leads us to recommend 
maintaining the current risk posture (mix 4a) or moving to a slightly less aggressive asset allocation (mix 4) 
●Reduces reliance on public equity markets 

●Slight increase to alternatives which can provide a source of uncorrelated returns and potential for alpha 
generation and fixed income which provides downside protection in the event of a large equity drawdown 
– A high allocation to illiquid investments is suitable for a long-term investor with an actuarially sound funding policy 
– Potential sources of liquidity in a crisis include a long Treasury mandate (1.5% of the total fund), cash accounts (almost 1% of the 

total fund), the Treasury allocations within some of the other fixed income managers, and the cash flows coming from some of the 
real estate and infrastructure funds 

Page 49 of 365



31 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Recommendation 

Finally, while the target and mixes 4 and 4a have expected returns over the next 10 years that fall short of the 7% 
return assumption, there are mitigating factors that offset the projected returns 

●Callan’s public market return projections are based on passive (i.e., index fund) implementation and do not 
incorporate active management premiums 

●Callan’s 10-year projections are cyclically lower than our longer-term (i.e., greater than 10 years) expectations 

●The target and mixes 4 and 4a have ~50% probability of achieving a 7% return over the next 10 years 

Page 50 of 365



32 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Recommendation 

Broad US 
Equity
29%

Global ex-US 
Equity
22%

Core Fixed 
Income
16%

High Yield
7%

Real Estate
11%

Private 
Infrastructure
6%

Timber
2%

Private Equity
7%

Pension Fund Target

Broad US 
Equity
28%

Global ex-US 
Equity
18%

Core Fixed 
Income
17%

High Yield
7%

Real Estate
10%

Private 
Infrastructure
10%

Private Equity
10%

Mix 4a (Same Risk)

Broad US 
Equity
27%

Global ex-US 
Equity
18%

Core Fixed 
Income
19%

High Yield
8%

Real Estate
9%

Private 
Infrastructure
9%

Private Equity
10%

Mix 4 (Slightly Lower Risk)

Policy Same Risk Lower Risk
Asset Class Target Mix 4a % Change $M Change Mix 4 % Change $M Change
Public Equity 51% 46% -5% ($161) 45% -6% ($193)
Broad U.S. Equity 29% 28% -1% ($19) 27% -2% ($51)
Global ex-U.S. Equity 22% 18% -4% ($141) 18% -4% ($141)

Fixed Income 23% 24% 1% $32 27% 4% $128
Core Fixed Income 16% 17% 1% $32 19% 3% $96
High Yield 7% 7% 0% $0 8% 1% $32

Alternatives 26% 30% 4% $128 28% 2% $64
Real Estate 11% 10% -1% ($32) 9% -2% ($64)
Private Infrastructure 6% 10% 4% $128 9% 3% $96
Timber 2% 0% -2% ($64) 0% -2% ($64)
Private Equity 7% 10% 3% $96 10% 3% $96

Expected Return 6.8% 6.8% 6.7%
Expected Standard Deviation 13.4% 13.4% 13.1%
Note: Dollar changes based on June 30, 2020 asset value 

Page 51 of 365



Next Steps and Timeline 

Page 52 of 365



34 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Next Steps 

Incorporate feedback from today’s meeting 

Deliver the final study to NDPERS in September 

Page 53 of 365



35 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Timeline 

Asset-Liability Kickoff  COMPLETED 
Meeting Date: May 26 
 

Preliminary Asset-Liability Results  COMPLETED 
Meeting Date: July 22 
 

Final Asset-Liability Results  IN PROGRESS 
Meeting Dates: August 27 and September 8 

Page 54 of 365



Appendix 

Page 55 of 365



37 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Additional Contribution Scenarios 

$4,000

$4,500

$5,000

$5,500

$6,000

$6,500

$7,000

$7,500

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(M

ill
io

ns
)

Base Case

+2% ERC in 2022

+1% ERC & EEC in 2022

60%

62%

64%

66%

68%

70%

72%

74%

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

M
ar

ke
t F

un
de

d 
R

at
io

Base Case

+2% ERC in 2022

+1% ERC & EEC in 2022

$80

$90

$100

$110

$120

$130

$140

$150

$160

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 (M

ill
io

ns
)

Base Case

+2% ERC in 2022

+1% ERC & EEC in 2022

●Two additional contribution scenarios are shown 
alongside the current statutory contribution policy 
– Employer contributions rates rise 2% in 2022 
– Employer and employee contribution rates rise 1% in 2022 

●There is no change in the actuarial liability 

●Funded status improves, though still declines beyond 
2025 albeit at a much slower pace 

●Not surprising that employer contributions rise 
– +2% ER: Additional $263 million through 2030 
– +1% EE/ER: Additional $131 million through 2030 

 

Page 56 of 365



38 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Additional Population Scenario 

●A scenario in which the Plan is closed to new entrants 
in 2020 is shown alongside the current open plan 

●Actuarial liability growth slows 
– $537 million lower by 2030 

●Despite the decline in the liability, the market funded 
ratio declines due to fewer contributions 
– $345 million in fewer employer contributions through 2030 

which does not account for the loss from compounding 
– Employee contributions (not shown) also decline 

$50

$60

$70

$80

$90

$100

$110

$120

$130

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 (M

ill
io

ns
)

Base Case

No New Entrants

55.0%

57.5%

60.0%

62.5%

65.0%

67.5%

70.0%

72.5%

75.0%

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

M
ar

ke
t F

un
de

d 
R

at
io

Base Case

No New Entrants

$4,000

$4,500

$5,000

$5,500

$6,000

$6,500

$7,000

$7,500

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(M

ill
io

ns
)

Base Case

No New Entrants

Page 57 of 365



39 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Stress Tests 
Six Scenarios 

Historical Scenarios 
(1) 2008 Financial Crisis (October 2007 – February 2009) 

(2) Black Monday (October 1987) 

(3) 2011 U.S. Debt Ceiling Crisis and Downgrade (June – September 2011) 

 

Parametric Scenarios 
(4) Equities Decline 20% for 1 Year (bear market definition) 

(5) Perfect Storm for 1 Year (equities decline 20%, Treasuries and spreads increase 1%) 

(6) Perfect Storm for 3 Years (equities decline 15% annually, Treasuries and spreads increase 1% annually) 

 

Asset Mixes Tested 
●Current Target:  

– 51% Public equity, 23% fixed income, 26% alts 

●Mix 3:  
– 39% public equity, 35% fixed income, 26% alts 

●Mix 4:  
– 45% public equity, 27% fixed income, 28% alts 

 

Page 58 of 365



40 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Stress Tests 
Drawdowns 

●Returns shown represent index performance 
– Public Asset Classes: Russell 3000, MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI, Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate, Bloomberg High Yield 
– Private Asset Classes: 0.5 * Russell 3000 

– Estimate based on Cambridge PE Fund and NCREIF ODCE Index Data 

●2008 Financial Crisis and Perfect Storm for 3 Years are the most extreme stress tests 

●Equities Decline 20% for 1 Year is the most similar scenario to recent events 

 

 

 

 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

Asset Class

2008 Financial 
Crisis Black Monday

2011 U.S. Debt 
Ceiling Crisis and 

Downgrade

Equities Decline 
20% for 1 Year

Perfect Storm for 1 
Year

Perfect Storm for 3 
Years

U.S. Equity -42% -22% -15% -20% -20% -45%
Global ex-US Equity -48% -14% -19% -20% -20% -45%
U.S. Fixed Income 5% 4% 4% 0% -7% -25%
High Yield Fixed Income -20% -3% -6% -5% -10% -30%
Real Estate / Timber -21% -11% -8% -10% -10% -23%
Private Equity -21% -11% -8% -10% -10% -23%
Infrastructure -21% -11% -8% -10% -10% -23%

Total Drawdown

2008 Financial 
Crisis Black Monday

2011 U.S. Debt 
Ceiling Crisis and 

Downgrade

Equities Decline 
20% for 1 Year

Perfect Storm for 1 
Year

Perfect Storm for 3 
Years

  Target (26% Alts) -28.7% -12.2% -10.4% -13.1% -14.6% -34.9%
  Mix 3 (26% Alts) -23.7% -9.9% -8.3% -10.9% -13.2% -32.7%
  Mix 4 (28% Alts) -26.4% -11.3% -9.4% -12.2% -14.0% -33.7%

Page 59 of 365



41 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Stress Tests 
Additional Metrics 

●Assuming scenarios transpire over a one-year period, funded status declines from starting point of 67.5% 
– Below 50% for GFC and Perfect Storm for 3 Years 

●Alternative allocations can reach high levels during a crisis due to a combination of the following: 
– Benefit payments funded from liquid asset classes 
– Muted losses from alternatives due to valuation smoothing 
– Capital calls for existing private asset class commitments 

●Net outflow (% of liquid assets) can reach relatively high levels (>7% for the GFC and Perfect Storm for 3 Years) 
Notes: 7/1/21 Funded Ratio estimate reflects $262M in benefit payments/expenses, $176M in total contributions, and a liability estimate of $4.9B; High yield considered illiquid in stressed environments 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

2008 Financial 
Crisis Black Monday

2011 U.S. Debt 
Ceiling Crisis and 

Downgrade

Equities Decline 
20% for 1 Year

Perfect Storm for 1 
Year

Perfect Storm for 3 
Years

7/1/20 Funded Ratio 67.5% 67.5% 67.5% 67.5% 67.5% 67.5%

7/1/21 Funded Ratio
  Target (26% Alts) 44.2% 54.8% 56.0% 54.2% 53.2% 40.2%
  Mix 3 (26% Alts) 47.4% 56.3% 57.3% 55.6% 54.2% 41.6%
  Mix 4 (28% Alts) 45.7% 55.4% 56.6% 54.8% 53.7% 40.9%

6/30/20 Alternatives Allocation
  Target (26% Alts) 44.8% 40.5% 40.5% 41.2% 41.5% 47.5%
  Mix 3 (26% Alts) 46.2% 43.8% 43.7% 44.5% 45.0% 50.2%
  Mix 4 (28% Alts) 47.3% 43.6% 43.6% 44.3% 44.8% 50.7%

2020 Net Outflow (% Liquid)
  Target (26% Alts) 7.2% 5.4% 5.3% 5.5% 5.6% 8.3%
  Mix 3 (26% Alts) 6.9% 5.5% 5.4% 5.7% 5.9% 8.5%
  Mix 4 (28% Alts) 7.3% 5.6% 5.5% 5.7% 5.9% 8.7%

Page 60 of 365



42 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Stress Tests 

●Base case funded status gradually declines to 62.6% by 2030 

●With equities down 20% , the funded status drops to 54.6% in 2021 and declines to 46.1% by 2030 

● In a GFC scenario, the funded status drops to 44.6% in 2021 and falls to just 33.8% by 2030 

 

Market Funded Status (2020 = 67.5%) 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

M
ar

ke
t F

un
de

d 
St

at
us

 (M
ed

ia
n)

Base Case Equity Down 20% GFC

Page 61 of 365



43 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Stress Tests 

●Base case net outflow rises to 6.4% by 2030 

●With equities down 20% , net outflow rises to 8.6% by 2030 

● In a GFC scenario, net outflow rises to 11.7% by 2030 

●Outcomes are heavily contingent upon adherence to the funding policy 

Net Outflow as a % of Liquid Assets (2020 = 3.6%) 

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Ne
t O

ut
flo

w
 a

s 
%

 o
f L

iq
ui

d 
As

se
ts

 (
M

ed
ia

n)

Base Case Equity Down 20% GFC

Note: High yield considered illiquid in stressed environments 

Page 62 of 365



44 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Disclaimers 

This report is for informational purposes only and should not be construed as legal or tax advice on any matter. Any decision you make 
on the basis of this content is your sole responsibility.  You should consult with legal and tax advisers before applying any of this 
information to your particular situation.  

This report may consist of statements of opinion, which are made as of the date they are expressed and are not statements of fact.  

Reference to or inclusion in this report of any product, service or entity should not be construed as a recommendation, approval, 
affiliation or endorsement of such product, service or entity by Callan. 

Past performance is no guarantee of future results.  

The statements made herein may include forward-looking statements regarding future results.  The forward-looking statements herein:  
(i) are best estimations consistent with the information available as of the date hereof and (ii) involve known and unknown risks and 
uncertainties such that actual results may differ materially from these statements.  There is no obligation to update or alter any forward-
looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. Undue reliance should not be placed on forward-
looking statements. 

 

 

 

Page 63 of 365



North Dakota PERS 
RHIC Fund 

2020 Asset -Liability Study 

August 27, 2020 

Alex Browning 
Fund Sponsor Consulting 

Paul Erlendson 
Fund Sponsor Consulting 

Julia Moriarty, CFA 
Capital Market Research 

Attachment - RHIC

Page 64 of 365



1 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Agenda 

Introduction and Process Overview 

Asset Allocation 

Asset-Liability Modeling 

Recommendation 

Next Steps and Timeline 

Page 65 of 365



Introduction and Process Overview 

Page 66 of 365



3 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Introduction 

The goal of the asset-liability study is to determine an appropriate long-term mix between return-seeking assets 
(e.g., equities, real assets, alternatives) and risk-mitigating assets (cash, fixed income) 
●80-90% of funded status volatility is driven by the broad asset allocation decision

Asset allocation will vary by the unique circumstances of the plan 
●No “one-size-fits-all” solution exists

The asset-liability study helps NDPERS quantify the impact that different strategies might have on relevant metrics 

Factors to consider: 
– Liability characteristics

– Funded status

– Contribution policy

– Time horizon

– Liquidity needs

Page 67 of 365



4 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Where Does Asset Allocation Fit In? 

Evaluate the interaction of three key policies to identify the optimal investment policy 

Investment Policy 
– How will the assets 

supporting the benefits be 
invested? 

– What risk and return 
objectives? 

– How to manage cash 
flows? 

Funding Policy 
– How will the 

benefits/deficits be paid 
for (funded)?  

– What are the actuarial 
assumptions to use? 

Benefits Policy 
– What type/kind of benefits? 
– What level of benefit? 
– When and to whom are they 

payable? 

Investment 
Policy 

Funding 
Policy 

Benefits 
Policy 

Page 68 of 365



5 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Callan Asset-Liability Modeling Process 

Asset Modeling Liability Modeling 

Define Capital Market 
Assumptions 

Define Liability  
Assumptions 

Build Actuarial Liability  
Model 

Create Asset Mix  
Alternatives 

Simulate 
Financial Conditions 

Define 
Risk Tolerance 

Select  
Appropriate Target Mix 

Page 69 of 365



Asset Allocation 

Page 70 of 365



7 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Callan Capital Market Process and Philosophy 

Underlying beliefs guide the development of the projections 
●An initial bias toward long-run averages 

●An awareness of risk premiums 

●A presumption that markets ultimately clear and are rational 

Reflect our belief that long-term equilibrium relationships between the capital markets and lasting trends in global 
economic growth are key drivers to setting capital market expectations 

Long-term compensated risk premiums represent “beta”—exposure to each broad market, whether traditional or 
“exotic,” with limited dependence on successful realization of alpha 

The projection process is built around several key building blocks 
●Advanced modeling at the individual asset class level (e.g., a detailed bond model, an equity model) 

●Pathways for both  interest rates and inflation 

●A cohesive economic outlook 

●A framework that encompasses Callan’s beliefs about the long-term operation and efficiencies of the capital 
markets 

 

Page 71 of 365



8 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

The Focus is on Broad Asset Classes 

Equity 

U.S. 

Large C
ap 

Sm
all C

ap 

Non-U.S. 
D

eveloped 

Em
erging 

Debt 

U.S. 

Investm
ent 

G
rade 

H
igh Yield 

Non-U.S. 

D
eveloped 

Em
erging 

Asset Class 

Sub-Asset Class 

Breakdowns between investment styles within asset classes (growth vs. value, large cap vs. small cap) are best 
addressed in a manager structure analysis 

Primary asset classes and important sub-asset classes include: 
●U.S. Stocks 

●U.S. Bonds 

●Non-U.S. Stocks 

●Non-U.S. Bonds 

●Real Estate 

●Private Equity 

●Absolute Return 

●Cash 

Page 72 of 365



9 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Callan Capital Market Assumptions 
Risk and return: 2020–2029 
 

* Geometric returns are derived from arithmetic returns and the associated risk (standard deviation). 
 

– Most capital market 
expectations represent 
passive exposure (beta only); 
however, return expectations 
for private market investments 
reflect active management 
premiums 

– Return expectations are net of 
fees 

Asset Class Index Projected Return* Projected Risk

Equities
Broad U.S. Equity Russell 3000 7.15% 18.10%
Large Cap U.S. Equity S&P 500 7.00% 17.70%
Small/Mid Cap U.S. Equity Russell 2500 7.25% 21.20%
Global ex-U.S. Equity MSCI ACWI ex USA 7.25% 20.50%
Developed ex-U.S. Equity MSCI World ex USA 7.00% 19.70%
Emerging Market Equity MSCI Emerging Markets 7.25% 25.70%

Fixed Income
Short Duration Gov't/Credit Bloomberg Barclays 1-3 Yr G/C 2.70% 2.10%
Core U.S. Fixed Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate 2.75% 3.75%
Long Government/Credit Bloomberg Barclays Long G/C 2.75% 10.60%
TIPS Bloomberg Barclays TIPS 2.40% 5.05%
High Yield Bloomberg Barclays High Yield 4.65% 10.25%
Global ex-U.S. Fixed Bloomberg Barclays Glbl Agg xUSD 0.90% 9.20%
Emerging Market Sovereign Debt EMBI Global Diversified 4.35% 9.50%

Other
Core Real Estate NCREIF ODCE 6.25% 14.00%
Timberland NCREIF Timberland 6.05% 14.60%
Farmland NCREIF Farmland 6.10% 15.00%
Private Infrastructure DJB Glob Infr / FTSE Dev Core Infr 50/50 6.60% 15.20%
Private Equity Cambridge Private Equity 8.50% 27.80%
Hedge Funds Callan Hedge FoF Database 5.00% 8.70%
Commodities Bloomberg Commodity 2.75% 18.00%
Cash Equivalents 90-Day T-Bill 2.25% 0.90%

Inflation CPI-U 2.25% 1.50%

Page 73 of 365



10 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Policy Target Allocation 

Broad US 
Equity 
39% 

Global ex-US 
Equity 
21% 

Core Fixed 
Income 
40% 

RHIC Fund Target 

Expected Geometric Mean Return = 5.9% 
Expected Standard Deviation = 10.8% 

The target asset allocation consists of 60% 
public equity and 40% fixed income 

While the Fund’s target allocation is 
projected to return 5.9% over the next 10 
years versus an actuarial discount rate of 
6.5%, two key items should be noted 
●Callan’s public market return projections 

do not incorporate active management 
premiums 
– Active management premiums accrue when 

investment firms selected by the State 
Investment Board outperform their passive 
benchmarks 
– It is important to note, though, that investment 

firms will at times underperform their passive 
benchmarks 

– The Plan has benefitted from active 
management by ~10 basis points net of fees 
(annualized) over the past ten years ended 
3/31/20 

●Callan’s 10-year projections are below 
longer-term expectations due to the 
current economic environment and the 
forecast for the next several years 

 
Page 74 of 365



11 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Efficient Frontier 

●A series of optimal mixes at different levels of expected return and risk is depicted above 
– Optimal mixes generate the greatest return for a given level of risk, or conversely, the lowest risk for a given level of return 
– Five efficient mixes are numbered and described in more detail on the following page 

●The current target portfolio is virtually identical to Mix 4 from a return and risk perspective 

 

5.0% 6.0% 7.0% 8.0% 9.0% 10.0% 11.0% 12.0% 13.0% 14.0%

4.2%

4.5%

4.8%

5.1%

5.4%

5.7%

6.0%

6.3%

6.6%

Efficient Frontier

Projected Standard Deviation

10
 Y

r. 
G

eo
m

et
ric

 M
ea

n 
R

et
ur

n

1

2

3

4

5

RHIC

From left to right, the chart 
illustrates greater risk 
(variability of returns) 

From bottom to top, the chart 
illustrates higher expected 

rates of return 

Page 75 of 365



12 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Alternative Asset Mixes 

●The optimal mixes are constructed with decreasing allocations to Fixed Income (from 70% to 30%) 

●As the Fixed Income allocation decreases, the expected return increases and annual portfolio risk reaches over 
12% 

●The Policy Target’s risk and return profile is virtually identical to that of Mix 4 

Policy
Asset Class Target Mix 1 Mix 2 Mix 3 Mix 4 Mix 5
Public Equity 60% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%
Broad U.S. Equity 39% 18% 24% 30% 36% 42%
Global ex-U.S. Equity 21% 12% 16% 20% 24% 28%

Fixed Income 40% 70% 60% 50% 40% 30%
Core Fixed Income 40% 70% 60% 50% 40% 30%

Expected Return 5.9% 4.5% 5.0% 5.5% 5.9% 6.3%
Expected Standard Deviation 10.8% 5.8% 7.4% 9.0% 10.8% 12.6%

Page 76 of 365



13 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Projected Rates of Return (10 Years) 

●Chart reflects annualized return distribution over the next ten years

●Bar heights proportional to return volatility
– Higher expected (median) returns associated with higher volatilities
– Increased volatility leads to lower worse-case (95th percentile) returns

●The current policy has a 43% probability of earning 6.5% or better over the next 10 years

RHIC Mix 1 Mix 2 Mix 3 Mix 4 Mix 5
(3%)

0%

3%

6%

9%

12%

15%

Projection Period: 10 Years
Range of Projected Rates of Return

An
nu

al
 R

at
es

 o
f R

et
ur

n 
(%

)

5th Percentile
25th Percentile
Median
75th Percentile
95th Percentile

Prob > 6.5%

11.9%
8.3%
5.9%
3.5%
0.3%

43%

7.7%
5.8%
4.5%
3.2%
1.4%

15%

9.0%
6.7%
5.0%
3.4%
1.2%

27%

10.5%
7.5%
5.5%
3.5%
0.7%

36%

11.9%
8.3%
5.9%
3.6%
0.3%

43%

13.4%
9.1%
6.3%
3.5%

(0.2%)

48%

6.5%
43% 15% 27% 36% 43% 48% Projected actuarial 

return assumption 

Page 77 of 365



Asset-Liability Modeling 

Page 78 of 365



15 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Current Conditions 

Callan’s liability model is based on the 
GRS 2019 actuarial valuation 

Model used to forecast future liabilities 

Assets rolled forward using May 31, 
2020 actual asset values 

Additional forecast assumptions 

●Closed to new entrants 

Build Actuarial Liability Model 

Key Assumptions 
Actuarial 

Assumption* 
Callan 10-year 
Expectation 

Investment Return 6.5% 5.9%** 

Price Inflation 2.25% 2.25% 

July 1, 2019 Actuarial Valuation RHIC 
Actuarial Accrued Liability  $217.8 mm 

Market Value of Assets $137.5 mm 

Actuarial Value of Assets $137.6 mm 

Market Funded Status (MVA/AL) 63.1% 

Actuarial Funded Status (AVA/AL) 63.2% 

Statutory Employer Contrib. (% of payroll) 1.14% 

*As of July 1, 2020 
**Based on Callan’s capital market assumptions applied to the RHIC Fund’s target asset allocation; used throughout the remainder of the study 

Page 79 of 365



16 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Member Numbers 

●Number of active members declines as the Plan is closed to new entrants 
– Rising active average age reflects plan closure to new entrants 

●Number of inactive members and their average age increase steadily over time 

Deterministic Forecast 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

45,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Ag
e 

Po
pu

la
tio

n 

Active Members (left axis) Inactive Members (left axis) Active Average Age (right axis) Inactive Average Age (right axis)

Page 80 of 365



17 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Funding 

●Market value of assets increases faster than the liabilities, narrowing the funding gap through 2030 
– Change in assets due to both investment returns and net cash flows (contributions net of benefit payments and expenses) 
– Extending the projection beyond 2030 shows a decline in the funded status as assets fall faster than the liabilities 

●Projected funding depends on adherence to the contribution policy 
– Assumes assets earn 5.9% 

Deterministic Forecast 

45%

50%

55%

60%

65%

70%

75%

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Fu
nd

ed
 S

ta
tu

s 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 A
ss

et
 V

al
ue

s 
($

M
) 

Actuarial Liability (left axis) Market Value of Assets (left axis) Market Value Funded Status (right axis)

Page 81 of 365



18 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Cash Flows and Liquidity 

●Net Cash Outflow =  Benefit Payments + Expenses – Employer Contributions 

●Plan is expected to have growing net outflow (both in nominal dollars and as a percentage of assets) over the 
coming decade 
– Extending the projection beyond 2030 shows the net outflow percentage continuing to climb as contributions fall and benefit 

payments rise through 2036 

Deterministic Forecast 

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

7.0%

0

5

10

15

20

25

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

N
et

 C
as

h 
O

ut
flo

w
 (%

 o
f A

ss
et

s)
 

C
as

h 
Fl

ow
s 

($
M

) 

Benefit Payments Total (left axis) Total Contributions (left axis) Net Cash Outflow (right axis)

Page 82 of 365



19 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Actuarial Liability, 2020-2030 

●With the Plan recently closed to new entrants, liabilities growth slows and liabilities begin to fall by 2030 

 

 

Stochastic Forecast 

Pctl 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
95 226 231 236 239 243 245 247 249 249 249 249
75 226 231 236 239 243 245 247 249 249 249 249
50 226 231 236 239 243 245 247 249 249 249 249
25 226 231 236 239 243 245 247 249 249 249 249
5 226 231 236 239 243 245 247 249 249 249 249

Range 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

220

225

230

235

240

245

250

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
ia

bi
lit

ie
s 

($
M

)

Page 83 of 365



20 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Market Value of Assets in 2030 (10 Years) 
Stochastic Forecast 

Moving from left to right (Mix 1 to Mix 
5), the range of results widens as one 
takes on more risk (greater equity 
exposure) 

More aggressive mixes have larger 
expected values (50th percentile) but 
lower worse-case (95th percentile) 
outcomes 

●The 50th percentile is the expected 
case – half of the outcomes are 
higher and half lower 

●The 95th percentile is a worse-case 
scenario – a 5% probability that 
assets will be the value shown or 
lower 

 

Asset Change = Contributions + Investment Earnings – Benefit Payments & Expenses 

Pctl Target Mix 1 Mix 2 Mix 3 Mix 4 Mix 5
5 292 198 225 258 292 332

25 216 164 180 198 217 234
50 171 144 154 163 172 180
75 135 126 130 133 134 136
95 92 103 99 96 92 86

Range 199 95 125 161 201 246

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s 
($

M
)

Page 84 of 365



21 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Funded Ratio in 2030 (10 Years) 
Stochastic Forecast 

Starting funded status = 63.1% 

The Plan’s funded status is expected 
(50th percentile) to improve over the 
next ten years under the current 
funding policy 

●Mixes 1 and 2 expect a decline in the 
funding ratio while Mixes 3, 4, and 5 
expect to see an improvement in 
funding 

Funding ratios in worse-case scenarios 
are particularly low because the 
contribution policy is not impacted by a 
declining funded status 

More aggressive mixes are expected to 
have higher funded ratios at the end of 
10 years relative to more conservative 
mixes but have lower funded ratios in 
worse-case scenarios  (95th percentile) 

 

 

Funded Status = Market Value of Assets / Actuarial Liability 

Pctl Target Mix 1 Mix 2 Mix 3 Mix 4 Mix 5
5 117% 80% 90% 104% 118% 134%

25 87% 66% 72% 80% 87% 94%
50 69% 58% 62% 65% 69% 73%
75 54% 51% 52% 53% 54% 55%
95 37% 41% 40% 39% 37% 35%

Range 80% 38% 50% 65% 81% 99%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

140%

Fu
nd

ed
 R

at
io

 (M
VA

)

Page 85 of 365



22 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Cumulative Contributions through 2030 (10 Years) 
Stochastic Forecast 

There is no contribution variability 
across the asset mixes due to the 
statutory percentage of pay policy 

Contribution volatility within an asset 
mix stems from simulated inflation 
which impacts salaries 

 

 

Pctl Target Mix 1 Mix 2 Mix 3 Mix 4 Mix 5
95 121 121 121 121 121 121
75 115 115 115 115 115 115
50 112 112 112 112 112 112
25 108 108 108 108 108 108
5 103 103 103 103 103 103

Range 18 18 18 18 18 18

100

105

110

115

120

125

C
um

. C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 ($

M
)

Page 86 of 365



23 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Ultimate Net Cost in 2030 (10 Years) 
Stochastic Forecast 

UNC is a more complete measure of 
the cost to the employer since it 
captures what is expected to be paid 
over 10 years plus what is owed at the 
end of the 10-year period 

Ultimate net cost (UNC) = 10-Year 
cumulative contributions + 7/1/2030 
unfunded actuarial liability 

More aggressive mixes lower UNC in 
the expected case but result in greater 
UNC in a worse-case scenario 

UNC = Cumulative Contributions + Unfunded Liability 

Pctl Target Mix 1 Mix 2 Mix 3 Mix 4 Mix 5
95 268 256 259 263 269 276
75 225 234 230 227 225 224
50 189 216 207 198 188 180
25 145 197 180 162 145 125
5 70 166 138 105 69 31

Range 198 90 121 158 200 245

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

U
N

C
 ($

M
)

Page 87 of 365



24 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Mix 5

Mix 4

Mix 3

Mix 2

Mix 1

Target

170

180

190

200

210

220
255 260 265 270 275 280

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 (5
0t

h 
Pe

rc
en

til
e)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Ul
tim

at
e 

Ne
t C

os
t 

($
M

)

Worse-Case (95th Percentile) Ultimate Net Cost ($M)

Ultimate Net Cost in 2030 (10 Years): Expected (50th) vs Worse Case (95th) 
Stochastic Forecast 

Tradeoff is roughly linear for 
optimal mixes 

Mix 4 and the current target are  
very similar, each with 60% 
equity though with slightly 
different weights to US and non-
US 

Mix 4 marginally lowers 
expected-case cost relative to 
the current target, though with 
slightly greater cost in a worse-
case scenario 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
-C

as
e 

C
os

t 

Increased Worse-Case Cost 

Page 88 of 365



25 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Net Outflow as a Percentage of Assets, 2020-2030 
Stochastic Forecast 

●Net Outflow = Benefit Payments & Expenses – Employer Contributions 
– A useful indicator of ongoing liquidity needs 
– Ratio < 7.0% is typically manageable; >10% presents high liquidity pressure depending on the level of illiquid assets in the portfolio 
– Based on our experience, most public funds have net outflow of 4-7% depending on funded status, funding policy, and plan maturity 

●For the current target (100% liquid), liquidity needs are expected (50th percentile) to be manageable; in worse-case 
(95th percentile) scenarios net outflows exceed 10% 

●The liquidity analysis assumes the funding policy is adhered to 

 

 

 

Pctl 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
95 1.5% 2.5% 3.5% 4.4% 5.3% 6.3% 7.3% 8.3% 9.6% 10.7% 12.1%
75 1.4% 2.2% 2.9% 3.6% 4.2% 4.8% 5.5% 6.1% 6.8% 7.4% 8.1%
50 1.3% 2.0% 2.6% 3.1% 3.6% 4.1% 4.6% 5.0% 5.5% 5.9% 6.3%
25 1.2% 1.8% 2.3% 2.7% 3.1% 3.5% 3.8% 4.1% 4.4% 4.8% 5.0%
5 1.1% 1.5% 1.9% 2.2% 2.6% 2.8% 3.0% 3.2% 3.4% 3.6% 3.6%

Range 0.4% 1.0% 1.6% 2.1% 2.8% 3.5% 4.2% 5.1% 6.2% 7.2% 8.4%

0.0%

2.5%

5.0%

7.5%

10.0%

12.5%
N

et
 O

ut
flo

w
 a

s 
%

 o
f A

ss
et

s

Page 89 of 365



26 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Recommendation 

Page 90 of 365



27 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Recommendation 

The combination of the current funding and investment policies may lead to a modest improvement in the funded 
status over the next 10 years despite the expectation of a low-return environment 
●Looking beyond 10 years shows a decline in the funded status as assets fall faster than the liabilities 

●30 years out assets are projected to be approximately $20 million versus a liability of roughly $150 million under 
the current funding policy (deterministic projection) 
– Employer contributions fall from ~$13 million today to just $2 million 30 years out as the number of active employees on which to 

base the statutory percentage of pay contribution policy declines dramatically (~24,000 active participants at July 1, 2019 versus 
less than a 1,000 in 30 years) 

 

Many factors support an asset allocation with a risk posture similar to (mix 4) or slightly more aggressive (mix 4a) 
than the current target 
●Pursuit of a 6.5% return 

●Long time horizon 

●Static contribution rate 

 

Further diversification via core real estate might be worth studying but we are not recommending it be included in 
the asset allocation at this particular time 

– An allocation to real estate would reduce the reliance on both public equity and low yielding fixed income while modestly raising the 
expected return for the same level of risk 

– Real estate may also offer some protection in a rising inflation environment 
 

Page 91 of 365



28 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Recommendation 

Finally, while the target and mixes 4 and 4a have expected returns over the next 10 years that fall short of the 6.5% 
return assumption, there are mitigating factors that offset the projected returns 

●Callan’s public market return projections are based on passive (i.e., index fund) implementation and do not 
incorporate active management premiums 

●Callan’s 10-year projections are cyclically lower than our longer-term (i.e., greater than 10 years) expectations 

●The target and mixes 4 and 4a have a 43-46% probability of achieving a 6.5% return over the next 10 years 

 

Page 92 of 365



29 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Recommendation 

Broad US 
Equity
39%

Global ex-US 
Equity
21%

Core Fixed 
Income
40%

RHIC Fund Target

Broad US 
Equity
36%

Global ex-US 
Equity
24%

Core Fixed 
Income
40%

Mix 4

Broad US 
Equity
39%

Global ex-US 
Equity
26%

Core Fixed 
Income
35%

Mix 4a

Note: Dollar changes based on June 30, 2020 asset value 

Policy Same Risk More Risk
Asset Class Target Mix 4 % Change $M Change Mix 4a % Change $M Change
Public Equity 60% 60% 0% $0 65% 5% $7
Broad U.S. Equity 39% 36% -3% ($4) 39% 0% $0
Global ex-U.S. Equity 21% 24% 3% $4 26% 5% $7

Fixed Income 40% 40% 0% $0 35% -5% ($7)
Core Fixed Income 40% 40% 0% $0 35% -5% ($7)

Expected Return 5.9% 5.9% 6.1%
Expected Std. Deviation 10.8% 10.8% 11.7%
Prob. > 6.5% 43% 43% 46%

Page 93 of 365



30 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Next Steps and Timeline 

Page 94 of 365



31 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Next Steps 

Incorporate feedback from today’s meeting 

Deliver the final study to NDPERS in September 

Page 95 of 365



32 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Timeline 

Asset-Liability Kickoff  COMPLETED 
Meeting Date: May 26 
 

Preliminary Asset-Liability Results  COMPLETED 
Meeting Date: July 22 
 

Final Asset-Liability Results  IN PROGRESS 
Meeting Dates: August 27 and September 8 

Page 96 of 365



33 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 2020 Asset-Liability Study 

Disclaimers 

This report is for informational purposes only and should not be construed as legal or tax advice on any matter. Any decision you make 
on the basis of this content is your sole responsibility.  You should consult with legal and tax advisers before applying any of this 
information to your particular situation.  

This report may consist of statements of opinion, which are made as of the date they are expressed and are not statements of fact. 

Reference to or inclusion in this report of any product, service or entity should not be construed as a recommendation, approval, 
affiliation or endorsement of such product, service or entity by Callan. 

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. 

The statements made herein may include forward-looking statements regarding future results.  The forward-looking statements herein:  
(i) are best estimations consistent with the information available as of the date hereof and (ii) involve known and unknown risks and
uncertainties such that actual results may differ materially from these statements.  There is no obligation to update or alter any forward-
looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. Undue reliance should not be placed on forward-
looking statements.

Page 97 of 365



Page 98 of 365



   Fax: (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website  https://ndpers.nd.gov 

TO:   NDPERS Board  

FROM:   Bryan 

DATE:  September 8, 2020 

SUBJECT:  Asset Liability Study 

Callan has completed the Asset Liability Study for the NDPERS Main plan and 
Retiree Health Insurance Credit (RHIC) plan and has several 
recommendations. The studies are attached. 

The Main plan asset allocations: 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System 
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director 
(701) 328-3900
1-800-803-7377

Page 99 of 365



 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 100 of 365



 
The Retiree Health Insurance Credit plan asset allocations: 
 
 

 

 

Page 101 of 365



 
 
 
BOARD ACTION:  
 
Main Plan: 
Maintain current asset allocations or move to asset allocation 4 or 4a as suggested by 
Callan.   
 
RHIC Plan: 
Maintain current asset allocations or move to asset allocation 4 or 4a as suggested by 
Callan.   
 

Page 102 of 365



 
 
 
 

            Fax: (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website  https://ndpers.nd.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   Bryan 
 
DATE:   September 8, 2020 
 
SUBJECT:  Investment Consultant RFP Update 
 
 
The Investment Consultant RFP has proposals due August 31st.  We received 
10 proposals.  NDPERS staff will work on the review of the submissions and 
bring the results to the NDPERS Board in October.   
 

 
 
If you have any questions, we will be available at the NDPERS Board meeting.   

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377  

Page 103 of 365



   Fax: (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website  https://ndpers.nd.gov 

TO:   NDPERS Board  

FROM:   Bryan Reinhardt 

DATE:  September 8, 2020  

SUBJECT:  457 Companion Plan & 401(a) Plan 2nd Quarter 2020 Report 

Here is the 2nd quarter 2020 investment report for the 401(a) & 457 Companion Plans.  The reports 
are available separately on the NDPERS website.  The NDPERS Investment Sub-committee reviewed 
the 2nd quarter reports.  The two plans have 8,232 participants with about $155 million in assets.    
Assets in the 401(a) plan increased to $15.5 million on June 30, 2020 from $13.1 million as of March 
31, 2020 ($15.5 as of December 31, 2019).  The number of active participants is at 96.  The TIAA-
CREF Target Date funds have 61% of the plan assets.   

Assets in the 457 Companion Plan increased to $139.3 million on June 30, 2020 from $118.4 as of 
March 31, 2020 ($138.9 million as of December 31, 2019).  The number of active participants is 
increasing and is now at 5,782.  The TIAA-CREF Target Date funds have 71% of the plan assets.    

Benchmarks: 
Fund returns for the quarter were all positive.  Core fund performance was mixed when compared to 
their benchmarks and peer funds.  Seventeen of the 36 core funds beat both their benchmarks and 
peer funds in the second quarter.  Note that index funds are expected to slightly underperform their 
benchmarks because of fund administration fees.   

Fund / Investment News: 
The NDPERS Investment Subcommittee received the 2nd quarter 2020 plan review, field activity 
report, and investment overview with TIAA.  The Subcommittee reviewed the two funds under formal 
fund review (Templeton Global Bond – TGBAX and Prudential Mid Cap Growth – PEGZX).  The 
Subcommittee marked Templeton Global Bond – TGBAX as underperforming for the quarter.  Callan 
gave an overview of the asset liability study results for the main plan and RHIC plan.  Dave Hunter 
gave a 2nd Quarter 2020 performance update on the defined benefit plans.  Fiscal year performance 
for the main plan was 3.41% (lower than the assumed rate of return).  The RHIC return was 4.98%, 
Job Service was 2.82% and the insurance fund was 2.35%.  Proposals for the investment consultant 
RFP are due August 31 and there has been some interest.     

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System 
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott Miller 
Executive Director 
(701) 328-3900
1-800-803-7377

Page 104 of 365



NDPERS 
Quarterly Investment 

Report 
2nd Quarter 

4/1/2020 – 6/30/2020 

North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System 
400 E Bdwy, Suite 505 
Box 1657 
Bismarck, ND 58502 

Attachment

Page 105 of 365



 
Page 106 of 365

NDPERS 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan & 457 Companion Plan - TIAA-CREF 

INITIAL OFFERING: 

BALANCED FUND: 
INCOME FUNDS: 
BOND FUNDS: 

REAL ESTAlE: 
INlERNATIONAL FUNDS: 

LIFES1YLE FUNDS: 

FUND STYLE CHANGES: 

1- J-

OlHER FUNDS: 

CURRENT LINEUP: 

BALANCED FUND: 
INCOME FUNDS: 
BOND FUNDS: 

REAL ESTAlE: 
INlERNATIONAL FUNDS: 

LIFES1YLE FUNDS: 

Hartford Dividend & GroNlh V anguard 500 Index Franklin GroNlh ArN 
T.Rowe Price Equity Income V anguard Di1.1dend GrONlh Wells Fargo ArN GrONlh Adm 

Virtus Mid cap Value Equity I COi um bi a Mid Cap Index A Prudential Jennison Mid Cap Growth Z 

Northern Small cap V alue DFA us Small cap Brown capital Mgmt Small Co Inv 

VALUE BLEND GROWTH 

T.Rowe Price capital Appreciation 
W ells Fargo Stable V alue Fund J V anguard Prime Money Market 
Baird Core Plus Bond Fund V anguard Total Bond Index Fund Templeton Global Bond 
Mass Mutual Inflation Protected Bond Fund Prudential High Yield Z 
COhen & Steers Realty Shares 
American Funds New Perspec ti1.e V anguard Total Intl Stock Index Oppenheimer Oei.etoping Markets Y 

TIAA-CREF Lilecycle Rel Income 
TIAA-CREF Lilecycle 2010 
TIAA-CREF Lilecycle 2015 
TIAA-CREF Lilecycle 2020 

VALUE 

Hartford Dividend & GroNlh 
T.Rowe Price Equity Income 

Virtus Mid cap Value Equity 

VALUE 

T.Rowe Price capital Appreciation 

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2025 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2030 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2035 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2040 

Northern Small cap V alue 

BLEND 

V anguard 500 Index 
V anguard Di1.1dend GrONlh 

COi um bi a Mid Cap Index A 

DFA us Small cap 
Northern Small cap V alue 

BLEND 

W ells Fargo Stable V alue Fund J V anguard Treasury Money Mar1<et 

TIAA-CREF Lilecycle 2045 
TIAA-CREF Lilecycle 2050 
TIAA-CREF Lilecycle 2055 
TIAA-CREF Lilecycle 2060 

Brown capital Mgmt Small Co Inv 

GROWTH 

Franklin GroNlh ArN 
Wells Fargo ArN GrONlh Adm 

Prudential Jennison Mid Cap Growth Z 

Brown capital Mgmt Small Co Inv 

GROWTH 

Baird Core Plus Bond Fund V anguard Total Bond Index Fund Templeton Global Bond 
Mass Mutual Inflation Protected Bond Fund Prudential High Yield Z 
COhen & Steers Realty Shares 
American Funds New Perspec ti1.e V anguard Total Intl Stock Index Oppenheimer Oei.etoping Markets Y 

TIAA-CREF Lilecycle Rel Income 
TIAA-CREF Lilecycle 2010 
TIAA-CREF Lilecycle 2015 
TIAA-CREF Lilecycle 2020 

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2025 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2030 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2035 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2040 

TIAA-CREF Lilecycle 2045 
TIAA-CREF Lilecycle 2050 
TIAA-CREF Lilecycle 2055 
TIAA-CREF Lilecycle 2060 

LARGE 

MEDIUM 

SMALL 

LARGE 

MEDIUM 

SMALL 

LARGE 

MEDIUM 

SMALL 



 
Page 107 of 365

NDPERS Investment Benchmarks - 2nd Quarter 2020 
I 

Quarter Y-T-D 1-Year 3-Year 5-Year 
Stable Value / Mone}'. Market Fund 
Vanguard Treasury Money Market - VUSXX 0.08% 0.44% 1.40% 1.62% 1.08% 
Wells Fargo Stable Return Fund J - WFS.Jfl 0.39% 0.78% 1.66% 1.48% 1.27% 

3 Month T-Bill Index 0.14% 0.52% 1.56% 1.72% 1.15% 
Fixed Income Fund 
Mass Mutual Income Bond Fund - MIPYX 6.21% 4.99% 7.19% 4.52% 3.51% 
Baird Core Plus Bond Fund - BCOSX 5.70% 5.68% 8.53% 5.31% 4.60% 
Vanguard Total Bond Market Index Fund - VBTLX 2.98% 6.35% 8.96% 5.34% 4.31% 

US Aggregate Bond Index 3.03% 6.30% 8.92% 5.40% 4.37% 
Taxable Corporate Bond Fund Universe 9.27% 4.08% 7.98% 5.39% 5.05% 

Prudential High Yield Z - PHVZX 10.64% -5.04% -0.59% 3.64% 5.11% 
BofA High Yield Bond Fund Index 9.61% -4.78% -1 .10% 2.94% 4.58% 
High Yield Bond Fund Universe 8.62% -5.17% -1 .89% 2.04% 3.38% 

Templeton Global Bond Adv - TGBAX <ON WATCH> 0.09% -4.34% -6.08% -0.92% 0.56% 
World Govt Bond Index 2.04% 4.08% 4.60% 3.98% 3.70% 
World Bond Fund Universe 6.02% 0.57% 1.60% 2.25% 2.56% 

Real Estate Fund 

I Cohen & Steers Realty Shares - CSRSX 12.75% -12.99% -4.61% 4.48% 6.75% 
FTSE NAREIT Equity REITs Index 13.25% -1 3.30% -6.47% 3.51% 6.56% 
Real Estate Fund Universe 13.66% -1 6.19% -9.81% 0.60% 3.98% 

Balanced Fund ~ 
T.Rowe Price Capital Appreciation - PACLX 13.70% 0.00% 5.97% 9.57% 9.44% 

60% Large Cap Value Univ & 40% Taxable Bond Universe 13.12% -7.49% -1.36% 3.49% 4.70% 
60% Russell 1000 Value & 40% Agg Bond Index 9.79% -7.24% -1.74% 3.25% 4.53% 

Large Cap Equities - Value 
Hartford Dividend & Growth - HDGTX 14.91% -10.87% -0.90% 6.12% 7.68% 
T.Rowe Price Equity Income - PRFDX 13.38% -18.78% -11.18% 0.87% 4.15% 

Russell 1000 Value Index 14.29% -1 6.26% -8.84% 1.82% 4.64% 
Large Cap Value Fund Universe 15.68% -1 5.20% -7.59% 2.22% 4.47% 

Large Cap Equities - Blend 

I 
Vanguard Institutional Index - VINIX 20.55% -3.08% 7.49% 10.70% 10.70% 
Vanguard Dividend Growth Fund - VD/GX 13.14% -6.42% 1.27% 10.04% 10.24% 

S&P 500 Index 20.54% -3.08% 7.51% 10.73% 10.73% 
Large Cap Blend Fund Universe 19.61% -5.48% 3.74% 8.15% 8.35% 

Large Cap Equities - Growth 
Wells Fargo Adv Growth Adm - SGRKX 34.66% 12.80% 20.56% 21.07% 15.19% 

Russell 3000 Growth Index 27.99% 8.98% 21.94% 18.21% 15.23% 
Franklin Growth Adv - FCGAX 23.94% 3.98% 12.96% 14.25% 12.78% 

Russell 1000 Growth Index 27.84% 9.81% 23.28% 19.00% 15.89% 
Large Cap Growth Fund Universe 27.43% 7.84% 17.34% 15.95% 12.84% 

Mid Cap Equities - Value 

I Virtus Mid Cap Value Equity J. SMVTX 20.18% -20.84% -11.71% 0.55% 4.35% 
Russell Mid Cap Value 19.95% -1 8.09% -11 .81% -0.54% 3.32% 
Mid Cap Value Fund Universe 19.39% -1 9.78% -1 3.56% -1 .59% 2.10% 

Mid Cap Equities - Blend 

I Columbia Mid Cap Index A - NT/AX 24.02% -13.00% -7.18% 1.90% 4.72% 
S&P Mid Cap 400 24.07% -1 2.78% -6.70% 2.39% 5.22% 
Mid Cap Blend Fund Universe 22.13% -1 2.55% -6.19% 2.41% 3.86% 

Mid Cap Equities - Growth 
Prudential Jennison Mid Cap Growth -PEGZX <ON WATCH> 29.89% 3.90% 11.52% 12.92% 9.25% 

Russell Mid Cap Growth 30.26% 4.16% 11 .91% 14.76% 11 .60% 
Mid Cap Growth Fund Universe 30.27% 3.60% 9.65% 12.58% 9.92% 

Fund Returns in RED do not meet both benchmarks. Fund Returns in BLACK meet both benchmarks. 



 
Page 108 of 365

NDPERS Investment Benchmarks - 2nd Quarter 2020 
Quarter Y-T-D 1-Year 3-Year 5-Year 

Small Cap Equities - Value 
Northern Small Cap Value Fund - NOSGX 14.74% -24.77% -19.57% -5.45% 0.27% 

Russell 2000 Value Index 18.91% -23.50% -17.48% -4.35% 1.26% 
Small Value Fund Universe 22.29% -22.95% -17.33% -5.15% -0.33% 

Small Cap Equities - Blend 

I DFA US Small Cap - DFSTX 23.54% -16.89% -11 .71% -1 .29% 2.33% 
Russell 2000 Index 25.42% -12.98% ~ .63% 201% 4.29% 
Small Blend Fund Universe 22.95% -16.88% -11.41% -0.64% 2.49% 

Small Cap Equities - Growth 
Brown Capital Mgmt Small Co Inv - BCSIX 36.46% 15.37% 16.35% 17.46% 16.04% 

Russell 2000 Growth Index 30.58% -306% 3.48% 7.86% 6.86% 
Small Growth Fund Universe 32.19% -0.10% 4.46% 1008% 8.28% 

International Equ~y Funds 
American Funds New Perspective Fund - RNPEX 23.74% 1.14% 10.72% 10.90% 10.14% 
Vanguard Total Intl Stock ndex Inv - VT/AX 18.11 % -10.59% -4.09% 1.09% 2.42% 

MSCI ACWI Index 16.12% -11 00% -4.80% 1.13% 2.26% 
International Stock Fund Universe 16.24% -10.93% -4.66% 0.30% 1.79% 

Oppenheimer Developing Marlcets Y - ODVYX 18.22% ~ .77% -1 .87% 4.35% 4.59% 
MSCI Emerging Markets Index 1808% -9.78% -3.39% 1.90% 2.86% 
Diversified Emerging Mkts Universe 20.68% -9.77% -3.66% 1.15% 2.46% 

Asset A llocation Funds 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle Ret Income - TL/RX 10.66% ~ .05% 4.53% 5.16% 5.02% 

Income Benchmark 6.27% 1.43% 4.99% 4.61% 4.18% 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2010 - TCLEX 10.65% ~ .07% 4.51 % 5.28% 5.16% 

2010 Benchmark 9.60% -0.24% 4.45% 5.18% 4.97% 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2015 - TCLD< 11 .65% ~ .48% 4.45% 5.44% 5.36% 

2015 Benchmark 11 .34% -1 .12% 4.17% 5.49% 5.38% 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2020 - TCL TX 12.51% ~ .99% 4.35% 5.65% 5.61% 

2020 Benchmark 12.82% -1 .87% 3.92% 5.75% 5.73% 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2025 - TCLFX 14.12% -1 .68% 4.11 % 5.85% 5.88% 

2025 Benchmark 14 08% -2.50% 3.72% 5.98% 603% 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2030 - TCLNX 15.61% -2.49% 3.86% 6.01% 6.11% 

2030 Benchmark 16.17% -3.58% 3.36% 6.33% 6.52% 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2035 - TCLRX 17.18% -3.35% 3.56% 6.16% 6.32% 

2035 Benchmark 18.65% -5.20% 2.55% 6.61% 6.98% 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2040 - TCLOX 18.70% -4.13% 3.22% 6.26% 6.47% 

2040 Benchmark 19.56% -5.73% 2.33% 6.74% 7.17% 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2045 - TTFRX 20.06% -4.83% 2.98% 6.21% 6.56% 

2045 Benchmark 19.58% -5.73% 2.33% 6.75% 7.18% 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2050 - TLFRX 20.29% -4.96% 2.84% 6.24% 6.61% 

2050 Benchmark 19.58% -5.73% 2.33% 6.75% 7.18% 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2055 - TTRLX 20.43% -5.12% 2.78% 6.23% 6.65% 

2055 Benchmark 19.59% -5.73% 2.34% 6.75% 7.18% 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2060 - TLXRX 20.64% -5.14% 2.84% 6.25% 6.71% 

2060 Benchmark 19.59% -5.72% 2.35% 6.76% 7.19% 

Income Benchmark is comprised of 11 .1 % Wilshire 5000, 9.1 % MSCI ACWI, 52.4% Ag Bond, 5 0% REIIT Index , 22.4% 3 Month T-Bill 
2010 Benchmark is comprised of 23.1% Wilshire 5000, 14.9% MSCI ACWI, 42 0% Ag Bond, 5 0% REIT Index , 15 0% 3 Month T-Bil l 
2015 Benchmark is comprised of 29.6% Wilshire 5000, 177% MSCI ACWI, 36.2% Ag Bond, 5 0% REIT Index , 11 .5% 3 Month T-Bil l 
2020 Benchmark is comprised of 35.1 % Wilshire 5000, 20.1 % MSCI ACWI, 31 .2% Ag Bond, 5 0% REIT Index , 8.6% 3 Month T-Bil l 
2025 Benchmark is comprised of 39.8% Wilshire 5000, 22.1% MSCI ACWI, 27 0% Ag Bond, 5 0% REIT Index , 6.1% 3 Month T-Bil l 
2030 Benchmark is comprised of 47.6% Wilshire 5000, 25.5% MSCI ACWI, 19.7% Ag Bond, 5 0% REIT Index , 2.2% 3 Month T-Bil l 
2035 Benchmark is comprised of 57.4% Wilshire 5000, 29.7% MSCI ACWI, 5.8% Ag Bond, 5 0% REIT Index , 2.1% 3 Month T-Bil l 
2040 Benchmark is comprised of60.8% Wilshire 5000, 31 .3% MSCI ACWI, 1.8% Ag Bond, 5 0% RE IT Index , 1.3% 3 Month T-Bil l 
2045 Benchmark is comprised of60.9% Wilshire 5000, 31 .3% MSCI ACWI, 1.8% Ag Bond, 5 0% RE IT Index , 1.1 % 3 Month T-Bil l 
2050 Benchmark is comprised of60.9% Wilshire 5000, 31 .3% MSCI ACWI, 1.8% Ag Bond, 5 0% RE IT Index , 1.1 % 3 Month T-Bil l 
2055 Benchmark is comprised of61 0% Wilshire 5000, 31 .2% MSCI ACWI, 1. 7% Ag Bond, 5 0% RE IT Index , 1.1 % 3 Month T-Bil l 
2060 Benchmark is comprised of61 0% Wilshire 5000, 31 .2% MSCI ACWI, 1.8% Ag Bond, 5 0% RE IT Index , 1.1 % 3 Month T-Bil l 

Wilshire 5000 Index 22.69% -2.86% 6.54% 10.02% 9.94% 
FTSE NAREIT Equ~y REITs Index 13.25% -13.30% ~.47% 3.51% 6.56% 
MSCI ACWI Index 16.12% -11 00% -4.80% 1.13% 2.26% 
US Aggregate Bond Index 303% 6.30% 8.92% 5.40% 4.37% 
3 Month T-Bill Index 0.14% 0.52% 1.56% 1.72% 1.15% 

Fund Retums in RED do not meet both benchmarks. Fund Returns in BLACK meet both benchmarks. 

-



Page 109 of 365

NORTH DAKOTA PERS 401 A DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 

Employee summary: Gender and age1 

Demographics by Age and Gender Average Account Balance by Age and Gender 

40 36 $250K .. 
35 " C $203K 

28 .. 
!! 30 .. $200K 
C .0 .. 25 23 23 23 -Q. 

C $150K S124K S130K 
" 20 17 17 

:, - 0 
~ 15 14 " .. 15 " $100K Q. .. S70K - 10 9 .. S60K S62K $57K 
0 "' $46K .. J .. $SOK S34K $28K 

5 ~ .. 
0 0 > so $0 

0 < $0 
<25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64 <25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64 

AG E a Male Female AGE • Male Female 

Employee Contribution Amounts by Gender Diversification by Gender 

140 MALE .. - 120 
11G 

C 

FEMALE 

.. 
100 Q. 

" 80 .. -~ 60 .. 
Q. 40 ,. 
0 

,. 
20 10 12 • .. I ' ' 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 2 

0 - ' 
..I_i. ' ~ ~ 

• Male Female • Guaranteed • Money Market • Fixed Income • Multi-AsseUOther2 • Equit ies 

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted. The report includes all TIM plans except 457(1), 457(b) Private, 
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Data reflected is for all participant statuses except Employee Contribution Amounts by Gender which includes only 
active or leave status. Does not include 2 participants with no age or gender on file. 2. Multi-Asset/Other includes Lifecycle, Real Estate, and Brokerage. 3. Contribution data reflects the trailing 
12 months of data. 



 
Page 110 of 365

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE S RETIREM ENT SYSTEM COMPAN ION PLAN 

Employee summary: Gender and age1 

Demographics by Age and Gender Average Account Balance by Age and Gender 

1,400 11304 .. $60K $55K 
1,200 " 11055 C 

11006 .. $50K !? 1,000 924 948 .. 
C .0 $40K S40K .. 798 - $40K Q. 800 683 714 C 

" :, -

l l 
0 $30K 

~ 600 " $22K .. " Q. .. 
$20K - 400 .. $15K 

0 227 250 CJ) SIOK $SK .. 
200 108 75 

.. $ 10K ~ $SK $4K .. 
> E 428 

0 < $0 
<25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64 <25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64 

AG E a Male Female AG E • Male Female 

Employee Contribution Amounts by Gender Diversification by Gender 

.. 3,000 M A LE 
2.m - 2,500 C .. 

Q. 2,000 
" - 1,500 ~ .. 
Q. 1,000 
0 500 .. 

0 

1.883 

l 28' 327 
101 103 S2 3' • • .... S4 28 13 , , 

...L 

• Male Female • Guaranteed • Money Market • Fixed Income • Multi-AsseUOther2 • Equit ies 

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted. The report includes all TIM plans except 457(1), 457(b) Private, 
NonQualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Data reflected is for all participant statuses except Employee Contribution Amounts by Gender which includes only 
active or leave status. Does not include 290 participants with no age or gender on file. 2. Multi-AsseUOther includes Lifecycle, Real Estate, and Brokerage. 3. Contribution data reflects the 
trailing 12 months of data. 



 

Page 111 of 365

Plan Summary CJTIAA 
'="' 

As of 06/30/2020 

457(b) Assets Pct 

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2025 Fund Retirement $20,599,%2 14.8% TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2030 Fund Retirement $1,969,727 12.7% 

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2020 Fund Retirement $16,862,300 12.1% TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2025 Fund Retirement $1,809,796 11.7% 

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2030 Fund Retirement $14,838,654 10.7% TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2035 Fund Retirement $1,659,970 10.7% 

t TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2035 Fund Retirement $11,204,431 8.0% TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2020 Fund Retirement $1,035,579 6.7% 
D TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2045 Fund Retirement $9,029,329 6.5% Vanguard Institutional Index Fund Institutional S890,579 5.8% 

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2040 Fund Retirement $9,006,032 6.5% TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2050 Fund Retirement S746,804 4.8% 

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2015 Fund Retirement $7,631,980 5.5% Brown Capttal Management Small Company Fund Investor S718,S69 4.6% 
Vanguard Institutional Index Fund Institutional $6,462,073 4.6% TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2045 Fund Retirement S676,028 4.4% 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2050 Fund Retirement $5,871,400 4.2% TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2040 Fund Retirement S589,633 3.8% 
Vanguard Total Bond Martcet Index Fund Admiral $3,507,236 2.5% Wells Fargo Growth Fund Administrator S465,933 3.0% 
Vanguard Admiral Treasury Money Martcet Fund Investor $3,048,553 2.2% TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2055 Fund Retirement S452,860 2.9% 
Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund Admiral $2,859,005 2.1% Franklin Growth Fund AdVisor S428,543 2.8% 

~ wn Capttal Management Small Company Fund Investor $2,628,616 1.9% ____!:Bowe Price Capttal Appreciation Fund Advisor S391,398 2.5% 
Vanguard Dividend Growth Fund Investor $2,487,669 1.8% TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2010 Fund Retirement S389,070 2.5% 
Wells Fargo Stable Value Fund - J $2,262,844 1.6% Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund Admiral S325,158 2.1% 

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2055 Fund Retirement $1,933,193 1.4% ~ M High Yield Fund z S285,606 1.8% 
Franklin Growth Fund AdVisor $1,896,135 1.4% ~ erican Funds New P~ ive Fund R4 S246,976 1.6% 
Wells Fargo Growth Fund Administrator $1,427,754 1.0% Cohen & Steers Realty Shares S229,777 1.5% 

____!:Bowe Price Capttal Appreciation Fund Advisor $1,365,947 1.0% Vanguard Dividend Growth Fund Investor S224,747 1.5% 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2010 Fund Retirement $1,231,058 0.9% Vanguard Admiral Treasury Money Martcet Fund Investor S224,680 1.5% 

~ mbia Mid Cap Index Fund A $1,211,472 0.9% Hartford Dividend and Growth Fund RS S211,793 1.4% 

Invesco Oppenheimer Developing Markets Fund Y $1,039,873 0.7% Invesco Oppenheimer Developing Markets Fund Y S184,978 1.2% 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle Retirement Income Fund Retirement $1,006,549 0.7% Baird Core Plus Bond Fund Investor S165,045 1.1% 
Hartford Dividend and Growth Fund RS $1,005,464 0.7% Wells Fargo Stable Value Fund - J S155,S65 1.0% 
Baird Core Plus Bond Fund Investor S934,640 0.7% Columbia Mid Cap Index Fund A S149,465 1.0% 

~ M High Yield Fund z S922,033 0.7% Vanguard Total Bond Martcet Index Fund Admiral S141,167 0.9% 

___lBowe Price Equity Income Fund S839,874 0.6% ___lBowe Price Equity Income Fund S125,S66 0.8% 
Virtus Ceredex Mid-Cap Value Equity Fund I S836,458 0.6% Northern Small cap Value Fund S98,777 0.6% 
Se~ Directed Brokerage Account S816,361 0.6% ~ Directed Brokerage Account S94,299 0.6% 

~erican Funds New Perspective Fund R4 S762,270 0.5% DFA U.S. Small Cap Portfolio lnstilltional S87,980 0.6% 

Cohen & Steers Realty Shares S721,059 0.5% ~ dential Jennison Mid-Cap Growth Fund z S84,514 0.5% 
Prudential Jennison Mid-Cap Growth Fund z S663,935 0.5% Templeton Global Bond Fund AdVisor S80,996 0.5% 
Northern Small cap Value Fund S614,406 0.4% MassMutual Premier Inflation-Protected and Income Fund Service Ciass S68,767 0.4% 

MassMutual Premier Inflation-Protected and Income Fund Service Ciass S567,879 0.4% TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2015 Fund Retirement S37,264 0.2% 
Templeton Global Bond Fund AdVisor S524,997 0.4% Virtus Ceredex Mid-Cap Value Equity Fund I S31,258 0.2% 

DFA U.S. Small ~ ortfolio Institutional S354,340 0.3% TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2060 Fund Retirement $5,975 0.0% 
TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2060 Fund Retirement S301,407 0.2% TIAA-CREF Lif cle Retirement Income Fund Retirement $0 0.0% 

Total $139,277,186 100.0% Total $15,484,841 100.0% 

Grand Total $154,762,027 



 
 
 
 

            Fax: (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website  https://ndpers.nd.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   Rebecca 
 
DATE:   September 8, 2020 
 
SUBJECT:  401(a)/457 Defined Contribution Plan Renewal 
 
 
 
Effective July 1, 2017, TIAA was awarded the bid for the 401(a)/457 Defined Contribution 
Plan services.  The Board approved renewing the contract with TIAA for July 1, 2019 
through June 30, 2021, which is the 2nd 2-year period for renewal.  TIAA has now provided 
the same cost for services (23 bps) for the final 2-year period, July 1, 2021 through June 30, 
2023 (Attachment 1).   
 
Attachment 2 is the Employee Engagement 2020 Quarter 2 summary which was recently  
provided to the Investment Sub-Committee.  This summary provides the most recent 
quarterly snapshot of the member counseling services provided by TIAA, as well as 
feedback from these participants  Attachment 3 was also provided to the Investment Sub-
Committee and is a quarterly overview of general participant enrollment, demographic and 
account detail.  
 
Overall, staff is satisfied with the services being provided by TIAA and has received little 
feedback from participants indicating they are dissatisfied.  Therefore, staff recommends 
that we amend the current contract to renew with TIAA for the July 1, 2021 through June 30, 
2023 contract period.  
 
If the Board opts not to renew with TIAA, staff will begin preparations of the 401(a)/457 
Defined Contribution Plan Request for Proposal and will bring it to the Board for approval at 
a future meeting. 
 
 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377  

Page 112 of 365



 
Board Action Requested 
 
Approve staff’s recommendation to amend the current contract to renew with TIAA for the 
401(a)/457 Defined Contribution Plan services for the July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023 
contract period.   

Page 113 of 365



From: Thorpe, Melissa
To: Fricke, Rebecca D.
Cc: Anderson, MaryJo V.; Miller, Scott A.
Subject: RE: July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2023
Date: Monday, August 31, 2020 4:31:12 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image004.png

CAUTION: This email originated from an outside source. Do not click links or open attachments unless you know they are
safe.

Thanks for clarifying.  In April, we did a plan economic review and the outcome was no price reduction without some efficiency gains. 
Our pricing team said we could renew with the current cost (23 bps) which means no price increase either.  Many variables factored into
cost, we can have Chris Godwin attend another discussion to explain if that would be helpful. 

Sincerely,

Melissa Thorpe
Relationship Manager │TIAA Financial Solutions
TIAA
1670 Broadway | Suite 3300
Denver, CO 80202
Office: 303.607.2164
Melissa.Thorpe@tiaa.org
www.tiaa.org

TIAA-CREF Individual & Institutional Services, LLC, Member FINRA and SIPC 

From: Fricke, Rebecca D. <rfricke@nd.gov> 
Sent: Monday, August 31, 2020 3:17 PM
To: Thorpe, Melissa <Melissa.Thorpe@tiaa.org>
Cc: Anderson, MaryJo V. <msteffes@nd.gov>; Miller, Scott A. <scottmiller@nd.gov>
Subject: RE: July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2023

Hi Melissa.  What we are looking for at this time is if the cost to perform services will remain the same for July 1, 2021-June
30, 2023 as the current period (July 1, 2019-June 30, 2021?  If so, that is what I will take to the Board and then if approved,
we will work on a contract amendment with our legal.

Can you confirm if the cost to perform services to NDPERS will remain the same for this period?

Thanks.

Rebecca Fricke

North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System
400 East Broadway Avenue Suite 505| PO Box 1657
Bismarck, ND 58502| Online https://ndpers.nd.gov
P 701.328.3978|TF 800.803.7377|F 701.328.3920
email rfricke@nd.gov| Find us on facebook

This e-mail, including any attachments, may contain information that is proprietary, privileged and/or confidential and is intended exclusively for the
person(s) to whom it is addressed. Any use, disclosure, copying, retention or distribution by any person other than the intended recipient or the intended
recipient’s designees is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient or their designee, please notify the sender immediately by return e-mail
and delete all copies. This message is not intended to provide specific advice or recommendations for any individuals. NDPERS is governed by the laws
and regulations set forth in the N.D.C.C. and N.D.A.C. Consult your attorney, accountant, financial or tax advisor about your individual situation.
NDPERS has taken reasonable precautions to ensure no viruses are present in this email; however, the agency cannot accept responsibility for any loss

Attachment 1

Page 114 of 365

mailto:Melissa.Thorpe@tiaa.org
mailto:rfricke@nd.gov
mailto:msteffes@nd.gov
mailto:scottmiller@nd.gov
mailto:Melissa.Thorpe@tiaa.org
http://www.tiaa.org/
https://ndpers.nd.gov/
mailto:rfricke@nd.gov
https://www.facebook.com/NDPERS/





or damage that may arise from the use of this email or attachments.
 
 
 

From: Thorpe, Melissa <Melissa.Thorpe@tiaa.org> 
Sent: Monday, August 31, 2020 4:04 PM
To: Fricke, Rebecca D. <rfricke@nd.gov>
Cc: Anderson, MaryJo V. <msteffes@nd.gov>; Miller, Scott A. <scottmiller@nd.gov>
Subject: RE: July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2023
 

CAUTION: This email originated from an outside source. Do not click links or open attachments unless you know they are
safe.

Hello!  Please see attached – will this work?
 
Sincerely,
 
Melissa Thorpe
Relationship Manager │TIAA Financial Solutions
TIAA
1670 Broadway | Suite 3300
Denver, CO 80202
Office: 303.607.2164
Melissa.Thorpe@tiaa.org
www.tiaa.org
 
TIAA-CREF Individual & Institutional Services, LLC, Member FINRA and SIPC 

 

 

From: Fricke, Rebecca D. <rfricke@nd.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, August 25, 2020 8:24 AM
To: Thorpe, Melissa <Melissa.Thorpe@tiaa.org>
Cc: Anderson, MaryJo V. <msteffes@nd.gov>; Miller, Scott A. <scottmiller@nd.gov>
Subject: July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2023
Importance: High
 
Hi Melissa.  I apologize for springing this on you under short notice.  We were reviewing the current contract and the
following relates to the renewal for the final two year term:

 
Based upon this, is it possible for TIAA to provide a renewal proposal for July 1, 2021-June 30, 2023 by September 1 so that
we can take it to the NDPERS Board at their September 8 meeting?
 
Thank you.

Page 115 of 365

mailto:Melissa.Thorpe@tiaa.org
mailto:rfricke@nd.gov
mailto:msteffes@nd.gov
mailto:scottmiller@nd.gov
mailto:Melissa.Thorpe@tiaa.org
http://www.tiaa.org/
mailto:rfricke@nd.gov
mailto:Melissa.Thorpe@tiaa.org
mailto:msteffes@nd.gov
mailto:scottmiller@nd.gov


 
Rebecca Fricke
 

North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System
400 East Broadway Avenue Suite 505| PO Box 1657
Bismarck, ND 58502| Online https://ndpers.nd.gov
P 701.328.3978|TF 800.803.7377|F 701.328.3920
email rfricke@nd.gov| Find us on facebook

This e-mail, including any attachments, may contain information that is proprietary, privileged and/or confidential and is intended exclusively for the
person(s) to whom it is addressed. Any use, disclosure, copying, retention or distribution by any person other than the intended recipient or the intended
recipient’s designees is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient or their designee, please notify the sender immediately by return e-mail
and delete all copies. This message is not intended to provide specific advice or recommendations for any individuals. NDPERS is governed by the laws
and regulations set forth in the N.D.C.C. and N.D.A.C. Consult your attorney, accountant, financial or tax advisor about your individual situation.
NDPERS has taken reasonable precautions to ensure no viruses are present in this email; however, the agency cannot accept responsibility for any loss
or damage that may arise from the use of this email or attachments.
 

*************************************************************************
This e-mail may contain confidential or privileged information.
If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately and then delete it.

TIAA
*************************************************************************

*************************************************************************
This e-mail may contain confidential or privileged information.
If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately and then delete it.

TIAA
*************************************************************************

Page 116 of 365

https://ndpers.nd.gov/
mailto:rfricke@nd.gov
https://www.facebook.com/NDPERS/


PLACEHOLDER PHOTOGRAPH

ON THE MASTER SLIDE, DELETE THIS 
PLACEHOLDER, PLACE AND SIZE A PHOTO, 

THEN SEND IT TO THE BACK SO THAT IT 
SHOWS THROUGH THIS WINDOW.

NDPERS Employee 
Engagement – Q2 2020

Attachment 2

Page 117 of 365



2

Financial Consultant Activity
Q2 2020

FC days offered in North Dakota

Available appointments

Participant consultations

Virtual consultations YTD

Overall take and show rate

112

614

399

213

65%

Days 

Offered

Seats 

Offered

Seats 

Taken Take Rate

Seats 

Attended

No Show 

Rate

Q1 13 78 60 77% 50 17%

*Q2 23 127 92 72% 73 21%

TOTAL 36 205 152 75% 123 19%

NDPERS January 1, 2020 - June 30, 2020

Days 

Offered

Seats 

Offered

Seats 

Taken Take Rate

Seats 

Attended

No Show 

Rate

Q1 44 257 196 76% 166 15%

*Q2 32 152 121 80% 110 9%

TOTAL 76 409 317 78% 276 24%

NDUS Sites January 1, 2020 - June 30, 2020

*Q2 – 100% Virtual Meetings

Page 118 of 365



3

Voice of the Client
YTD 2020

❖ How strongly do you agree or 
disagree that your TIAA 
consultant put your interests 
first?” = 100% Agree or Strongly 
Agree

❖ Understanding your needs and 
goals = 97% Excellent or Very Good

❖ Having the expertise required to 
handle your financial needs = 94% 
Excellent or Very Good

❖ Providing quality advice = 97% 
Excellent or Very Good

❖ Anticipating additional financial 
issues and bringing them to your 
attention = 94% Excellent or Very 
Good

❖ OVERALL RATING = 96%

“Please rate your TIAA consultant on some other specific 

characteristics”

"Thomas was very knowledgeable about the areas that are 

important to me. He was very respectful, and it was easy to talk 

with him. I would recommend him to anyone needing assistance. I 

am not very knowledgeable about financial things, and he 

patiently explained them to me and answered my questions fully."

“Teresa was a pleasure to work with and pointed out 

things to me that I was unaware of and that needed to be 

addressed. She was friendly, very helpful, and able to 

explain things in a way that I could understand. After 

meeting with her, I recommended her to several 

colleagues. I will definitely be following up with her to meet 

again."

Page 119 of 365



Questions?

Page 120 of 365



Plan Review
North Dakota Public 
Employees

Delivered by: Melissa Thorpe 

As of June 30, 2020

Optimizing plan effectiveness to help 
drive better outcomes

Attachment 3

Page 121 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 2

 In-service 0.7% $40,094
 Terminated 83.8% $4,483,833
 Other 15.4% $823,760

Executive summary: Snapshot

Plan profile

$154.8 Million

Contributions

9.8% Year-over-Year

Assets

$15,254,958
6.5% Year-over-Year

Distributions2 $5,347,686

13.7% Year-over-Year

Participant profile

8,522

Participant Counts and 
Average Balances3

Engagement
(as of 6/30/2020)

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted. The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private, Nonqualified 
Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans.  This report excludes details on non-participant accounts (forfeiture and revenue credit account) but includes the balances. 1. Refer to 
the “Income replacement ratio methodology and assumptions” page. 2. Certain Distributions (e.g., QDRO, Disability or Age 70.5 Minimum Distribution) may be categorized under In-Service, 
Terminated or Other. Please see the Glossary for additional information. 3. “Active” participants have a status of Active or Leave, a balance greater than zero and have made a contribution in the 
last 12 months. “Terminated” participants have a status of Terminated and a balance. “Other” represents all other participants in the plans (other status codes and non-contributing) with a balance.

 Employer 3.3% $502,209
 Employee 87.1% $13,285,836
 Matching 0.0% $0
 Rollovers 9.6% $1,466,913

0%

Participation Rate

Accomplishments

Participants with balances

Active 5,832 68% $16,950
Terminated 2,354 28% $22,383
Other 336 4% $9,576

Total phone calls (Transactional) 404
Advice 701
Increased contributions 3,561
Rebalanced 1,057

Accomplishments

Page 122 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 3

Contributions Impacting Plan Outcome Diversification

Executive summary: Participant trends

0% 0% 0%1% 2% 2%4% 4% 5%

73% 74% 73%

21% 21% 21%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

6/18 6/19 6/20

Guaranteed Money Market Fixed Income
Multi-Asset/Other Equities

%
 O

F 
A

SS
ET

S

Multi-Asset/Other includes Lifecycle, Real Estate, and Brokerage. 
The peer benchmark represents a group of institutions with TIAA recordkept assets 
in the not-for-profit market with total plan assets between 100M and 500M.

9%

6%

9%

6%

10%

6%

7%

6%

7%

6%

8%

6%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

6/18 6/19 6/20

C
O

N
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

 R
A

T
E

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private, 
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans.

 EE  ER  Peer ER Peer EE

Page 123 of 365



PLACEHOLDER PHOTOGRAPH
ON THE MASTER SLIDE, DELETE 
THIS PLACEHOLDER, PLACE AND 

SIZE A PHOTO, 
THEN SEND IT TO THE BACK SO 

THAT IT 
SHOWS THROUGH THIS WINDOW.

Important plan and 
participant detailsEmployee Summary

Important plan and participant 
details

Page 124 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 5

810 1,054 1,220Total Number of  Enrollments1

100% 100% 100%

0% 0%0%0% 0% 0%

37%

64%
70%

0%

0%

2%

4%

4%

17%

21%
20%

44%

11%
6%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

6/18 6/19 6/20

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 e

nr
ol

lm
en

ts
Employee summary: Enrollment trends

Enrollment by method

Your Plans
■ Remittance ■ Phone ■ Paper  ■ Online  ■ Other2

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private, 
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. If a participant is enrolled in more than one plan, they are still only counted as one unique enrollment in this 
chart. 2. “Other” includes the following enrollment categories: Internet/Admin, Negative, Enhanced Administrative Services (EAS) and Unknown. 3. The peer benchmark represents a 
group of institutions with TIAA recordkept assets in the not-for-profit market with total plan assets between 100M and 500M.

Peer Benchmark3

■ Remittance ■ Phone ■ Paper ■ Online ■ Other2

Page 125 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 6

100% 100% 100%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

6/18 6/19 6/20

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 e

nr
ol

lm
en

ts
Employee summary: Enrollment trends

Enrollment by method

■ Remittance ■ Phone ■ Paper  ■ Online  ■ Other2

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private, 
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. This counts the total number of participants enrolled in this plan. If a participant is additionally enrolled in 
another plan, they will also be included in the total number of enrollments on that other plan’s “Enrollment Summary” slide. 2. “Other” includes the following enrollment categories: 

Internet/Admin, Negative, Enhanced Administrative Services (EAS) and Unknown.

NORTH DAKOTA PERS 401A DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

16 2 4Total Number of  Enrollments1

Page 126 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 7

100% 100% 100%

0% 0%0%0% 0% 0%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

6/18 6/19 6/20

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 e

nr
ol

lm
en

ts
Employee summary: Enrollment trends

Enrollment by method

■ Remittance ■ Phone ■ Paper  ■ Online  ■ Other2

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private, 
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. This counts the total number of participants enrolled in this plan. If a participant is additionally enrolled in 
another plan, they will also be included in the total number of enrollments on that other plan’s “Enrollment Summary” slide. 2. “Other” includes the following enrollment categories: 

Internet/Admin, Negative, Enhanced Administrative Services (EAS) and Unknown.

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM COMPANION PLAN

798 1,054 1,217Total Number of  Enrollments1

Page 127 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 8

Average Account Balance by Age and Gender

Employee Contribution Rates by gender Diversification by Gender

0 1

31

5
1

3
0

3

38

8

1
3

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

0% 1% - 5% 6% - 10% 11% - 15% 16% - 20% >20%
Male Female

# 
o

f 
p

ar
ti

ci
p

an
ts

CON TR IBU TI ON  R ATE S 3

Demographics by Age and Gender

# 
o

f 
p

ar
ti

ci
p

an
ts

AGE

$822
$5K

$10K

$26K

$43K

$62K

$428
$4K

$10K
$16K

$26K

$41K

$0

$10K

$20K

$30K

$40K

$50K

$60K

$70K

<25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64
Male FemaleAGE

Employee summary: Gender and age1

■ Equities■ Money Market ■ Fixed Income■ Guaranteed ■ Multi-Asset/Other

M ALE FE M ALE

A
ve

ra
g

e 
ac

co
u

n
t 

b
al

an
ce

108

808
962

700 728

233

75

936

1,320

1,079 1,018

263

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

<25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64
Male Female

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private, Nonqualified 
Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Data reflected is for all participant statuses except Employee Contribution Rates by Gender which applies additional filters. Does not 
include 292 participants with no age or gender on file. 2. Multi-Asset/Other includes Lifecycle, Real Estate, and Brokerage. 3. Contribution data reflects the trailing 12 months of data.

0%3%6%

65%

26%

0%1%4%

80%

15%

2

Page 128 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 9

Average Account Balance by Age and Gender

Diversification by Gender

Demographics by Age and Gender

# 
o

f 
p

ar
ti

ci
p

an
ts

AGE

$0

$34K
$46K

$124K $130K

$203K

$0
$28K

$60K $62K $70K
$57K

$0

$50K

$100K

$150K

$200K

$250K

<25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64
Male FemaleAGE

Employee summary: Gender and age1 

M ALE FE M ALE

A
ve

ra
g

e 
ac

co
u

n
t 

b
al

an
ce

0

17 17

23 23

9

0

23

28

36

15 14

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

<25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64
Male Female

68

4
20

12
3 0 1 0 1

116

10

29

8 3 1 0 0 2

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140

Male Female

Employee Contribution Amounts by Gender

# 
o

f 
p

ar
ti

ci
p

an
ts

Cont r ibu t i o n  am ount 3

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private, 
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Data reflected is for all participant statuses except Employee Contribution Amounts by Gender which includes only 
active or leave status. Does not include 2 participants with no age or gender on file.  2. Multi-Asset/Other includes Lifecycle, Real Estate, and Brokerage. 3. Contribution data reflects the trailing 
12 months of data.

0%1%4%

60%

35%

0%2%6%

65%

27%

NORTH DAKOTA PERS 401A DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

■ Equities■ Money Market ■ Fixed Income■ Guaranteed ■ Multi-Asset/Other2

Page 129 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 10

Average Account Balance by Age and Gender

Diversification by Gender

Demographics by Age and Gender

# 
o

f 
p

ar
ti

ci
p

an
ts

AGE

$822
$5K

$10K

$22K

$40K

$55K

$428
$4K

$8K
$15K

$26K

$40K

$0

$10K

$20K

$30K

$40K

$50K

$60K

<25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64
Male FemaleAGE

Employee summary: Gender and age1 

M ALE FE M ALE

A
ve

ra
g

e 
ac

co
u

n
t 

b
al

an
ce

108

798
948

683 714

227
75

924

1,304

1,055 1,006

250

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

<25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64
Male Female

269

1,883

284
101 52 34 13 9 63

385

2,615

327
103 39 28 16 8 46

0
500

1,000
1,500
2,000
2,500
3,000

Male Female

Employee Contribution Amounts by Gender

# 
o

f 
p

ar
ti

ci
p

an
ts

Cont r ibu t i o n  am ount 3

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private, 
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Data reflected is for all participant statuses except Employee Contribution Amounts by Gender which includes only 
active or leave status. Does not include 290 participants with no age or gender on file.  2. Multi-Asset/Other includes Lifecycle, Real Estate, and Brokerage. 3. Contribution data reflects the 
trailing 12 months of data.

0%3%6%

65%

26%

0%1%4%

82%

13%

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM COMPANION PLAN

■ Equities■ Money Market ■ Fixed Income■ Guaranteed ■ Multi-Asset/Other2

Page 130 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 11

Active participants: Average account balance by age 

$0

$42,218

$66,767

$112,457

$54,851

$26,106

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

<25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64

A
ve

ra
g

e 
ac

co
u

n
t 

b
al

an
ce

<25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64 Total

# of Active 
Participants 0 20 31 29 15 1 96

% of Total Active 
Participants 0% 21% 32% 30% 16% 1% 100%

Total Active 
Assets $0 $844,368 $2,069,778 $3,261,244 $822,758 $26,106 $7,024,253

% of Total Active 
Assets 0% 12% 29% 46% 12% 0% 100%

NORTH DAKOTA PERS 401A DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted. The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private, 
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. Page 131 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 12

Active participants: Average account balance by age 

$786

$4,787

$10,401

$19,669

$29,934

$32,346

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

$35,000

<25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64

A
ve

ra
g

e 
ac

co
u

n
t 

b
al

an
ce

<25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64 Total

# of Active 
Participants 134 1,249 1,649 1,370 1,239 141 5,782

% of Total Active 
Participants 2% 22% 29% 24% 21% 2% 100%

Total Active 
Assets $105,376 $5,978,725 $17,150,588 $26,947,024 $37,088,459 $4,560,826 $91,830,997

% of Total Active 
Assets 0% 7% 19% 29% 40% 5% 100%

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM COMPANION PLAN

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted. The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private, 
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. Page 132 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 13

Active participants: Contribution amounts by age

Employer (ER) & employee (EE) contributions

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 a

m
o

u
n

t

$64K

$1.5M

$2.8M

$3.2M

$4.0M

$464K

$5K

$64K $74K

$1.5M

$175K

$2.8M

$149K

$3.2M

$70K

$4.0M

$2K

$464K

$0.0K

$500.0K

$1.0M

$1.5M

$2.0M

$2.5M

$3.0M

$3.5M

$4.0M

$4.5M

<25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64

ER Nonmatch EE Pre-Tax EE After-Tax

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) 
Private, Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. ER Nonmatch includes all employer contributions other than match contributions.

<25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64
1

Page 133 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 14

Active participants: Contribution amounts by age

Employer (ER) & employee (EE) contributions

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 a

m
o

u
n

t

$73K

$172K

$141K

$69K

$2K

$5K

$74K $73K

$175K $172K

$149K $146K

$70K $69K

$2K $2K
$0.0K

$20.0K

$40.0K

$60.0K

$80.0K

$100.0K

$120.0K

$140.0K

$160.0K

$180.0K

$200.0K

<25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64

ER Nonmatch EE Pre-Tax EE After-Tax

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) 
Private, Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. ER Nonmatch includes all employer contributions other than match contributions.

NORTH DAKOTA PERS 401A DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

<25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64
1

Page 134 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 15

Active participants: Contribution amounts by age

Employer (ER) & employee (EE) contributions

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 a

m
o

u
n

t

$64K

$1.4M

$2.6M

$3.1M

$3.9M

$462K

$0.0K

$500.0K

$1.0M

$1.5M

$2.0M

$2.5M

$3.0M

$3.5M

$4.0M

$4.5M

<25 <25 25-34 25-34 35-44 35-44 45-54 45-54 55-64 55-64 >64 >64

EE Pre-Tax

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) 
Private, Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans.

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM COMPANION PLAN

<25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64

Page 135 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 16

$332 $3,648 $6,268 
$13,906 

$40,781 

$57,608 

$0

$10,000

$20,000

$30,000

$40,000

$50,000

$60,000

$70,000

<25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64

Age <25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64 Total

Total Terminated 
Participants 43 443 596 398 510 364 2,354

Terminated Participants 
as % of All Participants 
in Age Range

23% 25% 25% 21% 28% 70% 28%

Total Terminated 
Assets $14,274 $1,616,243 $3,735,487 $5,534,465 $20,798,487 $20,969,176 $52,668,131

Terminated Assets as 
% of All Plan Assets in 
Age Range

12% 19% 16% 15% 35% 81% 34%

# of Participants 
with <$1,000 balance 40 154 139 92 64 16 505

# of Participants with 
>= $1,000 and
< $5,000 balance

3 230 321 177 179 78 988

Terminated participants: Summary 
A

ve
ra

g
e 

ac
co

u
n

t 
b

al
an

ce

AGE

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless it is otherwise noted. The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private,  
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. This slide includes participants with a status of “Terminated” in at least one plan, and some of these participants may have a 

status as active in other plans.  Page 136 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 17

$0 
$17,545 

$29,890 

$57,916 

$141,744 
$124,870 

$0
$20,000
$40,000
$60,000
$80,000

$100,000
$120,000
$140,000
$160,000

<25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64

Age <25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64 Total

Total Terminated 
Participants 0 16 11 25 21 21 94

Terminated Participants 
as % of All Participants
in Age Range

0% 40% 24% 42% 55% 88% 45%

Total Terminated 
Assets $0 $280,716 $328,785 $1,447,912 $2,976,614 $2,622,272 $7,656,299

Terminated Assets as 
% of All Plan Assets in 
Age Range

0% 23% 13% 29% 74% 99% 49%

# of Participants 
with <$1,000 balance 0 2 1 0 1 0 4

# of Participants with 
>= $1,000 and
< $5,000 balance

0 0 1 2 0 0 3

Terminated participants: Summary 
A

ve
ra

g
e 

ac
co

u
n

t 
b

al
an

ce

AGE

NORTH DAKOTA PERS 401A DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless it is otherwise noted. The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private,  
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. This slide includes participants with a status of “Terminated” in at least one plan, and some of these participants may have 

a status as active in other plans.  
Page 137 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 18

$332 $3,084 $5,794 
$10,811 

$36,223 

$53,026 

$0

$10,000

$20,000

$30,000

$40,000

$50,000

$60,000

<25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64

Age <25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 >64 Total

Total Terminated 
Participants 43 433 588 378 492 346 2,280

Terminated Participants 
as % of All Participants
in Age Range

23% 25% 25% 21% 28% 69% 27%

Total Terminated 
Assets $14,274 $1,335,528 $3,406,701 $4,086,553 $17,821,873 $18,346,903 $45,011,832

Terminated Assets as 
% of All Plan Assets in 
Age Range

12% 18% 16% 13% 32% 79% 32%

# of Participants 
with <$1,000 balance 40 152 138 92 63 16 501

# of Participants with 
>= $1,000 and
< $5,000 balance

3 234 321 177 179 78 992

Terminated participants: Summary 
A

ve
ra

g
e 

ac
co

u
n

t 
b

al
an

ce

AGE

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM COMPANION PLAN

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless it is otherwise noted. The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private,  
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. This slide includes participants with a status of “Terminated” in at least one plan, and some of these participants may have 

a status as active in other plans.  
Page 138 of 365



PLACEHOLDER PHOTOGRAPH
ON THE MASTER SLIDE, DELETE 
THIS PLACEHOLDER, PLACE AND 

SIZE A PHOTO, 
THEN SEND IT TO THE BACK SO 

THAT IT 
SHOWS THROUGH THIS WINDOW.

Employee Engagement

Focus on outcomes-based 
education and advice

Page 139 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 20

Segmentation overview

Support “life-
building” needs 
and begin to 
think about long-
term planning

Maximize 
savings 
opportunities 
and get to solid 
financial ground

DOLLAR 
STRETCHERS

Help manage total 
financial services 
needs in 
retirement

Help address 
the increasingly 
complex situations 
employees face

Shift from 
accumulation 
focus to 
distribution plan

LIFE
BUILDERS ACCUMULATORS TRANSITIONERS ESTABLISHED

Segmentation identifies employee needs, then provides education and advice based on their attitudes and 
preferences.

Page 140 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 21

Life stage
Dollar 
Stretcher Life Builder Accumulator Transitioner Established

Segmentation year in review as of 6/30/2020

1. All counts represent participants that have a balance > $0 and have made contributions in the last 12 months. 2. Consolidations equals  the number of participants who transfer balances from other service 
providers into TIAA retirement accounts. 3.The peer benchmark represents a group of institutions with TIAA recordkept assets in the not-for-profit market with total plan assets between 100M and 500M.. 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

En
ga

ge
m

en
t

A
ct

io
ns

O
ut

co
m

es

Count1 2,280 1,678 1,527 701 201 

Financial Foundations campaigns 1,614 1,381 1,297 627 155 

Onboarding Early Engagement program 535 285 188 57 7 

Offboarding Stay Smart® for Life program 440 93 105 291 161 

Supplemental campaigns 1,229 911 729 301 80 

# secure web ID 832 916 899 464 116 

Secure web logins 512 595 630 323 85 

Inbound phone calls: transactional 134 88 95 58 29 

In-person advice 39 55 46 54 19 

Online advice 102 155 166 51 14 

Increased contributions 1,290 1,003 872 330 66 

Started employee contributions 565 316 226 72 7 

Reallocated/rebalanced 478 275 211 77 16 

Consolidations2 22 20 28 27 2 

Updated beneficiary 132 128 98 67 15 

New enrollments 497 260 184 61 6 

Average assets $5,954 $13,800 $38,927 $68,332 $57,541

Average assets (compared to peers)3 $10,490 $27,043 $112,340 $253,677 $366,433 

Page 141 of 365



PLACEHOLDER PHOTOGRAPH
ON THE MASTER SLIDE, DELETE 
THIS PLACEHOLDER, PLACE AND 

SIZE A PHOTO, 
THEN SEND IT TO THE BACK SO 

THAT IT 
SHOWS THROUGH THIS WINDOW.

Investment Solutions

Provide participants with 
relevant choices and lifetime 
income options

Page 142 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 23

06/19 06/20

Assets

Contributions

Assets & contributions by asset class year-over-year

$0K $2.5M $5.0M

$100.8M

$29.7M

$0K $652K $2.2M$0K $3.3M $7.2M

$108.9M

$32.1M

$0K $911K $2.4M
 $0K

 $20.0M

 $40.0M

 $60.0M

 $80.0M

 $100.0M

 $120.0M

Guaranteed Money Market Fixed Income Multi-Asset Equities Real Estate Brokerage Other

$0K $201K $396K

$11.4M

$2.2M

$0K $0K $117K$0K $218K $376K

$12.3M

$2.3M

$0K $0K $87K
 $0K

 $2.0M

 $4.0M

 $6.0M

 $8.0M

 $10.0M

 $12.0M

 $14.0M

Guaranteed Money Market Fixed Income Multi-Asset Equities Real Estate Brokerage Other

06/19 06/20

$154,762,027
Total assets

$15,254,958
Total contributions

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private, 
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Multi-Asset includes Lifecycle funds. 2. Other includes uncategorized assets.

1

2

2

06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20

06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20

1

06/19 06/20

06/19 06/20

Page 143 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 24

06/19 06/20

Assets

Contributions

Plan assets & contributions by asset class year-over-year

$0K $193K $693K

$9.1M

$4.5M

$0K $76K $167K$0K $225K $742K

$9.4M

$4.9M

$0K $94K $156K
 $0K

 $1.0M
 $2.0M
 $3.0M
 $4.0M
 $5.0M
 $6.0M
 $7.0M
 $8.0M
 $9.0M

 $10.0M

Guaranteed Money Market Fixed Income Multi-Asset Equities Real Estate Brokerage Other

$0K $30K $27K

$727K

$231K

$0K $0K $2K$0K $26K $38K

$679K

$252K

$0K $0K $0K
 $0K

 $100K
 $200K
 $300K
 $400K
 $500K
 $600K
 $700K
 $800K

Guaranteed Money Market Fixed Income Multi-Asset Equities Real Estate Brokerage Other

$15,484,841
Total plan assets

$996,309
Total contributions

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private, 
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Multi-Asset includes Lifecycle funds. 2. Other includes uncategorized assets.

1 2

06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20

06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20

NORTH DAKOTA PERS 401A DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

21
06/19 06/20

06/19 06/20

Page 144 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 25

06/19 06/20

Assets

Contributions

Plan assets & contributions by asset class year-over-year

$0K $2.3M $4.3M

$91.7M

$25.2M

$0K $576K $2.1M$0K $3.0M $6.5M

$99.5M

$27.2M

$0K $816K $2.3M
 $0K

 $20.0M

 $40.0M

 $60.0M

 $80.0M

 $100.0M

 $120.0M

Guaranteed Money Market Fixed Income Multi-Asset Equities Real Estate Brokerage Other

$0K $172K $369K

$10.7M

$2.0M

$0K $0K $116K$0K $192K $338K

$11.6M

$2.0M

$0K $0K $86K
 $0K

 $2.0M

 $4.0M

 $6.0M

 $8.0M

 $10.0M

 $12.0M

 $14.0M

Guaranteed Money Market Fixed Income Multi-Asset Equities Real Estate Brokerage Other

$139,277,186
Total plan assets

$14,258,649
Total contributions

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private, 
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Multi-Asset includes Lifecycle funds. 2. Other includes uncategorized assets.

1 2

06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20

06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20 06/19 06/20

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM COMPANION PLAN

21
06/19 06/20

06/19 06/20

Page 145 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 26

Top 5 investments by Assets

Bottom 5 investments by Assets

Investment/account utilization by assets

Participant
Count

Total
Assets

Balance % 
of Total

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2025-Rtmt 930 $22,409,759 14.48%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2020-Rtmt 604 $17,897,879 11.56%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2030-Rtmt 864 $16,808,380 10.86%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2035-Rtmt 892 $12,864,402 8.31%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2045-Rtmt 1,205 $9,705,357 6.27%

Total as a % of total assets $79,685,777 51.49%

6.27%

8.31%

10.86%

11.56%

14.48%

0% 20%

Equities   Money Market Other1Fixed Income Multi-AssetGuaranteed Real Estate

Participant
Count

Total
Assets

Balance % 
of Total

 Northern Small Cap Value Fund 164 $713,183 0.46%

 MassMutual Pre Inf Prt Inc Ser 126 $636,646 0.41%

 Templeton Global Bond AdvClass 146 $605,994 0.39%

 DFA US SmallCap Portfolio Inst 187 $442,320 0.29%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2060-Rtmt 334 $307,382 0.20%

Total as a % of total assets $2,705,525 1.75%

0.20%

0.29%

0.39%

0.41%

0.46%

0% 1%

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private, 
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Other includes uncategorized and brokerage assets.

Page 146 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 27

Top 5 investments by Assets

Bottom 5 investments by Assets

Investment/account utilization by assets

Participant
Count

Total
Assets

Balance % 
of Total

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2030-Rtmt 18 $1,969,727 12.72%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2025-Rtmt 19 $1,809,796 11.69%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2035-Rtmt 24 $1,659,970 10.72%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2020-Rtmt 17 $1,035,579 6.69%

 Vanguard Inst Idx Inst 22 $890,579 5.75%

Total as a % of total assets $7,365,651 47.57%

Participant
Count

Total
Assets

Balance % 
of Total

 Templeton Global Bond AdvClass 12 $80,996 0.52%

 MassMutual Pre Inf Prt Inc Ser 6 $68,767 0.44%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2015-Rtmt 2 $37,264 0.24%

 Virtus Ceredex Mid Cp Val Eq I 9 $31,258 0.20%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2060-Rtmt 1 $5,975 0.04%

Total as a % of total assets $224,260 1.45%

NORTH DAKOTA PERS 401A DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

5.75%

6.69%

10.72%

11.69%

12.72%

0% 20%

0.04%

0.20%

0.24%

0.44%

0.52%

0% 1%

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private, 
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Other includes uncategorized and brokerage assets.

Equities   Money Market Other1Fixed Income Multi-AssetGuaranteed Real Estate

Page 147 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 28

Top 5 investments by Assets

Bottom 5 investments by Assets

Investment/account utilization by assets

Participant
Count

Total
Assets

Balance % 
of Total

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2025-Rtmt 916 $20,599,962 14.79%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2020-Rtmt 592 $16,862,300 12.11%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2030-Rtmt 851 $14,838,654 10.65%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2035-Rtmt 877 $11,204,431 8.04%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2045-Rtmt 1,193 $9,029,329 6.48%

Total as a % of total assets $72,534,676 52.08%

Participant
Count

Total
Assets

Balance % 
of Total

 Northern Small Cap Value Fund 155 $614,406 0.44%

 MassMutual Pre Inf Prt Inc Ser 121 $567,879 0.41%

 Templeton Global Bond AdvClass 136 $524,997 0.38%

 DFA US SmallCap Portfolio Inst 174 $354,340 0.25%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2060-Rtmt 333 $301,407 0.22%

Total as a % of total assets $2,363,029 1.70%

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM COMPANION PLAN

6.48%

8.04%

10.65%

12.11%

14.79%

0% 20%

0.22%

0.25%

0.38%

0.41%

0.44%

0% 1%

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private, 
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Other includes uncategorized and brokerage assets.

Equities   Money Market Other1Fixed Income Multi-AssetGuaranteed Real Estate

Page 148 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 29

Top 5 Investments by Contributions

Bottom 5 Investments by Contributions

Investment/account utilization by contributions 

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private, 
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Other includes uncategorized and brokerage assets.

Participant
Count

Total
Assets

Balance % 
of Total

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2025-Rtmt 727 $2,408,309 15.79%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2030-Rtmt 698 $1,813,860 11.89%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2020-Rtmt 441 $1,594,511 10.45%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2045-Rtmt 929 $1,396,667 9.16%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2035-Rtmt 712 $1,393,005 9.13%

Total as a % of total assets $8,606,353 56.42%

Participant
Count

Total
Assets

Balance % 
of Total

 PGIM Jennison Mid Cap Growth Z 73 $37,587 0.25%

 Templeton Global Bond AdvClass 97 $29,019 0.19%

 AMG Managers Fairpointe MdCp I 46 $19,721 0.13%

 TIAA-CREF Lfcyle Rtmt Inc-Rtmt 7 $7,142 0.05%

 Baird Core Plus Bond Investor 33 $4,637 0.03%

Total as a % of total assets $98,105 0.64%

9.13%

9.16%

10.45%

11.89%

15.79%

0% 20%

0.03%

0.05%

0.13%

0.19%

0.25%

0% 1%

Equities   Money Market Other1Fixed Income Multi-AssetGuaranteed Real Estate

Page 149 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 30

Top 5 Investments by Contributions

Bottom 5 Investments by Contributions

Investment/account utilization by contributions 

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private, 
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Other includes uncategorized and brokerage assets.

Participant
Count

Total
Assets

Balance % 
of Total

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2035-Rtmt 13 $128,882 12.94%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2030-Rtmt 9 $119,542 12.00%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2045-Rtmt 12 $108,139 10.85%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2050-Rtmt 17 $107,008 10.74%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2055-Rtmt 10 $58,405 5.86%

Total as a % of total assets $521,976 52.39%

Participant
Count

Total
Assets

Balance % 
of Total

 AF New Perspective Fund R4 3 $4,739 0.48%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2015-Rtmt 1 $3,611 0.36%

 Virtus Ceredex Mid Cp Val Eq I 6 $2,814 0.28%

 Baird Core Plus Bond Investor 5 $1,447 0.15%

 Wells Fargo Stable Return J 2 $270 0.03%

Total as a % of total assets $12,882 1.29%

NORTH DAKOTA PERS 401A DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

5.86%

10.74%

10.85%

12.00%

12.94%

0% 20%

0.03%

0.15%

0.28%

0.36%

0.48%

0% 1%

Equities   Money Market Other1Fixed Income Multi-AssetGuaranteed Real Estate

Page 150 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 31

Top 5 Investments by Contributions

Bottom 5 Investments by Contributions

Investment/account utilization by contributions 

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) Private, 
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Other includes uncategorized and brokerage assets.

Participant
Count

Total
Assets

Balance % 
of Total

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2025-Rtmt 722 $2,351,028 16.49%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2030-Rtmt 692 $1,694,319 11.88%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2020-Rtmt 440 $1,554,443 10.90%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2045-Rtmt 922 $1,288,528 9.04%

 TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2040-Rtmt 745 $1,264,856 8.87%

Total as a % of total assets $8,153,174 57.18%

Participant
Count

Total
Assets

Balance % 
of Total

 PGIM Jennison Mid Cap Growth Z 70 $31,526 0.22%

 Templeton Global Bond AdvClass 94 $23,925 0.17%

 AMG Managers Fairpointe MdCp I 43 $14,797 0.10%

 TIAA-CREF Lfcyle Rtmt Inc-Rtmt 7 $7,142 0.05%

 Baird Core Plus Bond Investor 29 $3,190 0.02%

Total as a % of total assets $80,579 0.56%

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM COMPANION PLAN

8.87%

9.04%

10.90%

11.88%

16.49%

0% 20%

0.02%

0.05%

0.10%

0.17%

0.22%

0% 1%

Equities   Money Market Other1Fixed Income Multi-AssetGuaranteed Real Estate

Page 151 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 32

Total number
of 

participants 
invested

Contribution
amount

Contribution
percentage 

of total

Asset amount Asset
percentage

of total

MONEY MARKET

Vanguard Treasury MoneyMkt Inv 107 $218,353 1.43% $3,273,233 2.12%

Money Market Total $218,353 1.43% $3,273,233 2.12%

FIXED INCOME

Baird Core Plus Bond Investor 66 $4,637 0.03% $1,099,685 0.71%

MassMutual Pre Inf Prt Inc Ser 126 $44,841 0.29% $636,646 0.41%

PGIM High Yield Z 136 $76,254 0.50% $1,207,638 0.78%

PIMCO Total Return Admin Class 0 $44,697 0.29% $0 0.00%

Templeton Global Bond AdvClass 146 $29,019 0.19% $605,994 0.39%

Vanguard Ttl Bd Mkt Idx Adm 190 $176,824 1.16% $3,648,403 2.36%

Fixed Income Total $376,271 2.47% $7,198,366 4.65%

MULTI-ASSET

TIAA-CREF Lfcyle Rtmt Inc-Rtmt 14 $7,142 0.05% $1,006,549 0.65%

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) 
Private, Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. . 1. Guarantees associated with TIAA Traditional are backed by the claims-paying ability of 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America. 2. Other includes uncategorized assets.

Assets & contributions by investment/account option category

Page 152 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 33

Total number
of 

participants 
invested

Contribution
amount

Contribution
percentage 

of total

Asset amount Asset
percentage

of total

MULTI-ASSET (Continued)

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2010-Rtmt 80 $128,356 0.84% $1,620,128 1.05%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2015-Rtmt 241 $270,140 1.77% $7,669,243 4.96%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2020-Rtmt 604 $1,594,511 10.45% $17,897,879 11.56%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2025-Rtmt 930 $2,408,309 15.79% $22,409,759 14.48%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2030-Rtmt 864 $1,813,860 11.89% $16,808,380 10.86%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2035-Rtmt 892 $1,393,005 9.13% $12,864,402 8.31%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2040-Rtmt 966 $1,321,333 8.66% $9,595,665 6.20%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2045-Rtmt 1,205 $1,396,667 9.16% $9,705,357 6.27%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2050-Rtmt 1,213 $1,180,706 7.74% $6,618,204 4.28%

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) 
Private, Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. . 1. Guarantees associated with TIAA Traditional are backed by the claims-paying ability of 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America. 2. Other includes uncategorized assets.

Assets & contributions by investment/account option category

Page 153 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 34

Total number
of 

participants 
invested

Contribution
amount

Contribution
percentage 

of total

Asset amount Asset
percentage

of total

MULTI-ASSET (Continued)

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2055-Rtmt 751 $656,594 4.30% $2,386,053 1.54%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2060-Rtmt 334 $143,406 0.94% $307,382 0.20%

Multi-Asset Total $12,314,029 80.72% $108,889,001 70.36%

EQUITIES

AF New Perspective Fund R4 183 $65,467 0.43% $1,009,246 0.65%

AMG Managers Fairpointe MdCp I 0 $19,721 0.13% $0 0.00%

Brown Capital Mgmt Sml Co Inv 142 $157,282 1.03% $3,347,185 2.16%

Cohen & Steers Realty Shares 305 $82,506 0.54% $950,836 0.61%

Columbia Mid Cap Index Fund A 285 $99,260 0.65% $1,360,937 0.88%

DFA US SmallCap Portfolio Inst 187 $67,289 0.44% $442,320 0.29%

Franklin Growth Fund Advisor 151 $93,087 0.61% $2,324,678 1.50%

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) 
Private, Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. . 1. Guarantees associated with TIAA Traditional are backed by the claims-paying ability of 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America. 2. Other includes uncategorized assets.

Assets & contributions by investment/account option category

Page 154 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 35

Total number
of 

participants 
invested

Contribution
amount

Contribution
percentage 

of total

Asset amount Asset
percentage

of total

EQUITIES (Continued)

Hartford Dividend & Growth R5 208 $87,596 0.57% $1,217,257 0.79%

Inves Oppen Developing Mkts Y 308 $113,494 0.74% $1,224,851 0.79%

Northern Small Cap Value Fund 164 $73,725 0.48% $713,183 0.46%

PGIM Jennison Mid Cap Growth Z 100 $37,587 0.25% $748,448 0.48%

T Rowe Price Equity Income 207 $75,047 0.49% $965,440 0.62%

T. Rowe Price Cap Apprec Adv 137 $102,286 0.67% $1,757,344 1.14%

Vanguard Dividend Growth Inv 196 $158,572 1.04% $2,712,416 1.75%

Vanguard Inst Idx Inst 368 $595,415 3.90% $7,352,651 4.75%

Vanguard Ttl Intl Stk Idx Adm 356 $317,843 2.08% $3,184,163 2.06%

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) 
Private, Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. . 1. Guarantees associated with TIAA Traditional are backed by the claims-paying ability of 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America. 2. Other includes uncategorized assets.

Assets & contributions by investment/account option category

Page 155 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 36

Total number
of 

participants 
invested

Contribution
amount

Contribution
percentage 

of total

Asset amount Asset
percentage

of total

EQUITIES (Continued)

Virtus Ceredex Mid Cp Val Eq I 192 $51,927 0.34% $867,716 0.56%

Wells Fargo Growth Adm 78 $61,589 0.40% $1,893,687 1.22%

Equities Total $2,259,692 14.81% $32,072,358 20.72%

BROKERAGE

TIAA-CREF Self Directed Acct 19 $0 0.00% $910,659 0.59%

Brokerage Total $0 0.00% $910,659 0.59%

OTHER2

Wells Fargo Stable Return J 207 $86,613 0.57% $2,418,410 1.56%

Other Total $86,613 0.57% $2,418,410 1.56%

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) 
Private, Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. . 1. Guarantees associated with TIAA Traditional are backed by the claims-paying ability of 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America. 2. Other includes uncategorized assets.

Assets & contributions by investment/account option category

Page 156 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 37

Assets & contributions by investment/account option category

Total number
of 

participants 
invested

Contribution
amount

Contribution
percentage 

of total

Asset amount Asset
percentage

of total

MONEY MARKET

Vanguard Treasury MoneyMkt Inv 11 $26,253 2.64% $224,680 1.45%

Money Market Total $26,253 2.64% $224,680 1.45%

FIXED INCOME

Baird Core Plus Bond Investor 9 $1,447 0.15% $165,045 1.07%

MassMutual Pre Inf Prt Inc Ser 6 $6,164 0.62% $68,767 0.44%

PGIM High Yield Z 10 $6,295 0.63% $285,606 1.84%

PIMCO Total Return Admin Class 0 $9,567 0.96% $0 0.00%

Templeton Global Bond AdvClass 12 $5,094 0.51% $80,996 0.52%

Vanguard Ttl Bd Mkt Idx Adm 9 $9,886 0.99% $141,167 0.91%

Fixed Income Total $38,452 3.86% $741,581 4.79%

MULTI-ASSET

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2010-Rtmt 8 $0 0.00% $389,070 2.51%

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) 
Private, Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Guarantees associated with TIAA Traditional are backed by the claims-paying ability of 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America. 2. Other includes uncategorized assets.

NORTH DAKOTA PERS 401A DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Page 157 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 38

Assets & contributions by investment/account option category

Total number
of 

participants 
invested

Contribution
amount

Contribution
percentage 

of total

Asset amount Asset
percentage

of total

MULTI-ASSET (Continued)

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2015-Rtmt 2 $3,611 0.36% $37,264 0.24%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2020-Rtmt 17 $40,067 4.02% $1,035,579 6.69%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2025-Rtmt 19 $57,281 5.75% $1,809,796 11.69%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2030-Rtmt 18 $119,542 12.00% $1,969,727 12.72%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2035-Rtmt 24 $128,882 12.94% $1,659,970 10.72%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2040-Rtmt 16 $56,477 5.67% $589,633 3.81%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2045-Rtmt 17 $108,139 10.85% $676,028 4.37%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2050-Rtmt 25 $107,008 10.74% $746,804 4.82%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2055-Rtmt 17 $58,405 5.86% $452,860 2.92%

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) 
Private, Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Guarantees associated with TIAA Traditional are backed by the claims-paying ability of 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America. 2. Other includes uncategorized assets.

NORTH DAKOTA PERS 401A DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Page 158 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 39

Assets & contributions by investment/account option category

Total number
of 

participants 
invested

Contribution
amount

Contribution
percentage 

of total

Asset amount Asset
percentage

of total

MULTI-ASSET (Continued)

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2060-Rtmt 1 $0 0.00% $5,975 0.04%

Multi-Asset Total $679,411 68.19% $9,372,706 60.53%

EQUITIES

AF New Perspective Fund R4 12 $4,739 0.48% $246,976 1.59%

AMG Managers Fairpointe MdCp I 0 $4,924 0.49% $0 0.00%

Brown Capital Mgmt Sml Co Inv 18 $18,895 1.90% $718,569 4.64%

Cohen & Steers Realty Shares 20 $16,221 1.63% $229,777 1.48%

Columbia Mid Cap Index Fund A 20 $11,042 1.11% $149,465 0.97%

DFA US SmallCap Portfolio Inst 16 $9,577 0.96% $87,980 0.57%

Franklin Growth Fund Advisor 15 $13,950 1.40% $428,543 2.77%

Hartford Dividend & Growth R5 13 $10,978 1.10% $211,793 1.37%

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) 
Private, Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Guarantees associated with TIAA Traditional are backed by the claims-paying ability of 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America. 2. Other includes uncategorized assets.

NORTH DAKOTA PERS 401A DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Page 159 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 40

Assets & contributions by investment/account option category

Total number
of 

participants 
invested

Contribution
amount

Contribution
percentage 

of total

Asset amount Asset
percentage

of total

EQUITIES (Continued)

Inves Oppen Developing Mkts Y 22 $21,165 2.12% $184,978 1.19%

Northern Small Cap Value Fund 12 $12,327 1.24% $98,777 0.64%

PGIM Jennison Mid Cap Growth Z 6 $6,061 0.61% $84,514 0.55%

T Rowe Price Equity Income 11 $4,821 0.48% $125,566 0.81%

T. Rowe Price Cap Apprec Adv 13 $13,826 1.39% $391,398 2.53%

Vanguard Dividend Growth Inv 15 $22,682 2.28% $224,747 1.45%

Vanguard Inst Idx Inst 22 $46,342 4.65% $890,579 5.75%

Vanguard Ttl Intl Stk Idx Adm 20 $22,358 2.24% $325,158 2.10%

Virtus Ceredex Mid Cp Val Eq I 9 $2,814 0.28% $31,258 0.20%

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) 
Private, Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Guarantees associated with TIAA Traditional are backed by the claims-paying ability of 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America. 2. Other includes uncategorized assets.

NORTH DAKOTA PERS 401A DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Page 160 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 41

Assets & contributions by investment/account option category

Total number
of 

participants 
invested

Contribution
amount

Contribution
percentage 

of total

Asset amount Asset
percentage

of total

EQUITIES (Continued)

Wells Fargo Growth Adm 10 $9,198 0.92% $465,933 3.01%

Equities Total $251,922 25.28% $4,896,009 31.62%

BROKERAGE

TIAA-CREF Self Directed Acct 2 $0 0.00% $94,299 0.61%

Brokerage Total $0 0.00% $94,299 0.61%

OTHER2

Wells Fargo Stable Return J 12 $270 0.03% $155,565 1.00%

Other Total $270 0.03% $155,565 1.00%

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) 
Private, Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Guarantees associated with TIAA Traditional are backed by the claims-paying ability of 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America. 2. Other includes uncategorized assets.

NORTH DAKOTA PERS 401A DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Page 161 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 42

Assets & contributions by investment/account option category

Total number
of 

participants 
invested

Contribution
amount

Contribution
percentage 

of total

Asset amount Asset
percentage

of total

MONEY MARKET

Vanguard Treasury MoneyMkt Inv 99 $192,100 1.35% $3,048,553 2.19%

Money Market Total $192,100 1.35% $3,048,553 2.19%

FIXED INCOME

Baird Core Plus Bond Investor 60 $3,190 0.02% $934,640 0.67%

MassMutual Pre Inf Prt Inc Ser 121 $38,677 0.27% $567,879 0.41%

PGIM High Yield Z 127 $69,959 0.49% $922,033 0.66%

PIMCO Total Return Admin Class 0 $35,130 0.25% $0 0.00%

Templeton Global Bond AdvClass 136 $23,925 0.17% $524,997 0.38%

Vanguard Ttl Bd Mkt Idx Adm 182 $166,938 1.17% $3,507,236 2.52%

Fixed Income Total $337,819 2.37% $6,456,785 4.64%

MULTI-ASSET

TIAA-CREF Lfcyle Rtmt Inc-Rtmt 14 $7,142 0.05% $1,006,549 0.72%

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) 
Private, Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Guarantees associated with TIAA Traditional are backed by the claims-paying ability of 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America. 2. Other includes uncategorized assets.

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM COMPANION PLAN

Page 162 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 43

Assets & contributions by investment/account option category

Total number
of 

participants 
invested

Contribution
amount

Contribution
percentage 

of total

Asset amount Asset
percentage

of total

MULTI-ASSET (Continued)

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2010-Rtmt 73 $128,356 0.90% $1,231,058 0.88%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2015-Rtmt 240 $266,529 1.87% $7,631,980 5.48%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2020-Rtmt 592 $1,554,443 10.90% $16,862,300 12.11%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2025-Rtmt 916 $2,351,028 16.49% $20,599,962 14.79%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2030-Rtmt 851 $1,694,319 11.88% $14,838,654 10.65%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2035-Rtmt 877 $1,264,123 8.87% $11,204,431 8.04%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2040-Rtmt 955 $1,264,856 8.87% $9,006,032 6.47%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2045-Rtmt 1,193 $1,288,528 9.04% $9,029,329 6.48%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2050-Rtmt 1,198 $1,073,697 7.53% $5,871,400 4.22%

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) 
Private, Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Guarantees associated with TIAA Traditional are backed by the claims-paying ability of 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America. 2. Other includes uncategorized assets.

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM COMPANION PLAN

Page 163 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 44

Assets & contributions by investment/account option category

Total number
of 

participants 
invested

Contribution
amount

Contribution
percentage 

of total

Asset amount Asset
percentage

of total

MULTI-ASSET (Continued)

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2055-Rtmt 742 $598,189 4.20% $1,933,193 1.39%

TIAA-CREF Lifecycle 2060-Rtmt 333 $143,406 1.01% $301,407 0.22%

Multi-Asset Total $11,634,618 81.60% $99,516,295 71.45%

EQUITIES

AF New Perspective Fund R4 172 $60,727 0.43% $762,270 0.55%

AMG Managers Fairpointe MdCp I 0 $14,797 0.10% $0 0.00%

Brown Capital Mgmt Sml Co Inv 125 $138,386 0.97% $2,628,616 1.89%

Cohen & Steers Realty Shares 288 $66,286 0.46% $721,059 0.52%

Columbia Mid Cap Index Fund A 269 $88,218 0.62% $1,211,472 0.87%

DFA US SmallCap Portfolio Inst 174 $57,712 0.40% $354,340 0.25%

Franklin Growth Fund Advisor 138 $79,136 0.56% $1,896,135 1.36%

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) 
Private, Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Guarantees associated with TIAA Traditional are backed by the claims-paying ability of 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America. 2. Other includes uncategorized assets.

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM COMPANION PLAN

Page 164 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 45

Assets & contributions by investment/account option category

Total number
of 

participants 
invested

Contribution
amount

Contribution
percentage 

of total

Asset amount Asset
percentage

of total

EQUITIES (Continued)

Hartford Dividend & Growth R5 197 $76,618 0.54% $1,005,464 0.72%

Inves Oppen Developing Mkts Y 290 $92,329 0.65% $1,039,873 0.75%

Northern Small Cap Value Fund 155 $61,398 0.43% $614,406 0.44%

PGIM Jennison Mid Cap Growth Z 94 $31,526 0.22% $663,935 0.48%

T Rowe Price Equity Income 199 $70,226 0.49% $839,874 0.60%

T. Rowe Price Cap Apprec Adv 126 $88,460 0.62% $1,365,947 0.98%

Vanguard Dividend Growth Inv 183 $135,891 0.95% $2,487,669 1.79%

Vanguard Inst Idx Inst 352 $549,073 3.85% $6,462,073 4.64%

Vanguard Ttl Intl Stk Idx Adm 340 $295,485 2.07% $2,859,005 2.05%

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) 
Private, Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Guarantees associated with TIAA Traditional are backed by the claims-paying ability of 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America. 2. Other includes uncategorized assets.

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM COMPANION PLAN

Page 165 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 46

Assets & contributions by investment/account option category

Total number
of 

participants 
invested

Contribution
amount

Contribution
percentage 

of total

Asset amount Asset
percentage

of total

EQUITIES (Continued)

Virtus Ceredex Mid Cp Val Eq I 184 $49,113 0.34% $836,458 0.60%

Wells Fargo Growth Adm 68 $52,391 0.37% $1,427,754 1.03%

Equities Total $2,007,770 14.08% $27,176,349 19.51%

BROKERAGE

TIAA-CREF Self Directed Acct 18 $0 0.00% $816,361 0.59%

Brokerage Total $0 0.00% $816,361 0.59%

OTHER2

Wells Fargo Stable Return J 197 $86,342 0.61% $2,262,844 1.62%

Other Total $86,342 0.61% $2,262,844 1.62%

This report is as of the period ending 06/30/2020 and reflects the trailing 12 months of activity unless otherwise noted.  The report includes all TIAA plans except 457(f), 457(b) 
Private, Nonqualified Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Healthcare plans. 1. Guarantees associated with TIAA Traditional are backed by the claims-paying ability of 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America. 2. Other includes uncategorized assets.

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM COMPANION PLAN

Page 166 of 365



PLACEHOLDER PHOTOGRAPH
ON THE MASTER SLIDE, DELETE 
THIS PLACEHOLDER, PLACE AND 

SIZE A PHOTO, 
THEN SEND IT TO THE BACK SO 

THAT IT 
SHOWS THROUGH THIS WINDOW.

Manage risk, drive efficiency 
and maximize value

Plan Management

Page 167 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 48

Calendar year 2020 RCA funds used to pay qualified plan expenses $175.82

Calendar year 2020 RCA funds returned as plan service credits $0.00

Revenue credit account balance as of 8/5/2020 $175.04

2020 Revenue Credit:

Plan Changes Implemented

Credit Utilization

Data as of 6/30/2020

NORTH DAKOTA PERS 401A DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Revenue credit account (RCA) summary

Page 168 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 49

Calendar year 20XX RCA funds used to pay qualified plan expenses $176.56

Calendar year 2020 RCA funds returned as plan service credits $0.00

Revenue credit account balance as of 8/5/2020 $175.04

2020 Revenue Credit:

Plan Changes Implemented

Credit Utilization

Data as of 6/30/2020

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM COMPANION PLAN

Revenue credit account (RCA) summary

Page 169 of 365



PLACEHOLDER PHOTOGRAPH
ON THE MASTER SLIDE, DELETE 
THIS PLACEHOLDER, PLACE AND 

SIZE A PHOTO, 
THEN SEND IT TO THE BACK SO 

THAT IT 
SHOWS THROUGH THIS WINDOW.

Appendix

Page 170 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 51

Glossary

Term Definition

Active Participants Participants with a status of “Active” or “Leave” that have a balance greater than zero and have made a 

contribution in the last 12 months.

Advice Specific investment recommendations, either in person, online or over the phone, that are tailored to individual 
circumstances, including variables such as age, current savings rates, plan investments and tolerance for risk.

Annuitants Persons receiving benefits under a TIAA annuity contract. 

Average Annual Payout The average annual amount that all annuitants are receiving for income generated from an institution’s plan(s).

Average Projected 
Monthly Payout

The average monthly amount that participants may receive in their retirement years for income generated from 
the institution’s plan(s).

Average Guaranteed 
Income

Sources of income that are expected to continue for the participant’s lifetime (e.g., Social Security, TIAA 
Traditional, Defined Benefits).

Average Projected 
Monthly Income The average after-tax retirement income your participants are projected to receive from your TIAA plan(s).

Consolidations The number of participants who transfer balances from other service providers into TIAA retirement accounts.

Contributing Participants Participants that have made a contribution in the last 12 months.

Contribution Rate Annual contributions as a percentage of annual salary. 

Defaulted Loans Loans for which the participant missed the expected repayment and failed to pay the total overdue amount 
prior to the end of the calendar quarter following the calendar quarter in which the payment was due.

Page 171 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 52

Glossary

Term Definition

Defaulted Participants Participants who have not made an investment allocation election and whose contributions have been directed 
to the plan's default investment. 

Distributions

Includes, but is not limited to, the following categories: Loan, Hardship, In-Service, Terminated & Other. 
“Other” includes: Annuity Settlement Options, Death Benefits, Plan Loan Defaults, Withdrawals due to Opt-Out 
Option & Test Failure. In-Service and Terminated may include one or more of these categories: Voluntary 
Termination, Withdrawal, Death, Beneficiary, Installment Payment, Age 70.5 Minimum Distribution, QDRO, 
Hardship, Disability, Unforeseen Emergency, Full Withdrawal, Unknown, IRA Recharacterization, Excess 
Aggregate Contribution, Excess Contribution, Excess Deferral, Excess Annual Addition.

Early Engagement A communication program that supports participants through their online account setup, plan review and goal 
setting and gives them an overview of the resources available to them at TIAA.

In Range

Participants who are on target to cover their essential retirement expenses such as housing, food and 
healthcare but aren’t yet on target to replace the income needed to maintain their current standard of living in 

retirement. The target income replacement rates for participants in this group vary by their current salary 
(pretax) and are listed below:

• Current salary <$50K: Targeted to replace 80% - 100% of after-tax income in retirement
• Current salary $50K - $100K: Targeted to replace 60% - 85% of after-tax income in retirement
• Current salary >$125K: Targeted to replace 50% - 70% of after-tax income in retirement

Income Replacement Ratio
The percentage of current salary that is estimated to be replaced during retirement, calculated using multiple 
variables (e.g., contribution rate, investments, salary). This is a way to visualize how ready your employees 
are for retirement. 

Lifetime Income An arrangement that provides fixed or variable income payments for the life of the annuitant.

Needs Action

Participants who aren’t yet on target to cover essential expense needs in retirement such as housing, food and 

healthcare. The target income replacement rates for participants in this group vary by their current salary 
(pretax) and are listed below:

• Current salary <$50K: Targeted to replace <80% of after-tax income in retirement
• Current salary $50K - $100K: Targeted to replace <60% of after-tax income in retirement
• Current salary >$125K: Targeted to replace <50% of after-tax income in retirement

Page 172 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 53

Glossary

Term Definition

On Track

Participants who are on target to meet or exceed the income replacement rate needed to maintain their current 
standard of living in retirement. The target income replacement rates for participants in this group vary by their 
current salary (pretax) and are listed below:

• Current salary <$50K: Targeted to replace >100% of after-tax income in retirement
• Current salary $50K - $100K: Targeted to replace >85% of after-tax income in retirement
• Current salary >$125K: Targeted to replace >70% of after-tax income in retirement

Other Enrollments All other enrollments not classified as remittance, phone, paper or online.

Participant-Directed 
Contributions Contributions that have been invested per the participant's investment allocation election.

Participation Rate Participation Rate is calculated by dividing the (number of eligible and participating) by (number of eligible and 
participating + number of eligible and not participating).

Peer Benchmark A group of institutions at TIAA who provide a measure of comparison to your plan based on 
comparable plan asset size and market segment (K-12, Higher Education, Healthcare & Government).

Readiness Influencers Plan features and participant behaviors that may contribute to a participant's retirement readiness and income 
replacement ratio. 

Rebalanced Total number of participants who reallocated their account balances during the last 12 months.

Remittance Participant enrollment information, including investment election specifications, provided to TIAA by the plan 
sponsor.

Retirement Readiness Measures the degree to which a participant is on track to retire with sufficient lifetime income while maintaining 
a desired standard of living.

Terminated Participants Participants with an employee status of “Terminated.”

Page 173 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 54

Glossary

Term Definition

Total Annual Payout The total annual amount that all annuitants are receiving for income generated from an institution’s plan(s).

Total Participants
Includes participants with an ending balance and at least one contribution during the evaluation period. In 
addition, other filters are applied to remove participants whose Ibbotson results could disproportionately skew 
the outcomes of the larger population.

Page 174 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 55

Participant-related salary, contribution, retirement age and advice assumptions:
 Participant compensation is based on data submitted by the employer. The 

participant’s gross annual income is used for various calculations, including 

retirement income replacement ratio, estimated Social Security benefits, and 
estimated federal and state taxes.

 Participant contributions are aggregated for a 12-month period for participants with 
a balance at the beginning of the period. For participants without a beginning 
balance, the contribution amount from the last month of the 12-month period is 
annualized. IRS contribution limits are applied and adjusted for participants eligible 
for catch-up provisions. Morningstar Investment Management LLC shifts any 
contribution amount above the annual limit  to after-tax contributions for modeling 
purposes.

 All retirement plan contributions are considered to be dedicated solely for 
retirement. Assets will not be liquidated for use prior to retirement, and all 
contributions will end at the Target Retirement Age (TRA).

 The TRA value is defaulted to 67 for most plan participants. Participants aged 66 or 
higher have a TRA that is set two years from the current age. Life expectancy 
values are estimated by Morningstar and are based on participant age and gender.

 The participant’s balance is aggregated for all selected plans. Amounts are 

designed as pretax and Roth contributions, as appropriate.
 The participant’s asset allocation, for the purposes of this analysis, is categorized 

into simplified asset classes (i.e., stable value, equities, real estate, fixed income, 
multi asset and money market).

 The advice provided Morningstar consists of model portfolios composed of target 
allocations for the asset classes. Based on the target retirement goals, Morningstar 
will recommend a specific tolerance level designed to adjust over time based on 
Morningstar’s proprietary methodology which customizes a risk level trajectory for 

the participant.
 The hypothetical advice target for the model is a 100% replacement ratio.

 The Morningstar tool’s advice is based on statistical projections of the likelihood 

that an individual will achieve their retirement goals. The projections rely on 
financial and economic assumptions of historical rates of return of various asset 
classes that may not reoccur in the future, volatility measures and other facts, as 
well as information the individual provides. Morningstar’s advice engine includes 

tax-rate assumptions, mortality tables, and Social Security estimates.

Retirement income replacement ratio calculation assumptions:
 TIAA measures retirement income replacement ratios by calculating the 

projected stream of distributions from participants’ assets and estimated Social 

Security benefits in current dollars as a percentage of employees’ current 

salaries.
 Using the participant’s actual salary and/or compensation, TIAA leverages the 

advice engine from Morningstar an independent expert retained by TIAA, to 
perform a sophisticated, Monte Carlo analysis (500 total simulations) to project 
the retirement income replacement ratio.

 The results indicate the participant’s 70% probability of achieving the 

retirement goal. A lower probability of success is associated with better (and 
less likely) estimated income. Your participants can also model different 
outcomes for themselves by going online to TIAA.org/retirementadvisor
(online Retirement Advisor tool).

 Data provided represents inputs into the Morningstar advice engine for plan 
management purposes. If a participant uses Retirement Advisor online or has 
an advice session with a consultant, estimated retirement income is not 
replaced with any of the information used in the Plan Outcome Assessment
report calculations.

 The plan-level retirement income replacement ratio is determined by 
calculating the average retirement income replacement ratio of all participants 
in the plan analysis. All actively contributing participants are included in the 
analysis, unless the participant has annual compensation of less than $5,000, 
has contributed less than $300 in the previous 12-month period, has a current 
balance less than $100, or is less than 18 or greater than 81 years of age.

 IMPORTANT: Projections, and other information generated through the TIAA 
Plan Outcome Assessment and the Morningstar tool regarding the likelihood of 
various investment outcomes, are hypothetical, do not reflect actual 
investment results, and are not a guarantee of future results. The projections 
are dependent in part on subjective and proprietary assumptions, including the 
rate of inflation and the rate of return for different asset classes, and these 
rates are difficult to accurately predict. The projections also rely on financial 
and economic historical assumptions that may not reoccur in the future, 
volatility measures and other facts. Results may vary with each use and over 
time.

Income replacement ratio methodology and assumptions

Page 175 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees | 8/27/20 |For institutional investor use only. Not for use with or distribution to the public. 56

This material is for informational or educational purposes only and does not constitute investment advice 
under ERISA. This material does not take into account any specific objectives or circumstances of any 
particular investor, or suggest any specific course of action. Investment decisions should be made based 
on the investor’s own objectives and circumstances.

TIAA.org

You should consider the investment objectives, risks, charges and expenses carefully before 
investing. Please call 877-518-9161 or log on to TIAA.org for underlying product and fund 
prospectuses that contain this and other information. Please read the prospectuses carefully 
before investing.

TIAA Traditional Annuity is a guaranteed insurance contract and not an investment for federal securities law purposes. Any guarantees under 
annuities issued by Teachers Insurance and Annuities Association of America are subject to its claims-paying ability. 

This material is approved for a private presentation by authorized individuals only and, accordingly, this material is not to be reproduced in whole or 
in part or used for any purpose except as authorized by TIAA Institutional Sales and Services. This material is to be treated as strictly confidential 
and not disclosed directly or indirectly to any party other than the recipient. 

TIAA cannot and does not provide legal advice and recommends that plan sponsors consult their own legal advisors for such advice. 

TIAA-CREF Individual & Institutional Services, LLC, Member FINRA, distributes securities products. Annuity contracts and certificates are issued 
by Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America (TIAA) and College Retirement Equities Fund (CREF), New York, NY.

© 2020 Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America (TIAA)-College Retirement Equities Fund (CREF), 730 Third Avenue, New York, 
NY 10017

1294542 02/20

Important information

Page 176 of 365



 
 
 
 

            Fax: (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website  https://ndpers.nd.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   Derrick Hohbein & Rebecca Fricke  
 
DATE:   September 8, 2020 
 
SUBJECT:  De Minimis & Internal Review Policies 
 
Discussion took place during the May and August 2020 Audit Committee 
meetings in regards to the De Minimis Policy that was adopted by the Board in 
September 2016, as well as an internal review policy that was adopted by staff.  
Because the internal review policy may impact what a member’s benefit is 
when they separate employment, the Audit Committee felt that policy should 
go before the full Board for review and approval. 
 
De Minimis Policy: 
 
The Board adopted the current De Minimis Policy at the September 2016 
Board meeting.  This policy was established to direct NDPERS staff how to 
handle the various retirement account errors due to wages, service credit, 
account contributions or interest as they occur.  The original De Minimis Policy 
(Attachment A) requires staff to make all corrections to a member’s account for 
any corrections that impact a member by $5 or more. 
 
Overpayments: 
 
NDAC 71-02-04-10, in summary, states that NDPERS must attempt to collect 
all overpayments unless the cost of recovering the amount of the overpayment 
is estimated to exceed the overpayment, in which case the repayment is 
considered to be unrecoverable.  Because adjustments usually involve staff 
from three different divisions in order to accomplish, staff recommended to the 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway Avenue, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377  

Page 177 of 365



audit committee that we increase the de minimis threshold on overpayments 
from $5 to $50.  The Audit Committee agreed with this recommendation.   
 
Underpayments: 
 
NDAC 71-02-04-11, in summary, states that an "underpayment" means a 
payment of money by the Public Employees Retirement System that results in 
a person receiving a lower payment than the person is entitled to under the 
provisions of the retirement plan of membership.   
 
Recognizing the importance of making member account balances as accurate 
as possible, staff recommended to the Audit Committee increasing the de 
minimis threshold on underpayments from $5 to $25, which the Audit 
Committee agreed with. 
 
Attachment B refers to an email we received from Segal Consulting when we 
first discussed this matter back in 2014.  At that time, they provided that they 
considered reasonable thresholds to be $75 for an underpayment and $100 for 
an overpayment. 
 
The full revised De Minimis Policy (Attachment C) is attached for your review 
and approval. 
 
Internal Review Policy: 
 
At the April 2017 Board Meeting staff brought a Retirement Contribution Policy 
before the Board for approval (Attachment D).  As a result of this policy 
adoption, NDPERS developed a Final Average Salary (FAS) Review 
Procedure that includes verbiage stating, “if wages outside of FAS for 
employees in question require adjustment or if other employees require 
adjustments, the employer has the option to self-correct through Employer Self 
Service and receive a refund of contributions, if applicable. The employer is 
required to correct the error in wage reporting prospectively.” 
 
This policy is consistent with the procedures that were approved by the Board 
in early 2017, however, the procedures approved by the Board were specific to 
overtime pay while the current internal procedures are applied to any issues 
that would affect wages. 
 
 

Page 178 of 365



The Audit Committee recommended revising the final average salary review 
process to include correcting any active or deferred member account where 
the FAS process would not reasonably catch errors (i.e. annualization of 
wages vs actual wage reporting).  Recognizing the business process change 
over time, they felt like requiring adjustments to members that have already 
withdrawn their accounts or retired was not equitable to that population. 
 
Attachment E has the full internal review policy that was reviewed and 
approved by the Audit Committee. 
 
Board Action Requested: 
 
Review and approve the revised De Minimis Policy and Internal Review Policy. 
 
 

Page 179 of 365



FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 

TO:  NDPERS Board

FROM:  Sharon Schiermeister

DATE:  September 15, 2016 

SUBJECT: De Minimis Policy 

NDPERS has retirement account adjustments due to various reasons.  These adjustments 
may include errors found in reported wages, service credit, or interest calculations.  
Adjustments to reported wages and service credit may affect a member’s ongoing monthly 
retirement benefits.  Adjustments to account balance and accumulated interest affect a 
member’s minimum guarantee or the amount available for a lump sum refund.   

Currently, NDPERS attempts to correct and process any adjustments to member accounts.  
However, if the adjustment is small and requires reissuing or reclaiming a check for a 
minimal amount, this can be costly to correct.  In some instances, the member disregards 
cashing a reissued check or paying a balance due.  In reviewing guidelines and policies by 
other state retirement plans, NDPERS has found that often a De Minimis policy is in place to 
avoid this issue.      

Administrative rules provide the following guidance for benefit overpayments and 
underpayments: 

71-02-04-10 (2) Erroneous payment of benefits – Overpayments states:
A person who receives an overpayment is liable to refund those payments upon 
receiving a written explanation and request for the amount to be refunded. All 
overpayments must be collected using the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under 
the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent person acting in like capacity and 
familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of like character 
and with like gains. If the cost of recovering the amount of the overpayment is 
estimated to exceed the overpayment, the repayment is considered to be 
unrecoverable. 

71-02-04-11(2) Erroneous payment of benefits – Underpayments states:
If an underpayment occurs, the amount of the lump sum payment must be paid within 
sixty days of the discovery of the error. 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900
1-800-803-7377

ATTACHMENT A

Page 180 of 365



According to NDAC 71-02-04-10, NDPERS does have the option to write off benefit 
overpayments as unrecoverable if the cost exceeds the amount to be recovered.  However, 
there is no such option for benefit underpayments.  Staff is requesting consideration to 
implement a policy that will provide guidelines for de minimis adjustments to a member’s 
retirement account. 
 
Proposed De Minimis adjustment policy for NDPERS: 
 
Minimum Guarantee:   
 Errors that result in either a positive or negative adjustment of $5.00 or less to a 

member’s minimum guarantee will not be corrected 
 

Recurring Monthly Retirement Payments:   
 Errors that result in either a positive or negative adjustment that impact final average 

salary and/or Service Credit will always be made, regardless of amount 
 Errors that impact the benefit calculation for a deceased payee will always be made, 

regardless of amount 
 
One-Time Refunds/Rollovers 
 Errors that result in either a positive or negative adjustment of $5.00 or less will not be 

corrected 
 Errors that result in a positive adjustment of greater than $5.00 will be corrected and 

payment issued to the member according to 71-02-04-11 
 Errors that result in a negative adjustment of greater than $5.00 will be corrected and 

pursued for collection from the member according to 71-02-04-10.  If the member does 
not respond within 30 days after initial correspondence and the amount of the 
adjustment is less than $200, the receivable will be written off as uncollectible.  If the 
adjustment is $200 or more, it will be turned over to the Attorney General’s office for 
collection.  

 
Board Action Requested:  Adopt a De Minimis adjustment policy 

Page 181 of 365



ATTACHMENT B

Page 182 of 365



De minimis Policy Update 

NDPERS has retirement account adjustments due to various reasons.  These adjustments 
may include errors found in reported wages, service credit, or interest calculations.  
Adjustments to reported wages and service credit may affect a member’s ongoing monthly 
retirement benefits.  Adjustments to account balance and accumulated interest affect a 
member’s minimum guarantee or the amount available for a lump sum refund.   

Currently, NDPERS attempts to correct and process any adjustments to member accounts.  
However, if the adjustment is small and requires reissuing or reclaiming a check for a 
minimal amount, this can be costly to correct.  In some instances, the member disregards 
cashing a reissued check or paying a balance due.  In reviewing guidelines and policies by 
other state retirement plans, NDPERS has found that often a de minimis policy is in place to 
avoid this issue.      

Administrative rules provide the following guidance for benefit overpayments and 
underpayments: 

71-02-04-10 (2) Erroneous payment of benefits – Overpayments states:
A person who receives an overpayment is liable to refund those payments upon 
receiving a written explanation and request for the amount to be refunded. All 
overpayments must be collected using the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under 
the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent person acting in like capacity and 
familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of like character 
and with like gains. If the cost of recovering the amount of the overpayment is 
estimated to exceed the overpayment, the repayment is considered to be 
unrecoverable. 

71-02-04-11(2) Erroneous payment of benefits – Underpayments states:
If an underpayment occurs, the amount of the lump sum payment must be paid within 
sixty days of the discovery of the error. 

According to NDAC 71-02-04-10, NDPERS does have the option to write-off benefit 
overpayments as unrecoverable if the cost exceeds the amount to be recovered.  However, 
there is no such option for benefit underpayments.  Staff is requesting consideration to 
implement a policy that will provide guidelines for de minimis adjustments to a member’s 
retirement account. 

Proposed de minimus adjustment policy for NDPERS: 

Minimum Guarantee:   
• Errors that result in a positive  adjustment of $25.00 or less to a member’s minimum 

guarantee will not be corrected.

• Errors that result in a negative adjustments of $50 or less to a member’s minimum 
guarantee will not be corrected. 

ATTACHMENT C

Page 183 of 365



2 

 Errors that are discovered within the member’s retirement account setup that result in
either a positive or negative adjustment that impact final average salary and/or Service
Credit will always be made, regardless of amount

One-Time Refunds/Rollovers 
• Errors that result in a positive adjustment of greater than $25.00 will be corrected and 

payment issued to the member according to 71-02-04-11

• Errors that result in a negative adjustment of greater than $50.00 will be corrected and 
pursued for collection from the member according to 71-02-04-10.  If the member does 
not respond within 30 days after initial correspondence and the amount of the adjustment 
is less than $200, the receivable will be written off as uncollectible.  If the adjustment is 
$200 or more, it will be turned over to the Attorney General’s office for collection. If the 
member does not respond to the Assistant Attorney General’s correspondence, the 
Assistant Attorney General working on the case will determine if the cost to pursue 
litigation exceeds the potential reclamation and will provide staff direction if they will 
continue to pursue the claim or if they recommend that NDPERS can write-off the amount 
as unrecoverable.  The PERS Executive Director will make a final determination based 
on this guidance. 

Recurring Monthly Retirement Payments:   

Page 184 of 365



FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 

TO: NDPERS Board 

FROM: Sharon Schiermeister 

DATE:  April 19, 2017 

SUBJECT: Retirement Contribution Policy  

At the March 2017 board meeting, the Board was provided with proposed policies for 
overtime pay and written agreements to help address inconsistencies in how salary is being 
reported for retirement contribution purposes (Attachment 1).  The Board directed staff to 
distribute the proposed policies to participating employers to gather their feedback. 

Process 
State Employers.  We provided the Office of Management and Budget with the draft policies 
and asked if they would be providing feedback on behalf of the state agencies, or if we 
should distribute the policies to each agency for individual feedback.  They determined that 
they would review the policies and provide feedback, so we did not send the draft policies 
out to each state agency.   

Political Subdivision Employers.  Information was mailed to each employer on April 6 
explaining the policies and asking them to complete a brief survey by April 18 (Attachment 
2).  To help explain the information and respond to questions, staff hosted webinars on April 
11 and April 13, which included a recording that was made available on the website.  
Approximately 90 employers participated in the webinars. Follow-up emails were sent out 
directing employers to the website to view the recorded webinar and encouraging them to 
complete the survey. 

Feedback 
State Employers.  OMB expressed deep concerns with making a change to our current 
overtime policy and they are not open to changing the definition of overtime currently used 
by the State as it relates to retirement.  Anything over 40 hours per week is considered 
overtime, whether it is paid at straight time or time and one-half, and retirement is not paid 
on overtime. They did not provide any feedback on the proposed written agreement policy, 
as this generally does not occur within state agencies. 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900
1-800-803-7377

ATTACHMENT D

Page 185 of 365



 
Political Subdivision Employers.  We received survey responses from 160 employers out of 
356.  Attachment 3 is summary of the survey results.  The results show: 

 86% of the employers who responded did not have concerns with the current 
overtime policy and their payroll system was able to administer this definition 

 39% of the employers who responded would utilize written agreements 
 92% thought the proposed implementation date of July 1, 2017 for written 

agreements was feasible 
 87% did not have concerns with the proposed written agreement policy 

 
Overtime Pay Policy 
The feedback received from the State and political subdivision employers who completed 
the survey indicates strong support to maintain our current interpretation of overtime pay.  
Therefore, staff would recommend that the following policy be adopted: 
 

a. Define overtime to include hours worked over 40 in a week that are paid at more 
than the regular hourly rate (time and one-half), and also hours over 40 in a week 
that are paid at the regular hourly rate. For public safety officers, overtime would 
be defined as hours worked over the regularly scheduled work period that are 
paid either at the regular hourly rate or time and one-half. 

b. Upon becoming aware of overtime reported in error for a member, either at the 
time of contribution reporting through the salary variance process or at the time of 
retirement when final average salary (FAS) is being reviewed, corrections would 
be made to that member’s account as follows: 

i. Remove overtime wages and related contributions for all months that were 
reported in error for that member 

c. If an employer notifies PERS of a reporting error which was not identified through 
our salary variance or FAS review process, the employer would be advised to 
correct the error going forward; however, the employer has the option to initiate 
corrections using PERSLink Employer Self Service (ESS).  The employer would 
also be advised that corrections may be required in the future if a member’s 
salary is questioned as part of the salary variance or FAS review process.  

 
 
Written Agreements Policy 
 
The feedback received from the political subdivision employers who completed the survey 
indicates strong support to change our current definition of written agreement.  Therefore, 
staff would recommend the following policy to address the inconsistency we have seen in 
this area: 
 

a. Define ‘written agreement’ to be “a document that includes the work to be 
performed by the employee and is signed by both the employee and the 
employer”. 

b. Make the definition effective 7/1/2017 to allow us to communicate the change to 
our employers 

c. Upon becoming aware of wages being reported in error for a member under this 
policy, either at the time of contribution reporting through the salary variance 

Page 186 of 365



process or at the time of retirement when final average salary (FAS) is being 
reviewed, corrections would be made to that member’s account as follows: 

i. Remove ineligible wages and contributions for that member, back to 
7/1/2017 

ii. Variances prior to 7/1/2017 resulting from written agreement interpretation 
would not be corrected 

d. If an employer notifies PERS of a reporting error which was not identified through 
our salary variance or FAS review process, the employer would be advised to 
correct the error going forward; however, the employer has the option to initiate 
corrections using PERSLink Employer Self Service (ESS).  The employer would 
also be advised that corrections may be required in the future if a member’s 
salary is questioned as part of the salary variance or FAS review process.  

e. After 7/1/2017, if PERS becomes aware that an employer is not reporting wages 
and contributions for eligible wages pursuant to the written agreement 
clarification, they will be required to be reported from 7/1/2017 forward. 

 
Board action requested: 
Adopt policies for overtime pay and written agreements. 

Page 187 of 365



 Required if audit finding requires account recalculation and adjustment for a member that received a pop‐
up benefit after initial retirementOr if an error was found through random audit that requires adjustment
to J&S and/or pop‐up Single Life benefit amount.  The system cannot recalculate benefit amount for
member back to initial retirement effective date or pop‐up date so benefit must be manually calculated.
Audit will secondarily review.

 Required if member’s retirement effective date is prior to October 1, 2010.  The system cannot
recalculate benefit amount requiring pre‐PERSLink information.  Audit will secondarily review.

 Required when underpayment of benefits (due to missing underpayment or random audit) occurs and
simple interest is due to member.  The system does not calculate simple interest owed to member as this
is based upon NDAC 71‐02‐04‐11.  Audit will verify and sign off correct interest amount to be paid
member.

 Required when account adjustment for member is due to audit finding.  MOU must be used to recover
overpayment and if simple interest must be applied to underpayment.  Internal audit will secondarily
review adjusting entry to ensure amount being collected or paid is accurate.

 Required if change in YOS or reported contributions requires retirement effective date change and payee
account is cancelled to setup a new payee account.  Audit will secondarily review.

 Not required if member (and beneficiary) effective date of benefits began on or after October 1, 2010.
With YOS or FAS change, PERSLink should be able to recalculate overpayment amount or underpayment
amount when no interest is due.

FAS Review Procedures effective 9/8/2020 
1. Only salaries within the FAS (highest 36) that have a variance of 15% or more (positive or negative) are

sent to the employer for review.  Exception:  salary spikes for employees that have a consistent non‐
monthly payroll cycle variance (i.e. biweekly/semi‐monthly payroll cycles) will not need to be verified.

2. If salaries in FAS require adjustments, the high 36 salaries initially questioned must be compared to the
adjusted salaries.  Secondary review of FAS is required to verify if additional salaries (not previously
included in FAS) are now included in the FAS and have a variance of 15% or more.

3. Based upon employer response:
a. If response is only to salaries in question, any required adjustments will be sent to accounting to

correct ineligible wages.
Example: 5 of 36 salaries in FAS were questioned and employer responded to these 5 salaries
questioned.  Counselor sends salary adjustments to accounting for correction, if needed.

b. If response speaks to salaries outside of salaries questioned, all 36 salaries in the FAS calculation
will be sent to employer for review of ineligible wages.
Example: 5 of 36 salaries in FAS were questioned and employer responded stating that OT was
reported for other months.  Counselor sends all 36 salaries in FAS to the employer for review and
accounting will correct, if needed.

4. Benefits division will provide the salary adjustment details for the specific months questioned in the
following format to the accounting division:

5. Salary adjustments will be processed by accounting.  After adjustment, accounting staff will initial and
date corrections made to member account and add required documentation to FileNet.  The employer
will receive a refund of contributions for any removal of wages they submit and will be billed for any
additional wages they are adding, plus interest.

6. If wages outside of FAS for employee in question require adjustment or if other employees require
adjustments

a. If the error is something that is reasonably expected to be caught in our normal FAS or years of
service review processes performed by the benefits division, the employer has the option to self‐

Year  Month  Wages & Salary  Correct Wages  Adjustment  Comment 

2017  2  $3,000.00  $2,886.00   ($114.00) 
OT, bonus to annualize, 

retro pay time frame, etc 

ATTACHMENT E

Policy for Using Manual Benefit Recalculation Spreadsheet effective 9/8/2020 

Page 188 of 365



correct historical wages for all of its members through ESS and receive a refund of contributions, 
if applicable.  The employer is required to correct the error in wage reporting prospectively.   

Example: Employer indicates that OT was reported for the last 10 years, employer has the option to self‐
correct historical wages for all of its members, as NDPERS is only adjusting the wages in question that 
directly affect a specific member’s retirement benefit calculation, and will be required to correct their 
reporting prospectively. 
 

b. If the error is something that is not reasonably expected to be caught in our normal processes, 
this requires additional follow up from PERS staff.  Accounting will be notified of the situation and 
will have a query run for all active and deferred employees under the organization. Accounting 
will work with the employer to correct all wages that are identified with the problem and have 
either an active or suspended retirement plan in the system.  The employer is required to correct 
the error in wage reporting prospectively.   

Example: Employer indicates that wages have always been annualized.  Because we look for salary spikes 
when someone retires, annualization of wages wouldn’t be caught under our normal circumstances.  PERS 
Staff will work to correct all active and deferred accounts that were associated with this organization and 
who have a similar error in reporting.  The employer will be required to correct the error in wage 
reporting prospectively.   

 

Secondary Payee Account Review Procedures effective 9/8/2020 
 
Disability to Normal 

 FAS for disability benefit will not be reviewed at time retiree is converted to Normal Retirement 
(meets age 65 or “Rule”).  Expectation is that FAS was verified at time of initial retirement. 

 At conversion, if Normal Retirement benefit is larger, YOS will be reviewed to verify accuracy of new 
calculation based upon YOS.   

 Verify effective date of Normal Retirement 
Return to Work 

 Initial benefit for retirement will not be reviewed 

 Nov 1, 2017 – March 31, 2018 ‐ At time retiree applies for subsequent retirement, FAS and YOS will be 
reviewed for secondary benefit.  If adjustments to FAS or YOS for subsequent retirement also affect 
the initial retirement benefit, both amounts will be corrected.   

 Effective April 1, 2018 –NDAC for RTW was amended at this time and only YOS and FAS earned during 
the RTW period will be reviewed.   

Pop‐ups 

 Wages and YOS for initial benefit will not be reviewed at time retirees’ spouse passes away and 
retiree has pop‐up to Single Life option.  Expectation is that this was verified at time of initial 
retirement. 

 Verify pop‐up is at the Single Life amount, including any early retirement or other reduction factors 
applicable at member’s retirement and benefit factor increases that have occurred since the 
member’s retirement. 

 Verify death certificate is on file. 

 Verify effective date of benefit eligibility. 
J & S Survivor Benefits 

 Wages and YOS for initial benefit will not be reviewed at time retiree passes away and the existing 
benefit passes to the spouse.  Expectation is that this was verified at time of initial retirement. 

 Verify death certificate indicates member was married and lists surviving spouse’s name (maiden 
name), if applicable.  

 Verify surviving spouse’s birth certificate is on file and accurate for the setup of new stream of benefit 
payments. 

 Verify beneficiary information  

 Verify effective date of benefit eligibility 

 Verify J&S benefit and factors to calculate spousal benefit. Page 189 of 365



Term Certain Benefits 

 Wages and YOS for initial benefit will not be reviewed at time payee passes away and the existing 
benefit passes to beneficiary.  Expectation is that this was verified at time of initial retirement. 

 Verify amount due to beneficiary, if the payee dies before the term period expires or if there is any 
original minimum guarantee remaining 

 

Page 190 of 365



 
 
 
 

            Fax: (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website  https://ndpers.nd.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   Rebecca 
 
DATE:   September 8, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Deloitte Consulting – Employee Benefit Programs Committee 

Study on Carving out Pharmacy 
 
 

Attached for the Board’s review is the Legislative Employee Benefit Programs 
Committee Study on Carving Out Pharmacy.  This study was prepared at the 
request of the Committee as required by HB 1374.  The study provides pros 
and cons related to the pharmacy benefits being carved out of the bundled 
medical and pharmacy arrangement that NDPERS currently has. 

Deloitte will be providing their findings to the Committee at their September 9th 
meeting.  Following this presentation, we will plan to have Deloitte provide a 
summary to the Board at a future meeting. 

  

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377  

Page 191 of 365



State of North Dakota House Bill No. 
1374, Section 3:  

Public Employees Retirement System 
Prescription Drug Coverage Study 

Final Report 

August 6, 2020

Attachment

Page 192 of 365



Contents  
 

1 Executive Summary ..................................................................................................................... 3 
Scope of Review ................................................................................................................................................................. 3 
Study Format ...................................................................................................................................................................... 4 
Summary of Considerations of a Carve-Out Prescription Drug Plan Program .......................................................... 5 

2 Introduction ............................................................................................................................... 10 
2.1 Scope of Review ................................................................................................................................................ 10 
2.2 Study Format ..................................................................................................................................................... 11 
2.3 Data Reliance ..................................................................................................................................................... 12 
2.4 Disclaimer .......................................................................................................................................................... 12 

3 Background ................................................................................................................................ 13 
3.1 Uniform Group Insurance Program ................................................................................................................ 13 
3.2 Previous Legislative Study on the Feasibility and Desirability of a Self-Insurance Plan ........................... 14 

4 Characteristics of the North Dakota Health Insurance Market ........................................... 17 
4.1 North Dakota Health Insurance Market ......................................................................................................... 17 
4.2 North Dakota’s Pharmacy Ownership Law .................................................................................................... 18 
4.3 North Dakota Century Code 54-52.1-04.16 .................................................................................................... 19 
4.4 Prescription Drug Carve-out Considerations based on the North Dakota Health Insurance Market .... 20 

5 Prescription Drug Market Trends and Management Strategies ........................................... 23 
5.1 Rising Healthcare Costs and the Impact of Prescription Drugs................................................................... 23 
5.2 Chronic Disease ................................................................................................................................................. 24 
5.3 Specialty Drugs .................................................................................................................................................. 25 
5.4 Tools to Manage Appropriate Drug Utilization and Control Costs ............................................................. 27 
5.5 Prescription Drug Carve-out Considerations based on Prescription Drug Market Trends and Utilization 

Management Strategies ................................................................................................................................... 30 

6 Fully-Insured and Self-Insured Contracts ................................................................................ 32 
6.1 Fully-Insured Contracts .................................................................................................................................... 32 
6.2 Self-Insured Contracts ...................................................................................................................................... 33 
6.3 Stop Loss Insurance .......................................................................................................................................... 35 
6.4 Prescription Drug Carve-out Considerations based on Insurance Contract Funding Options................ 36 

7 Prescription Drug Contracts ..................................................................................................... 39 
7.1 Financial Terms ................................................................................................................................................. 39 
7.2 Additional Components of Cost ...................................................................................................................... 42 
7.3 Spread Pricing Contracts .................................................................................................................................. 43 
7.4 Pass-Through Contracts ................................................................................................................................... 43 
7.5 Hybrid and Alternative Contracts .................................................................................................................... 44 
7.6 Prescription Drug Carve-out Considerations based on Prescription Drug Pricing and Contracts .......... 44 

8 Pharmacy Benefit Managers and Carve-Out Trends .............................................................. 46 
8.1 Pharmacy Benefit Managers............................................................................................................................ 46 
8.2 Pharmacy Benefit Carve-Out Trends .............................................................................................................. 47 
8.3 Considerations based on Carve-out Prescription Drug Trends and Shifting Alignments between PBMs 

and Health Insurers .......................................................................................................................................... 49 

9 Summary and Conclusion ......................................................................................................... 50 

Appendix: Citations ............................................................................................................................ 54 

Page 193 of 365



 

1 Executive Summary 

This study highlights some of the advantages and disadvantages of North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System (NDPERS) entering into a separate prescription 
drug contract under the uniform group insurance program.  

In the current uniform group insurance program, prescription drug coverage is 
provided to participants as part of the medical plan. Section 54-52.1-04.2 of the 
North Dakota Century Code (Century Code) allows for prescription drug benefits to 
be provided through a traditional health insurance plan or through a self-insurance 
health plan. NDCC 54-52.1-02 allows the Board to establish a separate subgroup in 
the uniform group insurance program for prescription drug benefits thereby 
unbundling it from the medical plan. In this context, “unbundled” means the 
pharmacy benefits may be separated or “carved-out” from the medical benefits 
contract and administered under a distinct pharmacy benefits contract that may be 
awarded to a different insurer or administrator than the medical insurance plan.  

Section 3 of House Bill No. 1374 requires that the Legislative Management study the 
feasibility and desirability of the Public Employees Retirement System entering a 
separate contract for prescription drug coverage under the uniform group insurance 
program. Deloitte Consulting LLP† was engaged to analyze considerations of 
unbundling the pharmacy benefit management from the uniform group insurance 
program. 

Scope of Review 

To aid in the evaluation of changes to the uniform group insurance program, the 
scope of this review was limited to identifying considerations relating to a carve-out 
for prescription drug coverage under the uniform group insurance program. As 
described above, the meaning of “carve-out” in the context of this study is the 

† This document is intended strictly for the client’s internal use and not for any other third party. As such, Deloitte is not, by 
means of any resulting disclosure or publication of this document, rendering professional advice or services to any third party. 
This document and its contents should not be used by any third party as a basis for any decision or action. Deloitte shall not be 
responsible for any loss sustained by any third party who relies on this document or its contents. 
 
About Deloitte: Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by 
guarantee, and its network of member firms, each of which is a legally separate and independent entity. Please see 
www.deloitte.com/about for a detailed description of the legal structure of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited and its member 
firms. Please see www.deloitte.com/us/about for a detailed description of the legal structure of Deloitte LLP. 

Page 194 of 365



separation of the prescription drug benefit contract from the medical benefit 
contract under the uniform group insurance program. The scope does not include 
an evaluation of carving-out the administration of the prescription drug benefit from 
the uniform group insurance program and assuming administration of the 
prescription drug benefit “in-house” (like North Dakota Medicaid).  

This study does not attempt to quantify the financial outcome of a carve-out for 
prescription drug coverage because the financial outcomes of doing so are 
dependent on the insurance market and the interests and capabilities of the 
insurers and administrators that participate. NDPERS is currently engaged in a 
procurement for the uniform group insurance program for the 2021-23 biennium 
and the results of that procurement will provide essential information into the 
availability, feasibility, and desirability of a carve-out prescription drug program. 

This study does not judge whether the uniform group insurance program should 
pursue a carve-out prescription drug program. Rather, it describes the different 
considerations that the State of North Dakota (“State”) may evaluate to determine if 
a carve-out program is in the best interest of the State and its eligible plan 
members. 

Study Format 

The study reviews the market forces and structural constraints that will factor into 
any decision the State makes to pursue a carve-out prescription drug program. 
These topics are summarized into the following five primary sections, with 
considerations for a prescription drug carve-out included within each section.  

In addition, the study provides an overview of the uniform group insurance program 
and findings from the State’s previous assessments of self-insurance arrangements. 

• Competitive Dynamics in the North Dakota Health Insurance Market 
Provides an overview of the competitive landscape of the North Dakota health 
insurance market and insurers participating in the state. It also reviews two 
factors in North Dakota that may have an impact on prescription drug 
proposals, including 1) North Dakota’s pharmacy ownership law; and 2) North 
Dakota Century Code statutes that require prescription drug financial 
disclosures. 
 

• Prescription Drug Market Trends and Management Strategies 
Explores prescription drug trends contributing to rising drug costs in the 
United States and in North Dakota. The section identifies management 

Page 195 of 365



strategies that may be considered in the prescription drug contract to control 
prescription drug expenditures. 
 

• Fully-Insured and Self-Insured Contracts  
Describes the characteristics and differences between fully-insured and self-
insured contracts and how changes to the insurance model may affect a 
carve-out prescription drug plan.  
 

• Prescription Drug Contracts 
Reviews how prescription drug contract pricing is structured and the different 
contract options available in the market. North Dakota Century Code 
requirements for prescription drug financial disclosures and audit 
requirements are particularly important to any prescription drug contract, 
regardless of the funding arrangement. 
 

• Pharmacy Benefit Managers and Carve-Out Trends 
Reviews the evolution of the pharmacy benefit manager (“PBM”) landscape 
and the major competitors in the market. It identifies trends in carving-out 
prescription drug benefits and why market consolidation may incentivize 
medical and pharmacy benefit integration. 

Summary of Considerations of a Carve-Out Prescription 
Drug Plan Program 

The considerations for transitioning from the fully-insured uniform group insurance 
program to a carve-out prescription drug program will be based on the availability 
and feasibility of different options. The competitive procurement process that is 
underway for the uniform group insurance program will highlight the relative 
importance of each consideration in the context of the alternatives available to 
NDPERS. A summary of the considerations outlined in this study that will merit 
evaluation include, but are not limited to:  

• A carve-out prescription drug plan would likely require a change to self-
insurance for prescription drugs. Fully-insured carve-out prescription drug 
benefits are not commonly available in the market.  
 
The competitive procurement will determine the insurance options available for 
the 2021-23 biennium. If the State determines that a self-insured plan is not in 

Page 196 of 365



the best interest of the State and the State's eligible members, then a carve-out 
prescription drug plan may not be available. 

 
• Carving-out the pharmacy benefit allows for greater flexibility to procure 

benefits arrangements determined to be in the best interest of the State. 
Under the current arrangement, the NDPERS Board selects the insurer that 
presents the best overall value for medical and pharmacy, even though the best 
value for medical and pharmacy may not necessarily be the same provider. 
Carving-out the prescription drug benefit gives the Board the flexibility to select 
the best value for each benefit. 
 

• Contracting for a carve-out pharmacy benefit under a self-insured plan 
allows for more choice in administrators. The insurance market in North 
Dakota is concentrated and most commercially insured business in the state is 
administered by Blue Cross Blue Shield of North Dakota (BCBSND) or Sanford 
Health Plan. There are many pharmacy benefit managers that administer self-
insured benefit programs that do not offer fully-insured options or medical 
benefits.  
 

• Carving-out the prescription drug benefit allows for more control of 
aspects of the prescription drug plan. As described by consulting firm 
Pharmacy Benefits Consultants (PBC) in their testimony to the Health Care 
Reform Review Committee, carving-out the prescription drug benefit will give 
the Board more control over the prescription drug contract, formulary, and 
clinical management programs. 
 

• Self-insured, carve-out, prescription drug programs allow for greater 
visibility into costs. Most fully-insured arrangements do not provide detailed 
cost data and financial information because the insurer assumes all the risk. 
Self-insured arrangements offer a higher degree of control and visibility into the 
underlying cost components of the contract. North Dakota Century Code 
statutes mandate access to prescription drug financial information regardless of 
the insurance arrangement. Due to the Century Code requirements, some 
insurers may not offer fully-insured insurance options, or compliant fully-
insured options, for the uniform group insurance program.  
 

• A self-insured, carve-out prescription drug plan would eliminate the 
downside risk protection of the modified fully-insured contract. The 
modified fully-insured arrangement with gain-sharing offers the advantage of 

Page 197 of 365



fixed monthly premiums and no risk of loss should claims exceed premiums. A 
self-insured plan would require that the State assume all claims risk (or 
purchase stop loss insurance to insure against large claim losses).  
 

• A self-insured, carve-out prescription drug plan would result in more 
claims volatility than the modified fully-insured contract. Prescription drug 
costs continue to rise, driven by the prevalence of chronic conditions and 
specialty drugs that treat high-cost, complex conditions. Additionally, market 
events such as COVID-19 could have a dramatic impact on claims costs. NDPERS’ 
size will help minimize the volatility associated with large claims or 
unpredictable risk, however, claims under a self-insured contract will fluctuate 
more than a fixed premium agreement.  

 
• Reserve funding may need to be increased. In a self-insured, carve-out 

prescription drug arrangement, the State will need to build a reserve fund for 
fluctuations in claims, costs, and expenses. Under current statute, the balance 
amount would need to be between two and four months of expected claims. 
 
Depending on the funding required, and the availability of funds, higher 
premiums may be necessary to build the reserve. 
 

• Stop loss insurance may introduce new costs to the plan. Under a self-
insured plan, stop loss insurance could be purchased to mitigate some of the 
risk of large claims. Given NDPERS’ size and tolerance for risk, stop loss 
insurance may not be necessary. If the State implements a self-insured, carve-
out, prescription drug plan while maintaining a fully-insured medical plan, stop 
loss coverage options may be limited or unavailable. 
 

• Direct or indirect carve-out costs. It is common for insurers and 
administrators to charge “carve-out” fees as a disincentive to carving-out the 
prescription drug benefit. Fees can include, but are not limited to, increased 
medical premiums, higher medical administrative service fees, file feed charges, 
and implementation fees.  
 

• A carve-out may add administrative complexity for NDPERS. Carving-out the 
prescription drug benefit to a separate vendor may create the need to add 
resources, including additional NDPERS personnel, to manage the third-party. A 
carve-out prescription drug plan typically requires a separate contract, separate 

Page 198 of 365



account and customer service teams, separate invoicing and financial 
requirements, separate reporting systems, and separate programs and services.  
 
Carving-out also likely requires additional administrative tasks such as sharing 
additional claims and eligibility files, coordinating plan documents, monitoring, 
and reconciling separate financial reporting. NDPERS also supports a variety of 
wellness and disease management programs that are reliant on data and 
collaboration with the medical and prescription drug insurer that would need to 
be replicated in a carve-out arrangement. These additional administrative needs 
would likely result in NDPERS requiring additional staff. 
 

• Accumulator integration for high-deductible plans would require 
additional coordination. Plan designs that feature combined medical and 
prescription drug deductibles and out-of-pocket maximums (most frequently 
high-deductible health plans) require careful tracking to accurately account for 
member out-of-pocket payments. In a carve-out prescription drug program, file 
feeds with claims information need to be exchanged regularly between the 
medical and prescription drug plan in order to track these accumulators. Most 
medical and prescription drug administrators have the ability to integrate these 
accumulator files but updates to member accumulators may be slower than if 
the medical and prescription drug benefits are combined under a single insurer. 
 

• A carve-out may impact clinical integration. A carve-out contract could result 
in less clinical integration between the medical and prescription drug 
administrators. Insurers combine medical and pharmacy data to monitor for 
issues such as gaps in care; adherence; and fraud, waste, and abuse; track 
health outcomes; and identify potential risks. Less integration may create 
challenges in combining data efficiently and coordinating between medical and 
prescription drug to achieve clinical outcomes. Plan sponsors can mitigate some 
of the risk of reduced clinical integration by proactively engaging the medical 
and prescription drug administrators to support clinical integration through 
contractual, reporting, and service level agreements. 

 
• Delivering an integrated benefits experience to members may be more 

difficult in a carve-out arrangement. Carving-out the prescription benefit has 
an impact on the plan member experience. Members may have different ID 
cards, different mobile applications and websites for each vendor, may need to 
contact different service teams, and may receive different communications. 
Members will need information on how their benefits work when they are 

Page 199 of 365



administered by different companies, as well as support for different 
administrative policies under each vendor agreement. It is also important to 
align benefit policies including coverage designs, rules, requirements, and 
payment procedures across medical and prescription drug programs. This is 
particularly important for patients that receive treatment that could be paid 
under the medical or the prescription drug benefit, like cancer. 

  

Page 200 of 365



2 Introduction 

This study highlights some of the advantages and disadvantages of entering into a 
separate prescription drug contract under the uniform group insurance program.  

In the current uniform group insurance program, which is created by North Dakota 
Century Code Section 54-52.1-02, prescription drug coverage is a subgroup of 
coverage that requires the group insurance program to have hospital benefits 
coverage, medical benefits coverage, and life insurance benefits coverage. Section 
54-52.1-04(3) allows for health benefits coverage to be provided through a 
traditional health insurance plan, a health maintenance organization, or a self-
insurance health plan. Section 54-52.1-04.2 further allows for prescription drug 
benefits to be provided through a traditional health insurance plan or through a 
self-insurance health plan. 

NDCC 54-52.1-02 allows the board to establish a separate subgroup in the uniform 
group insurance program for prescription drug benefits thereby unbundling it from 
the medical plan. In this context, “unbundled” means the pharmacy benefits may be 
separated or carved-out from the medical benefits contract and administered under 
a distinct pharmacy benefits contract and may be awarded to a different insurer or 
administrator than the medical insurance contract. Section 3 of House Bill No. 1374 
(passed May 2, 2019) requires that the Legislative Management study the feasibility 
and desirability of the Public Employees Retirement System entering a separate 
contract for prescription drug coverage under the uniform group insurance 
program. 

2.1 Scope of Review 

To aid in the evaluation of changes to the uniform group insurance program, the 
scope of this review was limited to identifying considerations relating to a carve-out 
for prescription drug coverage under the uniform group insurance program. As 
described above, the meaning of “carve-out” in the context of this study is the 
separation of the prescription drug benefit contract from the medical benefit 
contract under the uniform group insurance program. The scope does not include 
an evaluation of carving-out the administration of the prescription drug benefit from 
the uniform group insurance program and assuming administration of the 
prescription drug benefit “in-house” (like North Dakota Medicaid).  

This study does not attempt to quantify the financial outcome of a carve-out for 
prescription drug coverage because the financial outcomes of doing so are 

Page 201 of 365



dependent on the insurance market and the interests and capabilities of the 
insurers and administrators that participate. NDPERS is currently engaged in a 
procurement for the uniform group insurance program for the 2021-23 biennium 
and the results of that procurement will provide essential information into the 
availability, feasibility, and desirability of a carve-out prescription drug program. 

This study does not judge whether the uniform group insurance program should 
pursue a carve-out prescription drug program. Rather, it describes the different 
considerations that the State of North Dakota (“State”) may evaluate to determine if 
a carve-out program is in the best interest of the State and its eligible plan 
members. 

2.2 Study Format 

The study reviews the market forces and structural constraints that will factor into 
any decision the State makes to pursue a carve-out prescription drug program. 
These topics are summarized into the following five primary sections, with 
considerations for a prescription drug carve-out included within each section.  

In addition, the study provides an overview of the uniform group insurance program 
and findings from the State’s previous assessments of self-insurance arrangements. 

• Competitive Dynamics in the North Dakota Health Insurance Market 
Provides an overview of the competitive landscape of the North Dakota health 
insurance market and insurers participating in the state. It also reviews two 
factors in North Dakota that may have an impact on prescription drug 
proposals, including 1) North Dakota’s pharmacy ownership law; and 2) North 
Dakota Century Code statutes that require prescription drug financial 
disclosures. 
 

• Prescription Drug Market Trends and Management Strategies 
Explores prescription drug trends contributing to rising drug costs in the 
United States and in North Dakota. The section identifies management 
strategies that may be considered in the prescription drug contract to control 
prescription drug expenditures. 
 

• Fully-Insured and Self-Insured Contracts  
Describes the characteristics and differences between fully-insured and self-
insured contracts and how changes to the insurance model may affect a 
carve-out prescription drug plan.  

Page 202 of 365



 
• Prescription Drug Contracts 

Reviews how prescription drug contract pricing is structured and the different 
contract options available in the market. North Dakota Century Code 
requirements for prescription drug financial disclosures and audit 
requirements are particularly important to any prescription drug contract, 
regardless of the funding arrangement. 
 

• Pharmacy Benefit Managers and Carve-Out Trends 
Reviews the evolution of the pharmacy benefit manager (“PBM”) landscape 
and the major competitors in the market. It identifies trends in carving-out 
prescription drug benefits and why market consolidation may incentivize 
medical and pharmacy benefit integration. 

2.3 Data Reliance 

The information included in this study relies on data provided by NDPERS, as well as 
publicly available data and industry studies. From the data provided by NDPERS, 
some of these data sources were developed by NDPERS, while others were prepared 
or created by third parties and delivered to NDPERS. 

As part of the study, all data was reviewed for reasonableness, but an audit was not 
performed on the data. To the extent the data contains errors or anomalies that 
were unknown at the time the data was provided, the analysis may be affected by 
those issues. 

2.4 Disclaimer 

The medical and prescription drug insurance market continues to rapidly evolve, 
and changes to market participants, insurer strategies, products offered, technology, 
or regulation could have a material impact on the feasibility and desirability of 
entering into a separate prescription drug contract. 

 

  

Page 203 of 365



3 Background 

3.1 Uniform Group Insurance Program 

In 1963, North Dakota’s Legislative Assembly enacted Chapter 52-12 which 
authorized state agencies, individually or together, to enter into a group medical, 
hospitalization, and life insurance plan on behalf of employees. House Bill No. 1093 
(1971) created Chapter 54-52.1 which established the uniform group insurance 
program and placed the program under the authority of the NDPERS Board (the 
Board).1 

Between 1971 and 1983, the uniform group insurance program operated under a 
fully-insured contract administered by Blue Cross Blue Shield of North Dakota 
(BCBSND). 1 

In 1983, the Board determined that the uniform group insurance plan would be less 
costly under a self-insured basis, compared to the fully-insured premium quotes 
available, and approved the change to a self-insured program.  BCBSND continued 
to administer the benefits under the new financial arrangement. In 1984, claims and 
expenses exceeded premium income and revenue and by 1987, the fund balance 
used for the uniform group insurance program was overbudget by $4.7 million 
dollars with outstanding claims payable of an additional $4.6 million dollars.1 

As a result of the funding challenges and a competitive fully-insured proposal from 
BCBSND, the Board approved a change back to the fully-insured arrangement in 
1989 that ended the self-insured program. Under the terms of the new fully-insured 
contract, NDPERS and BCBSND entered into a risk sharing arrangement by which 
NDPERS and BCBSND agreed to share equally in losses up to $6 million dollars if 
claims exceed the established premium for the uniform group insurance program. 
Under this loss-sharing provision, losses over $6 million dollars would be retained by 
BCBSND. If the claims were lower than expected, the arrangement included a gain-
sharing or return of premium provision where BCBSND and NDPERS agreed to 
share equally in the first $3 million dollars that was not needed to pay claims and 
then NDPERS retained additional premium exceeding $3 million dollars. 1 

In the 2014 competitive bid process, NDPERS awarded the contract for the 2015-17 
biennium to Sanford Health Plan. In 2017, NDPERS negotiated the elimination of the 
loss-sharing provision of the modified fully-insured arrangement but retained the 
gain sharing provision.1 

Page 204 of 365



On June 1, 2020, NDPERS began the competitive bid process for the 2021-23 
biennium. The RFP included solicitations for both fully-insured and self-insured 
funding arrangements for the uniform group insurance program. 

3.2 Previous Legislative Study on the Feasibility and Desirability 
of a Self-Insurance Plan 

In the 2017-18 interim, the Health Care Reform Review Committee (the “Committee”) 
studied the public employees health insurance plan, including the feasibility and 
desirability of transitioning to a self-insurance plan.  

The Committee received survey results of neighboring states including Idaho, Iowa, 
Minnesota, Montana, South Dakota, Wisconsin, and Wyoming to understand the 
differences in how health benefits are provided to public employees. Four of the 
seven states surveyed were self-insured; the other three states had a mix of fully-
insured and self-insured arrangements. 1 The states also have different structures 
for their medical and prescription drug benefits programs (Figure 1). Idaho, Iowa, 
and South Dakota offer integrated medical and prescription drug benefits through 
the same insurer. Minnesota, Montana, and Wyoming are self-insured and carve-out 
the prescription drug benefit to third-party PBMs. At the time of the survey, 
Wisconsin offered 18 health plans including fully-insured HMOs as well as a self-
insured PPO with prescription drug benefits carved-out. 

Figure 1 – Health Benefit Program Structure in Neighboring States 

State Funding 
Prescription Drug 

Model 
Medical 

insurer/administrator 
Prescription Drug 

insurer/administrator 

Idaho Insured Integrated BCBS 

Iowa Insured Integrated BCBS 

Minnesota Self-Insured Carve-out 
BCBS / HealthPartners / 

PreferredOne 
CVS Caremark 

Montana Self-Insured Carve-out Cigna Navitus 

South Dakota Self-Insured Integrated Avera (formerly DakotaCare) 

Wisconsin 
Insured & Self-
Insured plans 

Both integrated & 
carve-out plans 

Various 

Wyoming Self-Insured Carve-out Cigna MedImpact 

 

Page 205 of 365



As part of the study, the Committee heard testimony from BCBSND and Sanford 
Health Plan on their experience administering self-insured plans. Neither insurer 
noted significant concerns regarding North Dakota’s statute governing self-
insurance plans.1 

The Committee received testimony on the methodology to estimate self-insurance 
health plan costs compared to fully-insured plan costs, which included 
considerations related to the purchase of stop loss insurance, administration fees, 
and claims reserves. The requirements for claim reserves state that in the event of a 
transition from a fully-insured plan to a self-insured plan, the NDPERS Board must 
have in place a plan reasonably calculated to meet the funding requirements within 
sixty months. 1 

The Committee also received testimony on pharmacy benefits under the uniform 
group insurance plan from pharmacy consulting firm Pharmacy Benefit Consultants 
(PBC).  The testimony highlighted disadvantages under the existing fully-insured 
contract and advantages of carving-out and self-insuring the pharmacy benefit. 2 

Disadvantages of combined medical and pharmacy benefits contracts identified by 
PBC included: 3 

• Devoid of specific prescription drug pricing terms and guarantees 
• Devoid of contract terms related to core matters that impact drug cost 
• Potentially hidden fees and revenues 
• Potential conflicts of interest if the health plan owns subsidiary hospitals, 

pharmacies, or provider groups 
• Potential overpayment of prescription drugs if the health insurer adjudicates 

the claims under the medical plan instead of the pharmacy plan 

PBC noted that almost all contracts that carve-out pharmacy benefits are provided 
on a self-insured basis, and identified advantages to this model such as: 3 

• Ability to contract on a “pass-through” financial basis which brings 
transparency into costs and compensation 

• Ability to eliminate ambiguities and loopholes in the pharmacy contract 
• Ability to renegotiate rates on a more frequent basis 
• Ability to control the formulary and drug coverage requirements 
• Ability to control and customize clinical programs 
• Ability to carve-out specialty drug procurement to other parties if a better 

price is available 

Page 206 of 365



Based on the findings of the study and related testimony, the Health Care Reform 
Review Committee recommended House Bill No. 1028. This legislation updated the 
NDPERS self-insurance health plan law, including the clarification that prescription 
drug benefits may be unbundled and provided through a self-insurance health plan, 
and provides that NDPERS may transition to a self-insurance health plan if NDPERS 
determines the self-insurance health plan best serves the interests of the State and 
the State's eligible members. 2 

  

Page 207 of 365



4 Characteristics of the North Dakota Health 
Insurance Market 

This section reviews important characteristics of the North Dakota health insurance 
market that may influence competition and affect the availability of insurance 
options for the State. 

4.1 North Dakota Health Insurance Market 

North Dakota has a population of 762,000 with most residents concentrated in 
population centers around Bismarck, Fargo, and Grand Forks.4 The commercial 
health insurance market (non-Medicare/Medicaid segments) is primarily served by 
the two largest insurers in the state, BCBSND and Sanford Health Plan. Together 
they have over 70 percent market share. BCBSND administers insurance programs 
for almost half of the commercial enrollment and Sanford Health Plan serves almost 
a quarter of the commercial enrollment. Other insurers such as Aetna, Cigna, Health 
Care Service Corporation, HealthPartners, Medica, and UnitedHealth Group have a 
smaller presence in the state.5  

NDPERS is North Dakota’s largest employer group with over 60,000 members as of 
May 2020. NDPERS’ membership predominantly lives and accesses healthcare in the 
state. In 2019, more than 75 percent of paid healthcare claims (Figure 2) and 90 
percent of prescriptions were filled in North Dakota. Minnesota was the second 
largest market where members access healthcare, followed by South Dakota and 
Montana (Figure 3). 6,20 

Figure 2 – NDPERS Paid Healthcare Claims by State 

 

79% 77% 74% 79%

21% 23% 26% 21%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019 Total Claims Paid (by State)

North Dakota Other

Page 208 of 365



 

Figure 3 – NDPERS Paid Prescriptions by State 

 

Commercial enrollment in North Dakota operates predominantly under fully-
insured contracts (78 percent) while a minority of enrollment is self-insured (22 
percent). 5 

4.2 North Dakota’s Pharmacy Ownership Law 

In 1963, North Dakota enacted what is commonly known as the Pharmacy 
Ownership Law which requires pharmacies to be majority-owned by a licensed 
pharmacist.  The law states: “The applicant for such permit is qualified to conduct the 
pharmacy, and is a licensed pharmacist in good standing or is a partnership, each active 
member of which is a licensed pharmacist in good standing; a corporation or an 
association, the majority stock in which is owned by licensed pharmacists in good 
standing; or a limited liability company, the majority membership interests in which is 
owned by licensed pharmacists in good standing, actively and regularly employed in and 
responsible for the management, supervision, and operation of such pharmacy) “7 

This law is unique in the United States. The regulation has the effect of limiting 
corporate owned pharmacy chains like CVS, Walgreens, Wal-Mart Pharmacy, Rite 
Aid, and others from operating in the state with limited exceptions (CVS acquired six 
pharmacies from Osco Drug that were grandfathered when the law was passed and 
Thrifty White Pharmacy has an employee stock ownership plan that allows the 
company to meet the regulation).8 

There have been efforts to overturn the law, the latest in 2014, but none have 
succeeded. 9 Supporters of repeal suggest that opening the market to large national 

93%

5%
2%

2019 Prescription Volume (by State)

North Dakota
Minnesota
Other States

Page 209 of 365



chains would improve access and lower prices through competition. Opponents 
argue that overturning the law would be damaging to local pharmacies. 10 

4.3 North Dakota Century Code 54-52.1-04.16 

In 2019, House Bill No. 1374 was passed which added a new section to Chapter 54-
52.1 of the North Dakota Century Code. Section 54-52.1-04.16 Prescription drug 
coverage – Performance audits states: 

1. Except for Medicare part D, prescription drug coverage, the board may not enter or 
renew a contract for prescription drug coverage unless the contract authorizes the 
board during the term of the contract to conduct a performance audit of the 
prescription drug coverage and any related pharmacy benefits management services. 
The contract must provide:  
a. The board must have full access to data regarding: (1) The total dollars paid to the 

pharmacy benefits manager by the carrier and the board; (2) The total amount of 
dollars paid to the pharmacy benefits manager by the carrier which were not 
subsequently paid to a licensed pharmacy in the state; and (3) Payments made to 
all pharmacy providers.  

b. The board must have full access to data regarding the average reimbursement, by 
drug ingredient cost, dispensing fee, and any other fee paid by a pharmacy 
benefits manager to licensed pharmacies with which the pharmacy benefits 
manager shares common ownership or control or is affiliated.  

c. The board must have full access to data regarding the average reimbursement, by 
drug ingredient cost, dispensing fee, and any other fee paid by a pharmacy 
benefits manager to pharmacies licensed in the state.  

d. The board must have full access to data regarding any direct and indirect fees, 
charges, or recoupment, or any kind of assessments imposed by the pharmacy 
benefits manager on pharmacies licensed with which the pharmacy benefits 
manager shares common ownership or control or is affiliated.  

e. The board must have full access to data regarding any direct and indirect fees, 
charges, or recoupment, or any kind of assessments imposed by the pharmacy 
benefits manager, on pharmacies licensed in the state.  

f. The contract must provide that all drug rebates, financial incentives, fees, and 
discounts must be disclosed to the board.  

2. The board shall use an independent auditor who has no conflict of interest with the 
carrier, pharmacy benefits manager, or board. The board's auditor, the insurance 
department, and the employee benefits programs committee may access any 
information the board may access under this section. All information accessed by the 

Page 210 of 365



board, board's auditor, insurance department, or employee benefits programs 
committee which is trade secret is a confidential record. This subsection does not limit 
the information required to be disclosed to the board under subsection  

3. If the board contracts directly with a pharmacy benefits manager or provides 
prescription drug coverage through a self-insurance plan, the contract must provide 
the pharmacy benefits manager shall disclose to the board and the board's auditor 
all rebates and any other fees that provide the pharmacy benefits manager with 
sources of income under the contract, including under related contracts the pharmacy 
benefits manager has with third parties, such as drug manufacturers. 

4. Anything the board has access to under this section, the insurance department and 
employee benefits programs committee has access to.11 

The additions to the Century Code describe the audit rights, data disclosure 
requirements, and financial disclosures required to enter into, or renew, a contract 
for prescription drug coverage.  

In fully-insured arrangements that include both medical and prescription drug 
coverage, the PBM acts as a subcontractor to the insurer to provide pharmacy 
benefit services. When the insurer provides fully-insured premium rates, and 
assumes all risk, they usually do not provide any disclosure of the terms of the 
financial relationship with the PBM or network pharmacies.  

Unlike fully-insured contracts, self-insured arrangements allow the plan sponsor 
more control and greater visibility into the financial terms of the contract, as well as 
rights to receive data and audit performance against the terms of the contract. 

Some insurers, PBMs and administrators may determine that they cannot meet the 
Century Code statutes, either because they do not offer arrangements that are 
compliant with the requirements or they are unwilling to disclose the information to 
NDPERS. 

4.4 Prescription Drug Carve-out Considerations based on the 
North Dakota Health Insurance Market 

• Competition in North Dakota is relatively concentrated, which may create 
barriers to entry for other insurers or administrators to compete for 
commercial business. High market share affords substantial bargaining power 
when negotiating with hospitals, physician groups, and pharmacies. This gives 
incumbent insurers or administrators an advantage in setting reimbursement 
rates which may contribute directly, or indirectly, to limiting competition.  
 

Page 211 of 365



• Insurers need to have a strong network of hospitals, physicians, and 
pharmacies in the state, and competitive reimbursement rates with those 
healthcare providers, to compete. Hospitals and physicians are more likely to 
participate in the networks of insurers with strong market share in the state 
and less likely to give preferred reimbursement terms to smaller insurers or 
new entrants. 
 

• Unlike employers with membership spread across different markets, NDPERS’ 
membership lives and accesses healthcare predominantly in the state. 
Therefore, the strength of the insurer networks and competitive network 
contracts are an important factor to NDPERS’ costs.  
 

• NDPERS’ ability to procure for the current modified fully-insured contract with 
gain-sharing or other insurance arrangements is dependent on the insurance 
products offered by the insurers and administrators competing in the state. 
 

• Contracting for a carve-out pharmacy benefit under a self-insured plan allows 
for more choice in administrators. However, there are many PBMs that 
administer self-insured benefit programs that do not offer fully-insured 
options or medical benefits. 
 

• Transitioning to a carved-out prescription drug program could have an impact 
on local employment if the selected insurer or administrator is not based in 
the state or does not have employees in the state. 
 

• The North Dakota Pharmacy Ownership Law has the effect of limiting 
pharmacy expansion of national pharmacy chains into the state and 
insulating independently owned pharmacies in the state from the pressures 
of competing with national chains. 
 

• Insurers and PBMs manage retail pharmacy networks and negotiate 
prescription drug reimbursement rates and other services with retail 
pharmacies. Insurers and PBMs with subsidiary pharmacies, or preferred 
reimbursement rates with large national chains, may not have equivalent 
contracts with independent pharmacies in North Dakota, which may result in 
higher costs for NDPERS but also higher reimbursements to independent 
pharmacies in the state. 
 

Page 212 of 365



• If the State elects to carve-out the prescription drug program, pharmacies in 
North Dakota could be impacted by changes in reimbursement rates from the 
selected PBM.  

 
• The Century Code statutes require specific financial disclosures related to the 

prescription drug benefits contract. These requirements may limit 
participation in uniform group insurance procurements to the extent that 
prescription drug benefits providers are unable, or unwilling, to meet the 
requirements. 
 

• Insurers and PBMs willing and able to meet the requirements of Century Code 
statute 54-52.1-04.16 may or may not meet the other minimum requirements 
and/or preference criteria of NDPERS. 
 

• The amendments to the Century Code included in House Bill No. 1374 were 
adopted after the last uniform group insurance program RFP in 2014. The 
responses to the RFP for the 2021-23 biennium will identify the willingness of 
insurers and administrators to comply with the Code’s new requirements. 

  

Page 213 of 365



5 Prescription Drug Market Trends and 
Management Strategies 

Prescription drugs are a primary driver of healthcare costs. This section explores 
trends impacting the costs of prescription drugs and related implications for plan 
sponsors related to cost and management.  

5.1 Rising Healthcare Costs and the Impact of Prescription Drugs 

Total healthcare spending in the United States has increased consistently over the 
last three decades. Between 2011 and 2019, average health benefit costs for 
Government employers increased 32 percent from $11,251 to $14,907 per 
employee per year.12 NDPERS-paid claims, per employee (medical and pharmacy 
combined), increased by 69 percent over the same period. NDPERS-paid 
prescription drug claims, per employee, increased by 107 percent (before 
prescription drug rebates).13 

Prescription drug costs continue to become a larger portion of total healthcare 
costs. In the NDPERS uniform group insurance program, prescription drug claims 
increased from 14 percent of healthcare claims in 2011 to 18 percent in 2019 (Figure 
4).13 Nationally, prescription drugs are estimated to increase by 7 percent in 2020, 
driven primarily by specialty drugs which are expected to rise over 15 percent.14 The 
prevalence of chronic disease, expensive specialty drug products, and changes to 
employee benefit plan designs increase the cost of prescription drugs for plans and 
participants. 

Figure 4 – NDPERS Medical and Rx Claims Per Employee 

 

$980 

$2,024 

$5,873 

$9,533 

$0 $2,000 $4,000 $6,000 $8,000 $10,000 $12,000 $14,000

2011

2019

NDPERS Paid Claims - Per Employee  (2011 vs 2019)

Prescription Drug Claims Medical Claims

Total = $11,558

Total = $6,853

Page 214 of 365



5.2 Chronic Disease 

86 percent of healthcare costs are spent treating chronic disease in the US.15 In the 
United States, six in 10 adults have at least one chronic condition, and four in 10 
have two or more.16 According to the 2018 North Dakota Health Profile, the leading 
causes of death in the state between 2012 and 2016 were cancer and heart disease. 
Other chronic diseases such as chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD), 
diabetes, and hypertension were also leading causes of death (Figure 5).17  

Figure 5 

Age Adjusted Death Rate by Cause 2012-2016 

Cause of Death 
Rate Per 
100,000 

Cancer 142.1 
Heart Disease 140.3 
Unintentional Injury 45.9 
Alzheimer's Disease 41.2 
COPD 35.2 
Stroke 31.9 
Diabetes Mellitus 20.6 
Suicide 18.4 
Pneumonia and Influenza 16.5 
Cirrhosis 11.6 
Hypertension 9.5 
All Causes 674.8 

A report by the North Dakota Department of Health documented chronic disease 
prevalence in the state, and found: 18 

• Two-thirds of North Dakota adults are overweight or obese 
• Nearly one-third of North Dakota adults have been diagnosed with high blood 

pressure 
• Almost one in twelve North Dakota adults has been diagnosed with diabetes 

The incidence of chronic disease is a significant factor in overall healthcare costs, 
and multiple chronic conditions have a multiplying effect. Research suggests that a 
person with five or more chronic conditions uses twice as many prescription drugs 
on average per year than those with fewer conditions. Those with five or more 
chronic conditions make up only 12 percent of the population but over 40 percent of 
total healthcare spending.19 

Page 215 of 365



NDPERS has implemented a variety of programs to help plan members manage risk 
factors associated with chronic disease, and to support those already diagnosed 
with tools and resources to manage their chronic disease.  

5.3 Specialty Drugs 

Specialty drugs are the primary driver of rising prescription drug costs in the U.S. In 
2019, specialty drug costs represented almost 50 percent of spending on outpatient 
prescription drugs despite being prescribed to less than 2 percent of patients.20 The 
growth of specialty drugs, both in utilization and cost, has accelerated at a rapid 
pace. The number of specialty drugs on the market has increased by over 1,200 
percent since the 1990s.20 Total spending on specialty drugs in the U.S. is expected 
to be $280 billion by 2021, triple the total spend only a decade earlier. 21 

Specialty drugs do not have a universally accepted definition but are generally 
considered to be biologically-derived, require careful handling, treat complex 
diseases or conditions, and very high cost. These drugs are frequently injectable or 
infused which may require them to be administered by a physician, pharmacist, or 
other healthcare professional. Indications that are treated by specialty drugs include 
cancer, inflammatory conditions, hepatitis, multiple sclerosis, growth deficiency, 
cystic fibrosis, and infectious disease, although the disease states and conditions 
targeted by specialty drug manufacturers is expanding rapidly and is not limited to 
only “complex” diseases. 

NDPERS specialty drug utilization mirrors the broader market. In 2019, specialty 
drugs were less than 1 percent of total prescriptions, yet the cost of specialty drugs 
represented over 40 percent of NDPERS’ prescription drug spend (Figure 6).6 
NDPERS specialty drug cost was $3,822 per prescription in 2019 compared to $279 
per prescription for non-specialty brand drugs and $12 per prescription for non-
specialty generic drugs.22 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 216 of 365



Figure 6 

   

Almost 40 percent of NDPERS’ specialty drug spend is related to inflammatory 
conditions and the rheumatological agents that treat conditions such arthritis, 
plaque psoriasis, ankylosing spondylitis, Crohn's disease, and ulcerative colitis.6 
Within the category, NDPERS’ highest-cost drug is Humira, which represented about 
70 percent of NDPERS’ spend. Humira is the highest grossing drug in the world with 
nearly 20 billion in sales in 2018 and costs over $5,500 dollars per month.23 

The second highest cost specialty category for NDPERS in 2019 was cancer. 6 The 
2018 North Dakota Community Health Profile ranks cancer as the leading cause of 
death in the state.17 Breast cancer and prostate cancer are the most commonly 
diagnosed conditions among women and men respectively in North Dakota.18 
Cancer is one of the leading areas of focus for drug manufacturers. There are 44 
potential cancer drug approvals in 2020, about 70 percent of which are intended for 
high-cost orphan drugs focused on very rare subsets of cancer. 24 One of the most 
highly anticipated new drugs is Enhertu, a breast cancer drug that costs $13,000 
dollars per month and was approved by the FDA in December 2019. 25 The 
introduction of expensive new treatments are expected to increase spending in 
oncology between 11 and 14 percent per year through 2023. 26 

87%

14%

12%

45%

1%

41%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Prescriptions Drug Spend

NDPERS Prescription Drug Utilization by Drug Type (2019)

Generic Brand Specialty

Page 217 of 365



A new and expanding field is the introduction of gene therapies, which alter the 
gene function to address the genetic causes of rare diseases. These products offer 
the prospect of a curative treatment, but at a very high cost. Currently, only 6 
diseases are treated with cell or gene therapy but there are more than 360 gene 
therapies in development. 27 Some examples of gene therapies on the market today 
include Spinraza, Zolgensma, and Kymriah. 

• In 2016, the FDA approved Spinraza, the first drug approved for the treatment 
of spinal muscular atrophy, which is a rare genetic disorder that is often 
fatal.28 Spinraza’s cost is $750,000 dollars in the first year and $375,000 dollars 
per year after. 29 

• In 2019, Zolgensma was approved by the FDA. 30 Zolgensma is a competitor 
product to Spinraza that costs over $2 million dollars for a one-time 
treatment. 31 

• In 2017 a cell-based gene therapy was approved in the United States. 32 The 
drug, Kymriah, modifies a patient’s own cells to kill leukemia cells. Kymriah 
costs between $373,000 and $475,000 per patient. 33 

This increased focus on specialty medications that treat rare conditions known as 
“orphan drugs” (defined as a disease affecting fewer than 200,000 people) will exert 
more cost pressure on plan sponsors and payers as more orphan drugs are 
introduced. These drugs are projected to cost more than $150,000 per patient per 
year and account for 22 percent of all prescription drug sales by 2024.34 

A growing focus for plan sponsors is prescription drug spend that is incurred in 
medical settings such as hospitals or physicians’ offices and billed through the 
medical plan instead of the pharmacy benefit. Express Scripts estimates that 
approximately 35 percent of specialty costs are billed through the medical benefit, 
and medical drug spend is expected to increase 33 percent from 2018 to 2023. 35 

There are several challenges for plan sponsors in understanding and managing drug 
costs that are billed through the medical benefit, including billing and coding 
ambiguity, claims payment processes, and fewer programs that monitor safe and 
appropriate utilization.  

5.4 Tools to Manage Appropriate Drug Utilization and Control 
Costs 

Plan sponsors employ a variety of tools to help mitigate rising drug costs while 
ensuring appropriate access for plan members. Some of the tools are traditional 
approaches to managing cost and utilization such as benefit plan design, formulary 

Page 218 of 365



strategy, prior authorization, step therapy, and quantity limits, while other new 
approaches such as site-of-care management and value based pricings are evolving 
in response to new specialty drugs and increasing costs.  

• Benefit Plan Design: Plan sponsors are shifting away from the three-tier 
copay plan design to designs that feature coinsurance or additional copay 
tiers, particularly for specialty drugs. Fifty-nine percent of plan sponsors in 
2018 implemented a separate specialty cost-sharing tier for non-specialty 
drugs, up from 56 percent in 2017 and 52 percent in 2016. 36 High-deductible 
plans are also increasing in popularity; 47 percent of government plan 
sponsors offered a qualified high-deductible health plan in 2019 compared to 
just 18 percent in 2013.12 
 

• Formulary Strategy: Formulary strategy is an important tool in controlling 
drug costs. Most pharmacy benefit managers have different formularies to 
meet different objectives, like providing broad access for members, 
incentivizing generics, or maximizing rebates. While self-insured plan 
sponsors have the option of curating a custom formulary, 70 percent of plan 
sponsors in 2018 chose to implement a formulary maintained by the 
pharmacy benefit manager. 37 Prescription drug exclusions have become a 
common strategy employed by PBMs to manage utilization, cost, and 
negotiate for price concessions with manufacturers. In fact, 79 percent of plan 
sponsors adopt drug lists that exclude select products. 37 Indication based 
formulary design is another strategy to mitigate waste by matching 
prescription products that have multiple indications to only specific disease 
states where the drug is proven to be most efficacious. 
 

• Prior Authorization, Quantity Limits, and Step Therapy: Prior 
authorizations are the most common utilization management approach used 
by 94 percent of plan sponsors. Prior authorization requires patients to meet 
specific clinical criteria before drugs are dispensed, which promotes safety 
and appropriate utilization. Drug quantity limits are implemented by 92 
percent of plan sponsors to eliminate waste and promote safe utilization.37 
Step therapy is a utilization management strategy intended to reduce costs 
for both patients and the plan by requiring a clinically appropriate, lower cost, 
prescription drug prior to the higher cost alternative. 86 percent of plan 
sponsors use step therapy in their prescription drug program. 37 
 

• Site-of-Care Management: Prescription drug costs vary by site of care. 
Hospitals are significantly more costly than infusion centers or physicians’ 

Page 219 of 365



offices; the patient’s home is usually the most cost effective. UnitedHealth 
Group studied patients in their care and estimated a 33 to 52 percent 
reduction in average monthly costs across five conditions when treatment is 
administered in physicians’ offices or at home, instead of the hospital. 38 While 
not all therapies can be shifted away from a hospital setting, the study shows 
that site-of-care management can not only reduce cost, it can do so without 
increasing the likelihood of adverse drug events or side effects. 38 COVID-19 
may also accelerate a shift in the site-of-care management. Patients may be 
more accepting of receiving treatment in non-hospital sites and plan sponsors 
may be more willing to implement policies to manage site-of-care if their 
members are supportive of the strategy.  
 

• Patient Assistance Programs: Most pharmacy benefit managers have 
resources to help match members to financial assistance available through 
manufacturers or charitable foundations. Some have programs designed to 
reduce member out-of-pocket cost or maximize the manufacturer assistance 
available throughout the year by adjusting benefit design, which can help to 
reduce cost for the member and the plan. 
 

• Value-Based Contracting: Some emerging strategies for controlling costs use 
value-based contracting between pharmacy benefit managers and 
prescription drug manufacturers. These strategies attempt to link the cost of 
a drug to the outcomes it delivers. Value-based contracting is still in the early 
stages, but has had success in conditions where the health outcome can be 
directly linked to the drug, like Hepatitis C. Indication based formulary design 
is another emerging strategy, where prescription products with multiple 
indications are covered for specific indications that are shown to be the most 
efficacious, instead of included or excluded for all indications. For most 
management tools and strategies, coordination between the medical 
insurer/administrator and the prescription drug insurer/administrator 
improves the effectiveness of the programs and member experience.  

For plan sponsors that elect to bundle medical and prescription drug benefits 
together, the coordination usually happens “behind the scenes”, where member 
information and claims data is shared between the medical insurer/administrator 
and the PBM. Interestingly, even in bundled arrangements, most medical 
insurer/administrators still contract with a third-party PBM for prescription drug 
administration, for example, Sanford Health Plan contracts with OptumRx and 
BCBSND contracts with Prime Therapeutics. Given this structure, the data sharing 
and coordination shares many similarities to a carve-out prescription drug 

Page 220 of 365



arrangement, although there may be more comprehensive systems, reporting, 
clinical, and customer service integration in a bundled arrangement. 

In self-insured contracts, and particularly carve-out arrangements, there may be less 
incentive for coordination between medical and prescription drug providers since 
they do not assume any risk. Therefore, it is the responsibility of the plan sponsor to 
initiate data exchanges between the medical and prescription drug administrators 
and monitor that the information is being used to manage the plan. 

5.5 Prescription Drug Carve-out Considerations based on 
Prescription Drug Market Trends and Utilization Management 
Strategies 

• Rising drug costs will impact healthcare costs regardless of the insurance 
arrangement (fully-insured or self-insured); however, each funding 
arrangement is affected differently. A self-insured plan will experience claims 
volatility but may have more ability to implement programs and clinical 
controls to manage cost and utilization. A fully-insured plan will be insulated 
from volatility but may have less control over premium increases and 
mechanisms to control costs and manage utilization. 
 

• The prevalence of chronic diseases such as diabetes, heart disease, and 
hypertension will continue to drive prescription drug utilization and cost. How 
plan participants manage these conditions will have a direct impact on 
prescription drug and total healthcare costs. The State will need to determine 
if a carve-out prescription drug program offers additional capabilities and 
resources for members with chronic conditions or if an integrated medical 
and prescription drug program allows for more effective management. 
 

• Specialty drug costs are the biggest single contributor to increasing 
prescription drug prices. The specialty drug trend is significantly higher than 
non-specialty drugs due to increasing use of high-cost medications and the 
introduction of new products that treat complex and rare diseases. Managing 
specialty drug costs is dependent on competitive purchasing, comprehensive 
patient care programs, and a focus on adherence and minimizing waste. A 
carve-out prescription drug program may allow for more control over 
specialty drugs and create the flexibility to implement innovative strategies to 
manage cost and optimize care.  
 

Page 221 of 365



• Cost and utilization management programs are critical to managing 
appropriate use of prescription drugs and eliminating waste; however, the 
availability, maturity, and quality of these programs varies among insurers 
and administrators.  
 

• NDPERS’ plan design is established prior to each biennium and typically 
cannot change during the contract, which may affect the applicability of some 
utilization management programs and tools. 

  

Page 222 of 365



6 Fully-Insured and Self-Insured Contracts  

This section reviews the various aspects of fully-insured and self-insured contracts 
and the corresponding considerations related to a carve-out prescription drug 
model. 

6.1 Fully-Insured Contracts 

In a fully-insured arrangement, the plan sponsor pays a fixed premium to transfer 
all risk to the insurer. The insurer’s premium pays for claims, administration of the 
program, tax/government fees, profit, and risk margin. If claims or expenses are 
lower than the premium, the insurer earns a higher profit. If claims or expenses are 
higher than the premium, the insurer is responsible for the shortfall.  

Fully-insured contracts are attractive to plan sponsors that want to transfer all risk 
to a third party. In doing so, they eliminate volatility of claims and protect the plan 
from high cost claims. Small and midsize companies (typically less than 1,000 
employees) often prefer fully-insured contracts because of the unpredictability of 
claims in a small population. The level monthly premium is an attractive feature for 
budgeting and planning. 

It is rare for employers with fully-insured programs to carve-out the prescription 
drug benefit. For plan sponsors with large memberships, like NDPERS, or sufficient 
risk tolerance, self-insuring the pharmacy benefit while maintaining a fully-insured 
medical plan could increase flexibility and control over benefit provisions, while 
reducing some of the taxes, fees, and risk charges of a fully-insured benefit. 

The NDPERS’ agreement is a fully-insured contract with partial risk sharing. Unlike 
most fully-insured programs that are renewed every year, NDPERS’ fully-insured 
contract applies to each biennial period. Risk-sharing agreements are structured 
such that if claim costs exceed a pre-defined amount, the plan sponsor and the 
insurer will share in the additional expenses (“loss-sharing”). Likewise, if the costs 
are lower than the pre-defined amount, the savings will also be shared (“gain-
sharing”). The purpose of risk sharing arrangements is to align the incentives of both 
the plan sponsor and the insurer to control costs. In 2017, NDPERS negotiated the 
elimination of the loss-sharing provision of the modified fully-insured arrangement, 
but retained the gain-sharing provision. This is a unique gain-sharing arrangement 
that insulates NDPERS from additional financial risk.  

Page 223 of 365



6.2 Self-Insured Contracts 

In a self-insured arrangement, the plan sponsor retains the claims risk. The plan 
sponsor contracts a third-party administrator to provide administrative services for 
the plan such as claims adjudication, network access, and clinical management 
programs.  

Self-insured plan sponsors establish reserves for unpaid claims liability and to 
provide additional protection against potential or unforeseen claims and/or 
expenses that may exceed expected plan costs. 

Plan sponsors often elect to be self-insured because they have the financial 
resources and expertise to manage claims risk and self-insurance can offer the 
potential for cost savings and increased flexibility compared to a fully-insured 
arrangement. Some of the potential efficiencies in a self-insured arrangement 
include: 

1. Administrative fees: Self-insured plan sponsors may be able to procure 
lower administrative fees due to the elimination of the insurer’s risk and 
retention fees. 
 

2. Reduction in taxes: Self-insured plan sponsors benefit from lower taxes. 
Most states impose a tax on health insurance premiums. In North Dakota, 
a 1.75 percent tax is assessed on the gross amount of premiums, 
assessments, membership fees, subscriber fees, policy fees, and service 
fees. A fully-insured plan would pay 1.75 percent on the total premium, 
while a self-insured plan would be responsible for 1.75 percent of the 
service fees, which can vary but usually represent approximately 5 
percent of the total plan cost. While this is a meaningful consideration for 
most large employers that are considering transitioning from a fully-
insured plan to a self-insured arrangement, NDPERS is exempt from state 
health insurance premium taxes. In addition to state health insurance 
premium taxes, the Affordable Care Act (ACA) introduced the Federal 
Affordable Care Act Health Insurer Tax in 2014 and only applied to fully-
insured plans. The Tax was one of the mechanisms designed to fund the 
implementation of the ACA and the amount of the tax was assessed to 
each insurer based on their market share. Insurers passes the tax to 
customers by including the expense in the fully-insured premium. In most 
cases, the Health Insurer Tax represented between two percent and four 

Page 224 of 365



percent of premium. On December 20, 2019 the Health Insurer Tax was 
repealed for 2021 and beyond. 39 

 
3. Plan coverage rules: Self-insured plan sponsors have more flexibility in 

determining plan design and coverage rules. Self-insured plan sponsors 
are not required to comply with all state health insurance regulations and 
benefit mandates, although some still do. 

 
4. Reserves: Self-insured plan sponsors fund health insurance reserves, 

which can generate investment income and provide additional financial 
flexibility to the plan sponsor. 

 
5. Underwriting assumptions: Self-insured plan sponsors have more 

control over the claims underwriting assumptions such as changes to 
healthcare claims trend rates, administrative expenses, and risk margin 
when budgeting future costs compared to fully-insured rates that are set 
by the insurer.  

 
6. Data transparency: Self-insured plan sponsors often have higher 

visibility into the data and underlying cost drivers than insured plans. 

There are also potential inefficiencies to self-insured contracts: 

1. Uneven cash flow: Fully-insured contracts offer the stability of a fixed 
premium. Self-insured plans must account for fluctuation of claims each 
month and there is risk that claims may be higher than the funding level. 
 
In 2020, COVID-19 is a significant consideration for self-insured plan 
sponsors. Many employers in states with “stay at home” orders 
experienced a significant decrease in claims costs as a result of the 
postponement or elimination of elective healthcare. The impact of COVID-
19 on 2021 claims is unknown, which poses a challenge for self-insured 
plans in determining appropriate plan funding and budgeting. 
 

2. Additional incurred but not reported (IBNR) liability: Self-insured 
plans must retain additional reserve funds to cover “incurred but not 
reported” claims liabilities. 

 
3. Risk and funding: Self-insured plans must determine the level of 

financial risk that is acceptable and be responsible for setting appropriate 

Page 225 of 365



funding levels/premium rates and reserve adjustments. This can include 
significant up-front costs to establish reserves at the start of a contract. 

 
4. Administrative requirements: Self-insured plans accept additional 

administrative responsibilities such as developing and maintaining plan 
documents, managing fiduciary responsibility, and managing compliance 
activities such as discrimination testing. 

6.3 Stop Loss Insurance 

Stop loss insurance protects the plan from the financial impact of very high cost 
claims or an unexpected high volume of claims. There are two types of stop loss 
contracts: individual stop loss contracts and aggregate stop loss contracts. 

1. Individual stop loss: Sometimes referred to as “specific” stop loss, this 
insurance arrangement protects the plan against individual catastrophic 
claims above an agreed-upon level. The level, which is referred to as the 
stop loss deductible (because the plan pays 100 percent of the claims up 
to that level), is based on the plan’s risk tolerance and ability to financially 
absorb fluctuating claims experience. The stop-loss insurer then covers 
100 percent of the portion of the claim in excess of the deductible (or the 
majority of the excess, depending on the contract terms). Common stop 
loss deductibles range from $200,000 to $1 million dollars per individual. 
The price of individual stop loss is based on the deductible and the health 
risk in the population. 
 
A common practice for stop loss insurers is to “laser” high-risk individuals. 
During the underwriting, the insurer will identify claimants with known 
high-risk, usually identified by a history of high claims or high-risk 
diagnoses, and exclude these individuals (or “laser” them) from the 
insurance coverage or set a higher deductible that applies specifically to 
them. This practice limits the effectiveness of stop loss insurance for high-
risk members currently on the plan but decreases the premium rate. 
 

2. Aggregate stop loss: This insurance contract limits the plan’s exposure to 
unpredictable variation in claims cost due to high incidence or volume of 
claims. The insured amount is set based on a percentage of expected 
claims, usually 125 percent of estimated cost. Aggregate stop loss is less 
frequently purchased than individual stop loss, especially for large plans 

Page 226 of 365



where the total claims experience is generally less variable than smaller 
plan sponsors. 

Stop loss insurance is a product commonly offered by health insurers and other 
third-party stop loss insurers. Stop loss insurance contracts are typically agreed 
upon for one year at a time and it is unusual for an insurance provider to quote 
multi-year guarantees. This practice results in potential risk to self-insured 
employers because the claims experience from year-to-year has a direct impact on 
the stop loss rates and coverage availability. After one year of unfavorable claims 
experience, the plan sponsor may face a large increase in premiums or termination 
of the contract. Rising prescription drug costs and the introduction of high-cost gene 
therapies, orphan drugs, and other expensive prescription drugs are creating higher 
financial risk for plan sponsors and stop-loss insurance may be a tool to mitigate 
some of the risk. However, the prevalence of high-cost prescription drug utilization 
may also limit the availability or affordability of stop-loss coverage. 

When the prescription drug coverage is carved-out from the medical benefit, some 
insurers will offer stop loss coverage on the medical claims only, others will accept 
data from the carve-out prescription drug vendor and provide stop loss coverage for 
both medical and pharmacy claims, and some insurers will not offer stop loss 
coverage unless they manage both the medical and pharmacy benefits. 

If a plan elects to carve-out and self-insure the prescription drug benefit, but 
maintains a fully-insured medical plan, there are very few options in the market that 
will offer stop loss coverage for prescription drugs only. Stop loss coverage that only 
insures self-insured, carve-out, prescription drug plans is uncommon, though there 
are some insurers that offer aggregate stop loss insurance for prescription drugs. 

6.4 Prescription Drug Carve-out Considerations based on 
Insurance Contract Funding Options 

• Fully-insured carve-out prescription drug coverage is not commonly available 
in the market. A transition to a carve-out prescription drug program would 
likely necessitate a move from the fully-insured uniform group insurance 
program to a self-insured program. 
 

• The procurement for the 2021-23 biennium will determine what insurance 
options, and which insurers and administrators, are available to the State. 
 

Page 227 of 365



• A self-insured, carve-out prescription drug plan would eliminate the downside 
risk protection that is a feature of the current NDPERS modified fully-insured 
contract. The modified fully-insured arrangement with gain-sharing offers the 
advantage of fixed monthly premiums and no risk of loss should claims exceed 
premium. A self-insured plan would require that the State assume all claims 
risk.  
 

• NDPERS’ size will help minimize the volatility associated with large claims or 
unpredictable risk but claims under a self-insured contract will fluctuate more 
than a fixed premium agreement. Prescription drug costs continue to rise, 
driven by the prevalence of chronic conditions and specialty drugs that treat 
high-cost, complex conditions. Market events such as COVID-19 could have a 
dramatic impact on claims costs. 
 

• Most fully-insured arrangements do not have “gain-sharing” provisions like the 
NDPERS contract. The “gain-sharing” allows NDPERS to share in the upside if 
claims are lower than expected. The gains may be used to fund a reserve. 
 

• A self-insured plan will require reserves to guard against claims fluctuations 
and to pay for “incurred but not reported” claims liabilities.  
 

• A self-insured, carve-out, prescription drug program will likely require more 
administrative resources, including additional staff, from NDPERS to manage 
the additional insurer/administrator and meet the requirements associated 
with a self-insured, carve-out program. 
 

• Self-insured plans are not required to follow the same insurance mandates 
and coverage rules as fully-insured plans. However, if NDPERS were to be self-
insured, the plan must be regulated by the State Insurance Department and is 
required to follow the same mandates as fully-insured plans. 
 

• Self-insured plans typically have greater visibility into data and the underlying 
cost drivers in the plan than fully-insured plans. North Dakota Century Code 
Section 54-52.1-04.16 mandates the same disclosures regardless of insurance 
arrangement.  
 

• In a self-insured arrangement, NDPERS may evaluate stop-loss insurance to 
protect the plan against large losses. Century Code Section 54-52.1-04.2 
authorizes NDPERS to purchase individual stop-loss, but does not authorize 

Page 228 of 365



aggregate stop-loss. High-cost prescription drugs that are currently available 
and in development are a risk to be assessed to determine if stop-loss 
insurance is an appropriate tool to transfer some of the risk. Stop-loss 
insurance may not be necessary for NDPERS given the size of the population, 
which will create stability in claims from month to month.  
 

• NDPERS’ stop-loss premium rate must align with the biennial period. Since 
most stop-loss periods are one year, the two-year requirement may impact the 
availability or desirability of the insurance.  
 

• Availability of stop-loss coverage is dependent on the insurance arrangement 
and may not be available for prescription drug coverage only.  
 

• There may be additional direct or indirect carve-out costs. It is common for 
insurers and administrators to charge “carve-out” fees as a disincentive to 
carving-out the prescription drug benefit. Fees range from increased medical 
premiums, higher medical administrative service fees, file feed charges, and 
implementation fees.  

  

Page 229 of 365



7 Prescription Drug Contracts 

Understanding the financial components of a self-insured prescription drug contract 
is important, particularly when transitioning from a fully-insured contract to a self-
insured model. This section describes the primary financial components in various 
types of contracts and explains the various ways by which PBMs are reimbursed.  

7.1 Financial Terms 

The complexity and interconnectedness of the prescription drug supply chain, 
including drug manufacturers, wholesalers, retail, mail, specialty pharmacies, 
prescribers, patients, and payers, is mirrored in the financial aspects of a self-
insured pharmacy benefits contract. There are four primary financial categories that 
are included in most contracts between the plan sponsor and the PBM: 

1. Prescription drug discounts: Plan sponsors contract with PBMs for drug 
prices based on drug type (brand, generic, specialty) and the drug delivery 
channel (retail pharmacy, mail pharmacy, specialty pharmacy). Most 
commonly, the discounts are based on the Average Wholesale Price (AWP) 
benchmark which is intended to represent the average price paid by a retailer 
to purchase the drug from a wholesaler. Another important benchmark for 
generic drug pricing is the Maximum Allowable Cost list, or “MAC” list. This 
price benchmark, usually determined by the PBM, sets the maximum 
reimbursement price the PBM will pay for the drugs included on the list (the 
maximum allowable cost). The MAC list was originally designed as a cost 
containment tool to promote the purchase of the lowest-cost generic drug 
when it was available from multiple manufacturers. Most PBM MAC lists 
contain between 90 and 95 percent of generics on the market. There are no 
regulations or industry standard criteria that govern MAC list development and 
application, so PBMs have wide discretion on which products to include and 
how to set reimbursement rates. Most plan sponsors negotiate with PBMs for 
discounts that are based on AWP but include generic drugs that are 
reimbursed according to MAC pricing. 
 
Specialty drug pricing in prescription drug contracts is usually structured 
differently than non-specialty drug pricing. Non-specialty drug pricing terms 
are usually guaranteed at the category level (brand, generic). Specialty drugs 
are usually priced on a drug-by-drug basis based on a comprehensive specialty 
drug list maintained by the administrator, where each drug product has a 

Page 230 of 365



distinct discount guarantee. Specialty drug lists are updated as new specialty 
drug products are introduced to the market or as financial contracts are 
negotiated with manufacturers. In some cases, pharmacy contracts may 
include an “overall effective discount” guarantee for specialty drugs which sets 
the minimum product discount for all products included on the specialty drug 
list.  
 
Many PBMs own prescription drug mail fulfillment and dispensing centers as 
well as specialty pharmacies. PBMs offer incentives in the form of deeper 
discounts, lower fees, and other services (like specialized clinical programs) to 
drive volume to their owned pharmacies.  
 
PBMs also offer strategies that are designed to drive volume to specific retail 
pharmacies. Narrow networks, where select pharmacies are excluded from the 
network, steer plan members to the “preferred” network pharmacies and in 
turn, the pharmacy offers preferred pricing. 90-day fill networks operate on 
the same principal, where select pharmacies dispense a 90-day prescription fill 
instead of the standard 30-day fill. 
 

2. Dispensing fees: Dispensing fees are paid to the pharmacies to compensate 
the pharmacy for the costs of dispensing each prescription. Over time, 
dispensing fees have dropped dramatically and in some cases have been 
eliminated entirely. Dispensing fees can vary depending on the PBM and the 
type of financial contract in place.  
 

3. Administration fees: Administration fees are assessed to the plan sponsor to 
compensate the PBM for administering the benefit program. The PBM may 
also charge administrative fees to administer value-added services like clinical 
management programs. It is common practice for PBMs to waive 
administration fees if the financial arrangement allows the PBM to retain 
margin in other areas of the contract, such as prescription drug discounts or 
manufacturer derived revenue/rebates. Alternatively, some PBMs offer higher 
administration fees in exchange for full pass-through of all other sources of 
revenue. 
 

4. Manufacturer derived revenue/rebates: Manufacturer derived revenue 
includes any revenue received by the PBM from prescription drug 
manufacturers as a result of administering the pharmacy benefit on behalf of 
the plan sponsor. The largest percentage of manufacturer derived revenue 

Page 231 of 365



comes in the form of formulary and market share rebates. PBMs negotiate 
with manufacturers for rebates as incentive for including the product on the 
PBM’s drug list formulary. Rebates are not based solely on inclusion on the 
formulary, they are also dependent on factors which include, but are not 
limited to, formulary position (preferred or non-preferred), market share, 
clinical requirements, competitor products, and other factors. In addition to 
rebates, PBMs receive other types of income from manufacturers which may 
include, but are not limited to, rebate administration fees, data and service 
fees, bulk purchasing incentives, inflation protection/price protection 
payments, grants, educational, and program fees.  
 

Most PBMs pay manufacturer derived revenue/rebates retrospectively on a 
quarterly basis to their plan sponsor clients. The PBM aggregates the 
prescription drug claims throughout the quarter, submits the claims to 
manufacturers, the manufacturers remit rebates and any other contractual 
payments, and then the PBM remits the payments back to the plan sponsor. 
This process usually results in a delay between the time the prescription drug 
claim is incurred to the time the rebate is paid of three to six months. Some 
PBMs offer an alternative structure called “point-of-sale” (POS) rebates. The 
specifics of each POS arrangement may vary, but the core function is that the 
value of the manufacturer rebate is applied to the cost of the drug at the 
point-of-sale. Applying the rebate at the point-of-sale is a cash-flow benefit for 
the plan sponsor and can reduce the cost of the drug for the member (if they 
are responsible for paying a percentage of the total cost instead of a copay).  

The effectiveness of the pricing terms is largely dependent on other provisions of 
the contract such as definitions, formulary management, audit rights, data 
ownership, and performance guarantees which can serve to enhance the value of 
the pricing provisions or dilute them. In the testimony provided by Pharmacy 
Benefits Consultants in October 2019, they recommend specific provisions that 
should be included in the pharmacy contract: 3 

• Pinned down “Brand Drug” and “Generic Drug” definitions (use Medi-Span 
MONY information fields) 

• Pinned down guarantees for “Brand Drugs” and “Generic Drugs”, dispensed at 
(i) retail, (ii) retail 90, and (iii) mail pharmacies 

• Pinned down “Specialty Drug” definition (cross-reference to exhibit list of 
1,000+ Specialty Drugs) 

Page 232 of 365



• A “minimum discount guarantee” for every Specialty Drug dispensed from the 
PBM’s Specialty Drug pharmacy (1,000+guarantees) 

• The Plan’s “right to renegotiate” Retail and Mail Guarantees annually, and 
Specialty Drug Guarantees quarterly 

• “Pass-through Pricing” – not “Spread Pricing” – for all drugs (retail, retail 90, 
mail, and specialty) 

• A “Pass-Through” of 100 percent of all manufacturer payments and price 
reductions (not just “Rebates”) 

• The “Right to Obtain “Net Cost’ Information” on any drug (factoring in “Rebates” 
& all other passed-through monies) 

• The “Right to Customize” the Formulary (to decide which drugs to exclude and 
include, and how to “tier” the drugs) 

• The “Right to Customize” any program (prior authorizations, step therapies, 
quantity limits) 

• Full Disclosure of all PBM-Manufacturer and PBM-Pharmacy Contracts 

• No “Exclusivity” rights for PBMs (all pharmacies can dispense all drugs) 

• The right for the plan to determine which drugs are dispensed from which 
pharmacies (based on access to information on pharmacy costs) 

• The Plan’s “right to carve-out” any Specialty Drug (allow a retail or a 3rd Party 
Specialty Drug Pharmacy to dispense the drug, if the PBM’s Specialty Drug 
Pharmacy Guarantee is not competitive) 

• A “Right to terminate, with or without cause, on 90 days’ notice” 

7.2 Additional Components of Cost 

Prescription drug costs are the result of many different inputs, and financial terms in 
the contract are only one factor in total cost. Other contributors to costs include: 

• Demographics: The demographics of the population, including age, gender, 
occupation, geography, family size, education, and socioeconomic status, 
contribute to the health of the population. 
 

• Plan design: Prescription drug plan design components like co-pays, 
deductibles, and out-of-pocket maximums govern how much members pay 
for prescriptions, but also influence important contributors to cost like drug 
adherence and clinical outcomes. 

Page 233 of 365



 
• Formulary: The prescription drug formulary is a critical input to prescription 

drug costs. The formulary steers utilization to preferred products and is a 
primary tool for PBMs to negotiate financial incentives in the supply chain. 
 

• Clinical management: Clinical programs like prior authorization, step 
therapy, quantity limits, and utilization review are intended to support 
appropriate utilization and guard against waste.  

7.3 Spread Pricing Contracts 

The most common financial contract structure is known as spread-pricing (also 
referred to as “traditional pricing”). In this arrangement, the PBM retains the 
difference between the discount negotiated with the plan sponsor and the 
reimbursement paid to the pharmacy. In a spread-pricing contract, PBMs typically 
retain all or a portion of the manufacturer derived revenue/rebates. PBMs that own 
mail and specialty pharmacies may also retain the difference between their 
prescription drug acquisition cost and the discounted rate offered to plan sponsors. 
In spread pricing contracts, the PBM typically does not assess an administration fee. 

In most spread contracts, PBMs do not disclose the amount of margin retained to 
clients.  

7.4 Pass-Through Contracts 

An alternative arrangement is the “pass-through” financial contract. Pass-through 
contracts offer a higher degree of visibility into drug costs for plan sponsors than 
spread contracts. This model eliminates spread-pricing in the retail pharmacy 
network so the PBM does not realize any margin between the reimbursement to the 
pharmacy and the discount to the plan sponsor. To replace the margin from the 
network, PBMs assess an administration fee that is paid by the plan sponsor. In a 
pass-through model, rebates are not retained by the PBM and instead paid to the 
plan sponsor.  

In circumstances where PBMs own mail and specialty pharmacies, the PBM usually 
structures those assets as separate legal entities which allows them to “pass-
through” the rate the PBM receives from the mail and specialty entities. However, 
the rate offered to plan sponsors does not represent the actual acquisition cost, 
which means that the PBM still retains margin, or “spread”, even in the pass-through 
arrangement. 

Page 234 of 365



7.5 Hybrid and Alternative Contracts 

There is a broad spectrum of contract types and methodologies in the market. Often 
plan sponsors will negotiate for a “hybrid” contract that includes spread-pricing in 
the pharmacy network but passes all manufacturer derived revenue/rebates back to 
the plan. One such methodology relies on the national average drug acquisition cost 
(NADAC) which is produced by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services 
(CMS) by surveying select pharmacies each month on drug pricing in order to set 
reimbursement rates. There may be benefits to alternative pricing systems like the 
potential for higher price transparency more aligned incentives as well as limitations 
like fewer insurers and administrators willing to use the methodology. 

Less common, and less available, are alternative contract arrangements like “cost 
plus” methodologies where the plan sponsor is charged the acquisition cost for the 
prescription drug plus a fee to administer the claim.  

7.6 Prescription Drug Carve-out Considerations based on 
Prescription Drug Pricing and Contracts 

• Drug discounts, dispensing fees, administration fees and manufacturer 
revenue/rebates underpin all pharmacy contracts. In a fully-insured model, 
the insurer typically does not provide any detail on these underlying terms to 
the plan sponsor since all risk is assumed by the insurer. NDPERS may need 
to require non-standard financial disclosures from the insurer to meet 
Century Code statutes related to the pharmacy benefits program. 
 

• Unlike most fully-insured arrangements that do not specify prescription drug 
terms, NDPERS fully-insured contract passes-through 100 percent of 
manufacturer rebates from Sanford Health Plan to NDPERS. 
 

• The two most common contract arrangements, spread and pass-through, 
have different mechanisms by which the PBM is reimbursed. In a spread 
contract, the PBM earns a margin on the difference between the 
reimbursement rates negotiated with the pharmacies and the rates 
contracted with the plan sponsor. These margins, or spreads, are not usually 
disclosed. Since North Dakota requires comprehensive financial disclosure 
from PBMs, a pass-through arrangement may be more compliant with 
statutes. 
 

Page 235 of 365



• Century Code Section 54-52.1-04.16 financial disclosure requirements may 
dissuade some insurers or PBMs from participating in the procurement for 
the uniform group insurance program. Some insurers and administrators do 
not offer pass-through pricing arrangements, and others may not want to 
provide the required disclosures. 
 

• A self-insured, carve-out, prescription drug contract may allow for greater 
visibility into the underlying cost components of the contract and control over 
specific contract such as pricing guarantees, definitions, audit rights, 
termination provisions and rights to control core elements of the program like 
clinical programs and formulary. 

  

Page 236 of 365



8 Pharmacy Benefit Managers and Carve-Out 
Trends 

This section discusses the evolution of the PBM landscape and the major 
competitors in the market. It identifies trends in carving-out prescription drug 
benefits and why market consolidation may begin to reverse the trend back towards 
medical and pharmacy integration. 

8.1 Pharmacy Benefit Managers 

PBMs began in the 1960s and their primary role was to adjudicate prescription drug 
claims on behalf of health plans. Through the 1980s, PBMs primarily served to 
connect retail pharmacies to the health insurers. The primary source of revenue was 
claims processing fees. 40 

By the 1990s, PBMs began offering more services, including mail service, 
administration of clinical programs, more sophisticated contracting with drug 
manufacturers and pharmacies. The 2000s marked a growth period for PBMs. 
Dominant market players began to emerge, and PBM clients began to demand more 
services than just low cost, volume discounts. Performance guarantees for pricing, 
accuracy, customer service, and clinical management became priorities for PBMs in 
order to attract new business. As PBMs continued to grow, health plans and self-
insured plan sponsors carved-out the pharmacy benefit from the medical benefits to 
take advantage of scale and capabilities to better manage prescription drug costs. 

Since 2010, the PBM market has evolved even more dramatically and the industry 
has experienced significant consolidation. Three companies have emerged with the 
largest scale; CVS Health, Express Scripts, and OptumRx maintain nearly 80 percent 
of the PBM market share. 41 

CVS Health is the largest PBM in the industry, responsible for over two billion 
prescriptions annually and operating more than 9,900 retail pharmacy locations. 42 

CVS Health purchased Aetna in 2018 for $70 billion, creating a massive vertically 
integrated PBM and health plan. 42 The resulting company serves over 100 million 
pharmacy members and serves 37 million people in its health benefits segment 
through traditional, voluntary and consumer-directed health insurance.42 

Page 237 of 365



Express Scripts manages pharmacy benefits for more than 75 million pharmacy 
benefit members. 43 In the same year that saw the combination of CVS Health and 
Aetna, Express Scripts was acquired by Cigna for $53 billion.44 

OptumRx, the PBM subsidiary of UnitedHealth Group, serves 56 million pharmacy 
members and processes more than one billion pharmacy claims annually.45 

UnitedHealth Group was the first of the three to pursue a vertically integrated 
model when they ended their long running relationship with Medco in 2013 (then 
owned by Express Scripts) and created OptumRx. In 2015, OptumRx acquired 
competitor Catamaran and absorbed their 35 million pharmacy benefits members.46 

Although the market is concentrated, competition remains among other market 
participants. Prime Therapeutics services more than 28 million members by 
partnering directly with 18 BCBS plans, including North Dakota. 43 IngenioRx, 
launched by Anthem in 2019, entered the space in hopes of capturing market share 
and developing their value proposition as a wholly integrated healthcare company. 
Other PBMs and PBM alternatives are competing in various market segments and 
include companies like Humana, MedImpact, Navitus, EnvisionRx, Welldyne, 
MagellanRx, RxSense, FliptRx, CapitalRx, RxAdvance, WithMe and others.  

8.2 Pharmacy Benefit Carve-Out Trends 

A “carve-out” pharmacy benefit plan refers to separating the administration of the 
prescription benefit, including drug costs and services, from the medical benefits 
plan. Carve-out pharmacy benefit programs have been a strategy for plan sponsors 
since the 1990s. As the PBM industry consolidated, and the resulting organizations 
grew, they positioned the value of the carve-out model as a strategy to control costs, 
leveraging scale to negotiate better rates and improve health outcomes by offering 
specialized prescription drug management programs. The argument for carving-out 
pharmacy benefits has been particularly salient with large employers. In 2001, 37 
percent of employers with more than 20,000 employees implemented a pharmacy 
benefits carve-out strategy, by 2011 the number grew to 57 percent, and in 2019 it 
was 70 percent. 12  

Although the trend towards carving-out pharmacy has continued over the last two 
decades, evolving market forces may start reversing this trend.  

The vertical integrations of the largest PBMs with national health insurers are 
already starting to shift marketing efforts away from carve-out business and 
towards integrated medical and prescription drug programs. In 2020, Cigna released 
their fourth annual “Value of Integration” study that found employers that offered 

Page 238 of 365



medical, prescription drug, and behavioral health saved $867 per individual 
compared to employers with carved-out prescription drug benefits. 47 The study also 
found a savings of $7,372 for individuals on specialty drugs and $11,679 on oncology 
specific patients along with a 24 percent lower in-patient expense. 47 UnitedHealth 
Group and OptumRx released a study based on their 2017 claims that showed 
increased medication adherence rates, higher adherence to evidence-based 
therapies, increased patient safety, and improved physician quality metrics through 
an integrated medical and prescription drug program. 48 Research by Aetna 
published in 2017 showed combining medical and pharmacy improves cost 
containment over time. The study found that plan sponsors with integrated medical 
and pharmacy had a 34 percent lower medical trend than those with carved-out 
prescription drug benefits. 49 In 2020, a Cambia Health Solutions and Prime 
Therapeutics released the results of a jointly conducted study of 331,390 members 
that took place over two years. It found that members with an integrated medical 
and prescription drug benefit resulted lower per member per year costs of $148, 15 
percent lower odds of hospitalization, and seven percent lower odds of an 
emergency department visit compared to members with a carve-out benefit. The 
study also demonstrated that members with chronic conditions experience a larger 
benefit from the integrated benefit. Members with coronary artery disease (CAD) 
were estimated to save $4,351 per member per year, members with chronic 
obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) were estimated to save $3,177 per member 
year, and members with diabetes were estimated to save $1,363 per member per 
year.50 

The research sponsored by insurers and PBMs is the most relevant data to the 
impact of integrated vs carve-out benefits because they study the question directly. 
Other clinical studies that do not specifically look at benefit structure but instead 
investigate the effects of member engagement and adherence to treatment may 
also be instructive. A 2018 study published in the Annals of Pharmacotherapy 
estimated the annual cost of drug-related morbidity and mortality resulting from 
nonoptimized medication therapy was $528.4 billion, or 16 percent of total US 
health care expenditures in 2016. Based on these results, a reasonable application 
of the findings would be that insurers or PBMs that can effectively optimize 
medication therapy can reduce the costs created by non-optimized medication 
therapy.51 

The growth in consumer driven health care, and specifically high-deductible health 
plan (HDHP) designs, may also favor an integrated program compared to a carve-out 
arrangement. In 2009, only 12 percent of government employers offered a HDHP, 
while in 2019 the number rose to 47 percent.12 NDPERS offers a high-deductible 

Page 239 of 365



plan as an option for participants, and currently over 1,000 members are enrolled. 
HDHPs have combined medical and pharmacy deductibles and out-of-pocket 
maximums, which requires coordination between the medical administrator and the 
pharmacy benefits manager to accurately track the member’s expenses to 
accumulate the totals towards the plan’s out-of-pocket limits. Carve-out pharmacy 
benefit managers and medical insurers can exchange the file feeds to track 
accumulators; however, there are usually additional expenses for the integration, 
and it may require additional administration from the plan sponsor. 

8.3 Considerations based on Carve-out Prescription Drug Trends 
and Shifting Alignments between PBMs and Health Insurers 

• PBMs have become a larger player in the healthcare landscape over time. 
Market consolidation in the 1990s and 2000s resulted in PBMs with scale and 
specialized drug management capabilities.  
 

• PBMs positioned the value of carving-out the prescription drug program as a 
strategy to control rising drug costs by leveraging purchasing scale and 
implementing prescription drug utilization management. 
 

• Today, three PBMs serve 80 percent of the pharmacy benefit market (CVS 
Health, Express Scripts, and OptumRx). Each is now integrated with a national 
health insurer (CVS Health with Aetna, Express Scripts with Cigna, and 
OptumRx with UnitedHealth Group). Other market participants are also 
pursing integrated medical and prescription drug strategies, like Prime 
Therapeutics with their BCBS owner-clients, and Anthem and its new PBM 
IngenioRx.  
 

• PBMs and health insurers have shifted their value propositions to emphasize 
the cost efficiencies, clinical outcomes, and customer experience of integrated 
models compared to carve-out alternatives. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 240 of 365



9 Summary and Conclusion 

The considerations for transitioning from the fully-insured uniform group insurance 
program to a carve-out prescription drug program will be based on the availability 
and feasibility of different options. The results of the procurement for the NDPERS 
uniform group insurance program will clarify the relative importance of each 
consideration in the context of the alternatives available to NDPERS. A summary of 
the considerations outlined in this study for the State that merit evaluation include, 
but are not limited to:  

• A carve-out prescription drug plan would likely require a change to self-
insurance for prescription drugs. Fully-insured carve-out prescription drug 
benefits are not commonly available in the market.  
 
The competitive procurement will determine the insurance options available for 
the 2021-23 biennium. If the State determines that a self-insured plan is not in 
the best interest of the State and the State's eligible members, then a carve-out 
prescription drug plan may not be available. 

 
• Carving-out the pharmacy benefit allows for greater flexibility to procure 

benefits arrangements determined to be in the best interest of the State. 
Under the current arrangement, the NDPERS Board selects the insurer that 
presents the best overall value for medical and pharmacy, even though the best 
value for medical and pharmacy may not necessarily be the same provider. 
Carving-out the prescription drug benefit gives the Board the flexibility to select 
the best value for each benefit. 
 

• Contracting for a carve-out pharmacy benefit under a self-insured plan 
allows for more choice in administrators. The insurance market in North 
Dakota is concentrated and most commercially insured business in the state is 
administered by Blue Cross Blue Shield of North Dakota (BCBSND) or Sanford 
Health Plan. There are many pharmacy benefit managers that administer self-
insured benefit programs that do not offer fully-insured options or medical 
benefits.  
 

• Carving-out the prescription drug benefit allows for more control of 
aspects of the prescription drug plan. As described by consulting firm 
Pharmacy Benefits Consultants (PBC) in their testimony to the Health Care 
Reform Review Committee, carving-out the prescription drug benefit will give 

Page 241 of 365



the Board more control over the prescription drug contract, formulary, and 
clinical management programs. 
 

• Self-insured, carve-out, prescription drug programs allow for greater 
visibility into costs. Most fully-insured arrangements do not provide detailed 
cost data and financial information because the insurer assumes all the risk. 
Self-insured arrangements offer a higher degree of control and visibility into the 
underlying cost components of the contract. North Dakota Century Code 
statutes mandate access to prescription drug financial information regardless of 
the insurance arrangement. Due to the Century Code requirements, some 
insurers may not offer fully-insured insurance options, or compliant fully-
insured options, for the uniform group insurance program.  
 

• A self-insured, carve-out prescription drug plan would eliminate the 
downside risk protection of the modified fully-insured contract. The 
modified fully-insured arrangement with gain-sharing offers the advantage of 
fixed monthly premiums and no risk of loss should claims exceed premiums. A 
self-insured plan would require that the State assume all claims risk (or 
purchase stop loss insurance to insure against large claim losses).  
 

• A self-insured, carve-out prescription drug plan would result in more 
claims volatility than the modified fully-insured contract. Prescription drug 
costs continue to rise, driven by the prevalence of chronic conditions and 
specialty drugs that treat high-cost, complex conditions. Additionally, market 
events such as COVID-19 could have a dramatic impact on claims costs. NDPERS’ 
size will help minimize the volatility associated with large claims or 
unpredictable risk, however, claims under a self-insured contract will fluctuate 
more than a fixed premium agreement.  

 
• Reserve funding may need to be increased. In a self-insured, carve-out 

prescription drug arrangement, the State will need to build a reserve fund for 
fluctuations in claims, costs, and expenses. Under current statute, the balance 
amount would need to be between two and four months of expected claims. 
 
Depending on the funding required, and the availability of funds, higher 
premiums may be necessary to build the reserve. 
 

• Stop loss insurance may introduce new costs to the plan. Under a self-
insured plan, stop loss insurance could be purchased to mitigate some of the 

Page 242 of 365



risk of large claims. Given NDPERS’ size and tolerance for risk, stop loss 
insurance may not be necessary. If the State implements a self-insured, carve-
out, prescription drug plan while maintaining a fully-insured medical plan, stop 
loss coverage options may be limited or unavailable. 
 

• Direct or indirect carve-out costs. It is common for insurers and 
administrators to charge “carve-out” fees as a disincentive to carving-out the 
prescription drug benefit. Fees can include, but are not limited to, increased 
medical premiums, higher medical administrative service fees, file feed charges, 
and implementation fees.  
 

• A carve-out may add administrative complexity for NDPERS. Carving-out the 
prescription drug benefit to a separate vendor may create the need to add 
resources, including additional NDPERS personnel, to manage the third-party. A 
carve-out prescription drug plan typically requires a separate contract, separate 
account and customer service teams, separate invoicing and financial 
requirements, separate reporting systems, and separate programs and services.  
 
Carving-out also likely requires additional administrative tasks such as sharing 
additional claims and eligibility files, coordinating plan documents, monitoring, 
and reconciling separate financial reporting. NDPERS also supports a variety of 
wellness and disease management programs that are reliant on data and 
collaboration with the medical and prescription drug insurer that would need to 
be replicated in a carve-out arrangement. These additional administrative needs 
would likely result in NDPERS requiring additional staff. 
 

• Accumulator integration for high-deductible plans would require 
additional coordination. Plan designs that feature combined medical and 
prescription drug deductibles and out-of-pocket maximums (most frequently 
high-deductible health plans) require careful tracking to accurately account for 
member out-of-pocket payments. In a carve-out prescription drug program, file 
feeds with claims information need to be exchanged regularly between the 
medical and prescription drug plan in order to track these accumulators. Most 
medical and prescription drug administrators have the ability to integrate these 
accumulator files but updates to member accumulators may be slower than if 
the medical and prescription drug benefits are combined under a single insurer. 
 

• A carve-out may impact clinical integration. A carve-out contract could result 
in less clinical integration between the medical and prescription drug 

Page 243 of 365



administrators. Insurers combine medical and pharmacy data to monitor for 
issues such as gaps in care; adherence; and fraud, waste, and abuse; track 
health outcomes; and identify potential risks. Less integration may create 
challenges in combining data efficiently and coordinating between medical and 
prescription drug to achieve clinical outcomes. Plan sponsors can mitigate some 
of the risk of reduced clinical integration by proactively engaging the medical 
and prescription drug administrators to support clinical integration through 
contractual, reporting, and service level agreements. 

 
• Delivering an integrated benefits experience to members may be more 

difficult in a carve-out arrangement. Carving-out the prescription benefit has 
an impact on the plan member experience. Members may have different ID 
cards, different mobile applications and websites for each vendor, may need to 
contact different service teams, and may receive different communications. 
Members will need information on how their benefits work when they are 
administered by different companies, as well as support for different 
administrative policies under each vendor agreement. It is also important to 
align benefit policies including coverage designs, rules, requirements, and 
payment procedures across medical and prescription drug programs. This is 
particularly important for patients that receive treatment that could be paid 
under the medical or the prescription drug benefit, like cancer. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 244 of 365



Appendix: Citations 

1. North Dakota Legislative Council, “Health Care Reform Review Committee”, 2018. 
2. North Dakota Legislative Council, “Uniform Group Insurance Prescription Drug Benefits – Employee 

Benefits Programs Committee – Background Memorandum”, October 2019.  
3. Linda Cahn, “Testimony before the Health Care Reform Review Committee Appendix B”, Pharmacy 

Benefits Consultants, October 2019. 
4. United States Census Bureau, “State Population Totals: 2010-2019”, United States Census Bureau, 

2020. 
5. Shania Sarabhai, “Health Plan Analysis, North Dakota,” Decision Resources Group, 2020. 
6. Deloitte Consulting analysis of NDPERS 2019 claims data. 2020. 
7. N.D. CENT. CODE § 43-15-35. 
8. Justin Dahlheimer and Stacy Mitchell, “The Benefits of North Dakota’s Pharmacy Ownership Law”. 

Institute for Local Self-Reliance (2009); Rick Olson, “If We Can’t Eliminate North Dakota’s Pharmacy 
Ownership Law, How About Modifying It?” January 2019. 

9. Ballotpedia, “North Dakota Pharmacy Ownership Initiative, Measure 7 (2014)” Ballotpedia, 2020. 
10. Stefanie Haarsager, "North Dakota's Pharmacy Ownership Law: An Analysis of the Strictest Pharmacy 

Ownership Law in the United States" North Dakota Law Review: Vol. 86: No. 2, Article 3. 2010 
11. N.D. CENT. CODE § 54-52.1-04.16. 
12. Mercer, “Mercer National Survey of Employer-Sponsored Health Plans 2011, Survey Tables”, Mercer US 

Inc. 2012; Mercer, “Mercer National Survey of Employer-Sponsored Health Plans 2019, Survey Tables”, 
Mercer US Inc. 2020. 

13. Deloitte Consulting analysis of NDPERS claims data 2011 to 2019. 2020. 
14. Sibson Consulting, “2020 Segal Health Plan Cost Trend Survey”. Sibson Consulting, 2020. 
15. American Medical Association, “Why innovation is needed to better manage chronic disease”, 

American Medical Association, 2019. 
16. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. “Chronic Diseases in America”, Centers for Disease 

Control and Prevention, January 2020. 
17. Tracy K. Miller, Kodi Pinks, Tara Haugen, and Matt Schmidt. North Dakota Health Profile, 2018, p.6. 
18. Jack Dalrymple, Terry Dwelle, Krista Fremming. The Burden of Chronic Disease in North Dakota. A 

Status Report for 2016. 2016, p. 5. 
19. Christine Buttorff, Teague Ruder, and Melissa Bauman. Multiple Chronic Conditions in the United 

States. Rand Corporation. 2017. p.20. 
20. Austin Raper, Ph.D. “The Rise of Specialty Medications: Hope for Patients, Hurdle for Health Care”, 

Covermymeds LLC, March 2019 
21. Prem Shah. “Today's Specialty Landscape”, CVS Health, May 2019 
22. Sanford Health Plan. NDPERS Executive Summary, Quarter 4, 2019 Presented May 2020. 2020. p.13 
23. Christopher Rowland. “Why price of Humira keeps rising despite FDA approval of generic competition”, 

The Washington Post, January 2020. 
24. OptumRx. OptumRx Drug Pipeline Insights Report. Q1 2020. 2020. p.5. 
25. Kyle Blankenship, “The 10 most-anticipated drug launches of 2020”, FiercePharma, February 2020 
26. IQVIA Institute for Human Data Science, “Global Oncology Trends 2019. Therapeutics, Clinical 

Development and Health System Implications” May 2019. P3. 
27. America’s Biopharmaceutical Companies. “Medicines in Development, 2020 Update”, America’s 

Biopharmaceutical Companies, February 2020. 

Page 245 of 365

http://www.legis.nd.gov/files/committees/65-2017/hcrrc.pdf
http://www.legis.nd.gov/files/resource/committee-memorandum/21.9133.10000.pdf
http://www.legis.nd.gov/files/resource/committee-memorandum/21.9133.10000.pdf
https://www.census.gov/data/datasets/time-series/demo/popest/2010s-state-total.html
https://www.sayanythingblog.com/entry/rick-olson-if-we-cant-eliminate-north-dakotas-pharmacy-ownership-law-how-about-modifying-it/
https://www.sayanythingblog.com/entry/rick-olson-if-we-cant-eliminate-north-dakotas-pharmacy-ownership-law-how-about-modifying-it/
https://ballotpedia.org/North_Dakota_Pharmacy_Ownership_Initiative,_Measure_7_(2014)
https://www.ama-assn.org/practice-management/digital/why-innovation-needed-better-manage-chronic-disease
http://www.cdc.gov/chronicdisease/resources/infographic/chronic-diseases.htm
http://www.fiercepharma.com/special-report/1-enhertu


28. U.S. Food & Drug Administration, “FDA approves first drug for spinal muscular atrophy”, U.S. Food & 
Drug Administration, December 2016. 

29. Julie Appleby, “Drug Puts a $750,000 ‘Price Tag on Life”, Kaiser Health News, August 2017.  
30. U.S. Food & Drug Administration, “FDA approves innovative gene therapy to treat pediatric patients 

with spinal muscular atrophy, a rare disease and leading genetic cause of infant mortality”, U.S. Food 
& Drug Administration, May 2019. 

31. Rob Stein, “At $2.1 Million, New Gene Therapy Is The Most Expensive Drug Ever”, NPR, May 2019. 
32. U.S. Food & Drug Administration, “FDA approval brings first gene therapy to the United States”, U.S. 

Food & Drug Administration, August 2017 
33. Ned Pagliarulo, “Medicare boosts CAR-T cancer therapies with expanded coverage”, BioPharma Dive. 

August 2019. 
34. Optum, “5 trends impacting specialty pharmacy. An overview of the drivers of change in specialty 

pharmacy”, Optum, 2020. 
35. Dan Brouillet. “The Right Tools to Manage Medically Billed Drugs”, Express Scripts, March 2020. 
36. Pharmacy Benefit Management Institute, “2019 Trends In Specialty Drug Benefits”, Pharmacy 

Benefit Management Institute, 2020.p.22 
37. Pharmacy Benefit Management Institute, “2018 Trends in Drug Benefit Design”, Pharmacy Benefit 

Management Institute, 2020.p.29 
38. UnitedhealthGroup, “Administering Specialty Drugs Outside Hospitals Can Improve Care and Reduce 

Costs by $4 Billion Each Year”, UnitedHealthGroup, September 2019 
39. IRS, “Affordable Care Act Provision 9010 - Health Insurance Providers Fee”, IRS, 2020. 
40. Grabowski H, Mullins CD. Pharmacy benefit management, cost-effectiveness analysis and drug 

formulary decisions. Soc Sci Med. 1997;45(4):535‐544. doi:10.1016/s0277-9536(96)00394-2 
41. James Skoufis. Final Investigative Report: Pharmacy Benefit Managers in New York. Committee on 

Investigations and Government Operations. May 2019. 
42. CVS Health Corporation. 2019 Annual Report.  
43. Express Scripts, “Express Scripts and Prime Therapeutics Collaborate to Deliver More Affordable Care 

to More than 100 Million Americans”, press release, December 2019. 
44. Cigna Corporation. 2018 Annual Report. 
45. UnitedHealthGroup. 2019 Annual Report. 
46. Lawrence W Abrams, “Three Phases of the Pharmacy Benefit Manager Business Model”, September 

2017; UnitedHealthGroup, “Catamaran and OptumRx to Combine”, press release, March 2015. 
47. Cigna Corporation, “Combining Medical, Pharmacy and Behavioral Benefits Delivers Annual Savings of 

More Than $850 Per Customer with an Identified Health Improvement Opportunity”, Cigna 
Corporation, January 2020. 

48. Optum, “OptumRx study shows an average savings of $16 PMPM medical savings. New study certifies 
the value of OptumRx synchronized pharmacy care services”, Optum, 2019. 

49. Aetna, “Integration is the answer. Evidence shows integrating pharmacy with medical leads to durable 
cost containment and improved engagement”, Aetna, 2018. 

50. Julia J. Smith, Yang Qiu, Steve V. Lam, Chondra M. Lockwood, Cheryl Pegus, and Patrick P. 
Gleason. Medical Costs and Health Care Utilization Among Self-Insured Members with Carve-In Versus 
Carve-Out Pharmacy Benefits. Journal of Managed Care & Specialty Pharmacy 2020 26:6, 766-774 

51. Watanabe, J. H., McInnis, T., & Hirsch, J. D. (2018). Cost of Prescription Drug–Related Morbidity and 
Mortality. Annals of Pharmacotherapy, 52(9), 829–837. 

Page 246 of 365

http://www.fda.gov/news-events/press-announcements/fda-approves-first-drug-spinal-muscular-atrophy
https://khn.org/news/drug-puts-a-750000-price-tag-on-life/
http://www.fda.gov/news-events/press-announcements/fda-approves-innovative-gene-therapy-treat-pediatric-patients-spinal-muscular-atrophy-rare-diseaseMay%202019.
http://www.fda.gov/news-events/press-announcements/fda-approves-innovative-gene-therapy-treat-pediatric-patients-spinal-muscular-atrophy-rare-diseaseMay%202019.
http://www.npr.org/sections/health-shots/2019/05/24/725404168/at-2-125-million-new-gene-therapy-is-the-most-expensive-drug-ever
http://www.fda.gov/news-events/press-announcements/fda-approval-brings-first-gene-therapy-united-states
http://www.biopharmadive.com/news/medicare-car-t-coverage-cancer-therapies-nationwide/560472/#:%7E:text=Kymriah
http://www.optum.com/resources/library/5-trends-specialty-pharmacy.html
http://www.optum.com/resources/library/5-trends-specialty-pharmacy.html
http://www.express-scripts.com/corporate/right-tools-medical-drug-management
http://www.pbmi.com/SpecialtyReports
http://www.pbmi.com/SpecialtyReports%202020.p.22
http://www.pbmi.com/SpecialtyReports
http://www.unitedhealthgroup.com/newsroom/posts/2019-09-09-reducing-specialty-drug-costs.html
http://www.unitedhealthgroup.com/newsroom/posts/2019-09-09-reducing-specialty-drug-costs.html
http://www.irs.gov/businesses/corporations/affordable-care-act-provision-9010.
https://www.express-scripts.com/corporate/articles/express-scripts-and-prime-therapeutics-collaborate-deliver-more-affordable-care-more-100
https://www.express-scripts.com/corporate/articles/express-scripts-and-prime-therapeutics-collaborate-deliver-more-affordable-care-more-100
https://nu-retail.com/three-phases-pbm-business-model/
https://www.unitedhealthgroup.com/newsroom/2015/0330optumrxcatamaran.html.
https://www.cigna.com/newsroom/news-releases/2020/combining-medical-pharmacy-and-behavioral-benefits-delivers-annual-savings-of-more-than-850-per-customer-with-an-identified-opportunity
https://www.cigna.com/newsroom/news-releases/2020/combining-medical-pharmacy-and-behavioral-benefits-delivers-annual-savings-of-more-than-850-per-customer-with-an-identified-opportunity


 
 
 
 

            Fax: (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website  https://ndpers.nd.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   Bryan 
 
DATE:   September 8, 2020 
 
SUBJECT:  Health Insurance RFP Update 
 
 
Deloitte will call into the meeting to give the Board an update in executive session regarding 
the technical and cost proposals received. We will discuss our progress in reviewing the 
proposals and issues we are attempting to resolve.  Board direction on next steps, including 
possible further interviews and vendor presentations, will need to be discussed.    

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377  

Page 247 of 365



   Fax: (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website  https://ndpers.nd.gov 

TO: NDPERS Board  

FROM: Rebecca  

DATE: September 8, 2020 

SUBJECT:  FlexComp Vendors – Voluntary Products 

We have conducted our annual review of the vendors for the voluntary insurance products 
approved for pretax premiums under our Section 125 FlexComp Plan.  We sent all current 
vendors a request to confirm the products they offer, provide a brief product description, and 
verify whether it is eligible to be a pretax product.  Following is a list of the respondents: 

AFLAC 
Central United 
Colonial Life 
Total Dental Administrators (TDA) 
USABLE 

All of the vendors have responded and confirmed the ongoing eligibility of their products for 
pretax treatment under our FlexComp plan. The attached outlines the vendor products 
available for payroll deduction, a brief description of the product, and certification by the 
vendor regarding which products are or are not eligible to be pre-taxed.  No new products 
are being proposed by any of the participating companies.   

Staff recommends that the vendors and their eligible products be approved for inclusion as 
pretax benefits under the FlexComp program for the 2021 plan year.   

Board Action Requested 

Approve the inclusion of the products eligible to be pre-taxed for the FlexComp 2021 plan 
year. 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System 
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott Miller 
Executive Director 
(701) 328-3900
1-800-803-7377

Page 248 of 365



Attachment

Page 249 of 365

AFLAC Company Representative - Lynn Brokaw 

400 E Broadway Ste 307 
' Bismarck ND 58501 

701-258-6040 
E'-Mail: lynn_brokaw@us.aflac.com Pretax 

Product Name Eligibility 
Product Description 

Cancer Cancer indemnity policies providing benefits for Yes 
diagnosis of skin cancer, internal cancer as well as 
annual screening benefits. 

Hospital Confinement Indemnity benefits whether hospitalized days or Yes 
weeks. 

Hospital Intensive Care Provides coverage in the event of a sickness or injury Yes 
and is admitted to the ICU unit. 

Accident Accident indemnity policies providing benefits for Yes 
accident/injury. 

Lump Sum Critical Illness Pays a lump sum benefit for code red major critical Yes 
illness event. (Heart attack, stroke, coma, paralysis, major 
organ transplant, end stage renal failure. Riders available 
for cancer, sudden cardiac death.) 

Personal Sickness Indemnity Indemnity policy for sickness related hospital No 
confinement, major diagnostic exams, in & out-patient 
surgeries. 

Specified Health Event Critical care, recovery indemnity policies for major Yes 
critical illness. 

Disability All disability policies that are specific replacement of No 
income benefits. 

Dental Voluntary dental. No networks, no deductibles, no No 
pre-certifications. 

Vision Now Vision indemnity policy providing vision insurance, No 
vision correction benefits. 

Life All life policies. No 

Date 



 

Page 250 of 365

Central United 

Product Name 

Cancer Insurance 

Company Representative - James M Kasper 

C/0 Asset Management Group Inc. 
PO Box 9016 

Fargo ND 58103--9016 
701-232-6250 

E-Mail: jmkasper@amg-nd.com 

Product Description 
Provides cash benefits to covered person 
treatment of cancer. 

Date 

Pretax 
Eligibility 



 

Page 251 of 365



 

_______________________________________________________        __2020.08.10_______________ 

Signature        Date 

 

 

Total Dental Administrators 
 
 
 
 
 

Product Name 

Company Representative – Logan Stucki 
 

2800 N 44th Street Ste 500 
Phoenix AZ  85008 

801-268-9740 Ext 306 
 

E-Mail:  lstucki@TDAdental.com  
 

Product Description  

 
 
 
 
 

Pretax 
Eligibility 

 
Elite Choice 

 
Fully insured dental program. 

 
Yes 

   

   

Page 252 of 365



Page 253 of 365



 
 
 
 

            Fax: (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website  https://ndpers.nd.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   Rebecca 
 
DATE:   September 8, 2020 
 
SUBJECT:  Life Insurance Plan Renewal/Rebid 
 
 
Effective July 1, 2017, Voya was awarded the bid for the group vision insurance plan.  The 
Board approved renewing the contract with Voya for July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2021, 
which is the 2nd 2-year period for renewal.  Voya has now provided the same premium 
guarantee for the final 2-year period, July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023 (Attachment 1).   
 
After receiving Voya’s premium guarantee for the final 2-year period, staff asked Voya to 
consider reducing premiums that were not divisible by 2 by 1 penny to make them divisible 
by 2.  This is important for processing bi-monthly payrolls, which includes all payrolls from 
University System employers.  Voya did not agree to reduce all the necessary premiums by 
1 penny, but rather is proposing that some be reduced by 1 penny and some be increased 
by 1 penny.  Attachment 2 is the proposal from Voya Financial to accommodate these bi-
monthly payrolls. This change amounts in a monthly increase in premiums collected of 
$10,084, which out of a $3.38M monthly premium would be a 0.3% premium increase. 
 
As you may recall as part of their original bid in 2017, Voya made several plan 
enhancements, which included: 
 

• Reduced premiums in employee supplemental and spouse supplemental coverages 
• Increased the basic level of coverage from $3,500 to $7,000 for the same cost 
• Increased the maximum amounts for employee supplemental and spouse 

supplemental coverages 
• Offered additional tiers ($7,000 and $10,000) of dependent coverage 
• Increased the maximum accelerated death benefit and added a new long term care 

facility provision to this benefit 
• Extended the disability waiver of premium to dependents and spouses 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377  

Page 254 of 365



• Added additional benefits such as the Occupational Hazard and Line of Duty AD&D 
benefits 

• Added a portability of basic and supplemental life insurance feature for terminating 
employees 

• Increased the one-step supplemental life upgrades with guarantee issue from $5,000 
to $25,000 up to the maximum guarantee issue amount of $200,000 at each annual 
enrollment. 

 
As reported to the Board following the implementation of these enhancements, NDPERS 
did see and has continued to see increased activity from the membership to increase their 
coverage levels for employee, dependent and spouse supplemental coverage. 
 
Voya has provided the Life Client Experience Report – Paid Claims by Incurred Date for 
2019 (Attachment 3) for your information. 
 
Staff recommends that we amend the current contract to renew with Voya for the July 1, 
2021 through June 30, 2023 contract period. However, staff is looking for direction on 
whether the Board wishes to renew at the same premium guarantee or to renew with the 
slight increase but accommodation of the bi-monthly payrolls. 
 
If the Board opts to not renew with Voya, staff will begin preparations of the Life Insurance 
Plan Request for Proposal and will bring it to the Board for approval at a future meeting. 
 
 
Board Action Requested 
 
Approve staff’s recommendation to amend the current contract to renew with Voya for the 
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023 contract period.  Provide direction on whether the 
renewal is at the same premium guarantee or with the slight 0.3% increase to accommodate 
the bi-monthly payrolls of employers on the life insurance plan. 
 
 

Page 255 of 365



From: Bahnemann, R. (Ruth)
To: Fricke, Rebecca D.
Cc: Holt, T. (Theodore); Bessette, A (Adam); Neilson, B. (Brittany)
Subject: NDPERS, 673897 - Life Insurance Rate Guarantee Extension to 7/1/23
Date: Friday, August 14, 2020 11:33:31 AM
Attachments: image005.jpg

image006.jpg
673897_NDPERS_070121 - Renewal Letter.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from an outside source. Do not click links or open attachments unless you know they are safe.

Hi Rebecca:

We’re pleased to let you know that we can extend the rate guarantee on the life insurance policy for NDPERS to 7/1/23.

Below is an excerpt from the RFP we received from the quote process for the 7/1/17 renewal:

cid:image010.jpg@01D67092.05D83580

We wanted to comply with the request for advance notice of the rate extension.

Attached is the renewal exhibit for your reference. 

Please let us know if you have any questions.

Have a good weekend~
Ruth Bahnemann | National Account Executive
Voya Financial Employee Benefits
612-325-2880| ruth.bahnemann@voya.com

NYSE: VOYA

Upcoming PTO:  8/17/20

--------------------------------------------------------- NOTICE: The information contained in this electronic mail message is
confidential and intended only for certain recipients. If you are not an intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any
disclosure, reproduction, distribution or other use of this communication and any attachments is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this communication in error, please notify the sender by reply transmission and delete the message without copying or
disclosing it.
============================================================================================

Attachment 1

Page 256 of 365

mailto:Ruth.Bahnemann@voya.com
mailto:rfricke@nd.gov
mailto:Ted.Holt@voya.com
mailto:Adam.Bessette@voya.com
mailto:Brittany.Neilson@voya.com
mailto:ruth.bahnemann@voya.com





ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies


Effective Date
July 1, 2021


Group Annual Term Life Insurance Renewal Offer
Voya Employee Benefits


Prepared For:
North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System (NDPERS)


Policy Number
673897







New Premium Rate Effective Date:


Current Renewal
 COVERAGE Premium Premium


Rates Rates


Life Basic Employee, per unit $0.245 $0.245
Life Basic Retiree, per unit $4.300 $4.300
AD&D Basic Employee, per unit $0.035 $0.035
AD&D Basic Retiree, per unit $0.020 $0.020


Life Supplemental Employee, per $1,000
<20 $0.020 $0.020
20-24 $0.020 $0.020
25-29 $0.020 $0.020
30-34 $0.030 $0.030
35-39 $0.050 $0.050
40-44 $0.070 $0.070
45-49 $0.090 $0.090
50-54 $0.150 $0.150
55-59 $0.320 $0.320
60-64 $0.500 $0.500
65-69 $0.970 $0.970
70+ $1.610 $1.610


Life Supplemental Spouse, per $1,000
<20 $0.030 $0.030
20-24 $0.030 $0.030
25-29 $0.030 $0.030
30-34 $0.040 $0.040
35-39 $0.060 $0.060
40-44 $0.090 $0.090
45-49 $0.110 $0.110
50-54 $0.170 $0.170
55-59 $0.330 $0.330
60-64 $0.510 $0.510
65-69 $0.980 $0.980
70+ $1.610 $1.610


Life Supplemental Child, Option 1, Per $2,000 $0.200 $0.200
Life Supplemental Child, Option 2, Per $5,000 $0.500 $0.500
Life Supplemental Child, Option 3, Per $7,000 $0.700 $0.700
Life Supplemental Child, Option 4, Per $10,000 $1.000 $1.000


AD&D Supplemental Employee, per $1,000 $0.010 $0.010


ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies


Life Insurance Renewal Offer
North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System


Group Benefit Plan:  673897
Class Name:  All Employees


07/01/2021







All Premium Rates are Guaranteed from: to


Authorized Signature


Print Name


Notes:


*


*


*


*


* Group Term Life Insurance is underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company (Minneapolis, MN), a member of the
Voya ® family of companies.  Policy form LP00GP (may vary by state).


ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies


Life Insurance Renewal Offer
North Dakota Public Employees Retirement


Group Benefit Plan:  673897


07/01/2021 07/01/2023


Voya Travel Assistance services are provided by Europ Assistance USA, Bethesda, MD.


If Portability is elected, individuals who choose to port their coverage may have different rate schedules than those listed above.


In order for us to process this renewal in a timely manner, please sign below and return the completed form via fax, email, or mail to your Account 
Manager.


This form only acknowleges acceptance of the renewal rates.  Amendments may need to be signed by the Policyholder for any changes to the current 
Policy and will be sent after acceptance of the renewal.


If Renewal offer is accepted, this document will serve as your premium rate notification for the rate guarantee period outlined above.


This document was produced on 08/14/2020, and is valid for 90 days from that date.


The cost for Basic Life Insurance may include Voya Travel Assistance and Funeral Planning and Concierge Services.


Funeral Planning and Concierge Services are provided by Everest Funeral Package, LLC, Houston, TX.





		Cover Sheet

		Class 1

		Signature





ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies

Effective Date
July 1, 2021

Group Annual Term Life Insurance Renewal Offer
Voya Employee Benefits

Prepared For:
North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System (NDPERS)

Policy Number
673897

Page 257 of 365



New Premium Rate Effective Date:

Current Renewal
 COVERAGE Premium Premium

Rates Rates

Life Basic Employee, per unit $0.245 $0.245
Life Basic Retiree, per unit $4.300 $4.300
AD&D Basic Employee, per unit $0.035 $0.035
AD&D Basic Retiree, per unit $0.020 $0.020

Life Supplemental Employee, per $1,000
<20 $0.020 $0.020
20-24 $0.020 $0.020
25-29 $0.020 $0.020
30-34 $0.030 $0.030
35-39 $0.050 $0.050
40-44 $0.070 $0.070
45-49 $0.090 $0.090
50-54 $0.150 $0.150
55-59 $0.320 $0.320
60-64 $0.500 $0.500
65-69 $0.970 $0.970
70+ $1.610 $1.610

Life Supplemental Spouse, per $1,000
<20 $0.030 $0.030
20-24 $0.030 $0.030
25-29 $0.030 $0.030
30-34 $0.040 $0.040
35-39 $0.060 $0.060
40-44 $0.090 $0.090
45-49 $0.110 $0.110
50-54 $0.170 $0.170
55-59 $0.330 $0.330
60-64 $0.510 $0.510
65-69 $0.980 $0.980
70+ $1.610 $1.610

Life Supplemental Child, Option 1, Per $2,000 $0.200 $0.200
Life Supplemental Child, Option 2, Per $5,000 $0.500 $0.500
Life Supplemental Child, Option 3, Per $7,000 $0.700 $0.700
Life Supplemental Child, Option 4, Per $10,000 $1.000 $1.000

AD&D Supplemental Employee, per $1,000 $0.010 $0.010

ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies

Life Insurance Renewal Offer
North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System

Group Benefit Plan:  673897
Class Name:  All Employees

07/01/2021

Page 258 of 365



All Premium Rates are Guaranteed from: to

Authorized Signature

Print Name

Notes:

*

*

*

*

* Group Term Life Insurance is underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company (Minneapolis, MN), a member of the
Voya ® family of companies.  Policy form LP00GP (may vary by state).

ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies

Life Insurance Renewal Offer
North Dakota Public Employees Retirement

Group Benefit Plan:  673897

07/01/2021 07/01/2023

Voya Travel Assistance services are provided by Europ Assistance USA, Bethesda, MD.

If Portability is elected, individuals who choose to port their coverage may have different rate schedules than those listed above.

In order for us to process this renewal in a timely manner, please sign below and return the completed form via fax, email, or mail to your Account 
Manager.

This form only acknowleges acceptance of the renewal rates.  Amendments may need to be signed by the Policyholder for any changes to the current 
Policy and will be sent after acceptance of the renewal.

If Renewal offer is accepted, this document will serve as your premium rate notification for the rate guarantee period outlined above.

This document was produced on 08/14/2020, and is valid for 90 days from that date.

The cost for Basic Life Insurance may include Voya Travel Assistance and Funeral Planning and Concierge Services.

Funeral Planning and Concierge Services are provided by Everest Funeral Package, LLC, Houston, TX.

Page 259 of 365



Group Name
Effective Date

Supplemental Life - 
Employee Current Rates

Current Divisible 
by 2

Adjuested 
Rates

Divisible by 
2

<20 0.020 0.010 0.020 0.010

20-24 0.020 0.010 0.020 0.010

25-29 0.020 0.010 0.020 0.010

30-34 0.030 0.015 0.040 0.020

35-39 0.050 0.025 0.040 0.020

40-44 0.070 0.035 0.080 0.040

45-49 0.090 0.045 0.080 0.040

50-54 0.150 0.075 0.160 0.080

55-59 0.320 0.160 0.320 0.160

60-64 0.500 0.250 0.500 0.250

65-69 0.970 0.485 0.960 0.480

70-74 1.610 0.805 1.600 0.800

Premium $2,760,078 $2,772,454
Variance $0 $12,375

Supplemental Life - 
Spouse Current Rates

Current Divisible 
by 2

Adjuested 
Rates

Divisible by 
2

<20 0.030 0.015 0.020 0.010

20-24 0.030 0.015 0.020 0.010

25-29 0.030 0.015 0.040 0.020

30-34 0.040 0.020 0.040 0.020

35-39 0.060 0.030 0.060 0.030

40-44 0.090 0.045 0.080 0.040

45-49 0.110 0.055 0.120 0.060

50-54 0.170 0.085 0.160 0.080

55-59 0.330 0.165 0.340 0.170

60-64 0.510 0.255 0.500 0.250

65-69 0.980 0.490 0.980 0.490

70-74 1.610 0.805 1.600 0.800

Premium $622,772.2 $620,480.8
Variance $0.0 -$2,291.4

Notes:
The client would like an option to adjust the step rates so when divided by 2 there are 
only 2 digits after the decimal.

The SAD&D rate is currently $0.01/$1,000 and is not addressed above.

North Dakota Public Employees Retirement

07/01/2021

Attachment 2

Page 260 of 365



North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System

Life Client Experience Report - Paid Claims by Incurred Date

Group: 673897

Run Date: 08/14/2020

The information in this report is provided solely for business purposes you have with Voya ® Employee Benefits.
It may contain information on individuals. By accepting this report, you are agreeing not to disclose any private information on an

individual to another party without a separate, written authorization from the individual.

PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

Attachment 3

Page 261 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System

Page: 1 of 2

Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           
Basic Life

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

01/2019 to 12/2019 $222,897.15 $396,822.47 $700.00 $44,600.00 22,004 134,777,592

Totals $222,897.15 $396,822.47 $700.00 $44,600.00 22,004 134,777,592
Supplemental Life

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

01/2019 to 12/2019 $2,623,505.36 $1,696,150.64 $0.00 $541,900.00 11,825 1,370,954,308

Totals $2,623,505.36 $1,696,150.64 $0.00 $541,900.00 11,825 1,370,954,308
Basic AD&D

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

01/2019 to 12/2019 $9,099.03 $16,621.69 $0.00 $0.00 22,017 134,758,192

Totals $9,099.03 $16,621.69 $0.00 22,017 134,758,192
Supplemental AD&D

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

01/2019 to 12/2019 $164,988.83 $193,158.30 $0.00 $0.00 11,758 1,365,093,417

Totals $164,988.83 $193,158.30 $0.00 11,758 1,365,093,417

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 262 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System

Page: 2 of 2

Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           
Dependent Life

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

01/2019 to 12/2019 $675,105.14 $1,264,862.93 $0.00 $0.00 12,742 342,643,250

Totals $675,105.14 $1,264,862.93 $0.00 12,742 342,643,250
No data found on  Group: 673897

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 263 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System

Page: 1 of 6

Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           
Account:  1
Basic AD&D

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

01/2019 to 12/2019 $8,654.19 $15,320.55 $0.00 $0.00 21,995 134,691,275

Totals $8,654.19 $15,320.55 $0.00 21,995 134,691,275
Basic Life

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

01/2019 to 12/2019 $221,327.35 $382,814.82 $700.00 $44,600.00 21,986 134,692,425

Totals $221,327.35 $382,814.82 $700.00 $44,600.00 21,986 134,692,425
Dependent Life

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

01/2019 to 12/2019 $669,632.20 $1,264,862.93 $0.00 $0.00 12,731 342,290,833

Totals $669,632.20 $1,264,862.93 $0.00 12,731 342,290,833
Supplemental AD&D

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

01/2019 to 12/2019 $163,738.71 $193,158.30 $0.00 $0.00 11,747 1,363,971,725

Totals $163,738.71 $193,158.30 $0.00 11,747 1,363,971,725

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM                                           

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 264 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System

Page: 2 of 6

Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           
Account:  1
Supplemental Life

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

01/2019 to 12/2019 $2,601,207.46 $1,585,078.68 $0.00 $541,900.00 11,810 1,369,506,700

Totals $2,601,207.46 $1,585,078.68 $0.00 $541,900.00 11,810 1,369,506,700

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM                                           

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 265 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System

Page: 3 of 6

Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           
Account:  3
Basic AD&D

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

10/2019 to 10/2019 $0.00 $1,301.14 $0.00

Totals $0.00 $1,301.14
Basic Life

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

11/2019 to 11/2019 $0.00 $7,002.77 $0.00

Totals $0.00 $7,002.77
Supplemental Life

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

11/2019 to 11/2019 $0.00 $18,007.13 $0.00

Totals $0.00 $18,007.13

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 266 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System

Page: 4 of 6

Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           
Account:  390
Basic AD&D

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

05/2019 to 12/2019 $1.92 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000

Totals $1.92 $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000
Basic Life

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

05/2019 to 12/2019 $87.36 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000

Totals $87.36 $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000
Supplemental AD&D

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

05/2019 to 12/2019 $3.60 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000

Totals $3.60 $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000
Supplemental Life

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

05/2019 to 12/2019 $162.24 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000

Totals $162.24 $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000

North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 267 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System

Page: 5 of 6

Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           
Account:  391
Basic AD&D

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

01/2019 to 12/2019 $442.92 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 26 74,700

Totals $442.92 $0.00 $0.00 26 74,700
Basic Life

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

01/2019 to 12/2019 $1,482.44 $7,004.88 $0.00 $0.00 21 96,600

Totals $1,482.44 $7,004.88 $0.00 21 96,600
Dependent Life

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

01/2019 to 12/2019 $5,472.94 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 13 422,900

Totals $5,472.94 $0.00 $0.00 13 422,900
Supplemental AD&D

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

01/2019 to 12/2019 $1,246.52 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 13 1,335,630

Totals $1,246.52 $0.00 $0.00 13 1,335,630

North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 268 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System

Page: 6 of 6

Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           
Account:  391
Supplemental Life

Experience Period Premium Paid
Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

01/2019 to 12/2019 $22,135.66 $93,064.83 $0.00 $0.00 17 1,726,730

Totals $22,135.66 $93,064.83 $0.00 17 1,726,730

North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

No data found on  Group: 673897

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 269 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 1 of 5

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 January $18,687.14  $25,722.70 $0.00 $23,600.00 22,046 135,968,300
2019 February $18,421.09  $22,614.19 $0.00 $23,600.00 22,011 135,850,500
2019 March $18,422.46  $48,857.53 $0.00 $23,600.00 22,048 136,060,900
2019 April $18,089.09  $32,725.44 $0.00 $23,600.00 22,127 136,406,600
2019 May $18,768.24  $16,124.89 $0.00 $29,300.00 22,105 135,943,300
2019 June $18,466.88  $27,069.73 $0.00 $36,300.00 22,004 135,711,200
2019 July $18,589.94  $27,029.67 $0.00 $36,300.00 21,940 135,382,600
2019 August $18,627.68  $38,749.55 $0.00 $37,600.00 21,900 134,721,100
2019 September $18,651.84  $23,119.82 $0.00 $44,600.00 21,922 134,832,100
2019 October $18,939.01  $45,210.79 $23,800.00 $44,600.00 22,029 135,464,000
2019 November $18,654.00  $59,451.73 $0.00 $44,600.00 22,021 125,563,700
2019 December $18,579.78  $30,146.43 $0.00 $44,600.00 21,893 135,426,800

Total: $222,897.15 $396,822.47 $23,800.00 $44,600.00 22,004 134,777,592

Basic Life Total : $222,897.15 $396,822.47 $700.00 $44,600.00 22,004 134,777,592

Basic Life

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 270 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 2 of 5

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 January $230,729.66  $18,008.86 $0.00 $345,200.00 11,989 1,378,711,850
2019 February $223,844.01  $138,083.00 $0.00 $345,200.00 11,928 1,374,518,700
2019 March $222,876.25  $397,321.87 $0.00 $345,200.00 11,921 1,374,804,300
2019 April $224,157.61  $71,054.10 $0.00 $345,200.00 11,875 1,376,991,350
2019 May $220,619.39  $193,142.46 $0.00 $338,200.00 11,936 1,374,772,800
2019 June $219,047.44  $193,367.14 $0.00 $393,200.00 11,855 1,369,758,400
2019 July $221,546.50  $193,171.50 $0.00 $393,200.00 11,805 1,365,296,350
2019 August $214,215.78  $98,057.60 $0.00 $541,900.00 11,720 1,361,589,700
2019 September $211,170.48  $43,030.56 $0.00 $541,900.00 11,693 1,364,598,600
2019 October $215,863.77  $229,859.96 $0.00 $541,900.00 11,753 1,370,601,950
2019 November $210,083.70  $18,007.13 $0.00 $541,900.00 11,719 1,370,085,900
2019 December $209,350.77  $103,046.46 $0.00 $541,900.00 11,710 1,369,721,800

Total: $2,623,505.36 $1,696,150.64 $0.00 $541,900.00 11,825 1,370,954,308

Supplemental Life Total : $2,623,505.36 $1,696,150.64 $0.00 $541,900.00 11,825 1,370,954,308

Supplemental Life

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 271 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 3 of 5

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 January $802.86  $0.00 $0.00 22,045 135,902,300
2019 February $743.16  $0.00 $0.00 22,018 135,845,500
2019 March $723.56  $7,005.74 $0.00 22,048 136,060,900
2019 April $822.93  $0.00 $0.00 22,137 136,346,800
2019 May $735.51  $1,301.22 $0.00 22,111 135,938,300
2019 June $722.06  $0.00 $0.00 22,004 135,711,200
2019 July $813.14  $0.00 $0.00 21,950 135,336,600
2019 August $730.26  $0.00 $0.00 21,904 134,714,100
2019 September $726.86  $0.00 $0.00 21,924 134,832,100
2019 October $818.67  $1,301.14 $0.00 22,041 135,427,000
2019 November $734.57  $0.00 $0.00 22,022 125,556,700
2019 December $725.45  $7,013.59 $0.00 22,000 135,426,800

Total: $9,099.03 $16,621.69 $0.00 22,017 134,758,192

Basic AD&D Total : $9,099.03 $16,621.69 $0.00 22,017 134,758,192

Basic AD&D

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 272 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 4 of 5

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 January $13,949.10  $0.00 $0.00 11,977 1,377,592,100
2019 February $13,806.08  $0.00 $0.00 11,927 1,374,325,700
2019 March $13,748.04  $193,158.30 $0.00 11,921 1,374,804,300
2019 April $13,684.74  $0.00 $0.00 11,532 1,344,122,700
2019 May $13,442.71  $0.00 $0.00 11,506 1,340,292,000
2019 June $13,697.90  $0.00 $0.00 11,855 1,369,758,400
2019 July $13,873.93  $0.00 $0.00 11,796 1,364,607,600
2019 August $13,649.13  $0.00 $0.00 11,719 1,361,348,700
2019 September $13,682.96  $0.00 $0.00 11,693 1,364,598,600
2019 October $13,953.20  $0.00 $0.00 11,743 1,370,056,200
2019 November $13,749.26  $0.00 $0.00 11,718 1,369,892,900
2019 December $13,751.78  $0.00 $0.00 11,710 1,369,721,800

Total: $164,988.83 $193,158.30 $0.00 11,758 1,365,093,417

Supplemental AD&D Total : $164,988.83 $193,158.30 $0.00 11,758 1,365,093,417

Supplemental AD&D

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 273 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 5 of 5

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 January $58,521.05  $142,118.70 $0.00 12,750 347,197,000
2019 February $57,754.50  $35,022.07 $0.00 12,659 347,739,000
2019 March $56,917.75  $270,189.00 $0.00 12,640 346,050,000
2019 April $60,571.19  $110,059.39 $0.00 15,657 367,114,000
2019 May $56,760.30 # $120,086.55 $0.00 11,893 303,404,000
2019 June $56,096.75  $105,070.33 $0.00 12,568 345,021,000
2019 July $56,484.17  $155,129.55 $0.00 12,500 344,903,000
2019 August $54,787.45  $112,099.94 $0.00 12,404 343,014,000
2019 September $54,395.72  $5,004.03 $0.00 12,434 342,274,000
2019 October $55,131.73  $0.00 $0.00 12,454 342,025,000
2019 November $53,982.10  $105,041.61 $0.00 12,483 341,866,000
2019 December $53,702.43  $105,041.76 $0.00 12,457 341,112,000

Total: $675,105.14 $1,264,862.93 $0.00 12,742 342,643,250

Dependent Life Total : $675,105.14 $1,264,862.93 $0.00 12,742 342,643,250

Dependent Life

No data found on  Group: 673897

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 274 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 1 of 17

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 January $18,346.78  $25,722.70 $0.00 $23,600.00 22,000 135,779,300
2019 February $18,345.41  $22,614.19 $0.00 $23,600.00 22,002 135,795,500
2019 March $18,422.46  $41,852.65 $0.00 $23,600.00 22,048 136,060,900
2019 April $17,767.43  $32,725.44 $0.00 $23,600.00 22,083 136,209,600
2019 May $18,716.36  $16,124.89 $0.00 $29,300.00 22,096 135,894,300
2019 June $18,455.96  $27,069.73 $0.00 $36,300.00 22,003 135,704,200
2019 July $18,238.64  $27,029.67 $0.00 $36,300.00 21,894 135,177,600
2019 August $18,582.60  $38,749.55 $0.00 $37,600.00 21,891 134,672,100
2019 September $18,630.00  $23,119.82 $0.00 $44,600.00 21,919 134,811,100
2019 October $18,646.66  $45,210.79 $23,800.00 $44,600.00 21,987 135,270,000
2019 November $18,608.92  $52,448.96 $0.00 $44,600.00 22,015 125,528,700
2019 December $18,566.13  $30,146.43 $0.00 $44,600.00 21,890 135,405,800

Total: $221,327.35 $382,814.82 $23,800.00 $44,600.00 21,986 134,692,425

Basic Life Total : $221,327.35 $382,814.82 $700.00 $44,600.00 21,986 134,692,425

Basic Life

Account:  1 NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM                                           

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 275 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 2 of 17

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 January $225,988.86  $18,008.86 $0.00 $345,200.00 11,955 1,375,536,400
2019 February $223,112.91  $138,083.00 $0.00 $345,200.00 11,921 1,373,658,700
2019 March $222,876.25  $304,257.04 $0.00 $345,200.00 11,921 1,374,804,300
2019 April $219,393.44  $71,054.10 $0.00 $345,200.00 11,840 1,373,624,900
2019 May $219,982.89  $193,142.46 $0.00 $338,200.00 11,927 1,373,678,800
2019 June $219,027.16  $193,367.14 $0.00 $393,200.00 11,854 1,369,745,400
2019 July $216,451.98  $193,171.50 $0.00 $393,200.00 11,768 1,361,953,900
2019 August $213,860.16  $98,057.60 $0.00 $541,900.00 11,712 1,360,680,700
2019 September $210,849.12  $43,030.56 $0.00 $541,900.00 11,690 1,364,199,600
2019 October $210,681.39  $229,859.96 $0.00 $541,900.00 11,716 1,367,394,000
2019 November $209,728.08  $0.00 $0.00 $541,900.00 11,714 1,369,480,900
2019 December $209,255.22  $103,046.46 $0.00 $541,900.00 11,707 1,369,322,800

Total: $2,601,207.46 $1,585,078.68 $0.00 $541,900.00 11,810 1,369,506,700

Supplemental Life Total : $2,601,207.46 $1,585,078.68 $0.00 $541,900.00 11,810 1,369,506,700

Supplemental Life

Account:  1 NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM                                           

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 276 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 3 of 17

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 January $722.07  $0.00 $0.00 22,000 135,779,300
2019 February $722.11  $0.00 $0.00 22,002 135,795,500
2019 March $723.56  $7,005.74 $0.00 22,048 136,060,900
2019 April $724.64  $0.00 $0.00 22,084 136,195,800
2019 May $722.68  $1,301.22 $0.00 22,096 135,894,300
2019 June $721.82  $0.00 $0.00 22,003 135,704,200
2019 July $718.71  $0.00 $0.00 21,894 135,177,600
2019 August $717.33  $0.00 $0.00 21,891 134,672,100
2019 September $718.16  $0.00 $0.00 21,919 134,811,100
2019 October $720.49  $0.00 $0.00 21,987 135,270,000
2019 November $721.64  $0.00 $0.00 22,015 125,528,700
2019 December $720.98  $7,013.59 $0.00 21,995 135,405,800

Total: $8,654.19 $15,320.55 $0.00 21,995 134,691,275

Basic AD&D Total : $8,654.19 $15,320.55 $0.00 21,995 134,691,275

Basic AD&D

Account:  1 NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM                                           

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 277 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 4 of 17

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 January $13,755.37  $0.00 $0.00 11,955 1,375,536,400
2019 February $13,736.59  $0.00 $0.00 11,921 1,373,658,700
2019 March $13,748.04  $193,158.30 $0.00 11,921 1,374,804,300
2019 April $13,414.45  $0.00 $0.00 11,506 1,341,445,000
2019 May $13,394.39  $0.00 $0.00 11,498 1,339,439,000
2019 June $13,697.45  $0.00 $0.00 11,854 1,369,745,400
2019 July $13,619.53  $0.00 $0.00 11,768 1,361,953,900
2019 August $13,606.80  $0.00 $0.00 11,712 1,360,680,700
2019 September $13,641.99  $0.00 $0.00 11,690 1,364,199,600
2019 October $13,686.10  $0.00 $0.00 11,716 1,367,394,000
2019 November $13,706.93  $0.00 $0.00 11,714 1,369,480,900
2019 December $13,731.07  $0.00 $0.00 11,707 1,369,322,800

Total: $163,738.71 $193,158.30 $0.00 11,747 1,363,971,725

Supplemental AD&D Total : $163,738.71 $193,158.30 $0.00 11,747 1,363,971,725

Supplemental AD&D

Account:  1 NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM                                           

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 278 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 5 of 17

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 January $57,652.00  $142,118.70 $0.00 12,730 346,554,000
2019 February $57,379.20  $35,022.07 $0.00 12,653 347,547,000
2019 March $56,917.75  $270,189.00 $0.00 12,640 346,050,000
2019 April $59,486.30  $110,059.39 $0.00 15,631 366,339,000
2019 May $56,304.50  $120,086.55 $0.00 11,885 303,170,000
2019 June $56,096.75  $105,070.33 $0.00 12,568 345,021,000
2019 July $55,355.55  $155,129.55 $0.00 12,471 344,070,000
2019 August $54,716.65  $112,099.94 $0.00 12,396 342,780,000
2019 September $54,164.45  $5,004.03 $0.00 12,431 342,070,000
2019 October $53,983.15  $0.00 $0.00 12,429 341,272,000
2019 November $53,911.30  $105,041.61 $0.00 12,478 341,709,000
2019 December $53,664.60  $105,041.76 $0.00 12,454 340,908,000

Total: $669,632.20 $1,264,862.93 $0.00 12,731 342,290,833

Dependent Life Total : $669,632.20 $1,264,862.93 $0.00 12,731 342,290,833

Dependent Life

Account:  1 NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM                                           

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 279 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 6 of 17

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 November $0.00 # $7,002.77 $0.00

Total: $7,002.77 $0.00

Basic Life Total : $7,002.77

Basic Life

Account:  3

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 280 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 7 of 17

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 November $0.00 # $18,007.13 $0.00

Total: $18,007.13 $0.00

Supplemental Life Total : $18,007.13

Supplemental Life

Account:  3

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 281 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 8 of 17

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 October $0.00 # $1,301.14 $0.00

Total: $1,301.14 $0.00

Basic AD&D Total : $1,301.14

Basic AD&D

Account:  3

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 282 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 9 of 17

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 May $10.92  $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000
2019 June $10.92  $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000
2019 July $10.92  $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000
2019 August $10.92  $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000
2019 September $10.92  $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000
2019 October $10.92  $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000
2019 November $10.92  $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000
2019 December $10.92  $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000

Total: $87.36 $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000

Basic Life Total : $87.36 $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000

Basic Life

Account:  390 North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 283 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 10 of 17

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 May $20.28  $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000
2019 June $20.28  $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000
2019 July $20.28  $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000
2019 August $20.28  $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000
2019 September $20.28  $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000
2019 October $20.28  $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000
2019 November $20.28  $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000
2019 December $20.28  $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000

Total: $162.24 $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000

Supplemental Life Total : $162.24 $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000

Supplemental Life

Account:  390 North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 284 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 11 of 17

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 May $0.24  $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000
2019 June $0.24  $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000
2019 July $0.24  $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000
2019 August $0.24  $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000
2019 September $0.24  $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000
2019 October $0.24  $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000
2019 November $0.24  $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000
2019 December $0.24  $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000

Total: $1.92 $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000

Basic AD&D Total : $1.92 $0.00 $0.00 1 7,000

Basic AD&D

Account:  390 North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 285 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 12 of 17

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 May $0.45  $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000
2019 June $0.45  $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000
2019 July $0.45  $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000
2019 August $0.45  $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000
2019 September $0.45  $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000
2019 October $0.45  $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000
2019 November $0.45  $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000
2019 December $0.45  $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000

Total: $3.60 $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000

Supplemental AD&D Total : $3.60 $0.00 $0.00 1 13,000

Supplemental AD&D

Account:  390 North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 286 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 13 of 17

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 January $340.36  $0.00 $0.00 46 189,000
2019 February $75.68  $0.00 $0.00 9 55,000

2019 March $0.00 # $7,004.88 $0.00
2019 April $321.66  $0.00 $0.00 44 197,000
2019 May $40.96  $0.00 $0.00 8 42,000
2019 July $340.38  $0.00 $0.00 45 198,000
2019 August $34.16  $0.00 $0.00 8 42,000
2019 September $10.92  $0.00 $0.00 2 14,000
2019 October $281.43  $0.00 $0.00 41 187,000
2019 November $34.16  $0.00 $0.00 5 28,000
2019 December $2.73  $0.00 $0.00 2 14,000

Total: $1,482.44 $7,004.88 $0.00 21 96,600

Basic Life Total : $1,482.44 $7,004.88 $0.00 19 87,818

Basic Life

Account:  391 North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 287 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 14 of 17

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 January $4,740.80  $0.00 $0.00 34 3,175,450
2019 February $731.10  $0.00 $0.00 7 860,000

2019 March $0.00 # $93,064.83 $0.00
2019 April $4,764.17  $0.00 $0.00 35 3,366,450
2019 May $616.22  $0.00 $0.00 8 1,081,000
2019 July $5,074.24  $0.00 $0.00 36 3,329,450
2019 August $335.34  $0.00 $0.00 7 896,000
2019 September $301.08  $0.00 $0.00 2 386,000
2019 October $5,162.10  $0.00 $0.00 36 3,194,950
2019 November $335.34  $0.00 $0.00 4 592,000
2019 December $75.27  $0.00 $0.00 2 386,000

Total: $22,135.66 $93,064.83 $0.00 17 1,726,730

Supplemental Life Total : $22,135.66 $93,064.83 $0.00 16 1,569,755

Supplemental Life

Account:  391 North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 288 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 15 of 17

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 January $80.79  $0.00 $0.00 45 123,000
2019 February $21.05  $0.00 $0.00 16 50,000
2019 April $98.29  $0.00 $0.00 53 151,000
2019 May $12.59  $0.00 $0.00 14 37,000
2019 July $94.19  $0.00 $0.00 55 152,000
2019 August $12.69  $0.00 $0.00 12 35,000
2019 September $8.46  $0.00 $0.00 4 14,000
2019 October $97.94  $0.00 $0.00 53 150,000
2019 November $12.69  $0.00 $0.00 6 21,000
2019 December $4.23  $0.00 $0.00 4 14,000

Total: $442.92 $0.00 $0.00 26 74,700

Basic AD&D Total : $442.92 $0.00 $0.00 26 74,700

Basic AD&D

Account:  391 North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 289 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 16 of 17

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 January $193.73  $0.00 $0.00 22 2,055,700
2019 February $69.49  $0.00 $0.00 6 667,000
2019 April $270.29  $0.00 $0.00 26 2,677,700
2019 May $47.87  $0.00 $0.00 7 840,000
2019 July $253.95  $0.00 $0.00 27 2,640,700
2019 August $41.88  $0.00 $0.00 6 655,000
2019 September $40.52  $0.00 $0.00 2 386,000
2019 October $266.65  $0.00 $0.00 26 2,649,200
2019 November $41.88  $0.00 $0.00 3 399,000
2019 December $20.26  $0.00 $0.00 2 386,000

Total: $1,246.52 $0.00 $0.00 13 1,335,630

Supplemental AD&D Total : $1,246.52 $0.00 $0.00 13 1,335,630

Supplemental AD&D

Account:  391 North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 290 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 17 of 17

Group:  673897  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

Mo
Year Month Premium Paid

Paid Claims by
Incurred Date

Conversion & Port
Charges

Waiver Face
Amount

Number of
Lives Volume

cket

2019 January $869.05  $0.00 $0.00 20 643,000
2019 February $375.30  $0.00 $0.00 6 192,000
2019 April $1,084.89  $0.00 $0.00 26 775,000
2019 May $455.80 # $0.00 $0.00 8 234,000
2019 July $1,128.62  $0.00 $0.00 29 833,000
2019 August $70.80  $0.00 $0.00 8 234,000
2019 September $231.27  $0.00 $0.00 3 204,000
2019 October $1,148.58  $0.00 $0.00 25 753,000
2019 November $70.80  $0.00 $0.00 5 157,000
2019 December $37.83  $0.00 $0.00 3 204,000

Total: $5,472.94 $0.00 $0.00 13 422,900

Dependent Life Total : $5,472.94 $0.00 $0.00 13 422,900

Dependent Life

Account:  391 North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System                                           

No data found on  Group: 673897

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

# Premium includes partially due and partially paid premium 
* Premium is all due 
The 'Totals' for Waiver Face Amount represents the total Waiver Face Amount in the most recent Experience Period. Number of Lives and Volume represent averages.

Page 291 of 365



Waiver as of:  12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PMLife Client Experience Report

Page: 1 of 1

No Waiver Claims to Display

Account
Activity

Date Claimant Name
Claimant

DOB Claim ID
Incurred

Date Status Coverage Type
Waiver Face

Amount
1 12/31/19 BAUER, NANCY 10/18/1971 BC-2018-296107 12/05/2017 Approved Basic Life 7,000.00
1 12/31/19 DOCKTER, VERONICA 03/03/1958 BC-2018-196971 02/08/2012 Approved Basic Life 3,500.00
1 12/31/19 GJERDEVIG, MICHELLE 05/25/1967 BC-2019-541714 05/24/2019 Pended Basic Life 1,300.00
1 12/31/19 GJERDEVIG, MICHELLE 05/25/1967 BC-2019-541717 05/01/2019 Pended Supplemental Life 148,700.00
1 12/31/19 HOLZ, MAGDALENE 09/09/1957 BC-2018-197655 06/15/2015 Approved Basic Life 3,500.00
1 12/31/19 KVASAGER, PATRECE 05/07/1970 BC-2019-488710 12/29/2018 Approved Basic Life 7,000.00
1 12/31/19 KVASAGER, PATRECE 05/07/1970 BC-2019-488713 12/29/2018 Approved Supplemental Life 55,000.00
1 12/31/19 LEAPALDT, JOEL 03/12/1964 BC-2019-546713 03/12/2019 Approved Basic Life 7,000.00
1 12/31/19 MCCLINTOCK, JOHN 02/11/1961 BC-2018-192667 04/15/2017 Approved Basic Life 1,300.00
1 12/31/19 MCCLINTOCK, JOHN 02/11/1961 BC-2018-201797 04/15/2017 Approved Supplemental Life 198,700.00
1 12/31/19 MOSER, STEVEN 04/16/1963 BC-2018-192906 01/09/2013 Approved Basic Life 3,500.00
1 12/31/19 MOSER, STEVEN 04/16/1963 BC-2018-200057 01/09/2013 Approved Supplemental Life 46,500.00
1 12/31/19 SCHULZ, INGO 06/16/1957 BC-2018-190469 12/30/2016 Approved Basic Life 3,500.00
1 12/31/19 SCHUMACHER, PAUL 03/16/1979 BC-2018-246183 04/14/2018 Approved Basic Life 7,000.00
1 12/31/19 SCHUMACHER, PAUL 03/16/1979 BC-2018-246186 04/14/2018 Approved Supplemental Life 93,000.00

Total: 586,500.00

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

Page 292 of 365



Reporting Period from:  01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Group: 673897    North Dakota Public Employees Retirement SystemLife Client Experience Report Run Date: 08/14/2020 01:27:24 PM

Page: 1 of 1

Report Field Definition
Account                       Account number assigned to the employer by Voya Employee Benefits.
Activity Date                 Date of activity for a process.
Claimant DOB                  Date of birth of the claimant.
Claimant Name                 Identifies the name of the individual claimant for which the payment is being made.
Claim ID                      A unique number assigned to the claim by Voya Employee Benefits.   
Conversion Charges            The total amount of conversion charges that have been charged to a specific EA date.
Coverage Type                 Type of coverage the applicant is applying for.
Group                         Policy/Plan number assigned to the employer by Voya Employee Benefits.
Incurred Date                 Actual date of death or disability.
Number of Lives Number of covered participants.
Paid Claims by Incurred Date Benefit amount plus interest based on claim incurred date.
Port Charges                  The total amount of port charges that have been charged to a specific EA date.
Premium Paid Premium payment or fee payment made to Voya Employee Benefits for a group or account.
Status                        The current status of the file.
Volume Amount of coverage assigned to specific individuals.
Waiver Face Amount Amount stated as payable to the insured.

Insured plans are underwritten by ReliaStar Life Insurance Company, a member of the Voya ® family of companies.  For self-funded disability plans, we provide only administrative services.

Page 293 of 365



   Fax: (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website  https://ndpers.nd.gov 

TO:   NDPERS Board  

FROM:   Rebecca 

DATE:  September 8, 2020 

SUBJECT:  SHP Updates - COVID-19 and Virtual ID Cards 

Sanford Health Plan (SHP) will be at the meeting to provide an update related 
to COVID-19 and the impact on the NDPERS health insurance plan.  Please 
see the Attachment 1 for additional details.  In addition, SHP will provide an 
update on the Virtual ID cards (Attachment 2). 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System 
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director 
(701) 328-3900
1-800-803-7377

Page 294 of 365



Memo
To: Rebecca Fricke 
From: Steve Webster  
Date: August 24, 2020 
Re: Telehealth Visits & COVID-19 Service - Update 

NDPERS – All Telehealth Claims 
All Lines of Business         1.1.20-8-24.20  paid to date 

Attachment 1

Page 295 of 365



Page 296 of 365

Jun-20 $521.47 86.7% $4,832.60 $57,409.26 $33,573.69 

May-20 $421.38 91.7% $52, 303.00 $23,707.85 $31,402.67 

Apr-20 $359.20 94.5% $0.00 $6,007.41 $1,033.91 

Mar-20 $457.53 96.6% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Feb-20 $514.30 97.2% 



Memo 
To: Rebecca Fricke 

From: Steve Webster  

Date: August 24, 2020 

Re: Virtual ID Card Implementation 

This memo to inform the NDPERS Board the Virtual ID Card was implemented in August 2020.  Members 
can download the (Sanford) MyChart App, click on the ‘Mobile ID Card’, and the front and back of the 
physical ID card will appear within the App. The MyChart app will continue to host insurance related 
information including Explanation of Benefits.    

Attachment 2

Page 297 of 365



 
 
 
 

            Fax: (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website  https://ndpers.nd.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board 
 
FROM:   Shawna Piatz 
 
DATE:   September 8, 2020 
 
SUBJECT:  Audit Committee May 2020 Minutes 
 
Attached are the approved minutes for the May 13, 2020 meeting.  Those who 
attended the meeting are available at the Board meeting to answer any 
questions you may have. 
 
The minutes may also be viewed on the NDPERS website at 
www.nd.gov.ndpers. 
 
The next Audit Committee meeting is scheduled for November 9, 2020 at 3:00 
p.m. in the NDPERS Conference Room. 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott Miller 
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377  

Page 298 of 365



M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: Audit Committee 
Mona Rindy 
Adam Miller 
Julie Dahle 
Dirk Wilke  
Senator John Grabinger 

FROM:  Shawna Piatz 

DATE: May 13, 2020 

SUBJECT: May 13, 2020 Audit Committee Meeting 

In Attendance: 

Mona Rindy 
Julie Dahle 
Adam Miller 
Senator John Grabinger 
Dean DePountis 
Shawna Piatz 
Scott Miller 
Derrick Hohbein 
Rebecca Fricke 
Sarah Marsh  

The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m. by Ms. Rindy.  The committee began the meeting 
with approving the prior Audit Committee minutes. 

I. February 12, 2020 Audit Committee Minutes

A. The Audit Committee minutes were examined. Mr. Miller moved that the minutes be
accepted.  The motion was seconded by Ms. Dahle.

II. Internal Audit Reports

A. Quarterly Audit Plan Status Report – A summary of the Internal Audit staff time spent for
the past quarter was included with the Audit Committee materials.  Of the total hours
reported, 63.31% was spent in audit, 2.72% in consulting, and 33.97% in administrative
hours. A large portion of the audit hours continue to be spent on auditing the retirement
program, partially due to  a more thorough compliance review being performed on the
retirement accounts, as well as increased testing related to the new FAS methodology
calculation for new retirees who terminate employment after 12/31/2019.  Internal Audit
also completed the Contract Process Review and assisted with the Sanford Health Plan

Attachment

Page 299 of 365



Claims Audit this quarter.  
 

B. Retirement Benefit Payment Status Report – Information was provided to the Audit 
Committee, which summarizes the accuracy percentages of the retirement benefit and 
refund payments.  The report shows the number of new retirees or refunds each month, 
the total number of new retirees or refunds audited, whether issues identified were 
procedure, system, compliance, or employer issues.  An accuracy rate of 96.15% has 
been achieved fiscal YTD as of April 2020 for new retirement benefit payments, which is 
slightly under the 97% goal.  Single Life and 100% Joint & Survivor benefits continue to 
be the largest new retiree benefit options.  An accuracy rate of 86.89% was achieved 
fiscal YTD as of April 2020 for retirement refunds, which is below the 97% goal.  
However, a limited number of retirement refunds were audited and a portion of the 
sample was focused on those refunds in which a known system issue may have 
occurred.   
 

C. Sanford Health Plan Claims Audit Report – Internal Audit assisted in the Sanford Health 
Plan Claims Audit.  The Research and Planning Manager performs the audit of a sample 
of the claims that have been processed through the medical plan.  A couple findings 
were identified and are being addressed. 
 

D. IT Risk Assessment Report – A consultant completed an internal vulnerability 
assessment and penetration test to evaluate internal and external vulnerabilities and 
threats to the agency.  Due to the sensitive nature of the report, the report was not 
provided to the Audit Committee but a few comments were made in relation to the 
testing. 
 

E. Benefit/Premium Adjustments Report – The quarterly benefit adjustment report was 
provided to the Audit Committee.  The report is in several sections, each representing 
the type of corrections. These adjustments are considered errors, not adjustments made 
in the normal course of business.  The number of errors increased; however, the dollar 
amount did slightly decline from the prior quarter.  The adjustments did not show any 
noticeable trends. 
 

F. Outstanding Issues Status Report – As stated in the Audit Policy #103, the Internal Audit 
Division is to report quarterly to management and to the Audit Committee, the status of 
the audit recommendations of the external auditors, as well as any found by the Internal 
Auditor.  The report has been updated to reflect what has been accomplished February 
1, 2020 through April 30, 2020.  Staff reviewed the recommendations with the 
committee.  There was three new and three outstanding issues that continue to be 
worked through.   
 

III. Administrative 
 

A. Audit Committee Member Appointment – Mona Rindy was nominated and accepted the 
position of the Audit Committee Chair.  Mona introduced herself during the meeting. 
 

B. Audit Committee Meeting Date and Time –Discussions were held to move the Audit 
Committee meetings from the second Wednesday of every third month to the second 
Monday of every third month to coincide with Board meetings and accommodate travel 

Page 300 of 365



schedules.  Ms. Dahle motioned to hold the next Audit Committee meeting Monday, 
August 17 at 3:00pm and then to hold future meetings the second Monday of every third 
month.  Mr. Adam seconded the motion, followed by voice vote. 
 

C. De minimus Policy & Internal Review Policies Discussion – NDPERS has a De minimis 
Policy that was reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of 
Directors in 2016. This policy was established to direct NDPERS staff in how to handle 
the various retirement account errors to wages, service credit, account contributions or 
interest as they occur. Adjustments to reported wages and service credit may affect a 
member’s ongoing monthly retirement benefits. Adjustments to account balance and 
accumulated interest affect a member’s minimum guarantee or the amount available for 
a lump sum refund. Prior to the adoption of this policy, NDPERS attempted to correct 
and process any and all adjustments to member accounts which could become costly 
and time consuming. A motion was made by Mr. Grabinger to increase the De minimis 
policy to $25 for an underpayment and $50 for an overpayment.  The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Miller, followed by voice vote. 
 
The Board approved an Overtime Pay Policy and Written Agreements Policy in 2017. 
These policies were established to direct NDPERS staff in how to handle overtime and 
wage agreement issues as they occur.  Discussions took place around whether these 
policies should be applied on a broader basis to all payroll reporting discrepancies or 
remain specific to overtime and  payments.  The Audit Committee directed staff to revise 
the approved overtime and wage agreement policies to be applied to all payroll reporting 
issues except for known issues that wouldn’t be caught through normal internal review 
policies.  The Audit Committee provided further direction that any reporting corrections 
that would need to be made should apply to active and deferred member accounts only. 
 The Audit Committee requested staff bring the revised policy to the next Audit 
Committee meeting for consideration.  
 
Mr. Miller made a motion to continue to audit account balances for refund payments 
prospectively for active and deferred members and to exclude account balance reviews 
for annuitant payments unless and until there would be a refund of the account balance 
at some point in the future. Ms. Dahle seconded the motion, followed by voice vote. 
 
 
 

D. Risk Areas not Included on Audit Plan – Internal Audit provided a list of risk areas that 
were identified through NDPERS risk analysis but were not included in the upcoming 
audit plan, based on the request during the prior Audit Committee meeting.  A similar list 
with risk ratings will continue to be provided annually with the updated audit plan. 
 

E. Internal Audit Budget Request – A summary of the budget request that was submitted to 
Accounting to consider for the Internal Audit Division as they prepare the 2021-2023 
budget was provided to the Audit Committee, for their information. 
 

F. Annual Performance Evaluation Update – This year the Audit Committee agreed that 
since the Chief Audit Officer reports directly to the Audit Committee, they would provide 
their input in her annual performance evaluation, along with that of the Executive 
Director.  Discussions were held around if the annual performance evaluation outcome 

Page 301 of 365



was reasonable since the Audit Committee did not have a baseline or previous 
evaluation to use for comparison.  It was determined that to be fair and better reflect the 
work completed, the overall rating needed to be adjusted.  Mr. Miller made a motion to 
adjust the Chief Audit Officer’s overall rating to 3.61, which is in line with the average 
score of the top five PERS employees.  The motion was seconded by Ms. Dahle, 
followed by voice vote. 
 

G. External Audit Update – CliftonLarsonAllen (CLA) is scheduled to perform their fieldwork 
remotely May 18th through 22nd, 2020.  Staff has been working on providing support for 
their preliminary fieldwork. 

 
 
IV. Miscellaneous 

 
A. Travel Expenditures – The out-of-state travel expenditures incurred by the Executive 

Director or Board of Directors for the period February 1, 2020 through April 30, 2020 
were provided for the committee’s review. 
 

B. Risk Management Report – During a previous review of the Audit Committee’s charter, it 
was determined that a Risk Management Policy for PERS would not be necessary 
because we have a Loss Control Committee in place to manage risk for the agency.  
Bryan Reinhardt will come to the August meeting each year to update the Audit 
Committee on the Loss Control Committee’s activity over the past year and to answer 
questions. 
 
The minutes from the last Loss Control Committee meeting and the agenda for the next 
meeting were provided to the Audit Committee for their review.  The Loss Control 
Committee reviewed a number of action items as well as several incident reports 
reported for the previous quarter. It was discussed that active shooter training was 
completed and the offices were accessed for safety.  Some changes were considered. 
 

C. Report on Consultant Fees – According to the Audit Committee Charter, the Audit 
Committee should “Periodically review a report of all costs and payments to the external 
financial statement auditor.  The listing should separately disclose the costs of the 
financial statement audit, other attest projects, agreed-upon-procedures and any non-
audit services provided.”  A copy of the report showing the consulting, investment and 
administrative fees paid during the quarter ended March 2020 was provided for the Audit 
Committee's information.   
 

D. CPEs and Webinars – A report on the continuing professional education webinars, 
luncheon meetings and seminars Internal Audit participated in for the period February 1, 
2020 through April 30, 2020, which Internal Audit did not attend any in the prior quarter, 
was provided for review. 
 

E. Publications – A copy of Accounting and Financial Reporting Considerations for Audit 
Committees Regarding COVID-19 from the Deloitte Audit Committee Brief from April 
2020, was provided for the Audit Committee’s information. 
 

F. Confidential Meeting – Discussions took place around removing the confidential meeting 

Page 302 of 365



as an agenda item from each Audit Committee meeting and instead scheduling as an 
executive session only as needed.  All Audit Committee members agreed; therefore, this 
was removed for future Audit Committee meetings. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 12:15 p.m, by Ms. Rindy. 
 

Page 303 of 365



 
 
 
 

            Fax: (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website  https://ndpers.nd.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   Scott          
 
DATE:   September 8, 2020 
 
SUBJECT:  Actuarial Primer 
 
GRS, the Board’s actuarial firm, will present the actuarial valuation for the 
various retirement plans during the October Board meeting. The Board 
previously agreed that having a primer on actuarial theories and language 
before receiving the valuation would be helpful for it to understand the 
upcoming valuations. To aid in doing so, I have provided some information for 
your use. Below are several screenshots out of last year’s PERS valuation. 
Those screenshots contain some of the important information within the 
valuation. We will go through that information to help clarify your understanding 
of the actuarial issues discussed. 
 
I have also attached a document titled, “Actuarially Speaking: A Plain 
Language Summary of Actuarial Methods and Practices for Public Employee 
Pension and Other Post-Employment Benefits” by Grant Boyken with the 
California Research Bureau. The document is from 2008. Some of the 
actuarial principals and terms have changed since then (for instance, we now 
call it “actuarially determined contribution rate” or “ADC” rather than “actuarially 
required contribution rate” or “ARC”). Nonetheless, it should be helpful for your 
deeper understanding of the actuarial issues you face. 
 
  

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott Miller 
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377  

Page 304 of 365



 
 

 
 

Page 305 of 365



Attachment

Page 306 of 365



Actuarially Speaking: 
A Plain Language Summary 

of Actuarial Methods and Practices 
for Public Employee Pension and 
Other Post-Employment Benefits 

 
By Grant Boyken 

Senior Research Specialist 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ISBN  1-58703-234-1

Page 307 of 365



ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

I would like to thank the staff of the California Public Employee Post-Employment 
Benefits Commission (PEBC) for requesting this project and facilitating the collaboration 
between the California Research Bureau and the Commission’s consulting actuaries.  
Although this report would not have been possible without the technical and editorial 
assistance of John E. Bartel, President, Bartel Associates, LLC, and Paul Angelo, Senior 
Vice President and Actuary for The Segal Company, any errors or omissions are solely 
those of the author. 

I would also like to thank Chris Marxen, Assistant Director of the California Research 
Bureau and Dean Misczynski, Director of the California Research Bureau, for their 
thorough and thoughtful review of earlier drafts of this report.  Thanks also to Patricia 
Kinnard, Katie Sarber, and Megan Quirk for their assistance in the publication of this 
report. 

INTERNET ACCESS  
 

This paper is available through the Internet at the California State Library’s home page 
(http://www.library.ca.gov/) under California Research Bureau Reports.

Page 308 of 365



Contents 

I.  INTRODUCTION........................................................................................................... 1 
Why a primer on actuarial methods and policies? ..................................................... 1 
How are defined benefit pension plans funded? ......................................................... 2 
How are retiree health and other post-employment benefits funded? ........................ 2 
What is an actuary? .................................................................................................... 3 
What is an actuarial valuation?.................................................................................. 4 
What is the purpose of an actuarial valuation?.......................................................... 5 

II.  ACTUARIAL METHODS AND FUNDING POLICIES ..................................................... 7 
C + I = B + E: Over time, contributions plus investment returns must equal benefits 
plus expenses............................................................................................................... 7 
The Actuarial Funding Method................................................................................... 8 

III.  ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND OTHER ELEMENTS OF A VALUATION............... 15 
Information about the plan ....................................................................................... 15 
Demographic assumptions........................................................................................ 15 
Economic assumptions.............................................................................................. 17 

IV.  CURRENT ISSUES ................................................................................................... 19 
Actuarial methods never lie, but…............................................................................ 19 
Have you heard the one about the two actuaries?.................................................... 21 

NOTES ........................................................................................................................... 23 

Page 309 of 365



I.  INTRODUCTION 

Why a primer on actuarial methods and policies? 
The cost and sustainability of pension and retiree health benefits 
for public employees have been called into question in recent 
years.  Pension benefit increases that were granted in the midst of 
the bull market in the late 1990s, combined with the downturn of 
the financial markets in the early 2000s, have increased the amount 
that employers need to contribute to pension plans to pay the cost 
of benefits.  In addition, demographic changes, such as the aging of 
the public sector workforce and longer life expectancies, are 
predicted to increase the cost of providing retiree pension and 
health benefits. 

In response to these issues, a proposed ballot initiative in 2005 
sought to prohibit new public employees in California from 
participating in defined benefit pension plans, which supporters of 
the initiative viewed as more costly than defined contribution 
plans.*  Although the initiative never made it to the ballot, the 
concerns out of which it emerged have not subsided. 

In December 2006, Governor Arnold Schwarzenegger established 
the Public Employee Post-Employment Benefits Commission to 
address unfunded post-employment benefits.  In addition to the 
cost of providing public pensions, the Commission’s hearings in 
2007 illustrated a heightened concern about the costs of providing 
retiree health benefits.  This is due to rising medical costs as well 
as new governmental accounting standards that require public 
employers to report the cost of these benefits as they accrue rather 
than at the time that they are paid. 

Because a thorough understanding of these issues requires at least 
a basic understanding of actuarial accounting practices used for 
pension benefits, and increasingly for “other post-employment 
benefits” (OPEB; which includes retiree health, dental, vision and 
other non-pension benefits), this report was developed to serve as a 
reference guide for policy makers, government employers, pension 
and health plan administrators, and members of the general public. 

                                                 
* Public employers in California typically provide primary pension benefits through a defined benefit plan.  
In contrast to defined contribution plans, in which retirement income depends on the amount accumulated 
in an employee’s individual account, defined benefit plans guarantee a specific level of retirement income 
that is calculated based on an employee’s age, years of service, and salary. 

Page 310 of 365



How are defined benefit pension plans funded? 
A key objective for defined benefit pensions is to strive for 
prefunded benefits, which means that contributions are made 
during the working career of the employee with the objective that 
at the time the employee retires, those contributions (and the 
interest earned on them) will be sufficient to pay for the entire cost 
of the employee’s pension benefits. 

Retirement system funds are typically held in some form of trust 
that can only be used to pay member benefits and the costs of 
administering the pension plan.  Defined benefit retirement 
systems receive income from returns on invested assets and 
contributions from employers and employees.  The majority of 
retirement systems’ income generally comes from investment 
returns. 

Unlike private sector defined benefit plans that tend to be “non-
contributory” (i.e., do not require employees to contribute), public 
employees generally contribute to defined benefit plans at a fixed 
rate (typically a percentage of salary) that varies among different 
types of employees and retirement systems.  In some cases, 
collective bargaining agreements may specify that employers pay 
employees’ contributions for a period of time. 

Employer contributions vary from year to year depending on 
investment returns and actuarial calculations that determine the 
size of the pension fund that will be needed to pay current and 
future benefits. 

How are retiree health and other post-employment benefits funded? 
Historically, the majority of public sector employers that have 
provided retiree health and other post employment benefits have 
done so on a pay-as-you-go basis; paying for benefits as the costs 
come due with little or no money set aside to pay benefits in future 
years. 

Recently there has been growing interest in prefunding OPEB due, 
at least in part, to rising medical costs that have made it 
increasingly more costly to provide retiree health benefits on a 
pay-as-you-go basis.  Between 2000 and 2007, for example, annual 
premium increases for California Public Employees’ Retirement 
System (CalPERS) health plans have averaged more than 12 
percent.1  The monthly premium for CalPERS Health Maintenance 
Organization (HMO) plans in 2007 was more than $800 to cover 
an employee and one additional family member. 

Page 311 of 365



In addition to rising medical costs, new accounting standards 
issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
have focused greater attention on government employers’ OPEB 
liability.  The purpose of the standards is to make accounting 
methods more accurately reflect the cost of providing public 
services by recognizing the costs of the benefits at the time that 
they are earned, rather than when they are paid.  As a result of the 
new standards, public agencies are beginning to report large 
unfunded OPEB liabilities on their balance sheets that they were 
not previously required to report. 

The provisions of the new GASB standards do not require 
governments to prefund OPEB plans, but they provide a 
framework – and the impetus – for doing so.  Prefunding would 
mean establishing some form of trust similar to those that currently 
exist for pensions.  Annual costs paid into an OPEB trust would be 
based on actuarially determined amounts that, if paid on an 
ongoing basis, generally would provide sufficient resources to pay 
benefits as they come due. 

Although the State of California has not yet developed a formal 
plan to prefund retiree health benefits for state employees, a 
number of local governments have begun to do so.  Several have 
begun to contribute to the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit 
Trust Fund that CalPERS launched in March 2007.*  Initially, the 
fund was open only to employers that contract with CalPERS to 
provide health benefits under the provisions of the Public 
Employee Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA).  New 
legislation (Hernandez, AB 554, Chapter 318, Statutes of 2007) 
expands the program to allow employers that do not participate in 
the CalPERS health program to use the trust to prefund OPEB.  A 
number of public employers have also established, or are 
examining the possibility of establishing, OPEB trust funds of their 
own. 

What is an actuary? 
An actuary analyzes the financial consequences of risk.  Actuaries 
use mathematics, statistics, and financial theory to study uncertain 
future events, particularly those of concern to insurance and 
pension programs.  Pension actuaries analyze probabilities related 

                                                 
*  Legislation passed in 1988 did establish a fund that allowed public employers to prefund retiree health 
benefits through the Public Employee Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) (AB 1104, Elder, 
Chapter 331, Statutes of 1988).  However, the fund remained dormant until recently when CalPERS 
formally launched the Retiree Benefit Trust Fund. 

Page 312 of 365



to the demographics of the members in a pension plan (e.g., the 
likelihood of retirement, disability, and death) and economic 
factors that may affect the value of benefits or the value of assets 
held in a pension plan’s trust (e.g., investment return rate, inflation 
rate, rate of salary increases).  They determine the value of pension 
benefits and work with employers to devise strategies for funding 
the cost of those benefits. 

What is an actuarial valuation? 
An actuarial valuation can be thought of as a financial check-up for 
a pension or retiree health benefit plan.  It measures current costs 
and contribution requirements to determine how much employers 
and employees should contribute to maintain appropriate benefit 
funding progress.  It also measures plan assets and liabilities to 
determine funding progress.  This includes comparing recent plan 
experience with assumptions made in the previous valuation. 

Actuarial reports vary in format, but most follow a similar 
structure.  The information is often shown in three parts of the 
report.  The summary usually includes text descriptions and 
numerical tables of the important results.  The body of the report 
usually contains more details on the results and how they were 
determined.  Exhibits or appendices are often used for summaries 
of benefits and assumptions, required disclosure information, 
member demographic information, and more detailed contribution 
information.  The valuation report presents both what goes into the 
valuation and the results that come out of it. 

Under current law in California (Government Code Sections 7501 
through 7504) each public retirement system is required to have an 
actuarial valuation performed at least once every three years.  Both 
the California Public Employees’ Retirement System and the 
California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) employ 
full-time actuaries to perform statutorily required valuations.  
CalPERS and CalSTRS also contract with outside actuarial 
consulting firms to perform independent valuations annually. 

In 1992, retirement system boards were given Constitutional 
authority by Proposition 162 to set actuarial methods and 
assumptions as part of the “administration of the system.”  
Retirement systems usually review actuarial methods and 
assumptions on a regular basis (typically every two to three years).  
Assumptions are almost always based on a system’s experience 
and boards typically accept the actuary’s recommended 
assumptions. 

Page 313 of 365



A valuation takes into consideration a range of factors that affect 
the funding progress of the plan including: 

• Plan provisions; 

• Participant data; 

• Financial data; 

• Actuarial assumptions; 
and 

• Funding methods and 
policies. 

 

What is the purpose of an actuarial valuation? 
Contribution requirements 

The primary purpose of a valuation is to determine how much 
employers and employees should contribute to the plan during the 
upcoming year.  Typically, public employees contribute a fixed 
percentage of their salaries to a defined benefit plan.  Annual 
changes in contribution rates generally affect only the employer 
contribution. 

The valuation determines the annual amount of employer 
contributions that will be necessary to pay for the costs of current 
benefits (the normal cost) as well as the annual costs of any 
unfunded liability (benefits that have already accrued, but for 
which the plan does not have sufficient assets to pay).  This 
amount that the employer is required to contribute is referred to as 
the Annual Required Contribution, or ARC. 

Usually there is a lag between the valuation date and the date new 
contribution rates begin.  For example, the June 30, 2007 actuarial 
valuation might set contribution rates for the 2008/09 fiscal year, 
starting July 1, 2008. 

Funding progress 

The second key purpose of a valuation is to determine the plan’s 
funding progress by examining how the plan’s assets compare with 
its liabilities.  The funding progress can be described as a funded 
ratio (assets divided by liabilities) or as the funded status, which is 
the amount of over-funding or under-funding (assets minus 
liabilities). 

If assets are greater than liabilities: 

• The funded ratio is over 100 percent; and 

• The funded status is the amount of over-funding, and is 
called the surplus. 

Page 314 of 365



If assets are less than liabilities: 

• The funded ratio is under 100 percent; and 

• The funded status is the amount of under-funding, and is 
called the unfunded liability or, more formally, the 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL). 

Actuarial Certification 

A third key purpose is to get the actuary’s professional opinion on 
the actuarial methods and assumptions and funding policy.  In 
California, retirement system boards have the responsibility to set 
actuarial methods and assumptions and determine contribution 
policy, while the actuary’s job is to make recommendations to the 
board in these areas.  The retirement system board is not required 
to take the actuary’s recommendation, but the actuary must certify 
that what the board has decided to do falls within a range of 
acceptable actuarial standards of practice. 

Disclosure requirements 

Accounting and other financial reporting rules require disclosure of 
the plan’s annual required contribution, plan assets and liabilities, 
as well as other information.  Disclosure is required for both 
employer and plan financial statements. 

Basis for pricing plan changes 

The actuarial valuation provides the baseline for evaluating the 
impact of any possible benefit changes on plan costs and plan 
liabilities. 

Page 315 of 365



II.  ACTUARIAL METHODS AND FUNDING POLICIES 

C + I = B + E: Over time, contributions plus investment returns must 
equal benefits plus expenses. 

This equation provides the foundation for understanding how 
pension (or prefunded OPEB) plans are funded.  Employer and 
employee contributions flow into a trust fund that is dedicated for 
the purpose of paying benefits.  Those contributions earn 
investment returns.  Benefits and expenses (associated with 
administering the benefits and investing the assets) are paid out of 
the fund.  Any increase in benefits or expenses will ultimately 
require a corresponding increase in contributions or investment 
returns. 

The actuarial assumptions and funding policies adopted by the plan 
determine how and when the costs are paid.  Changes in those 
assumptions or policies can increase or decrease the current 
contribution requirements. However, it is important to remember 
that the ultimate cost of the plan will depend on the plan’s actual 
experience, regardless of what is assumed to happen. 

Actuarial valuations try to achieve equity across generations of 
taxpayers by funding the employees’ benefits while they are 
rendering service so that the cost of the benefits is incurred by the 
taxpayers receiving services from those employees. The goal is 
that at retirement there will be enough money, on a present value 
basis, to pay for the entire benefit.  Another advantage of 
prefunding is that over time the majority of benefit cost is paid by 
investment returns rather than by contributions from the employer 
or employees. 

The actuary’s role is to help the retirement boards balance the 
equation by developing a long-term contribution plan necessary to 
pay expenses and benefits.  As noted above, actuarial assumptions, 
methods and funding policies may affect the timing of when and 
how the long-term benefit cost is paid.  The goal of choosing 
accurate actuarial assumptions and level funding methods and 
policies is to have stable, level contributions over time. 

Despite the apparent simplicity of the equation (C + I = B + E), 
pension actuaries’ task of balancing it can be complex.  Describing 
what he refers to as the “tenuous nature of actuarial science,” 
CalPERS’ Chief Actuary, Ron Seeling, explains that the role of the 
pension actuary is to make long-term assumptions about an 
unknown future: 

Page 316 of 365



You hire some new employee at age twenty-
something, and you've got to worry about when is this 
person going to leave?   What will I owe them?  How 
much service will they have?  What will their salary 
be?...  [You] make assumptions about all of that. And 
you do these studies, and you make your best 
assumption about the future. And the fact that it 
doesn't work out on a year-by-year basis is no great 
surprise.  And the question is, how is the actuary 
going to respond to that and change employers' 
contributions?2 

Indeed, how the actuary and the retirement board respond can have 
a significant impact on funding progress and future contributions.  
Beyond the uncertainty associated with predicting the future, 
additional complexity stems from the fact that retirement systems 
may pursue varying funding objectives.  While some may strive to 
keep contributions as low as possible or as steady as possible, 
others might place a greater emphasis on working toward full 
funding as quickly as possible.  These objectives impact actuaries’ 
recommendations to retirement system boards, as well as the 
assumptions and funding policies adopted by those boards. 

The Actuarial Funding Method 
The actuarial report will include a summary of actuarial methods 
and funding policies that have been adopted by the system.  These 
techniques have been developed by actuaries to: 

• Determine how much of the total value of the members’ 
future benefits should be contributed each year by both the 
employer and the members; and 

• Determine the employer contribution in a way that reduces 
short-term, year-to-year volatility, but still assures that 
future contributions, together with plan assets, will be 
enough to provide those future benefits. 

Actuarial methods and funding policies involve terminology and 
concepts that are unique to pension (and OPEB) plan funding.  
What follows is a brief description of the main elements of 
actuarial methods and policies. 

Total Present Value of Future Benefits 

The total present value of future benefits (PVB) is the total cost of 
benefits accrued throughout an employee’s career.  The PVB can 

Page 317 of 365



be divided into two parts: costs that are allocated to past years and 
the present value of costs of benefits allocated to future years. 

If the system has assets equal to this PVB (and all assumptions 
come true) then no future contributions would be needed to 
provide future benefits for current active and retired members – 
even including future service and salary increases for active 
members.  The actuarial methods and funding policies determine 
how much of the PVB should be contributed in the current year 
(and future years) so that, together with the assets, the entire PVB 
will be funded. 

The Normal Cost 

The normal cost is the portion of the total present value of benefits 
that actuaries allocate to each year of service, both past and future.  
It can be thought of as the annual premium that the employer must 
contribute to fund the benefit.  If the normal cost is paid for each 
year of service and all actuarial assumptions are met, the 
employee’s pension benefit will be fully funded at the time of 
retirement. 

Conceptually, this would be (somewhat) simple to understand if 
the normal cost for a given year represented the (present value of 
the) cost of the benefits accrued during that year.  But alas, 
conceptual simplicity is neither the goal, nor the forte, of the 
pension actuary. 

A key objective that pension actuaries pursue is to keep employer 
contribution rates stable.  If, as suggested above, the normal cost 
for a given year were to be based on the cost of the benefits 
accrued during that year, the normal cost would likely rise from 
year to year due to inflationary and merit-based increases in salary.  
Employees earn higher benefits at higher salaries.  Thus, the cost 
of benefits accrued during a single year at an early point in an 
employee’s career would be less than the cost of benefits accrued 
during a single year at a later point in the employee’s career. 

In order to make the normal cost more stable, the majority 
(approximately 75 percent3) of large public pension systems in the 
U.S. use some type of “entry age” cost method, which spreads the 
costs more evenly across the years.  Under this method, actuaries 
first calculate the present value of the benefit that the employee is 
likely to receive at retirement.  Actuaries then determine the 
normal cost by assigning an equal portion of the present value of 
benefits to each year of service during the employee’s career in a 

Page 318 of 365



constant dollar amount or as a constant percentage of the 
participant’s estimated salary from year to year. 

The Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) 

The actuarial accrued liability is the value today of all past normal 
costs.  Retired employees are no longer accruing additional 
benefits, so their AAL is the entire value of their benefit – i.e., for 
retires all normal costs are in the past.  For active members, the 
AAL can be thought of as the amount of assets the system would 
have today if: 

• The current plan provisions, participant data and actuarial 
assumptions had always been in effect; 

• In each past year, contributions equaled the normal cost for 
that year; and 

• In each past year, all the actuarial assumptions had come 
true. 

Figure 1 illustrates how the actuarial accrued liability and the 
normal cost relate to the present value of future benefits.  Recall 
that the PVB is the total cost of benefits accrued throughout an 
employee’s career.  The normal cost is portion of that total cost 
that must be paid during the current year.  The AAL represents the 
accumulation of past normal costs for each year that the employee 
has worked.   

Figure 1.  Present Value of Future Benefits (PVB) 
(for an active employee) 

 

Current Year Normal Cost 

 

Actuarial Accrued Liability 
(Accumulated Value of Past Normal 

Costs) 

 Present Value of Future Normal Costs

 

Entry Age 

 

Current Age 

 

Retirement Age 

 

Page 319 of 365



Asset Smoothing Method 

Actuaries assign a market-related value to a plan’s assets in order 
to determine contribution requirements.  This value is called the 
actuarial value of assets (AVA) or, more commonly, the smoothed 
value.  To minimize short term, year-to-year contribution rate 
fluctuations, actuarial policies typically require the plan’s 
investment gains and losses to be spread, or smoothed, over a 
period of time. The objectives of the AVA are to: 

• Track the market value of assets over time; and 

• Produce a less volatile pattern of contributions than would 
result from using the market value.  

For example, suppose a plan with a five-year smoothing period 
experiences a 10 percent gain (an increase over the expected 
return) in the market value of its assets in a given year. The plan 
will spread that gain over a period of five years, recognizing only a 
2 percent increase in the current year’s AVA for that particular 
gain. The remaining 8 percent of the gain will be included in the 
AVA over the next four years. 

Amortization Policy 

When actuarial assumptions are not met, the plan may fall behind 
in – or get ahead of – its funding schedule.  Plan assets may 
become insufficient to cover liabilities, requiring employers to 
contribute an additional amount to pay for the shortfall. 

The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is the amount (if any) by 
which the actuarial accrued liability exceeds the actuarial value of 
assets, while the surplus is the amount (if any) by which the AVA 
exceeds the AAL. 

• When a plan has a shortfall of assets compared to liabilities 
(a UAAL), the current contribution includes the normal 
cost plus a charge to fund, or “amortize,” the shortfall. 

• When a plan has an excess of asset over liabilities (a 
surplus), the current contribution includes the normal cost 
minus a credit to amortize the excess. 

A plan’s amortization policy determines how to either fund or take 
credit for any difference between liabilities and assets (the UAAL 
or surplus).   Amortize generally means to pay off an obligation 
through a series of payments.  A plan’s amortization policy 
determines how much of the UAAL will be funded each year, or 
how much of the surplus will be used up.  Amortization policies 

Page 320 of 365



vary in terms of length and also in terms of whether there is one 
amortization period for the entire UAAL or separate amortization 
periods for different parts of the UAAL. 

When a plan has unfunded liability, a shorter amortization period 
is generally considered to be a more conservative approach.  
Contributions will be higher than they would be with a longer 
amortization period, but the shortfall will be retired and 
contributions will revert down to the normal cost more quickly. 

In contrast, when a plan has a surplus, a longer amortization period 
is more conservative. As CalPERS’ Chief Actuary, Ron Seeling, 
notes, when a plan has a surplus, a shorter amortization period is 
no longer conservative: 

Our prior funding methods at CalPERS had what 
anybody would call very conservative mathematical 
and actuarial practices. We amortized investment 
gains and losses over about ten years...We spread 
asset gains and losses over three years...And in a 
situation where you have an unfunded liability, that's 
going to really hurry up and get you back to 100 
percent quickly, which is where we started.   

Now, witness the incredible stock-market boom of the 
late 1990s. And everything that was an unfunded 
liability turned into plus, and now you're giving 
surplus back to the employers through reduced 
contributions over three-year periods, and it resulted 
in 75 percent of all CalPERS employers contributing 
zero. So what was really conservative approaches, 
“let's hurry up and pay off unfunded liabilities," 
completely backfires.4 

The Required Contribution 

Based on the asset smoothing and amortization policies of a plan, 
actuaries determine the current year normal cost and the portion of 
the cost of unfunded liabilities that need to be paid each year.  
These two elements constitute the current year contribution, the 
annual required contribution (ARC), and are represented by the 
two slices that extend out from the chart shown in Figure 2. 

Page 321 of 365



Figure 2. The Two Parts of the Current Year Contribution 

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 
(AVA) 

Unfunded 
Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 
(UAAL) 

Present Value of 
Future Normal 

Costs 
Current Year 
Normal Cost 

Current Year 
Payment to 

Amortize UAAL 

 

In the pie chart presented in Figure 2, the AVA and the UAAL, 
combined, represent the value of the actuarial accrued liability.  
The portion of the AAL that is funded by current assets is the 
actuarial value of assets.  The difference between the AAL and the 
AVA is the unfunded actuarial accrued liability.  The yellow 
portion of the chart represents the costs that will have to be paid 
for future service for current members. 

How to Read a Plan’s Schedule of Funding Progress 

One of the elements of an actuarial valuation is a schedule of 
funding progress.  This can be thought of as an actuarial balance 
sheet that displays the value of the plan’s assets and liabilities over 
time.  It also shows a plan’s funding progress as the ratio of assets 
to accrued liabilities expressed as a percentage (funded ratio).  
When assets exceed liabilities, the ratio is greater than 100 percent.  
When assets are less than accrued liabilities, the ratio is less than 
100 percent. 

The sample schedule of funding progress in Table 1 presents key 
actuarial figures for CalPERS valuations conducted for ten 
separate years.  The valuations for the years 1997 through 2002 
reflect significant investment earnings that resulted in a surplus 
(i.e., a negative value for UAAL) and funded ratios greater than 
100 percent. 

Page 322 of 365



CalPERS data was used for this sample schedule of funding 
progress for no other reason than that it was readily available.  The 
reader should note that the system’s Public Employees’ Retirement 
Fund has experienced double digit investment returns (well above 
assumed rates of return) annually since 2004.  CalPERS officials 
announced in July 2007 that the majority of their plans were 100 
percent funded on a market-value basis.5 

Table 1.  Sample Schedule of Funding Progress 
(Dollars in Millions) 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 

(1) 
Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 

(2) 
AAL1 

(3) 
UAAL2 

(2) – (1) 

(4) 
Funded 
Ratios 
(1) / (2) 

(5) 
Annual 
Covered 
Payroll 

(6) 
UAAL as a 

% of 
Covered 
Payroll 
(3)/(5) 

6/30/1996 $94,230 $96,838 $2,608 97.3% $22,322 11.7% 
6/30/1997 $108,566 $97,925 ($10,641) 110.9% $22,504 (47.3%) 
6/30/1998 $128,830 $106,938 ($21,892) 120.5% $24,672 (88.7%) 
6/30/1999 $148,605 $115,748 ($32,857) 128.4% $27,636 (118.9%) 
6/30/2000 $162,439 $135,970 ($26,469) 119.5% $28,098 (94.2%) 
6/30/2001 $166,860 $149,155 ($17,705) 111.9% $30,802 (57.5%) 
6/30/2002 $156,067 $163,961 $7,894 95.2% $32,873 24.0% 
6/30/2003 $158,596 $180,922 $22,326 87.7% $34,784 64.2% 
6/30/2004 $169,899 $194,609 $24,710 87.3% $35,078 70.4% 
6/30/2005 $183,680 $210,301 $26,621 87.3% $36,045 73.9% 

1.  Actuarial Accrued Liability. 
2.  Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability.  Negative amount indicates an excess of assets over liabilities. 
 

Page 323 of 365



III.  ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND OTHER ELEMENTS OF A VALUATION 

Contribution requirements and funding progress are the end results 
of a valuation.  Those results are dependent on a number of 
elements that go into the valuation.  These include crucial 
information about the plan and its members, actuarial assumptions, 
and actuarial methods and policies. 

Information about the plan 
Plan provisions 

The actuarial report will include a Summary of Benefit Provisions.  
It summarizes key features of the plan such as eligibility rules, 
benefit formulas, the computation of final compensation and 
member contribution rates. 

Member data 

The actuarial report will include various summaries of member 
data.  There are three categories of members: actives, retirees 
(including beneficiaries), and inactive members who have 
terminated with a deferred vested benefit (members who are no 
longer working for employers covered by the plan, no longer 
making contributions, but who have not yet taken a refund of their 
contributions or begun to receive a retirement allowance).  The 
membership data is reviewed by an actuary for reasonableness, but 
the actuary does not audit the data by comparing it to other data 
sources (payroll, etc.).  This means the data will not be perfect, but 
that any data flaws are expected to result in only minor valuation 
result differences. 

Financial data 

The actuarial report will include summaries of plan assets and 
related calculations.  This is usually obtained from the retirement 
system or from an outside auditor.  From the market value 
information the actuary determines the actuarial (or smoothed) 
value that is used in the valuation.  The valuation report will show 
how the actuarial value of assets is determined. 

Demographic assumptions 
Demographic assumptions determine when and for how long 
members will receive the various types of benefits. The main 
demographic assumptions are rates (probabilities) of decrement, 
(i.e., what percentage of members at each age will die, retire, 
become disabled, or withdraw/terminate). 

Page 324 of 365



Mortality assumptions 

Mortality assumptions can vary by type of member and sometimes 
by cause of death.  In particular, there can be different mortality 
assumptions for: 

• Death before and after retirement; 

• Service connected death and non-service connected death; 
and 

• Service retirees, disabled retirees, and beneficiaries. 

Retirement assumptions 

Retirement assumptions are generally based on age, but can also 
depend on years of service.  Often, there will be higher retirement 
rates assumed for members eligible for an unreduced retirement 
benefit, based either on service or on some combination of age and 
service. 

Disability assumptions 

Disability assumptions can vary by type of disability such as: 
whether the disability is job-related; whether the disability is total 
and permanent; and whether the benefit provides coverage for 
employees who can no longer perform the duties of their own 
occupation, or only for those who can no longer work at any 
occupation. 

Withdrawal/termination assumptions 

Actuaries make assumptions about members who withdraw from 
the system by withdrawing their member contributions and those 
who terminate after becoming vested, leave their contributions 
with the system and thereby have a deferred vested benefit.  
Termination rates can depend on age, on length of service, or on a 
combination of both.   

Other demographic assumptions 

Actuaries also make assumptions about other demographic factors 
that impact anticipated benefits including: 

• Percent of active members married or with domestic 
partners (and thus eligible for survivor benefits); 

• Member/spouse age difference for active members; and 

• Percent of deferred vested members who are working in a 
reciprocal system (reciprocity is an agreement between or 

Page 325 of 365



among retirement system that provides portability of 
retirement benefits by allowing an employee to accrue 
benefits in all systems covered by the agreement).   

Economic assumptions 
Economic actuarial assumptions predict how the assets and 
benefits grow over time.  The key economic assumptions are 
investment earnings, salary increases, and inflation.  Because the 
three are related – inflation, for example, affects both investment 
earnings and salary increases – the assumptions should be kept 
consistent with one another. 

Investment earnings assumptions 

Investment earnings affect how much of future benefit payments 
can be funded by investment income rather than by contributions.  
The investment return assumption is composed of several 
components including inflation, the real rate of investment return, 
administrative expenses, and investment expenses. 

What happens if the investment return assumption is lowered?  
Recall that the basic funding equation for employee benefit trusts 
says that contributions plus investment earnings must equal 
benefits and expenses over time.  If lower investment earnings are 
anticipated, current contributions must increase to make up the 
expected difference. 

Put another way, when trustees lower the investment return 
assumption they are saying that the current assets on hand are not 
expected to earn as much as previously thought and, thus, will not 
fund as large a portion of plan liabilities (i.e., the portion of the 
present value of benefits attributed to the past). 

For the 126 retirement systems included in the 2006 National 
Association of Retirement System Administrator’s Public Fund 
Survey, investment return assumptions ranged from 6 percent to 
8.5 percent with a mean of about 8 percent.6  CalSTRS uses an 8 
percent investment return assumption; CalPERS uses 7.75 percent; 
while the retirement systems for Los Angeles and Alameda 
Counties use 7.75 percent and 7.8 percent, respectively. 

Salary increase assumptions 

The salary increase is typically composed of three components 
including inflation, real salary increases, and increases based on 
merit and promotion.  A plan that raises its salary increase 
assumption expects to pay higher benefits.  This is because 

Page 326 of 365



pensions are calculated based on employees’ salaries.  A higher 
rate of salary increase means that benefits will be higher and more 
money will be needed to pay for those benefits.  This will increase 
contributions and liabilities. 

In an actuarial valuation, a projection of total payroll usually 
includes inflation and real salary increases, but not the merit and 
promotion increases.  These are increases that individual members 
receive as they advance in their careers.  Because assumptions 
about merit and promotion increases are based on the specific 
experience of the system, this assumption is often studied along 
with the demographic assumptions. 

Inflation assumptions 

Inflation affects Cost of Living Adjustments (COLAs) and is also a 
component of both investment earnings and salary increases.  
Lowering the inflation assumption decreases the investment return, 
which causes contributions to go up and the funded ratio to go 
down.  At the same time, however, a decrease in the inflation 
assumption causes a corresponding decrease in the salary increase 
rate.  This causes the contribution rate to decrease and the funded 
ratio to increase. 

In a typical plan, investment earnings have a significantly greater 
impact than salary increases.  This means that, on the whole and 
assuming no other assumption components are changed, a decrease 
in the inflation assumption causes contribution rates to increase, 
because contributions rise more due to a lower investment return 
rate than they fall due to a lower salary increase rate. 

Page 327 of 365



IV.  CURRENT ISSUES 

Actuarial methods never lie, but… 
In 2001, an article in the Public Retirement Journal reported that 
the CalPERS Board of Administration adopted a policy intended to 
“persuade local agencies to grant higher benefits to their 
employees in exchange for the actuarial manipulation of the value 
of their assets on deposit with PERS.”7  The background to this is 
that pension fund investment returns had risen considerably during 
the bull market of the 1990s, but due to the asset smoothing policy 
in place at the time, public agencies were recognizing less than 
market value in their actuarial value of assets.  The Board policy 
increased the value in order to lessen the cost of adopting enhanced 
benefits. 

Similarly, in 1996 trustees of the San Diego City Employees’ 
Retirement System reduced the city’s contribution rates contingent 
on the city granting benefit improvements.8  By 2005, the city’s 
pension debt rose significantly, its credit rating faltered, and there 
was speculation that the city might have to file for bankruptcy. 

Cases such as these where trustees alter actuarial policies to reduce 
costs in the short term, and to make benefit increases appear less 
costly, diminish the public trust in retirement system boards and 
the actuarial profession. 

Actuarial policies such as smoothing certainly serve a legitimate 
purpose.  Smoothing helps to lessen the volatility of contribution 
rates.  This makes it easier for employers to budget.  Smoothing 
also buffers employers from the effects of market losses and 
ensures that they do not take credit for market gains too quickly.  
Problems arise, however, when established actuarial policies are 
altered for short-term contribution relief, or in exchange for a 
benefit improvement. 

With rare exceptions, however, even these types of activities are 
certified by boards’ actuaries.  Actuarial certification indicates that 
they fall within the range of accepted practices as defined by the 
American Academy of Actuaries.  The problem is that for any 
given situation there may be a range of accepted actuarial practices 
that is wide enough to allow retirement system boards to adopt 
policies that are aimed more toward achieving the short term 
objective of reducing costs than toward the long term objective of 
ensuring that the fund is managed according to sound actuarial 
principles. 

Page 328 of 365



A 2006 report published by a task force of the American Academy 
of Actuaries acknowledges that there is a difference between 
“accepted practices” and “best practices.”9  The report explains, 
however, that it is difficult to develop best practice standards 
because doing so may unnecessarily limit alternative practices that 
may in some instances be the most appropriate. 

To address this issue, some states have increased legislative 
oversight of public retirement systems’ actuarial methods and 
assumptions.  Some have even passed legislation to enforce 
actuarial standards. 

Since its enactment in 1983, the State of Georgia’s Public 
Retirement System Standards Law has required that the actuarial 
cost of all pension legislation with a fiscal effect must be 
determined by an actuarial study arranged by the state auditor 
before the bill can leave its committee.  The only amendments that 
can be made are those that would reduce the cost of the legislation.  
If no appropriations are made to fund the pension benefit changes, 
the bill is automatically repealed.  The Employees Retirement 
System and Teachers’ Retirement System of Georgia are among 
the best-funded public pension plans in the nation, with costs and 
benefits near the national median.10  In 2006, the State of 
Oklahoma passed legislation modeled after the Georgia law. 

Given the Constitutional authority granted to public retirement 
system boards in California under Proposition 162, which passed 
in 1992, it is unlikely that any legislation could diminish boards’ 
authority to determine actuarial policies.  The California Public 
Employee Post-Employment Benefits Commission, however, 
recommended the establishment of an actuarial advisory panel at 
the state level.  The purpose of the panel would be to “provide the 
California Legislature, the Governor’s Office, public retirement 
systems, public agencies, and other interested parties with 
impartial and independent information on pensions, OPEB 
benefits, and best practices.”11 

In January 2008, SB 1123 (Wiggins) was introduced in response to 
the Commission’s recommendations.  As introduced, the bill 
would create the California Actuarial Advisory Panel.  The bill 
contains a number of additional provisions that would increase the 
transparency of actuarial practices for pension and retiree health 
benefits. 

Page 329 of 365



Have you heard the one about the two actuaries? 
There is a joke about two actuaries on a golf course.  One hits a tee 
shot that lands twenty feet to the right of the hole; the other, 20 feet 
to the left.  The two celebrate with congratulatory high-fives after 
concluding that, on average, they accomplished a hole-in-one. 

The joke serves to illuminate the reality that for any given year the 
contribution rates determined by an actuary will be too high or too 
low.  It is impossible to predict the future with complete accuracy.  
Actuaries, however, are engaged in long-term planning, making 
projections 30 or more years out into the future.  What matters is 
that the contribution rates they recommend are reasonable in the 
long-term and that the actuarial methods adopted are designed to 
meet the objective of paying for retirement benefits during the 
working career of the employee and not manipulated for the 
purpose of providing short-term contribution rate relief or to ease 
the burden of paying for benefit increases. 

Actuarial work for pension (and for retiree health and other post-
employment benefits) trusts can be compared to steering a ship 
across a sea.  You set a course based on your knowledge of present 
conditions.  As winds and currents shift, it may become necessary 
to change course to arrive at the desired port.  Without accurate 
data about current conditions, periodic review, and a sound plan 
for how to act on the data, errors can compound over time and put 
the ship far off course. 

This analogy has several implications for actuarial work intended 
to guide pension and OPEB trusts toward the destination of full 
funding.  Due to the interrelationship of actuarial factors (inflation, 
for example, affects both investment returns and salary increases), 
errors can compound and significantly affect the outcome of 
actuarial forecasts.  Actuarial assumptions must therefore be 
realistic and based on accurate data about member demographics 
and economic conditions.  Actuarial studies should be repeated at 
regular intervals to determine whether assumptions need to be 
changed. 

Finally, staying on course requires that boards who govern pension 
and OPEB trusts adhere to funding policies that are based on sound 
actuarial methods while resisting temptations to alter amortization 
periods, actuarial assumptions, or asset valuation methods for the 
purpose of lowering costs in the short-term if those changes would 
work to the detriment of the long-term funding plan and the goal of 
avoiding intergenerational transfers of benefit costs. 

Page 330 of 365



 

Page 331 of 365



NOTES 

 
1  “Eight Year History of Premiums: 2000-2007,” CalPERS Health Benefits Branch, California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System. 
2  Testimony of Ron Seeling, Chief Actuary, California Public Employees’ Retirement System, California 
Public Employee Post-Employment Benefits Commission Meeting, Burlingame, CA, July 12, 2007, 
pp. 125-6.  http://www.pebc.ca.gov/images/files/Minutes-071207.pdf. 
3  2006 Public Fund Survey, National Association of State Retirement Administrators, 
http://www.publicfundsurvey.org. 
4  Testimony of Ron Seeling, Chief Actuary, California Public Employees’ Retirement System, California 
Public Employee Post-Employment Benefits Commission Meeting, Burlingame, CA, July 12, 2007, 
pp. 132-3.  http://www.pebc.ca.gov/images/files/Minutes-071207.pdf. 
5  Testimony of Ron Seeling, Chief Actuary, California Public Employees’ Retirement System, California 
Public Employee Pos-Employment Benefits Commission Meeting, Burlingame, CA, July 12, 2007, p. 139. 
http://www.pebc.ca.gov/images/files/Minutes-071207.pdf. 
6  “2006 Public Fund Survey,” National Association of State Retirement System Administrators, 2007.  
http://www.publicfundsurvey.org. 
7  “So, Why Do We Have Staff?,”  The Public Retirement Journal, May/June 2001, p. 1. 
8  “San Diego’s Pension Scandal for Dummies,” by Daniel Strumpf, San Diego City Beat, June 22, 2005. 
9  “A Critical Review of the U.S. Actuarial Profession: Final Report for the U.S. Actuarial Profession and 
Other Interested Parties,” prepared by the American Academy of Actuaries’ Critical Review of the U.S. 
Actuarial Profession Task Force,” December 2006. 
10  “NASRA Response to Reason Foundation Study, ‘The Gathering Pension Storm,” National Association 
of State Retirement Administrators, p. 6.  
http://www.nasra.org/resources/NASRA%20Reason%20Response.pdf. 
11  “Funding Pensions and Retiree Health Care for Public Employees,” California Public Employee Post-
Employment Benefits Commission, January 2008, p. 190.  
http://www.pebc.ca.gov/images/files/final/080107_PEBCReport2007.pdf. 

Page 332 of 365

http://www.pebc.ca.gov/images/files/Minutes-071207.pdf
http://www.publicfundsurvey.org/
http://www.pebc.ca.gov/images/files/Minutes-071207.pdf
http://www.pebc.ca.gov/images/files/Minutes-071207.pdf
http://www.publicfundsurvey.org/
http://www.nasra.org/resources/NASRA%20Reason%20Response.pdf
http://www.pebc.ca.gov/images/files/final/080107_PEBCReport2007.pdf


 
 
 
 

            Fax: (701) 328-3920      Email ndpers-info@nd.gov   Website  https://ndpers.nd.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   Scott 
 
DATE:   September 8, 2020 
 
SUBJECT:  Legislation 
 
In addition to the bills NDPERS has proposed, there are a number of other bills in front of 
the Employee Benefits Programs Committee that would affect one or more of the plans 
administered by NDPERS. The below is a short description of each. The bills themselves 
are attached. 
 
Bill 49 – establish health insurance minimums in the event the ACA is eliminated 
 
Bill 55 – requires health insurance policies to cover physicals that include Department of 
Transportation requirements 
 
Bill 68 – requires the NDPERS Health Plans to cover drugs imported from Canada 
 
Bill 135 – establishes Health Plan participation for former state employees who were 
subject to a reduction in force 
 
Bill 136 – establishes a retirement plan for “protective services employees” of the 
Department of Corrections (I understand they will most likely retract this proposed bill) 
 
Bill 148 – removes the uniform group insurance plan decision-making from the NDPERS 
Board and transfers it to the Employee Benefits Programs Committee 
 
Bill 170 – cleans up some unclear language regarding stop loss insurance acquisition 
 
Bill 183 – requires certain health insurance policies to cover insulin 
 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Scott A. Miller 
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377  

Page 333 of 365



21.0049.01000

Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly
of North Dakota

Introduced by

Senator Mathern

A BILL for an Act to create and enact chapter 26.1-36.8 of the North Dakota Century Code, 

relating to requirements of health insurance policies; to provide for application; and to provide a 

contingent effective date.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. Chapter 26.1-36.8 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted 

as follows:

26.1  -  36.8  -  01. Definitions.  

As used in this   chapter  :  

1. "Affiliation period" means a period that begins on a policyholder or dependent's

enrollment date, runs concurrently with any waiting period under the health insurance

policy, must expire before coverage is effective, and during which the policy provider

need not provide benefits for medical care and may not charge any premium to the

policyholder or dependent.

2. "Commissioner" means the commissioner of insurance.

3. "Cost-sharing" means any copayment, coinsurance, or deductible required by, or on

behalf of, a covered individual in order to receive a specific health care item or service

covered by a health insurance policy.

4. "Drug" has the same meaning as provided under section 19  -  02.1  -  01.  

5. "Health insurance policy" means any individual insurance policy, group insurance

policy, or other health benefit plan subject to the requirements of   chapter 26.1  -  36  .  

6. "Pharmacy benefits manager" has the same meaning as provided under section

19  -  03.6  -  01.  

7. "P  re-existing   condition exclusion" means a limitation or exclusion of benefits related to  

a condition based on the fact the condition was present before the enrollment date for

Page No. 1 21.0049.01000

 BILL NO. 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Attachment - Bill No 49

Page 334 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

coverage, regardless of whether any medical diagnosis, care, or treatment was 

recommended or received before the enrollment date.

8. "Premium adjustment percentage" for any calendar year means the percentage by 

which the average per capita premium for health insurance policies in this state in the 

previous calendar year, as determined by the commissioner not later than October first 

of such preceding calendar year, exceeds such average per capita premium for 2020.

26.1  -  36.8  -  02. Required policy provisions - Rules.  

1. T  he commissioner shall adopt rules that set minimum policy coverage standards   

applicable to a health insurance policy subject to this   chapter  . In addition to other   

requirements provided by law, the standards must require a policy regulated under   this   

chapter     to provide as benefits to all enrollees coverage for:  

a. Ambulatory patient services;

b. Emergency services;

c. Hospitalization;

d. Maternity and newborn care;

e. Mental health and substance use disorder services, including behavioral health 

treatment;

f. D  rugs;  

g. Rehabilitative and habilitative services and devices;

h. Laboratory services;

i. Preventative and wellness services and chronic disease management; and

j. Pediatric services, including oral and vision care.

2. A health insurance policy subject to this   chapter   may not establish lifetime or annual   

limits on the dollar value of benefits described in subsection   1   for any covered   

individual.

3. A health insurance policy subject to this   chapter   which offers coverage for a child or   

stepchild of a policyholder must continue to offer such coverage, at the option of the 

policyholder, until the unmarried child or stepchild reaches the age of twenty-six.

Page No. 2 21.0049.01000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Page 335 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

26.1  -  36.8  -  03. Limitations on   pre-existing   condition exclusions for health insurance   

policies.

1. A health insurance policy issuer may not impose a   pre-existing   condition exclusion and   

may not deny enrollment to a individual on the basis of a pre-existing condition.

2. A health insurance policy issuer may:

a. Restrict enrollment in a health insurance policy to open enrollment and special 

enrollment periods in accordance with other provisions of this chapter.

b. Impose an affiliation period on any health insurance policy that is not provided 

through the individual   market. An affiliation period may not exceed ninety days   

and may not apply to emergency services.

c. Use other alternatives approved by the commissioner to address adverse 

selection.

26.1  -  36.8  -  04. Fairness in cost-sharing and ratemaking - Rules.  

1. A health insurance policy issuer may not require cost-sharing in an amount greater 

than the cost-sharing limit amount.

a. For plan years beginning in calendar year 2021, the cost-sharing limit amount is 

eight thousand one hundred fifty dollars for self-only coverage and sixteen 

thousand three hundred dollars for other than self-only coverage.

b. For plan years beginning after calendar year 2021, the cost-sharing limit is equal 

to the dollar amount applicable to the previous calendar year, increased by the 

product of that amount and the premium adjustment percentage as determined 

by the commissioner for the calendar year.

2. In calculating an insured's contribution to an applicable cost-sharing requirement, 

including the annual limitation on cost-sharing subject to subsection   1  :  

a. An insurer shall include any cost-sharing amounts paid by the insured or on 

behalf of an enrollee by another person; and

b. A pharmacy benefits manager shall include any cost-sharing amounts paid by the 

insured or on behalf of the insured by another person.

3. Premium rates charged for any health insurance policy subject to this   chapter   must be   

reasonable in relation to the benefits available under the policy, as determined by the 

commissioner.

Page No. 3 21.0049.01000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

Page 336 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

4. A health insurance policy subject to this   chapter   may charge different premium rates   

for each individual covered by that policy; however, the premium rates may vary only 

in relation to:

a. Whether the policy covers an individual or a family;

b. Rating area, as established pursuant to subsection 6;

c. Age, except that such rate may not vary by more than three to one for adults; and

d. Tobacco use, except that such rate may not vary by more than one and one-half 

to one.

5. With respect to family coverage under an individual or group health insurance policy, 

the rating variations permitted under this section must be applied based on the portion 

of the premium attributable to each family member covered under the policy.

6. The commissioner shall adopt rules to establish:

a. One or more geographic rating areas within the state and the permissible age 

bands within which premium rates may vary; and

b. Minimum standards for ratemaking and cost-sharing, in accordance with 

accepted actuarial principles and practices.

26.1  -  36.8  -  05. Rules - Application.  

1. The commissioner shall adopt rules addressing any standard or practice necessary to 

effectuate the purposes of this   chapter  .  

2. Unless a rule provides a different application date, a rule adopted under this chapter 

applies beginning six months after the date the rule becomes final.

26.1  -  36.8  -  06. Conflict of laws.  

1. A health insurance policy subject to this   chapter   remains subject to every other   

requirement and provision of this title which is not inconsistent with this   chapter  .  

2. If a provision of this   chapter   conflicts with another provision of this title, the provision of   

this   chapter   controls, unless the application of this chapter would result in a reduction   

of coverage.

SECTION 2. APPLICATION. This Act applies to a health insurance policy delivered, 

executed, issued, amended, adjusted, or renewed in this state on or after six months following 

finalization of the rules adopted under chapter 26.1-36.8. This chapter does not abridge or 

Page No. 4 21.0049.01000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

Page 337 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

otherwise affect a health insurance policy already in effect at the time this chapter becomes 

applicable until that policy is renewed, amended, or adjusted.

SECTION 3. CONTINGENT EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act becomes effective three months 

after the insurance commissioner certifies to the legislative council that a court of competent 

jurisdiction has ruled all or a significant portion of the federal Patient Protection and Affordable 

Care Act is unconstitutional and the judgment of that court has become final and definitive.

Page No. 5 21.0049.01000

1

2

3

4

5

6

Page 338 of 365



21.0055.01000

Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly
of North Dakota

Introduced by

Representative Schatz

A BILL for an Act to create and enact section 26.1-36-09.16 of the North Dakota Century Code, 

relating to health insurance coverage of annual physical examinations; and to amend and 

reenact section 26.1-36.6-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to public employees 

retirement system self-insurance health plans.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. Section 26.1-36-09.16 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and 

enacted as follows:

26.1  -  36  -  09.16. Coverage of physical examination.  

An insurer may not deliver, issue, execute, or renew an accident and health insurance 

policy on an individual, group, blanket, franchise, or association basis which provides coverage 

for an annual physical examination unless the coverage includes an examination that meets the 

requirements for a federal department of transportation physical examination. This section does 

not require coverage of more than one physical examination per year. This section does not 

require every physical examination to meet the requirements of a federal department of 

transportation physical examination.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-36.6-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

26.1-36.6-03. Self-insurance health plans - Requirements.

1. The following policy provisions apply to a self-insurance health plan or to the

administrative services only or third-party administrator, and are subject to the

jurisdiction of the commissioner: 26.1-36-03, 26.1-36-03.1, 26.1-36-05, 26.1-36-10,

26.1-36-12, 26.1-36-12.4, 26.1-36-12.6, 26.1-36-13, 26.1-36-14, 26.1-36-17,

26.1-36-18, 26.1-36-19, 26.1-36-23, 26.1-36-29, 26.1-36-37.1, 26.1-36-38, 26.1-36-39,

26.1-36-41, 26.1-36-44, and 26.1-36-46.

Page No. 1 21.0055.01000

 BILL NO. 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Attachment - Bill No. 55 

Page 339 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

2. The following health benefit provisions applicable to a group accident and health 

insurance policy under chapter 26.1-36 apply to a self-insurance health plan and are 

subject to the jurisdiction of the commissioner: 26.1-36-06, 26.1-36-06.1, 26.1-36-07, 

26.1-36-08, 26.1-36-08.1, 26.1-36-09, 26.1-36-09.1, 26.1-36-09.2, 26.1-36-09.3, 

26.1-36-09.5, 26.1-36-09.6, 26.1-36-09.7, 26.1-36-09.8, 26.1-36-09.9, 26.1-36-09.10, 

26.1-36-09.11, 26.1-36-09.12, 26.1-36-09.13, 26.1-36-09.14, 26.1-36-09.15, 

26.1  -  36  -  09.16,   26.1-36-11, 26.1-36-12.2, 26.1-36-20, 26.1-36-21, 26.1-36-22, 

26.1-36-23.1, and 26.1-36-43.

Page No. 2 21.0055.01000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Page 340 of 365



21.0068.01000

Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly
of North Dakota

Introduced by

Representative M. Nelson

A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-52.1 of the North Dakota 

Century Code, relating to public employee health insurance drug benefit coverage; to amend 

and reenact section 26.1-36.6-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to self-insurance 

health plans; to require a report; to provide for application; to provide an expiration date; and to 

declare an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-36.6-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

26.1-36.6-03. Self-insurance health plans - Requirements.

1. The following policy provisions apply to a self-insurance health plan or to the

administrative services only or third-party administrator, and are subject to the

jurisdiction of the commissioner: 26.1-36-03, 26.1-36-03.1, 26.1-36-05, 26.1-36-10,

26.1-36-12, 26.1-36-12.4, 26.1-36-12.6, 26.1-36-13, 26.1-36-14, 26.1-36-17,

26.1-36-18, 26.1-36-19, 26.1-36-23, 26.1-36-29, 26.1-36-37.1, 26.1-36-38, 26.1-36-39,

26.1-36-41, 26.1-36-44, and 26.1-36-46.

2. The following health benefit provisions applicable to a group accident and health

insurance policy under chapter 26.1-36 apply to a self-insurance health plan and are

subject to the jurisdiction of the commissioner: 26.1-36-06, 26.1-36-06.1, 26.1-36-07,

26.1-36-08, 26.1-36-08.1, 26.1-36-09, 26.1-36-09.1, 26.1-36-09.2, 26.1-36-09.3,

26.1-36-09.5, 26.1-36-09.6, 26.1-36-09.7, 26.1-36-09.8, 26.1-36-09.9, 26.1-36-09.10,

26.1-36-09.11, 26.1-36-09.12, 26.1-36-09.13, 26.1-36-09.14, 26.1-36-09.15,

26.1-36-11, 26.1-36-12.2, 26.1-36-20, 26.1-36-21, 26.1-36-22, 26.1-36-23.1, and

26.1-36-43. Section 2 of this Act applies to a self-insurance health plan and is subject

to the jurisdiction of the commissioner.

Page No. 1 21.0068.01000

 BILL NO. 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Attachment - Bill No. 68

Page 341 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

SECTION 2. A new section to chapter 54-52.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 

and enacted as follows:

Coverage of imported prescription drugs.

Prescription drug benefits coverage provided under section 54  -  52.1  -  04, 54  -  52.1  -  04.1, or   

54  -  52.1  -  04.2, must include coverage for prescription drugs imported from Canada in   

compliance with section 804 of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetics Act [21 U.S.C. 384]. 

Coverage required under this section may allow for a copayment that does not exceed 

twenty  -  five dollars.  

SECTION 3. APPLICATION. This Act applies to prescription drug benefits coverage that 

begins after June 30, 2021, and which does not extend past June 30, 2023.

SECTION 4. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM - COVERAGE OF DRUGS 

IMPORTED FROM CANADA - REPORT. Pursuant to section 54-03-28, the public employees 

retirement system shall prepare and submit for introduction a bill to the sixty-eighth legislative 

assembly to repeal the expiration date for sections 1 and 2 of this Act and to extend the 

coverage of prescription drugs imported from Canada to apply to all group and individual health 

insurance policies. The public employees retirement system shall append to the bill a report 

regarding the effect of the prescription drug coverage requirement on the system's health 

insurance programs, information on the utilization and costs relating to the coverage, and a 

recommendation regarding whether the coverage should continue.

SECTION 5. EXPIRATION DATE. Sections 1 and 2 of this Act are effective through July 31, 

2023, and after that date are ineffective.

SECTION 6. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure.

Page No. 2 21.0068.01000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

Page 342 of 365



21.0135.01000

Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly
of North Dakota

Introduced by

Representative Keiser

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 54-52.1-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, 

relating to the public employees retirement system uniform group insurance program benefits; 

and to provide for application.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.1-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

54-52.1-02. Uniform group insurance program created - Formation into subgroups.

In order to promote the economy and efficiency of employment in the state's service, reduce

personnel turnover, and offer an incentive to high-grade individuals to enter and remain in the 

service of state employment, there is created a uniform group insurance program. The uniform 

group must be composed of eligible and retired employees and former eligible employees of at 

least twenty-five years who have separated from employment due to a reduction in force and be 

formed to provide hospital benefits coverage, medical benefits coverage, and life insurance 

benefits coverage in the manner set forth in this chapter. The uniform group may be divided into 

the following subgroups at the discretion of the board:

1. Medical and hospital benefits coverage group consisting of active eligible employees

and, retired employees not eligible for Medicare, except for employees who first retire

after July 1, 2015, and are not eligible for Medicare on their retirementand former

eligible employees of at least twenty-five years who separated from employment due

to a reduction in force who are not eligible for Medicare. In determining premiums for

coverage under this subsection for retired employees and separated employees due

to reduction in force not eligible for Medicare, the rate for a non-Medicare retiree or

separated employee due to reduction in force single plan is one hundred fifty percent

of the active member single plan rate, the rate for a non-Medicare retiree or separated

Page No. 1 21.0135.01000

 BILL NO. 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Attachment - Bill No. 135

Page 343 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

employee due to reduction in force family plan of two people is twice the non-Medicare 

retiree or separated employee due to reduction in force single plan rate, and the rate 

for a non-Medicare retiree or separated employee due to reduction in force family plan 

of three or more persons is two and one-half times the non-Medicare retiree or 

separated employee due to reduction in force single plan rate.

2. In addition to the coverage provided in subsection 1, another coverage option may be

provided for retired employees not eligible for Medicare, except for employees who

first retire after July 1, 2015, and are not eligible for Medicare on their retirement and

former eligible employees of at least twenty-five years who separated from

employment due to a reduction in force who are not eligible for Medicare, provided the

option does not increase the implicit subsidy as determined by the governmental

accounting standards board's other postemployment benefit reporting procedure. In

offering this additional option, the board may have an open enrollment but thereafter

enrollment for this option must be as specified in section 54-52.1-03.

3. Retired Medicare-eligible employee group medical and hospital benefits coverage.

4. Active eligible employee life insurance benefits coverage.

5. Retired employee life insurance benefits coverage.

6. Terminated employee continuation group medical and hospital benefits coverage.

7. Terminated employee conversion group medical and hospital benefits coverage.

8. Dental benefits coverage.

9. Vision benefits coverage.

10. Long-term care benefits coverage.

11. Employee assistance benefits coverage.

12. Prescription drug coverage.

SECTION 2. APPLICATION. This Act applies to an employee who retires or separates from

employment due to a reduction in force after July 31, 2021. The public employees retirement 

system board shall offer a limited enrollment period for former employees who retired or 

separated from employment due to a reduction in force after June 30, 2015, and before 

August 1, 2021, or the surviving spouse of such former employee.

Page No. 2 21.0135.01000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Page 344 of 365



21.0136.02000

Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly
of North Dakota

Introduced by

Employee Benefits Programs Committee

(At the request of the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation)

A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-52 of the North Dakota 

Century Code, relating to participation by protective services employees of the department of 

corrections and rehabilitation in the defined benefit retirement plan; to amend and reenact 

section 54-52-01, subsection 3 of section 54-52-05, and subsection 3 of section 54-52-17 of the 

North Dakota Century Code, relating to participation by protective services employees of the 

department of corrections and rehabilitation in the defined benefit retirement plan; and to 

provide an appropriation.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

54-52-01. Definition of terms.

As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires:

1. "Account balance" means the total contributions made by the employee, vested

employer contributions under section 54-52-11.1, the vested portion of the vesting

fund as of June 30, 1977, and interest credited thereon at the rate established by the

board.

2. "Beneficiary" means any person in receipt of a benefit provided by this plan or any

person designated by a participating member to receive benefits.

3. "Correctional officer" means a participating member who is employed as a correctional

officer by a political subdivision.

4. "Eligible employee" means all permanent employees who meet all of the eligibility

requirements set by this chapter and who are eighteen years or more of age, and

includes appointive and elective officials under sections 54-52-02.5, 54-52-02.11, and

54-52-02.12, and nonteaching employees of the superintendent of public instruction,

Page No. 1 21.0136.02000

 BILL NO. 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Attachment - Bill No. 136

Page 345 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

including the superintendent of public instruction, who elect to transfer from the 

teachers' fund for retirement to the public employees retirement system under section 

54-52-02.13, and employees of the state board for career and technical education who 

elect to transfer from the teachers' fund for retirement to the public employees 

retirement system under section 54-52-02.14. Eligible employee does not include 

nonclassified state employees who elect to become members of the retirement plan 

established under chapter 54-52.6 but does include employees of the judicial branch 

and employees of the board of higher education and state institutions under the 

jurisdiction of the board.

5. "Employee" means any individual employed by a governmental unit, whose 

compensation is paid out of the governmental unit's funds, or funds controlled or 

administered by a governmental unit, or paid by the federal government through any of 

its executive or administrative officials; licensed employees of a school district means 

those employees eligible to participate in the teachers' fund for retirement who, except 

under subsection 2 of section 54-52-17.2, are not eligible employees under this 

chapter.

6. "Employer" means a governmental unit.

7. "Firefighter" means a participating member who is employed as a firefighter by a 

political subdivision and, notwithstanding subsection 13, for an individual employed 

after July 31, 2017, is employed at least thirty-two hours per week and at least twenty 

weeks each year of employment. A firefighter who is a participating member of the law 

enforcement retirement plan created by this chapter who begins employment after 

July 31, 2017, is ineligible to participate concurrently in any other retirement plan 

administered by the public employees retirement system. The term does not include a 

firefighter employee of the North Dakota national guard.

8. "Funding agent" or "agents" means an investment firm, trust bank, or other financial 

institution which the retirement board may select to hold and invest the employers' and 

members' contributions.

9. "Governmental unit" means the state of North Dakota, except the highway patrol for 

members of the retirement plan created under chapter 39-03.1, or a participating 

political subdivision thereof.

Page No. 2 21.0136.02000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

Page 346 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

10. "National guard security officer or firefighter" means a participating member who is:

a. A security police employee of the North Dakota national guard; or

b. A firefighter employee of the North Dakota national guard.

11. "Participating member" means an eligible employee who through payment into the 

plan has established a claim against the plan.

12. "Peace officer" means a participating member who is a peace officer as defined in 

section 12-63-01 and is employed as a peace officer by the bureau of criminal 

investigation or by a political subdivision and, notwithstanding subsection 13, for 

persons employed after August 1, 2005, is employed thirty-two hours or more per 

week and at least twenty weeks each year of employment. A peace officer who is a 

participating member of the law enforcement retirement plan created by this chapter 

who begins employment after August 1, 2005, is ineligible to participate concurrently in 

any other retirement plan administered by the public employees retirement system.

13. "Permanent employee" means a governmental unit employee whose services are not 

limited in duration and who is filling an approved and regularly funded position in an 

eligible governmental unit, and is employed twenty hours or more per week and at 

least twenty weeks each year of employment.

14. "Prior service" means service or employment before July 1, 1966.

15. "Prior service credit" means such credit toward a retirement benefit as the retirement 

board may determine under the provisions of this chapter.

16. "Protective services employee" means a participating member who is employed by the 

department of corrections and rehabilitation under the job classification of protective 

services or who is employed by the department of corrections and rehabilitation in the 

supervisory chain of protective services employees and, notwithstanding the definition 

of "permanent employee", for an individual employed after June 30, 2021, who is 

employed thirty-two hours or more per week and at least twenty weeks each year of 

employment. A protective services employee who is a participating member of the 

protective services retirement plan created by this chapter who begins employment 

after June 30, 2021, is ineligible to participate concurrently in any other retirement plan 

administered by the public employees retirement system.

Page No. 3 21.0136.02000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

Page 347 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

17. "Public employees retirement system" means the retirement plan and program 

established by this chapter.

17.18. "Retirement" means the acceptance of a retirement allowance under this chapter upon 

either termination of employment or termination of participation in the retirement plan.

18.19. "Retirement board" or "board" means the governing authority created under section 

54-52-03.

19.20. "Seasonal employee" means a participating member who does not work twelve 

months a year.

20.21. "Service" means employment on or after July 1, 1966.

21.22. "Service benefit" means the credit toward retirement benefits as determined by the 

retirement board under the provisions of this chapter.

22.23. "Temporary employee" means a governmental unit employee who is not eligible to 

participate as a permanent employee, who is at least eighteen years old and not 

actively contributing to another employer-sponsored pension fund, and, if employed by 

a school district, occupies a noncertified teacher's position.

23.24. "Wages" and "salaries" means the member's earnings in eligible employment under 

this chapter reported as salary on the member's federal income tax withholding 

statements plus any salary reduction or salary deferral amounts under 26 U.S.C. 125, 

401(k), 403(b), 414(h), or 457. "Salary" does not include fringe benefits such as 

payments for unused sick leave, personal leave, vacation leave paid in a lump sum, 

overtime, housing allowances, transportation expenses, early retirement incentive pay, 

severance pay, medical insurance, workforce safety and insurance benefits, disability 

insurance premiums or benefits, or salary received by a member in lieu of previously 

employer-provided fringe benefits under an agreement between the member and 

participating employer. Bonuses may be considered as salary under this section if 

reported and annualized pursuant to rules adopted by the board.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 54-52-05 of the North Dakota Century 

Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

3. Each employer, at itsthe option of that employer, may pay all or a portion of the 

employee contributions required by subsection 2 and sections 54-52-06.1, 54-52-06.2, 

54-52-06.3, and 54-52-06.4, and section 3 of this Act, or the employee contributions 

Page No. 4 21.0136.02000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

Page 348 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

required to purchase service credit on a pretax basis pursuant to subsection 5 of 

section 54-52-17.4. Employees may not receive the contributed amounts directly once 

the employer has elected to pay the employee contributions. The amount paid must be 

paid by the employer in lieu of contributions by the employee. If the state determines 

not to pay the contributions, the amount that would have been paid must continue to 

be deducted from the employee's compensation. If contributions are paid by the 

employer, theythe contributions must be treated as employer contributions in 

determining tax treatment under this code and the federal Internal Revenue Code. If 

contributions are paid by the employer, theythe contributions may not be included as 

gross income of the employee in determining tax treatment under this code and the 

Internal Revenue Code until theythe contributions are distributed or made available. 

The employer shall pay these employee contributions from the same source of funds 

used in paying compensation to the employee. The employer shall pay these 

contributions by effecting an equal cash reduction in the gross salary of the employee 

or by an offset against future salary increases or by a contribution of a reduction in 

gross salary and offset against future salary increases. If employee contributions are 

paid by the employer, theythe employee contributions must be treated for the 

purposes of this chapter in the same manner and to the same extent as employee 

contributions made prior tobefore the date on which employee contributions were 

assumed by the employer. An employer exercising itsthe employer's option under this 

subsection shall report itsthe employer's choice to the board in writing.

SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 54-52 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 

and enacted as follows:

Contribution by protective services employees - Employer contribution.

Each protective services employee who is a member of the public employees retirement 

system is assessed and shall pay monthly four percent of the employee's monthly salary. The 

assessment must be deducted and retained out of the employee's salary in equal monthly 

installments. The protective services employee's employer shall contribute an amount 

determined by the board to be actuarially required to support the level of benefits specified in 

section 54  -  52  -  17. The employer's contribution must be paid from funds appropriated for salary   

or from any other funds available for such purposes. If the protective services employee's 

Page No. 5 21.0136.02000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

Page 349 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

assessment is paid by the employer under subsection     3 of section 54  -  52  -  05, the employer shall   

contribute, in addition, an amount equal to the required protection services employee's 

assessment.

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 54-52-17 of the North Dakota Century 

Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

3. Retirement dates are defined as follows:

a. Normal retirement date, except for a national guard security officer or firefighter, a 

firefighter employed by a political subdivision, or a peace officer or correctional 

officer employed by the bureau of criminal investigation or by a political 

subdivision, or a protective services employee, is:

(1) The first day of the month next following the month in which the member 

attains the age of sixty-five years; or

(2) When the member has a combined total of years of service credit and years 

of age equal to eighty-five and has not received a retirement benefit under 

this chapter.

b. Normal retirement date for members first enrolled after December 31, 2015, 

except for a national guard security officer or firefighter, a firefighter employed by 

a political subdivision, a peace officer or correctional officer employed by the 

bureau of criminal investigation or by a political subdivision, or a supreme court 

or district court judge, or a protective services employee, is:

(1) The first day of the month next following the month in which the member 

attains the age of sixty-five years; or

(2) When the member has a combined total of years of service credit and years 

of age equal to ninety and the member attains a minimum age of sixty and 

has not received a retirement benefit under this chapter.

c. Normal retirement date for a national guard security officer or firefighter is:

(1) The first day of the month next following the month in which the national 

guard security officer or firefighter attains the age of fifty-five years and has 

completed at least three eligible years of employment; or

Page No. 6 21.0136.02000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Page 350 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

(2) When the national guard security officer or firefighter has a combined total 

of years of service credit and years of age equal to eighty-five and has not 

received a retirement benefit under this chapter.

d. Normal retirement date for a peace officer, firefighter, or correctional officer 

employed by a political subdivision is:

(1) The first day of the month next following the month in which the peace 

officer, firefighter, or correctional officer attains the age of fifty-five years and 

has completed at least three eligible years of employment; or

(2) When the peace officer, firefighter, or correctional officer has a combined 

total of years of service credit and years of age equal to eighty-five and has 

not received a retirement benefit under this chapter.

e. Normal retirement date for a peace officer employed by the bureau of criminal 

investigation is:

(1) The first day of the month next following the month in which the peace 

officer attains the age of fifty-five years and has completed at least three 

eligible years of employment; or

(2) When the peace officer has a combined total of years of service credit and 

years of age equal to eighty-five and has not received a retirement benefit 

under this chapter.

f. Normal retirement date for a protective services employee is:

(1) The first day of the month next following the month in which a protective 

services employee attains the age of fifty-five years and has completed at 

least three eligible years of employment; or

(2) When the protective services employee has a combined total of years of 

service credit and years of age equal to eighty-five and has not received a 

retirement benefit under this chapter.

g. Postponed retirement date is the first day of the month next following the month 

in which the member, on or after July 1, 1977, actually severs or has severed the 

member's employment after reaching the normal retirement date.

g.h. Early retirement date, except for a national guard security officer or firefighter, a 

firefighter employed by a political subdivision, or a peace officer or correctional 

Page No. 7 21.0136.02000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

Page 351 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

officer employed by the bureau of criminal investigation or by a political 

subdivision, or a protective services employee, is the first day of the month next 

following the month in which the member attains the age of fifty-five years and 

has completed three years of eligible employment. For a national guard security 

officer or firefighter, early retirement date is the first day of the month next 

following the month in which the national guard security officer or firefighter 

attains the age of fifty years and has completed at least three years of eligible 

employment. For a firefighter employed by a political subdivision or, a peace 

officer or correctional officer employed by the bureau of criminal investigation or 

by a political subdivision, or a protective services employee, early retirement date 

is the first day of the month next following the month in which the peace officer, 

firefighter, or correctional officer, or protective services employee attains the age 

of fifty years and has completed at least three years of eligible employment.

h.i. Disability retirement date is the first day of the month after a member becomes 

permanently and totally disabled, according to medical evidence called for under 

the rules of the board, and has completed at least one hundred eighty days of 

eligible employment. For supreme and district court judges, permanent and total 

disability is based solely on a judge's inability to perform judicial duties arising out 

of physical or mental impairment, as determined pursuant to rules adopted by the 

board or as provided by subdivision a of subsection 3 of section 27-23-03. 

(1) A member is eligible to receive disability retirement benefits only if the 

member became disabled during the period of eligible employment and 

applies for disability retirement benefits within twelve months of the date the 

member terminates employment.

(2) A member is eligible to continue to receive disability benefits as long as the 

permanent and total disability continues and the member submits the 

necessary documentation and undergoes medical testing required by the 

board, or for as long as the member participates in a rehabilitation program 

required by the board, or both. If the board determines a member no longer 

meets the eligibility definition, the board may discontinue the disability 

retirement benefit. The board may pay the cost of any medical testing or 

Page No. 8 21.0136.02000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

Page 352 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

rehabilitation services the board deems necessary and these payments are 

appropriated from the retirement fund for those purposes. A member's 

receipt of disability benefits under this section is limited to receipt from the 

fund to which the member was actively contributing at the time the member 

became disabled.

SECTION 5. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general 

fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $1,800,000, or so much of the 

sum as may be necessary, to the department of corrections and rehabilitation for the purpose of 

implementing this Act, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2021, and ending June 30, 2023.

Page No. 9 21.0136.02000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Page 353 of 365



21.0148.02000

Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly
of North Dakota

Introduced by

Representative Kasper

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 54-52.1-04, 54-52.1-04.1, 54-52.1-04.2, 

54-52.1-04.7, 54-52.1-04.8, and 54-52.1-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to

public employee uniform group insurance plans; to provide for application; and to declare an

emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.1-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

54-52.1-04. Board to contract for insurance - Approval by employee benefits

programs committee.

1. The board shall receive bids for the providing of hospital benefits coverage, medical

benefits coverage, life insurance benefits coverage for a specified term, and employee

assistance program services; and may receive bids separately for all or part of the

prescription drug benefits coverage component of medical benefits coverage; and

shall accept one or more bids of and contract with the carriers the board determines

best serve the interests of the state and the state's eligible employees. Solicitations

must be made not later than ninety days before the expiration of an existing uniform

group insurance contract. Bids must be solicited by advertisement in a manner

selected by the board which will provide reasonable notice to prospective bidders. In

preparing bid proposals and evaluating bids, the board may utilize the services of

consultants on a contract basis in order that the bids received may be uniformly

compared and properly evaluated

2. After the board identifies which bids of carriers, if any, the board determines best serve

the interests of the state and the state's eligible employees, the board shall forward a

recommendation and all the bids to the employee benefits programs committee. The

Page No. 1 21.0148.02000

 BILL NO. 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Attachment - Bill No. 148

Page 354 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

board may recommend rejection of one or more bids received under this section. 

Upon receipt of the board's recommendation, the employee benefits programs 

committee shall determine which bid, if any, will best serve the interests of eligible 

employees and the state. In identifying and determining which bid, if any, will best 

serve the interests of eligible employees and the state, the board and the employee 

benefits programs committee shall give adequate consideration to the following 

factors:

a. The economy to be effected.

b. The ease of administration.

c. The adequacy of the coverages.

d. The financial position of the carrier, with special emphasis on the solvency of the 

carrier.

e. The reputation of the carrier and any other information available tending to show 

past experience with the carrier in matters of claim settlement, underwriting, and 

services.

f. The price and contract guarantees.

2.3. The boardemployee benefits programs committee may reject any or all bids received 

under this section. If the boardemployee benefits programs committee rejects all bids 

received, the board again shall again solicit bids as provided in this section. If the 

committee does not reject all bids received, the board shall enter a contract with the 

bidder selected by the committee under this section.

3.4. In preparing a bid proposal and evaluating a bid under this section, the board and the 

employee benefits programs committee may use the services of a consultant on a 

contract basis so the bids received may be compared uniformly and evaluated 

properly. The board may not enter a contract for consultant services under this 

subsection unless the employee benefits programs committee has approved the 

selection of the consultant.

5. Under sections 54-52.1-04.1 and 54-52.1-04.2, following approval by the employee 

benefits programs committee, the board may contract for health benefits coverage 

through a health maintenance organization or establish a self-insurance health plan.

Page No. 2 21.0148.02000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

Page 355 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.1-04.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

54-52.1-04.1. Health maintenance organization contract - Membership option.

Notwithstanding the provisions of section 54-52.1-04, but subject to approval by the 

employee benefits programs committee, the board may contract with one or more health 

maintenance organizations to provide eligible employees the option of membership in a health 

maintenance organization. If itthe board makes such a contract, the board may not require that 

the health maintenance organization be federally qualified if the health maintenance 

organization has a certificate of authority issued by the North Dakota insurance commissioner. 

The contract or contracts must be included in the uniform group insurance program.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.1-04.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

54-52.1-04.2. Self-insurance health plan.

1. This section applies to a self-insurance health plan for:

a. Health insurance and prescription drug benefits coverage;

b. Health insurance benefits coverage, excluding all or part of prescription drug 

benefits coverage; or

c. All or part of prescription drug benefits coverage.

2. Except for prescription drug coverage under subdivision c of subsection 1, a 

self-insurance health plan established by the board under this section must be 

provided under an administrative services only (ASO) contract or a third-party 

administrator (TPA) contract under the uniform group insurance program. The board 

may not establish a self-insurance health plan unless the boardemployee benefits 

programs committee determines the self-insurance health plan best serves the 

interests of the state and the state's eligible employees. Except for prescription drug 

coverage under subdivision c of subsection 1, if the boardIf the employee benefits 

programs committee determines it is in the best interest of the plan, individual 

stop-loss coverage insured by a carrier authorized to do business in this state may be 

made part of a self-insurance health plan. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.1-04.7 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

Page No. 3 21.0148.02000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

Page 356 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

54-52.1-04.7. Uniform group insurance program - Vision and dental plans.

The board may establish a dental plan, a vision plan, or both, for eligible employees. The 

board shall receive bids for the plan or plans pursuant to section 54-52.1-04. The 

boardemployee benefits programs committee may reject any or all bids and provide a plan of 

self-insurance. Premiums for this coverage must be paid by the eligible employee. Any refund, 

rebate, dividend, experience rating allowance, discount, or other reduction of premium must be 

credited as provided by section 54-52.1-06.

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.1-04.8 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

54-52.1-04.8. Uniform group insurance program - Long-term care plan.

The board may establish a long-term care plan for eligible employees. The board shall 

receive bids for the plan under section 54-52.1-04. The boardemployee benefits programs 

committee may reject any or all bids and provide a plan of self-insurance. Premiums for this 

plan must be paid by the eligible employee. Any refund, rebate, dividend, experience rating 

allowance, discount, or other reduction of premium must be credited as provided by section 

54-52.1-06.

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.1-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

54-52.1-05. Provisions of contract - Term of contract - Renewal of contract.

1. Each uniform group insurance contract entered by the board must be approved by the 

employee benefits programs committee, must be consistent with the provisions of this 

chapter, must be signed for the state of North Dakota by the chairman of the board, 

and must include the following:

a. As many optional coverages as deemed feasible and advantageous by the 

board.

b. A detailed statement of benefits offered, including maximum limitations and 

exclusions, and such other provisions as the board may deem necessary or 

desirable.

2. The initial term or the renewal term of a uniform group insurance contract through a 

contract for insurance, health maintenance organization, or self-insurance health plan 

Page No. 4 21.0148.02000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

Page 357 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

for hospital benefits coverage, medical benefits coverage, or prescription drug benefits 

coverage may not exceed two years.

a. The board may renew a contract subject to this subsection without soliciting a bid 

under section 54-52.1-04 if the board determinesrecommends and the employee 

benefits programs committee approves the renewal in the same manner as 

provided for approving a contract under section 54  -  52.1  -  04. In making a   

recommendation or determination, the board and employee benefits programs 

committee shall determine whether the carrier's performance under the existing 

contract meets the board's expectations of the board and the employee benefits 

programs committee, the proposed premium renewal amount does not exceed 

the board's expectations of the board and the employee benefits programs 

committee, and renewal best serves the interests of the state and the state's 

eligible employees.

b. In making a recommendation or determination under this subsection, the board 

or employee benefits programs committee, respectively, shall:

(1) Use the services of a consultant to concurrently and independently prepare 

concurrently and independently a renewal estimate the board and the 

employee benefits programs committee shall consider in determining the 

reasonableness of the proposed premium renewal amount. The board may 

not enter a contract for consultant services under this subsection unless the 

employee benefits programs committee has approved the selection of the 

consultant.

(2) Review the carrier's performance measures, including payment accuracy, 

claim processing time, member service center metrics, wellness or other 

special program participation levels, and any other measures the board 

determinesand employee benefits programs committee determine relevant 

to making the determination and shall consider these measures in 

determining the board's satisfaction with the carrier's performance.

(3) Consider any additional information the board determinesand the employee 

benefits programs committee determine relevant to making the 

determination.

Page No. 5 21.0148.02000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

Page 358 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

c. The board may recommend and the employee benefits programs committee may 

determine the carrier's performance under the existing contract does not meet 

the board's expectations, the proposed premium renewal amount exceeds the 

board's expectations, or renewal does not best serve the interests of the state or 

the state's eligible employees, and the board therefore may recommend or the 

employee benefits programs committee may decide to solicit a bid under section 

54-52.1-04.

SECTION 7. APPLICATION. This Act applies to contracts entered or renewed on or after 

the effective date of this Act.

SECTION 8. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure.

Page No. 6 21.0148.02000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Page 359 of 365



21.0170.01000

Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly
of North Dakota

Introduced by

Employee Benefits Programs Committee

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 54-52.1-04.2 of the North Dakota Century 

Code, relating to public employee uniform group insurance for health benefits; to provide for 

application; and to declare an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.1-04.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

54-52.1-04.2. Self-insurance health plan.

1. This section applies to a self-insurance health plan for:

a. Health insurance and prescription drug benefits coverage;

b. Health insurance benefits coverage, excluding all or part of prescription drug

benefits coverage; or

c. All or part of prescription drug benefits coverage.

2. Except for prescription drug coverage under subdivision c of subsection 1, a

self-insurance health plan established by the board under this section must be

provided under an administrative services only (ASO) contract or a third-party

administrator (TPA) contract under the uniform group insurance program. The board

may not establish a self-insurance health plan unless the board determines the self-

insurance health plan best serves the interests of the state and the state's eligible

employees. Except for prescription drug coverage under subdivision c of subsection 1,

ifIf the board determines it is in the best interest of the plan, individual stop-loss

coverage insured by a carrier authorized to do business in this state may be made part

of a self-insurance health plan.

SECTION 2. APPLICATION. This Act applies to self-insurance health plans effective on or 

after the effective date of this Act.

Page No. 1 21.0170.01000

 BILL NO. 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Attachment - Bill No. 170

Page 360 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

SECTION 3. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure.

Page No. 2 21.0170.01000

1

Page 361 of 365



21.0183.01000

Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly
of North Dakota

Introduced by

Senator Mathern

A BILL for an Act to create and enact section 26.1-36-09.16 of the North Dakota Century Code, 

relating to accident and health insurance coverage of diabetes drugs and supplies; to amend 

and reenact section 26.1-36.6-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to public 

employees self-insurance health plans; to provide for application; to provide an effective date; 

and to declare an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. Section 26.1-36-09.16 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and 

enacted as follows:

26.1  -  36  -  09.16. Insulin drug and supply cost-sharing limitations and formulary   

limitations.

1. As used in this section:

a. "Insulin drug" means a prescription drug that contains insulin and is used to treat

a form of diabetes mellitus. The term does not include an insulin pump, an

electronic insulin-administering smart pen, or a continuous glucose monitor, or

supplies needed specifically for the use of such electronic devices. The term

includes insulin in the following categories:

(1) Rapid-acting insulin;

(2) Short-acting insulin;

(3) Intermediate-acting insulin;

(4) Long-acting insulin;

(5) Premixed insulin product;

(6) Premixed insulin/GLP-1 RA product; and

(7) Concentrated human regular insulin.

Page No. 1 21.0183.01000

 BILL NO. 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

Attachment - Bill No. 183

Page 362 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

b. "Medical supplies for insulin dosing and administration" means supplies needed 

for proper insulin dosing, as well as supplies needed to detect or address medical 

emergencies in an individual using insulin to manage diabetes mellitus. The term 

does not include an insulin pump, an electronic insulin-administering smart pen, 

or a continuous glucose monitor, or supplies needed specifically for the use of 

such electronic devices. The term includes:

(1) Blood glucose meters;

(2) Blood glucose test strips;

(3) Lancing devices and lancets;

(4) Ketone testing supplies, such as urine strips, blood ketone meters, and 

blood ketone strips;

(5) Glucagon, injectable or nasal forms;

(6) Insulin pen needles; and

(7) Insulin syringes.

c. "Pharmacy or distributor" means a pharmacy or medical supply company, or 

other medication or medical supply distributor filling a covered individual's 

prescriptions.

d. "Policy" means an accident and health insurance policy, contract, or evidence of 

coverage on a group, individual, blanket, franchise, or association basis.

2. An insurer may not deliver, issue, execute, or renew a policy that provides coverage 

for an insulin drug or medical supplies for insulin dosing and administration unless the 

policy complies with this section.

3. The policy must provide cost-sharing for a thirty-day supply of:

a. Prescribed insulin drugs which may not exceed twenty-five dollars per pharmacy 

or distributor, regardless of the quantity or type of insulin drug used to fill the 

covered individual's prescription needs.

b. Prescribed medical supplies for insulin dosing and administration, the total of 

which may not exceed twenty-five dollars per pharmacy or distributor, regardless 

of the quantity or manufacturer of supplies used to fill the covered individual's 

prescription needs.

Page No. 2 21.0183.01000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

Page 363 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

4. A policy may not allow a pharmacy benefits manager or the pharmacy or distributor to 

charge, require the pharmacy or distributor to collect, or require a covered individual to 

make, a cost-sharing payment for a covered insulin drug or medical supplies for insulin 

dosing and administration in an amount that exceeds the amount of the cost-sharing 

payment for the prescribed insulin drugs or prescribed medical supplies for insulin 

dosing and administration under subsection     3.  

5. A policy may not allow for the use of a formulary to determine coverage of an insulin 

drug or medical supplies for insulin dosing and administration.

6. Subsection     3 does not require a policy to implement cost-sharing and does not   

prevent the implementation of cost-sharing in an amount less than the amount 

specified under subsection     3. Subsection     3 does not limit cost-sharing on an insulin   

pump, an electronic insulin-administering smart pen, or a continuous glucose monitor. 

This section does not limit whether a policy classifies an insulin pump, an electronic 

insulin-administering smart pen, or a continuous glucose monitor as a drug or as a 

medical device or supply.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-36.6-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

26.1-36.6-03. Self-insurance health plans - Requirements.

1. The following policy provisions apply to a self-insurance health plan or to the 

administrative services only or third-party administrator, and are subject to the 

jurisdiction of the commissioner: 26.1-36-03, 26.1-36-03.1, 26.1-36-05, 26.1-36-10, 

26.1-36-12, 26.1-36-12.4, 26.1-36-12.6, 26.1-36-13, 26.1-36-14, 26.1-36-17, 

26.1-36-18, 26.1-36-19, 26.1-36-23, 26.1-36-29, 26.1-36-37.1, 26.1-36-38, 26.1-36-39, 

26.1-36-41, 26.1-36-44, and 26.1-36-46.

2. The following health benefit provisions applicable to a group accident and health 

insurance policy under chapter 26.1-36 apply to a self-insurance health plan and are 

subject to the jurisdiction of the commissioner: 26.1-36-06, 26.1-36-06.1, 26.1-36-07, 

26.1-36-08, 26.1-36-08.1, 26.1-36-09, 26.1-36-09.1, 26.1-36-09.2, 26.1-36-09.3, 

26.1-36-09.5, 26.1-36-09.6, 26.1-36-09.7, 26.1-36-09.8, 26.1-36-09.9, 26.1-36-09.10, 

26.1-36-09.11, 26.1-36-09.12, 26.1-36-09.13, 26.1-36-09.14, 26.1-36-09.15, 

Page No. 3 21.0183.01000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

Page 364 of 365



Sixty-seventh
Legislative Assembly

26.1  -  36  -  09.16,   26.1-36-11, 26.1-36-12.2, 26.1-36-20, 26.1-36-21, 26.1-36-22, 

26.1-36-23.1, and 26.1-36-43. 

SECTION 3. APPLICATION. This Act applies to a policy delivered, issued, executed, or 

renewed after June 30, 2021.

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act becomes effective July 1, 2021.

SECTION 5. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure.

Page No. 4 21.0183.01000

1

2

3

4

5

6

Page 365 of 365


	AGENDA
	II. PRESENTATIONS
	A. RHIC Primer
	Attachment

	B. Callan Presentation
	Attachment
	Attachment


	III. RETIREMENT
	A. Asset Liability Study
	B. Investment Consultant RFP Update
	C. Quarter 2 Investment Report
	Attachment

	457 and 401(a) Renewal Discussion
	Attachment 1
	Attachment 2
	Attachment 3

	E. De Minimis & Internal Review Policies
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E


	IV. GROUP INSURANCE
	A. Deloitte Pharmacy Carve Out Study
	Attachment

	B. Health Plan RFP Executive Session
	C. FlexComp Voluntary Insurance Products
	Attachment

	D. Life Insurance Plan Renewal
	Attachment 1
	Attachment 2
	Attachment 3

	E. SHP Updates on COVID and Virtual ID Cards
	Attachment 1
	Attachment 2


	V. MISCELLANEOUS
	A. Audit Committee May Meeting Minutes
	Attachment

	B. Actuarial Primer
	Attachment

	C. Legislation
	Attachment Bill 49
	Attachment Bill 55
	Attachment Bill 68
	Attachment Bill 135
	Attachment Bill 136
	Attachment Bill 148
	Attachment Bill 170
	Attachment Bill 183





